Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@,

Council%

Environment and Regeneration Overview
and Scrutiny Committee

Agenda

Date: Monday, 12th February, 2018
Time: 10.30 am
Venue: The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1EA

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report.
It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making and
Overview and Scrutiny meetings are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to
the Council’s website
PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

To give consideration to the minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 2018

3. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

4. Whipping Declarations

To provide an opportunity for Members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to
any item on the agenda.

5. Public Speaking/Open Session

Contact: Katie Small
Tel: 01270 686465
E-Mail: katie.small@cheshireeast.gov.uk



A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on
any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee.

Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a
number of speakers.

Note: In order for officers to undertake any background research, it would be helpful if

members of the public contacted the Scrutiny officer listed at the foot of the agenda, at least
one working day before the meeting to provide brief details of the matter to be covered.

Performance update - Engine of the North (Pages 9 - 18)
To receive the performance report for Engine of the North
Local Transport Plan Refresh (Pages 19 - 262)

To give consideration to the Local Transport Plan Refresh



Page 3 Agenda ltem 2

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Environment and Regeneration Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
held on Tuesday, 23rd January, 2018 at The Capesthorne Room - Town Hall,
Macclesfield SK10 1EA

PRESENT

Councillor H Davenport (Chairman)
Councillor T Dean (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors H Wells-Bradshaw, C Browne, S Hogben, N Mannion, B Roberts,
G M Walton and M J Weatherill

12 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Hardy and M Parsons.

13 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 16 November
2017 .

RESOLVED

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.
14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor S Hogben declared a pecuniary interest in minute 20 due to being a
director of Ansa. In accordance with the Code of Conduct he left the meeting
during consideration of the item.

15 WHIPPING DECLARATIONS
There were no whipping declarations
16 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION

Sue Helliwell attended the meeting and spoke in respect of Pot holes and the
quality of repairs.

Town Councillor S Yates spoke on behalf of the Mayor of Crewe in relation to the
increase of homelessness and rough sleeping. He highlighted the difficulties the
homeless faced, the good work being done by Church Groups and welcomed the
new strategy.

17 HOMELESSNESS IN CHESHIRE EAST



18

Page 4

Consideration was given to a presentation on Homelessness in Cheshire East
which detailed:

The definition of homelessness
Homelessness Strategy Review

Rough Sleeping

Prevention and Relief

Comparisons

Homelessness Reduction Act and Strategy
CE Allocations Policy

It was noted that the main cause of homelessness was being asked to leave the
family home and that rough sleeping was on the rise. Members of the Committee
agreed that ensuring that the private rented sector provided adequate
accommodation and the changes to the benefits system was a challenge for the
Local Authority.

In regard to bringing empty homes back into use, it was agreed that Members
should notify the officer for empty properties if they were aware of any empty
properties in their wards.

RESOLVED

That an update report be brought back to the Committee in due course.

EXTRA CONTROLS IN THE PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR

Consideration was given to a presentation on extra controls in the private rented
sector which detailed:

o Strategic Housing work plan 2017-2018, including Members concerns,
and the requirement of greater regulation of HMO’s

e The establishment of a working group
Extension to Mandatory Licensing of HMO’s

¢ Implications for Cheshire East, the number of HMO’s would increase from
50 to 500

¢ Additional Licensing of HMQO'’s, the Council had the option to introduce an
additional Licensing scheme for the remaining HMO’s

e Planning

o Article 4 Direction process — removal of permitted development rights, to
ensure that planning permission would be required for all HMO’s in a
designated area.

o Selective Licensing for areas with a high proportion of private rented
housing.

It was noted that the possibility of implementing a selective licensing scheme in
Crewe Central/South was being investigated, the Committee agreed to receive a
report back on this in due course.

RESOLVED



19

20

Page 5

That a report on the success of implementing a selective licensing scheme in
Crewe Central and Crewe South be brought back to the Committee in due
course.

ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION BUDGET PROPOSALS 2018-
2021

The Committee considered the Pre-Budget Consultation 2018/21 relating to
Environment and Regeneration, specifically outcome 2 (Cheshire East has a
Strong and Resilient Economy) and outcome 4 (Cheshire East is a Green and
Sustainable Place) of the Council’s Corporate Plan.

The Executive Director of Place and Acting Deputy Chief Executive, gave a
presentation on the key proposals in the budget book relating to the
responsibilities covered by the Committee.

In relation to outcome 4 - Cheshire East is a green and sustainable place, the
Committee raised strong concerns regarding the proposed £500,000 revenue
saving relating to the Highways Contract and requested that if the saving was to
be made, assurance be given that this would be achieved through efficiencies
rather than a reduced level of service.

In relation to the development of a Car Parking Strategy, the Committee agreed
that the main objective of the Strategy should be to ensure a Parking Policy that
was fair to all residents of the Borough.

RESOLVED
That Cabinet be requested to give consideration to the following comments:

1. That further consideration be given to the proposed £500,000 revenue saving
relating to the Highways Contract, and that if the saving was to be made,
assurance be given that this would relate to efficiencies rather than a reduced
level of service.

2. That the Car Parking Strategy ensure a Parking Policy that was fair to all
residents of the Borough.

MID-YEAR ANSA AND ORBITAS REPORTS

Due to having a prejudicial interest, Councillor Hogben left the meeting during
consideration of the report relating to Ansa.

Consideration was given to the mid year performance reports for Ansa and
Orbitas. In regard to Ansa, it was noted that all performance indicators were
being met, ranging from the number of parks with green flag awards to the tonnes
of waste that was successfully reused. The operational performance indicators
were all being met.

In regard to Orbitas, it was noted that the minor maintenance team had exceeded
the contracted 1200 referrals per year. There were pressures meeting the
demands of the Crematorium at Macclesfield, which were being met by



21

22

23

Page 6

increasing the hours of operation. The possibility of using the chapel to help
alleviate the pressures was being considered.

RESOLVED

That the reports be received.
HIGHWAY SERVICE CONTRACT

Consideration was given to a presentation on the Highway Service Contract
which detailed:

The performance

Social values

Revenue key outputs
Winter Service

Capital update

Key achievements
Customer Satisfaction
Staffing

Third Party Liability
Community Engagements

It was noted that Cheshire East residents had a high level of expectation and
customer complaints had recently increased. Members raised questions relating
to the emptying of gullies and highway surface repairs. It was agreed that the cost
of providing a gold standard level of service would be circulated to the
Committee.
RESOLVED

That the costings of providing a gold standard level of service be circulated to the
Committee.

FORWARD PLAN

Consideration was given to the areas of the forward plan which fell within the
remit of the Committee.

RESOLVED

That the forward plan be received.

WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee reviewed its work programme.
RESOLVED

That an update report on homelessness and extra controls in the private rented
sector be received by the Committee in due course.



Page 7

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 6.30 pm

Councillor H Davenport (Chairman)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda Item 6

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

REPORT Environment & Regeneration
TO: Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting: 12 February 2018

Report of: Andy Kehoe

Subject/Title: Performance update — Engine of the North
Portfolio Holder: Clir Ainsley Arnold

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 Engine of the North (EOTN) was formed in 2013 as an Alternative Service
Delivery Vehicle (ASDV). This Committee received an update report on EOTN in
October 2016, and this report is in response to a request by the committee for a
further update in approximately 1 year’s time. The date has slipped until after
approval at central Finance Group meeting in November 2017 to release £1.9m
funds to EOTN for activity this financial year.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 The Committee is recommended to note the contents of this report.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendation

3.1 To ensure that the performance of EOTN is appropriately scrutinised.

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1  All wards

5.0 Local Ward Members

5.1  All Members

6.0 Programme Overview

6.1  The programme, on a wide range of development activities which will be bespoke

to each site/scheme but expected to involve:
¢ Resolving title/ownership issues including obtaining vacant possession

e Managing professional teams

e Marketing sites/schemes for sale

e Collaborating with neighbouring land owners to accelerate delivery or
maximise value,

e Preparing delivery strategies which overcome constraints such as highways,
ecology or utilities provision.

OFFICIAL
Page 1/5

Version 1



6.2

7.0

7.1

7.2

Page 10

e Working up business cases for further CEC capital funding and external
agency funding

e Working with other Council departments such as Highways and Education to
unlock wider scheme benefits.

The sites/schemes to be delivered are described in Annex 1 (at end of
document), but breakdown as.

4 Strategic Sites:
e North Cheshire Growth Village

e South Macclesfield Development Area
Leighton Green
Wilmslow Business Park

6 Housing Development Sites:
e Dark Lane

e Browning Street

e Hole Farm & Redroofs
e Crewe Pool

e Lindley Lane, Alsager
e Hollins View

4 Commercial and Mixed Use Disposals:
e Earl Road, Handforth

e Redsands
¢ South Macclesfield Development Area Commercial
e St Anne’s Lane

Financial Review

As reported previously, EOTN is different to other ASDVs in that it does not have
a revenue budget; rather virtually all its activity is capitalised as its primary
purpose is linked with generating capital receipts. In November 2017, Central
Finance Group approved £1.9m to provide working capital for the company. The
funding was approved at this late stage as EOTN had finalised a thorough and
robust review of the costings for their development programme, and the
anticipated value and programme of capital receipts.

The total funding requirement to deliver the Development Programme is £4.8m.
The receipt forecast of £41.3million is forecast by the end of 2020/21.

7.3 The company now shares monthly budget re-forecasts and monitoring reports with

the client at Cheshire East, providing much improved confidence in the financials.
The re-forecast actual spend to year end in March was at £1.35m. It should be
noted that spend is quite sensitive to variation as any delays in the programme
(eg site complexities or planning matters) has a knock on impact to the staff
resource allocations across the programme. The underspend is not therefore a
saving, but costs will be moved to the next financial year.

Version 1

OFFICIAL
Page 2/5



8.0

8.1

8.3

8.4

Page 11

Performance Review

A contract and service agreement, underpinned by the Company’s 3 year

business and delivery plan, was signed in May 2016.

Within the Council the Director of Growth and Regeneration is the
Commissioning Manager, Andy Kehoe is the Senior Responsible Officer for the
programme, with Vicki Godfrey supporting in the Contract Manager role. Whilst
the Director post is currently vacant, Andy Kehoe who is delivering this report, is
key client contact.

Projections, both outcomes and financial, are updated annually through business
planning process. These are informed by Client Instructions.

The following monitoring process is in place:

¢ Monthly financial and programme review with Council’s Contract Manager;

e Monthly submission of a Highlight Report via Council’s PMO (please note due
to illness a couple of these have been late submitted this year)

e Monthly contract and programme management meetings between SRO and
the Managing Director of EOTN;

e Call-In progress reports by Scheme to the weekly Portfolio Holder Briefing
Meeting, as identified at the meetings above.

8.5 The Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), baselined from EOTN’s Business Plan,

8.6

are:
Ref Priority Performance measure 3 Year Target
KPI1 Deliver capital receipts for CEC to value Disposal values received by way | £126m
and timescales agreed at point of client of Capital Receipt (CR) (stated up to &
instruction beyond 2020)
KPI2 Accelerate housing using CEC land & Homes on CE land consented 3133
property assets
KPI3 Accelerate housing through acquisition Homes on non-CE land 2100
and/or development of third party land consented
KP14 Maximise jobs growth through Commercial floor space 32,000
development of land and sites consented
KPI5 Jobs created 3950
(from 23.5ha land)

Based on the forecast produced for the March 2017 EOTN Business Plan,
performance against the KPIS are:

KPI1 — Forecast of £139m, against a target of £126m (up to 2020 & beyond)
KPI2 — Forecast of 2050 homes, against a target of 3133
KPI3 — Forecast of 2400 homes, against a target of 2100

KPI4 — Forecast of 20,000sgm commercial floor space, against a target of
32,000sgm;

KPI5 - Forecast of 4500 jobs, against a target of 3950

OFFICIAL
Page 3/5

Version 1




8.7

8.8

9.0

9.1
10.0
10.1

10.2

10.3

11.0

Page 12

KPI6 - Current average spend as % of disposal cost is 5.14%; against a target of
3.9%

KPI6 does not include receipts from disposals beyond 2020/21 (later phases of
Garden Village). It also does not include receipts from Phase 2 and Phase 3 of
Earl Road disposal. The scheme is currently at Public Enquiry. Betterment for
phases 1, 2 & 3 is also not included.

Recent successes include managing the disposal of Redsands in Nantwich for
£3.5million and working together with the Council's Highways & Housing
functions to attract HCA funding to invest in infrastructure at Leighton Green and
South Macclesfield Development Area.

Company Matters

None to report.
Risks/lssues

Unfunded revenue budgets

There would be significant revenue funding consequences to bringing any of the
individual workstreams to an end. Potentially, £3m capital funding would need to
be converted to revenue if the entire Programme was closed. Approximately £2m
of this is associated with the ‘big three’ — Garden Village, South Macclesfield &
Leighton Green.

Local Plan
Local Plan Allocations at SMDA, Garden Village, Wilmslow Business Park and
Leighton Green would not be delivered as per the housing supply forecasts.
Together those sites are due to deliver more than 4000 homes over the Local
Plan period.

Not taking forward any single scheme of this magnitude in line with current
expectations (both in terms of housing numbers and timetable) could have major
political consequences because it would undermine the Planning Authority’s
Housing Supply calculations and potentially create an opportunity for developers
to pursue unplanned development in the Green Belt and Open Countryside.

Reputational damage with central government

Failure to deliver schemes which the HCA are providing partnership monies to
such as SMDA & Garden Village would cause major reputational damage to
Cheshire East Council. It would also be a major political risk to Cheshire East.

It would also jeopardise substantial HCA external grant funding for public

infrastructure, such as the new Congleton Road — Moss Lane Link Road in South
Macclesfield & major improvements on the A34 corridor in Wilmslow/Handforth.

Access to Information

Version 1

OFFICIAL
Page 4/5



Page 13

11.1  The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the
report writer:

Name: Andy Kehoe
Designation: Head of Assets and Regeneration
SRO for EOTN
Tel No: 01270 686119
Email: Andy.Kehoe@cheshireeast.gov.uk
OFFICIAL

Page 5/5

Version 1



This page is intentionally left blank



m.‘h\.\
J"ff !’!.nr}

Cheshire East M_i

Council?

Engine of the North

Report to Environment and Regeneration
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

OFFICIAL

G| ebed



T

Engine of the North Cheshire East))

Council%

Ref Priority Performance measure 3 Year Target orecast at
arch 2017

Deliver capital receipts for CEC to value and  Disposal values received by way of £126m £139m
timescales agreed at point of client Capital Receipt (CR) (stated up to & beyond
instruction 2020)

Accelerate housing using CEC land & Homes on CE land consented 3133 2050
property assets

Accelerate housing through acquisition Homes on non-CE land consented 2100 2400
and/or development of third party land

Maximise jobs growth through Commercial floor space consented 32,000 20,000
development of land and sites

9| ebed

Jobs created 3950 4500
(from 23.5ha land)

Bring commercial expertise to minimise Costs associated with realising CR, as % 3.9% 5.14%
risks and maximise development value to of CR received
schemes supported

e Reforecast due in March 2018 Business Plan

OFFICIAL



Big Picture Financial Position

* Costs Vs Receipts Generated

&
50
=0
Mow 17
30
=
=
[=
o
20
10
. / -
Financial Year 201415 201516 20M8M7 20M7Ne 201819 20120 202021
i Total Cost of EOTH E1. 163, 654 EZ 170531 E3. 356771 EB 32T &8T5 ET031 356 ET 053 006 ER 553 821

I Tiotsl Flacei pte: & en ersted E2 000, 000 E7, 050,000 E14 485 8O0 E17, 5583 B0 E2, 483 B30 E38 453 8O0 E41 353, 8o

M._B. = Doesa not include recasipte from d=eposals beyond 2020021 (later phases of Garden Village) - £20 million.
= Does not include recseiptz from Phass 2 and Phaas 3 of Earl FRoad dizpoaal (c. £50 million) or any owverage
or battarment for phases 1. 2 & 3.

OFFICIAL

T
;;ﬁifﬂ}

LT

Cheshire East )
Council 7

L1 ebed



. -\
Key Risks Cheshire East

Council%

1. Unfunded Revenue Budgets
2. Local Plan

3. Reputational damage with central Government

g| abed

OFFICIAL



Page 19 Agenda ltem 7

Cheshire East Council

Environment & Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Date of Meeting: 12 February 2018

Report of: Frank Jordan, Executive Director of Place
Subject/Title: Local Transport Plan Refresh

Portfolio Holder: Clir Don Stockton — Environment

1. Report Summary

1.1 This report outlines progress against producing an updated Local
Transport Plan (LTP) for Cheshire East. The updated LTP will provide a
policy framework for transport across the Borough and guide investment in
the local transport network. Work in 2017 has produced an evidence base
and vision statement for LTP, as agreed at Cabinet on 12 September
2017. This report outlines an updated draft Local Transport strategy, which
is now proposed for public consultation.

1.2 The Local Transport Plan provides a framework for a set of thematic
transport strategies and wider policies affecting local transport provision in
Cheshire East. The draft LTP (as at Appendix 2 to this report) brings
these together in a coherent multi-modal framework taking account of the
local circumstances arising in Cheshire East. In particular, the LTP
preparation has been cognisant of emerging work on; a ‘Sustainable
Modes of Travel to School’ strategy, an updated high-level Car Parking
strategy (Appendix 4), Education Travel Policy, the Bus Service Review
and the adoption of an updated spatial framework in the Local Plan. The
relationship between the LTP and these supporting strategies is
summarised in the diagram at Figure 1 below.

1.3 The Council’s Highways service currently manages and maintains over
2,670kms of carriageway, 40,000 street lights and over 1,400 bridges.
This infrastructure is managed through the Council’s Highways Investment
Programme and is an excellent example of our evidence-led approach to
transport asset maintenance. The LTP considers how to continue
maintaining, managing and improving our transport infrastructure as
effectively as possible to maximise the level-of-service they provide in
meeting the travel needs of the borough.

OFFICIAL



Figure 1: Policy Framework of Cheshire East Local Transport Plan and Supporting Strategies

Local Transport Plan: Strategy

Strategic
Priorities Cheshire East Cheshire East Cheshire East
Local Plan Local Transport Plan Corporate Plan

Local
c Neighbourhood Town Plans Site-specific
ontext Plans Master Plans

0Z ebed

Local Transport Plan: Delivery Programme

Network Asset
Management Plan

Sustainable Modes

Cycling Strat
ycling Strategy of Travel to Schools

Major Projects
Implementation

Public Transport Rights of Way Speed management

Parking Strat
arking otrategy (Bus and Rail) Improvement Plan strategy

OFFICIAL



1.4

1.5

1.6

Page 21

Although the LTP primarily profiles transport and infrastructure needs
within the Borough, the strategy also proposes actions necessary at the
local level in respect of sub-regional, regional and national infrastructure
programme where these relate to the Borough. Key examples of this
include: HS2; Highways England and Network Rail investment
programmes; and Transport for the North and Midlands Connect
investment programmes.

In parallel with development of the LTP, the Council has been working
collaboratively with Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council and Transport
for Greater Manchester to update the South East Manchester Multimodal
Strategy (SEMMMS — see Appendix 3). The original SEMMMS strategy,
published in 2001, outlined a 20 year transport plan for the South East
Manchester area, incorporating neighbouring areas in East Cheshire.
Significant progress has been made in delivering the original strategy
(including delivery of A6BMARR and complementary measures) but this
now needs to be updated alongside the new LTP, and reflect the emerging
development proposals of the Greater Manchester Spatial Strategy and
adopted CEC Local Plan.

The new LTP4 strategy has developed a comprehensive set of actions to
address the strategic transport challenges for Cheshire East as defined in
the Vision document approved by Cabinet on 12" September 2017,
namely:

e Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity —
transport investment will be central to keep our economy moving and
achieving the sustainable growth set out in the Local Plan. The Council
will seek to ensure timely provision of infrastructure to support
development. We also need to plan now to capitalise on major growth
opportunities associated with a future HS2 Hub in Crewe and the wider
Constellation Partnership.

e Ensuring accessibility to services — the transport network plays a
role in creating sustainable communities with access to vital facilities
and services as well as friends and family. The transport network must
support these everyday journeys and deliver not just in our larger
towns but also for our smaller towns, villages, and rural communities.

e Protecting and improving our environment — with a growing
population and existing impacts of transport on local air quality and
noise we need to plan for alternative technology and sustainable travel
to mitigate these impacts.

¢ Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity — the transport
network can play a key role in promoting health and physical activity. If
current trends in Cheshire East, where a higher proportion of adults are
overweight than nationally, are to be reversed then the Council must
promote physical activity.

OFFICIAL



1.7

1.8

1.9

Page 22

e Maintaining and managing our network assets — ensuring the
transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained is vital to
both connectivity and safety. Reduced Council budgets combined with
a greater number of transport network users and an increased
incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make maintaining the
transport network and ensuring its resilience more difficult in the future.

e Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness — in the
coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities
relating to how we manage and fund our transport network. The
Council will work with central government and other partners to identify
how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent
transport and local government services are provided and how new
infrastructure is delivered and paid for. The Council has a history of
successfully securing significant external funding to invest in transport
infrastructure and services. There will be a need to continue this
excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network
that will support the growth targeted for Cheshire East.

There has been active engagement with Town and Parish Councils
representing the key local service centres throughout the Borough. This
has informed preparation of a set of Local Area Profiles which detail
specific transport challenges and opportunities for each locality. These
profiles have been produced through close cooperation with relevant
Neighbourhood Planning groups to draw on relevant evidence and
knowledge in Town/Parish Councils, Cheshire East Ward Councillors and
residents/stakeholders in local communities. This approach to each of the
local services centres is consistent in the proposed High Level Parking
Strategy, and town parking studies will be prepared for all 11 local centres
during the early years of the LTP strategy. It is considered that the
2018/19 priorities for completion of parking studies, based upon evidence
of manifest parking pressures, include Sandbach and Wilmslow.

Subject to approval by Cabinet, it is proposed that the updated Local
Transport Plan strategy, the associated Local Area Profiles and the ’issues
and options’ elements of the SEMMMS strategy be published for public
consultation, commencing in February 2018. This consultation will seek
the views of residents and stakeholders on the strategic framework for
local transport, to inform further development of both the strategy and
associated delivery plans. The outcomes of consultation will inform
production of a fully updated Local Transport Plan for Cheshire East,
which is expected to be available for consideration at Cabinet and Council
in Autumn 2018. Feedback received on the SEMMMS strategy will be
used, alongside the ongoing traffic modelling work to help prioritise a set
of future SEMMMS transport schemes. This final strategy will be consulted
on in Summer 2018.

This joint LTP and SEMMMS public consultation will seek views on:

OFFICIAL



Page 23

e The overall strategic approach required to meet the transport
challenges facing the Borough, as informed by our analysis of the
evidence base;

e Investment priorities considered to be necessary as part of a 5-year
LTP Delivery Plan, which will be prepared following this consultation
and updated annually to inform the Council’s annual programmes of
transport investment;

e The ‘Issues and Options’ elements of the SEMMMS strategy to
address future transport challenges in North of the Borough;

e The challenges & issues that have been identified for each of the
principal towns and key service centres in the Borough, plus any key
projects or initiatives that are considered important to address issues
including (but not limited to): congestion in local centres; parking
issues; traffic speeds; accessibility by walking, cycling and bus travel,
conditions of carriageways and footways; and rail connections.

The approach to community engagement will be informed by the Council’s
best practice guidance from the Corporate Research and Consultation
Team. The proposed Engagement Plan for this exercise is appended to
this report (see Appendix 1). As outlined in the Engagement Plan, the
various transport themed consultations running concurrently in early 2018
will be linked together through coordinated communications and ensuring
staff attending LTP consultation drop-in events are able to answer
questions regarding other consultations including: Transport for the North;
SEMMMS etc.

2. Recommendations

2.1

The Overview and Scrutiny committee is recommended to:

211 Note the proposals for public consultation on an updated Local

Transport Plan strategy for Cheshire East.

2.1.2 Agree any comments that the Committee wishes to present to the

Cabinet when this matter is considered on 6 March 2018.

2.1.3 Note that the results of the consultation and any proposed changes to

the Local Transport Plan will be reported to the Committee in June
2018.

3. Reasons for Recommendation

3.1.

The existing Local Transport Plan 2011-2026 for Cheshire East was
prepared at a time pre-dating the Council’s current planning framework, as
defined in the new Local Plan. It also reflects a period when there were
severe constraints on the Department for Transport’'s funding for major
infrastructure projects and block funding allocations to local authorities.

OFFICIAL



3.2.

Page 24

Hence a number of potential major projects within Cheshire East are
inadequately profiled in the current document. In this regard, the current
Local Transport Plan is no longer fit-for-purpose as a planning framework
for local transport throughout Cheshire East. Therefore, the time is right for
a review and refresh of this document to ensure that the Council maintains
a document that is robust and relevant to local priorities.

Likewise the original SEMMMS Strategy is now over 20 years old. In order
to properly plan for key ‘cross boundary’ transport challenges in the future
this work must be updated to take account of the schemes delivered by the
original SEMMMS strategy and the context of new and emerging
development pressures.

. Other Options Considered

41.

As the LTP is a statutory document, no options other than to update it were
considered. The proposed approach is considered to be a timely and
proportionate means of fulfilling this requirement.

. Background

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

The current LTP3 as published in 2011, was intended to be a framework
for strategic transport planning in Cheshire East. The plan was prepared at
a time when Government foresaw limited investment in local transport
infrastructure, especially major projects, leading to the Cheshire East LTP3
being outdated. There is a need to update our LTP to reflect the Council’s
accelerated investment in transport infrastructure across Cheshire East, in
the context of a new Local Plan spatial strategy. This paper outlines the
proposed approach to preparing an updated LTP.

The Council has set out a clear vision and strategy for jobs-led economic
growth in the new Local Plan. Successful delivery of this growth will
require a comprehensive and integrated approach to improvements in local
transport provision across the Borough, through development of both
transport infrastructure and transport services. A new LTP will bring
together strategies for all modes of transport to ensure there is a coherent
approach to meeting the Council’'s wider objectives for the economy,
environment and society throughout Cheshire East.

Local transport provision needs to be considered in the context of a
number of recent and emerging changes that have potential impacts on
Cheshire East, including;

e Cheshire East Council’s refreshed corporate objectives and adoption of
the principles of ‘Quality of Place’ as a key driver of strategy.

e Further progress on the new Local Plan which defines a forward-looking
spatial strategy for the Borough and has subject to a favourable
Planning Inspectors report.

OFFICIAL



5.4.

5.5.

Page 25

Development of a number of specific local transport strategies,
including the new Cheshire East Cycling Strategy and Sustainable
Modes of Travel to School Strategy.

Development of new infrastructure programmes by Highways England
and Network Rail.

Emerging evidence and strategy at the sub national level under the
auspices of both Transport for the North and Midlands Connect.
On-going work at the regional level to develop the Strategic Economic
Plan and support this through LEP-wide strategies for rail and strategic
road investment in both infrastructure and services.

Progress on neighbouring authorities spatial and economic strategies,
notably the new Greater Manchester Spatial Framework, with
implications for the north of the Borough and the need for an update to
the South East Manchester Multi Modal Study.

New legislation in the Buses Act 2017, which conveys new powers to
Local Transport Authorities for Enhanced Quality Partnerships.
Adoption of Neighbourhood Plans within Cheshire East, which help to
define local expectations and concerns regarding transport provision,
including local parking issues.

The Council’'s Medium Term Financial Strategy requires the Council to
increase revenue and increase value for money.

Long term plan led programmes such as HS2 and the Constellation
Partnership growth strategy.

Government’s new Clean Air Zones Framework.

Impacts and opportunities relating to innovative technology through the
wider adoption of smart solutions.

The requirements for active lifestyles, accessibility and wellbeing of an
ageing population.

A need to support businesses in Cheshire East to promote sustainable
transport and manage travel demands by car, thus reducing the
pressures on parking.

All of these considerations raise potential implications and opportunities for
local transport within Cheshire East. In order to ensure that the Council has
a clear, evidence-based position on these matters there is a need for them
to be considered as part of a refreshed Local Transport Plan.

The Local Transport Plan will be a statutory document maintained by
Cheshire East Council in its role as the Local Transport Authority. To
inform development of the Plan, it is vital to engage the public and
stakeholders in consultation on the proposed approach. At this stage of
development, a 8-week consultation period is expected to include:

Borough-wide circulation of consultation materials through libraries,
customer contact centres and other key venues e.g. transport
interchanges.

Web-based consultation questionnaires to enable feedback on the
draft document

OFFICIAL



Page 26

Staffed drop-in sessions for face-to-face discussion in each of the 12
main towns and local service centres.

Media releases, including social media, to publicise the consultation.

The approach to consultation will ensure there is, as far as possible,
coordination of events and key messages with other related public
consultation activities including SEMMMS.

. Wards Affected and Local Ward Members

6.1. All Wards in Cheshire East

. Implications of Recommendation

7.1. Policy Implications

7.1.1.Updating the Local Transport Plan will ensure that the Council

maintains a current statement of Local Transport Strategy in
accordance with its responsibilities as the Local Transport Authority.

7.1.2. Development of the LTP4 has been undertaken to ensure there is a

consistent policy-fit with all relevant adopted and emerging local
policies including: Education Travel Policy; ‘Sustainable Modes of
Travel to School’ strategy; and car parking strategy.

7.2. Legal Implications

7.2.1.

7.2.2.

7.2.3.

7.24.

As the statutory Local Transport Authority the Council is required to
maintain an up-to-date Local Transport Plan that provides a strategic
framework for planning and delivery of improvements in local transport
provision.

Development of the new Local Transport Plan will need to be in
accordance with statutory and legal requirements for Community
Engagement, Equalities Impact Assessment and Strategic
Environmental Appraisal.

Members must be fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously
considered, the equalities implications of the decisions they are taking.
This will ensure that there is proper appreciation of any potential impact
of any decision on the Council’s statutory obligations under the Public
Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum, this requires decision makers to
read and carefully consider the content of any Equality Impact
Assessments produced by officers.

There is no statutory duty to consult on proposals to change the way in
which a local authority carries out its duties but there is an expectation
enshrined in case law that any local authority making decisions
affecting the public will do so fairly and in a way that cannot be said to
be an abuse of power.

OFFICIAL



7.2.5.

7.2.6.

7.2.7.

Page 27

It is therefore important to test the fairness of the Council’s approach by
way of consultation on any changes which would have the effect of
withdrawing existing benefits or advantages available to its residents.
Such consultation should involve those directly affected by such
changes together with the relevant representative groups. The
responses to the consultation will need to be conscientiously taken into
account when Cabinet makes any future decisions on the Local
Transport Plan.

It should be noted that breach of a duty to consult would risk the
Council being subjected to legal challenge by way of judicial review.

Any Consultation must be conducted with adherence to the following:

(a) the consultation must take place at a time when the proposals are still
at a formative stage;

(b) the proposer must give sufficient reasons for any proposal to permit of
intelligent consideration and response;

(c) adequate time must be given for consideration and response;

(d) the product of the consultation must be conscientiously taken into
account in finalising the proposals.

7.3. Financial Implications

7.3.1.

7.3.2.

7.3.3.

A costed programme for the necessary tasks is prepared. The LTP4 is
being prepared over financial years 2016/17 to 2018/19. The costs for
producing a new LTP4 are estimated to be approximately £200,000.
This excludes any internal recharges for staff time to support the
process and the value of such recharges is still to be confirmed. The
costs of this are fully funded from within the Strategic Infrastructure
budget.

The refresh of the SEMMMS strategy is being funded from the monies
earmarked by Transport for Greater Manchester towards ‘cross
boundary studies’. As such there will be no direct impact on the
Council's budgets for this element of the work.

Upon completion and adoption by the Council, the LTP4 will provide a
policy framework to inform the annual capital programme for transport.
The LTP4 will be implemented utilising applicable funding from a range
of sources including: LTP Integrated Transport Block funding;
Community Infrastructure Levy; Section 106 & 278; the Council’s capital
and revenue programmes, one-off funding programmes and external
funding.

7.4. Equality Implications

7.4.1.

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed for the LTP to
ensure that the needs and impacts on all residents are understood,

OFFICIAL



7.4.2.

7.4.3.

Page 28

especially individuals or groups with identified protected characteristics.
This will be a evolving document until adoption of the LTP4. The
document will be updated following the consultation exercise to
incorporate comments from all residents.

The Equalities Impact Assessment notes that the LTP4 has been
designed to support delivery of the Council’s outcomes stated in the
2016 Corporate Plan, which aim to achieve the best outcomes for all
local residents.

The LTP4 strategy provides a strategic framework for a range of
schemes and investment for the future. As such future work will be
conducted to implement schemes and investment programmes. Further
Equality Impact Assessments will be undertaken for specific schemes
and investment programmes as they come forward.

7.5. Rural Community Implications

7.5.1.

7.5.2.

57% of the Cheshire East highway network is classed as rural serving
over half of our population. The quality and availability of the rural
transport network is vital to the local economy, not just in rural areas.
Rural transport provision needs to take account of the needs of rural
residents and visitors, enabling rural areas to be well-connected to
services and opportunities. The extent of rural connectivity has a direct
impact on the Borough’s overall ‘Quality of Place’.

The LTP includes detailed consideration of transport issues in rural
areas throughout the Borough. In principal, the policy objectives and
issues highlighted in the Plan apply throughout the Borough, including
all of our rural areas. However, it is also recognised that there can be
specific challenges that are of heightened importance in rural areas.
Consideration of these is aided by the place-based approach to the
planning process. This has put greater emphasis on how our key towns
act as service centres which must be accessible to residents of rural
issues. As part of the place-based approach, we have prepared a
specific Local Area Profile within the plan focussing on the challenges
and opportunities arising in our Rural Areas.

7.6. Human Resources Implications

7.6.1.

None

7.7. Health and Wellbeing Implications

7.71.

The LTP4 considers the impact of transport on issues affecting public
health, most notably Air Quality and the contribution that Active Travel —
walking and cycling — can make to health & wellbeing. The Plan will
need to be coordinated with the Council’s wider strategic approaches to
addressing public health outcomes. Officers from the Public Health
service are engaged in production of the strategy. The LTP4 also
proposes actions to improve accessibility to services (particularly health
services) in the context of an ageing and rural population.

OFFICIAL



Page 29

7.8. Implications for Children and Young People

7.8.1. Specific transport issues relating to children and young people are
incorporated into the LTP4. Strategy development has taken full
account of the Council’'s current work on a new draft Compulsory
School Age Education Travel Policy and the emerging Sustainable
Modes of Travel to Schools (SMOTS) strategy.

7.9. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Implications

7.9.1. The Local Transport Plan update is relevant to the work programme of
the Environment and Regeneration Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
It is proposed that the Scrutiny Committee is requested to consider
reports on the following matters relating to production of the updated

LTP;
e February 2018 — Approach to public consultation and
engagement
e June 2018 — Results of public consultation and amendments to
the LTP

e September 2018 — Finalising the LTP for adoption by Council.

7.10. Other Implications (Please Specify)

7.10.1. None

8. Risk Management

8.1. A Project Board has been established chaired by the Director of
Infrastructure and Highways to ensure appropriate project governance and
strategic direction. Monthly project highlight reports are prepared for the
Project Management Office. A project risk register is maintained detailing
mitigation measures.

8.2. Officer steering groups from both the Place and the People Directorates
have been convened to inform the production of the new LTP. This
approach ensures that relationships with policies in other service areas are
fully understood.

9. Access to Information

9.1. The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting the report writer.

Documents are held on file at:
\\ourcheshire.cccusers.com\East\LTPEast\LTP Rewrite 2017\Briefing
Notes

10.Contact Information

OFFICIAL



Page 30

Contact details for this report are as follows:

Name: Richard Hibbert

Designation: Interim Head of Transport

Tel. No.: 01270 686348 (landline) and 07852 722104 (mobile)
Email: Richard.hibbert@cheshireeast.gov.uk

List of Appendices

Appendix 1 - Engagement Plan

Appendix 2 - Draft Local Transport Plan

Appendix 3 - South East Manchester Multimodal Strategy (SEMMMS)

Appendix 4 - High-level Car Parking Strategy

OFFICIAL



Page 31 T
Cheshire E;?\l

Council?

Local Transport Plan
Consultation Plan — DRAFT

04/01/2018

Produced by:
John Davies

OFFICIAL



Page 32

Consultation Overview

Background/situation

The current Local Transport Plan (LTP), as published in 2011, was intended to be a framework for
strategic transport planning in Cheshire East. The plan was prepared at a time when Government
foresaw limited investment in local transport infrastructure, leading to the Cheshire East LTP being
outdated. There is a need to update our LTP to reflect the Council’s accelerated investment in the
transport infrastructure across Cheshire East, in the context of a new Local Plan spatial strategy.
The project entails numerous stages of work:

e Stage 1: Producing a robust evidence base to identify key strategic challenges in respect of
transport connectivity

e Stage 2: A vision document has been prepared which outlines how transport will contribute to
the achievement of the Council’s corporate outcomes and ‘Quality of Place’ principles

e Stage 3: Producing a place based Local Transport Plan strategy which details Boroughwide
investment priorities and 11 sub area profiles

e Stage 4: Public consultation on the draft strategy

Aims and Objectives

e Understand strategic and local transport challenges in the Borough which the LTP will need to
address;

e Understand any measures or proposals made by residents or other stakeholders for
addressing transport challenges in the Borough.

Desired outcomes

Gain a clear idea on what the LTP will need to include to meet the strategic and local transport
needs of the Borough.

Consultation Plan
Target audience

« Users of the various modes of travel in Cheshire East (bus services, flexible transport, rail,
active travel, vehicle driver, freight etc.)
o Inc. vulnerable groups (older people, IMD, disability)
o Young people (Youth Service Participation Forum)
e« Community & volunteer groups
e Council Members/ Councillors
« Employer organisations
« Schools and educational establishments
e Bus operators
e Town and Parish Councils
e Partner organisations and volunteers
e Neighbouring local authorities
« Statutory transport bodies (Highways England, Network Rail)

OFFICIAL



Page 33

Consultation Methods
e Hard copy survey
o Organising drop in sessions across the Borough at which residents can gain
information on the consultation process and support to complete the questionnaire
o Libraries and key contact centres information point containing poster and
guestionnaires (with pre freepost address)
o Posters on buses

e Online survey
o Cheshire East website — link
Posters on buses/ bus stops — QR code and weblink
Local press — weblink/ QR code
Social media pages — Twitter #CECLTP & Facebook page link
Send to members of the Digital Influence Panel members via an e-mail campaign —
est. 2,000 members.

o O O O

e Drop in sessions — run one session in each principal town / key service centre as defined in
Local Plan: Crewe, Macclesfield, Alsager, Congleton, Handforth, Knutsford, Middlewich,
Nantwich, Poynton, Sandbach and Wilmslow. Also run a drop in session in Disley due to
geographical nature of settlement. Strategic Infrastructure service to make appropriate
arrangements for these events in consultation with relevant town/parish councils.

e Engagement with hard to reach groups and people with complex needs through partner
agencies, including.

o Youth Service Participation Forum
o Local Plan Consultees List
o Other groups as advised by the Equality and Inclusion Officer.

Equality Impact Assessment

Strategic Infrastructure is undertaking and will own the Equality Impact Assessment which will be
published alongside this consultation.

OFFICIAL



Timescales

| Date — Week beginning

Activity
1% 8" 15" d h th th h th h h th
Jan Jan Jan 22" Jan | 29" Jan | 5"Feb | 12" Feb | 19" Feb | 26" Feb | 5"Mar | 12" Mar | 19" Mar
Draft questionnaire / materials
Finalise questionnaire
26!h 2”0 gth
Mar Apr Apr 16" Apr | 23@ Apr | 30" Apr | 7" May | 14" May | 21% May | 28" May | 4" June | 11" Jun | 18" Jun | 25" Jun | 2" July

Finalise questionnaire

Print paper questionnaire

Distribute questionnaire

Consultation period

Input paper questionnaire

Q/A checks

Analyse data

Draft summary report

OFFICIAL

p¢ abed



Page 35
Resources

Staffing

The consultation will be resourced by a team comprising specialist engagement, analytical and
transport planning staff.

The Councils Corporate Research and Intelligence Team will be engaged throughout the
programme to assure consultation methods and analysis are rigorous, and comply with any
relevant corporate or statutory standards.

Communication and publicity will be overseen by the Councils Media Team, to ensure that clear
and public-facing messages are made available to the public and local media to encourage
awareness and participation in the consultation.

Risk Assessment
e RISK: Unrepresented sample/results

o Due to low response from more deprived populations, young people and people
living in rural areas
o Due to campaign groups who may skew results

MITIGATION:

o Reach out to broadest possible range of age groups, demographics and partners —
see project communications plan

RISK: Legal challenge
MITIGATION:

o Follow Gunning Principles regarding consultation that have been challenged in many
judicial reviews as detailed below

o Formative Stage - Consultation must take place when the proposal is still at an
influential stage. You cannot consult on a decision that has already been made
otherwise consultation is not only unfair but also pointless and a waste of
time/resources. A council does not have to consult on all the options they have
considered and can consult on one preferred option, however, have to inform
respondents as such and inform of the reasoning’s behind the decision.

o Sufficient reasons — Those being consulted should be made aware of the basis on
which a proposal for consultation has been considered. It is important that you
provide all relevant information that could influence the nature of the responses to
allow for intelligent consideration. Areas where participants’ views cannot influence
the situation should be disclosed at the outset.

o Timing - Adequate time must be given for consideration and response. Formal
consultation should be open for a minimum of 12 weeks and ideally should not be
undertaken over holiday periods e.g. Christmas - you should not consult during
election periods. Other survey work which is not statutory in nature (such as this
consultation on supported bus services) should be open for between 4-12 weeks
dependent on the topic and target audience.

o The findings of the consultation must be thoroughly taken into account - The
decision maker must thoroughly consider the findings of the consultation otherwise
they can be accused of already having made up their mind or failing to take into

OFFICIAL



Page 36

account a relevant consideration of the results. An officer can summarise consultee
responses as long as it is a fair representation and they note all relevant points of
importance.
RISK: Various transport themed consultations running concurrently in early 2018
MITIGATION: Ensure various consultation are linked together through coordinated
communications and ensuring staff attending LTP consultation drop-in events are able to

answer questions regarding other consultations including: Transport for the North;
SEMMMS; Crewe Masterplan etc.

Reporting, feedback and evaluation
Analysis Tools
e SPSS - quantitative analysis
o Excel — qualitative and quantitative analysis
e Interpris — qualitative analysis
Report
e Full length report required

Public communication

o Full length report promoted on CE Consultation web page
o Media release of key points and promoting link to the full results

OFFICIAL



Page 37

f“: \\1
Cheshire Easf@g;
CouncilZ

Highways

Local Transport Plan

(2018 — 2023)

www.cheshireeast.gov.uk



SNy
PR

Cheshire East )\l
Council?

Highways

Document control sheet

Version 01; September 2017

Page 38

Project: Cheshire East LTP Refresh
Client: Cheshire East Council Project No: B1832116
Document title: ~ Version 1
Ref. No: B1832116
Originated by Checked by Reviewed by
NAME NAME NAME
ORIGINAL Martin Baierl / Laura Oliver Dan Sheppard Dan Sheppard
Approved by | NAVE As Project Manager I confirm | MMAS
John Davies that the above document(s) | JMD
have been subjected to
Jacobs' Check and Review
procedure and that I approve
them for issue
DATE 15/09/17 Document status: working draft for comment
REVISION NAME NAME NAME
Martin Baierl / Laura Oliver Dan Sheppard Dan Sheppard
Approved by | NAVE As Project Manager I confirm | MNMAS
John Davies that the above document(s) | JMD
have been subjected to
Jacobs' Check and Review
procedure and that I approve
them for issue
DATE  22/11/17 Document status: Draft for comment
RE\/ISION NAME NAME NAME
Dan Sheppard Dan Sheppard John Davies
Approved by | NAVE As Project Manager I confirm INITIALS
John Davies that the above document(s) | JMD

have been subjected to
Jacobs’ Check and Review
procedure and that I approve
them for issue

DATE

03/01/18

Document status Draft for comment




Page 39

SNy
Py

Cheshire East .
Council?

Highways

Jacobs UK. Limited

This document has been prepared by a division, subsidiary or affiliate of Jacobs U.K. Limited
("Jacobs”) in its professional capacity as consultants in accordance with the terms and conditions
of Jacobs’ contract with the commissioning party (the “Client”). Regard should be had to those
terms and conditions when considering and/or placing any reliance on this document. No part
of this document may be copied or reproduced by any means without prior written permission
from Jacobs. If you have received this document in error, please destroy all copies in your
possession or control and notify Jacobs.

Any advice, opinions, or recommendations within this document (a) should be read and relied
upon only in the context of the document as a whole; (b) do not, in any way, purport to include
any manner of legal advice or opinion; (c) are based upon the information made available to
Jacobs at the date of this document and on current UK standards, codes, technology and
construction practices as at the date of this document. It should be noted and it is expressly
stated that no independent verification of any of the documents or information supplied to
Jacobs has been made. No liability is accepted by Jacobs for any use of this document, other
than for the purposes for which it was originally prepared and provided. Following final delivery
of this document to the Client, Jacobs will have no further obligations or duty to advise the
Client on any matters, including development affecting the information or advice provided in
this document.

This document has been prepared for the exclusive use of the Client and unless otherwise
agreed in writing by Jacobs, no other party may use, make use of or rely on the contents of this
document. Should the Client wish to release this document to a third party, Jacobs may, at its
discretion, agree to such release provided that (a) Jacobs written agreement is obtained prior to
such release; and (b) by release of the document to the third party, that third party does not
acquire any rights, contractual or otherwise, whatsoever against Jacobs and Jacobs, accordingly,
assume no duties, liabilities or obligations to that third party; and (c) Jacobs accepts no
responsibility for any loss or damage incurred by the Client or for any conflict of Jacobs’
interests arising out of the Client's release of this document to the third party.



Page 40

Cheshire E&stg

Council?’

Highways

Foreword 7

1 Setting the Scene 8
11  Introduction 8
1.2 Whatis a Local Transport Plan? 8
13 The need for a new LTP 9
14 Progress and achievements 10
2 Our Vision 11
21  Developing the vision 11
2.2 The Corporate Plan 11
2.3 Quality of place 14
3 Developing the Local Transport Plan 15
31  Approach 15
3.2 "Daughter documents” 16
33  Process 17
34  Consultation process 18
3.5  Policy context 19
4 Connected at all scales 21
41  Connecting Neighbourhoods 21
4.2 Linking Towns 23
43  C(ities and the Sub-Region 24
4.4 UK Connectivity 24
45  Global Gateways 26
5 Defining the challenge 27
51  Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity 27
52  Ensuring accessibility to services 30
53  Protecting and improving our environment 32
54  Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity 3334
55  Maintaining and managing our network assets 34
56  Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness 36

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

6

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4

7

7.1
7.2
7.3
74
7.5

8

9

91
9.2
9.3
94
9.5
9.6
9.7

10

10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4

11

111
11.2
113
114
115

12

Page 41

How we will meet the challenge
Hierarchy of Provision
Delivering the vision

How we will decide what to do
Joined-up delivery

Active and Smarter Travel

Smarter Choices

Walking

Cycling

Other vulnerable road users
Integration with other modes / land use

Bus

Rail

Introduction

Current Context

Existing Constraints
Existing Connections
Existing Franchise Position
Growth Trends

Priorities for Improvement

Public Transport Information and Ticketing
Ticketing

Information

Facilities

Integration

Roads

The importance of the highways network in Cheshire East

Road safety

Network management

Parking

Integration with other modes / land use

Delivering for Cheshire East

&

(O8]
~J

N
o

ETE R

N
(0]

g

N
O

U
—

(o)
(@)

TR LG

()]
—

3

A

(O]
|l

[®))]
[l

()]
~J

(o]
O

()]
O

LEET28E

~J
iy

5

~J
[Oa]

~I
o

FEEE

~
~J

&

~J
[09]

[©e]
U1

O
N

TR ERE

O
V8]

w3
&

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 42

FECTIY
P

Cheshire Ea@;
Council?
Highways
121 Monitoring and evaluation 9596
12.2  Borough wide actions 9697
Appendix 1 102103

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan _



SNy
EN
0

Cheshire East ).
Council?

Highways

Foreword

TO BE WRITTEN FOLLOWING AGREEMENT/ADOPTION

Page 43

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 44

PECTIT
P >R

Cheshire East )l
Council?7

Highways

1 Setting the Scene

1.1 Introduction

This document is the second Local Transport Plan (LTP) to be developed by Cheshire East Council
following the re-organisation of local government in Cheshire in April 2009.

The LTP seeks to build on past achievements; including those guided by the previous plan period
whilst also responding to local, regional and national changes since the previous plan was
published in 2011. This LTP aligns with the Council’s Corporate Plan for 2016-2020 and the six
outcomes it identifies are embedded at the heart of our vision for transport. To ensure the
robustness of the LTP and its alignment with national policy it has been developed in accordance
with the Department for Transport (DfT) document ‘Guidance on Local Transport Plans’, whilst
also clearly reflecting local priorities. This includes ensuring that the five key goals for transport in
the UK identified by the DfT have alignment with and will be contributed to by success against the
Council's corporate outcomes.

The importance of transport is clear and well understood by the Council. An effective transport
network supports sustainable communities which have access to services, opportunity, friends,
and family. Whilst transport connectivity enables new development and urban regeneration which
contributes to the delivery of much needed jobs and homes in the Borough supporting the
Council's priority of jobs-led growth. The LTP also plays a role in promoting improved public
health and safeguarding the environment by reducing the negative impacts of transport.

12 Whatis a Local Transport Plan?

This LTP is a strategic plan for the development of transport within Cheshire East over the period
2018-2023, outlining how transport will contribute to and support the longer-term aspirations of
the Borough. The LTP will also detail planning a feasibility which is necessary during this period to
effectively plan for long term programmes investment programmes to 2030 and beyond. The LTP
will be supported by a series of topic-specific ‘daughter documents’ which will address detailed or
technical issues relating to transport in Cheshire East.

The LTP will remain a live document and will therefore be subject to ongoing review and
development. As new national and local policies, strategies and priorities emerge and new
challenges are identified, the LTP suite of documents will be reviewed and updated as required.
This reflects the fact that the LTP is a vital tool to help the Council work with stakeholders to
strengthen its place shaping role and its delivery of services to the community. Allowing this
document to remain live will enable the flexibility required to adapt to and capitalise upon new
opportunities as they arise.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan _




Page 45

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

1.3 The need for a new LTP

The Transport Act 2000 introduced a statutory requirement for local transport authorities to
produce a LTP every five years and to keep it under review. Following this the Transport Act 2008
updated statutory requirements to give local transport authorities more flexibility about how and
when they updated their LTP. Local transport authorities are now free to replace their LTP as they
see fit.

Cheshire East's LTP requires updating in part due to the substantial progress which has been
made since the previous plan was published in 2011, including major investment in the Borough's
transport network. In addition, the local, regional and national policy context has evolved with a
new Local Plan for Cheshire East emerging and the government placing renewed emphasis on
Local Economic Partnerships (LEPs) to drive economic growth. This creates opportunity to work
alongside the Cheshire and Warrington LEP and in partnership with organisations such as
Transport for the North, Rail North and the Midlands Engine to deliver for the Borough. Equally,
major projects such as High Speed 2 (HS2) have the potential to deliver significant benefit to the
Borough if supported locally and influenced nationally. There is also a need to respond to the
growth in the Greater Manchester Spatial Strategy and, in parallel, consider the outcome of work
on a 'refresh’ of the South East Manchester Multi Modal Strategy.

Subsequently, there is now a need to update the LTP to provide an updated plan and vision
which captures the Borough's priorities in the best interests of local residents and businesses. This
will support:

e Cheshire East Council's refreshed corporate objectives and adoption of the principles of
'Quality of Place’ as a key driver of strategy;

o Delivery of the new Local Plan which defines a forward looking spatial strategy for the
Borough;

e Development of a number of specific local transport strategies, including the new Cheshire
East Cycling Strategy and Sustainable Modes of Travel to School Strategy;

e Development of new infrastructure programmes by Highways England and Network Rail;

e Emerging evidence and strategy at the sub national level under the auspices of both
Transport for the North and Midlands Connect;

e On-going work at the regional level to deliver the Strategic Economic Plan and the
Industrial Strategy, and support this through LEP-wide strategies such as the Cheshire and
Warrington Transport Strategy;

e Progress on neighbouring authorities spatial and economic strategies, notably the new
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework, with implications for the north of the Borough and
the need for an update to the South East Manchester Multi-Modal Studly;

e New legislation in the Buses Act 2017, which conveys new powers to Local Transport
Authorities around bus regulation such as Enhanced Quality Partnerships;

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan _



Page 46

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

e Adoption of Neighbourhood Plans within Cheshire East, which help to define local
expectations and concerns regarding transport provision, including local parking issues;

e The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy which requires the Council to increase
revenue and increase value for money;

e Long term plan led programmes such as HS2 and the Constellation Partnership growth
strategy;

e Government's new Clean Air Zones Framework and the Clean Growth strategy;

e Impacts on travel behaviour and opportunities regarding the wider adoption of smart
technologies and infrastructure;

e The requirements for active lifestyles, accessibility and wellbeing of an aging population;
and

e A need to support businesses in Cheshire East to promote sustainable transport and
manage travel demands by car, thus reducing the pressures on the road network and
parking.

14  Progress and achievements

The Council and its partners have been successful in delivering against the priorities in the
previous LTP. This includes major transport investment guided by the previous LTP, including but
not limited to:
e Crewe Green Link Road improvements;
e A556 Knutsford to Bowdon improvements;
e Shared Space Scheme, Fountain Place, Poynton
e M6 Junction 17 Sandbach improvements;
e A500 improvements adjacent to M6 Junction 16;
e Basford West Spine Road delivery;
e Rail services and station investment such as the Crewe Rail Exchange scheme; and
e Successfully securing substantial government funding for walking and cycling programmes
and infrastructure through the Local Sustainable Transport Fund and the Sustainable
Travel Transition Year.

Nevertheless, there is no room for complacency. Over the coming years Cheshire East will face
new challenges which we must plan for now. The transport network will play an increasingly
important role and ensuring excellent connectivity will be vital to the Borough's continued success.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



—
COSAY
I’III’S\

S
>

Cheshire East ).
Council?

Highways

Page 47

2.1 Developing the vision

The LTP has been developed in partnership with stakeholders informed by analysis of key
evidence concerning transport issues and opportunities across the Borough. This process has fed

into the development of the following Vision for transport:

Cheshire East’s transport network will enable growth through improved connectivity, a
better quality of life and enhanced quality of place

2.2 The Corporate Plan

The LTP will be guided by the Council's Corporate Plan' which identifies six outcomes all of which
transport can make a significant contribution towards. This section identifies what transport
success against each of the six outcomes identified below will look like.

" Outcome

6

) A Responsible, A
% Effective & Efficient ¥
% Organisation &

Quality

of Place

Outcome

5

People live well
and for longer

1 Cheshire East Council, Corporate Plan 2016 - 2020

Outcome

p

Cheshire East has a
strong & resilient
economy

Outcome

3

People have the life
skills and education
they need in order
to thrive

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 48

Eﬁa
Cheshire Easf@\;l
Council?

Highways

2.2.1 Transport as a contributor to overall success

Below we identify what transport success against each of the Corporate Outcomes will look like:

What will success look like?

Outcome The transport system drives sustainable growth.

) The transport network supports sustainable development

) as identified in the Local Plan.
Cheshire East has a Improved transport connectivity positions Cheshire East in
strong & resilient the heart of globally competitive Northern and Midlands

economy economies.

High quality public realm and green infrastructure

encourage inward investment.

What will success look like?

Outcome
3 Young people and adults have safe, affordable travel
options to access skills, education, and opportunity.
People have the life More children are able to walk and cycle to school.
skills and education Young people and adults have access to travel
they need in order information and training as required.

to thrive

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




SO
F o)
)

Cheshire East ).
Council?’

Highways

QOutcome

4

Cheshire East is a green
& sustainable place

Qutcome

5

People live well
and for longer

Outcome

6

A Responsible, Effective
& Efficient
Organisation

Page 49

What will success look like?

Cheshire East maximises the value of its natural landscape.
All residents have access to places of recreation, leisure,
and the countryside.

The negative impact of the transport network on the
natural and built environment is minimised.

Air quality is improved.

Residents have the option to travel by walking, cycling,
and public transport.

The transport network is resilient to the impacts of
weather events and a changing climate.

What will success look like?

* Residents have access to physical activity opportunities
to make both leisure and everyday journeys.
Our streets are safe for all, especially the most
vulnerable users.
Residents have access to services and leisure
opportunities, including older people and those that live
in more rural areas.

The transport network does not negatively impact
health.

What will success look like?

Investment in the transport network provides excellent
value for money.

Transport management and investment decision making
is equitable and transparent.

The transport network responds to resident need.

The Council works effectively with partners at all scales to
bring about the best outcomes for Cheshire East.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 50

Tl
o R

Cheshire East ).
Council?’

Highways

2.3 Quality of place

The following case study focusing on the Council's objective to improve ‘quality of place’

demonstrates the importance of transport as a fundamental contributor to the wider success of
Cheshire East:

What is ‘quality of place’?

It is about the quality of our built and natural environment and its interaction with our
residents and businesses, the ability of individuals to make a life here, as well as valuing our
vibrancy and culture as a means of attracting visitors to our unique Borough.

A focus on quality of place supports delivery of outcomes that promote future prosperity and
retain the qualities valued by our residents and businesses. Studies show that innovators and
entrepreneurs are attracted to creative, cultural and beautiful places. We can therefore
support the economic well-being of our area by developing and communicating the
characteristics that hold us apart from our neighbours and competitors.

What are our priorities for ‘quality of place’?
Regeneration and growth;
Strategic infrastructure;
Planning and design;
Homes and neighbourhoods;
Connectivity;
Protecting and enhancing the built and natural environment;
Thriving rural areas;
Embracing and capitalising on the evolving nature and role of urban centres;
Promoting and safeguarding countryside access;
Economic development and business support;
Leisure, culture and heritage; and
Supporting people into work, skills, apprenticeships etc.

The role of transport

The overarching nature of transport means that it contributes, either directly or indirectly to
every one of these priorities. The Council will identify opportunities for transport to contribute
to wider objectives in an integrated way, including those relating to ‘quality of place’.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 51

PECTIT
P >R

Cheshire East )l
Council?7

Highways

3 Developing the Local Transport Plan

3.1 Approach

In order to ensure that the LTP reflects the diversity of Cheshire East whilst ensuring Borough
wide consistency a two tier approach to the development of the LTP has been adopted. This
approach ensures due consideration is given to local area issues and priorities, including through
the participation of local stakeholders.

To achieve this a Borough wide strategy has been developed identifying the aims and challenges
on a Borough wide scale. This has been supplemented by Local Area Profiles for key locations
(two Principal Towns, nine Key Service Centres and our rural area) which have been developed as
a means of both identifying and shaping local transport characteristics and priorities.

The Local Area Profiles give due consideration to the surrounding rural areas and smaller
settlements which is vital given the importance of the Borough'’s rural population and economy.
The selection of the eleven centres accords with other Council strategies (including the settlement
hierarchy identified in the Local Plan) and is based on criteria around population, transport issues,
opportunities for growth and future development. These eleven locations are identified below
alongside their corresponding and overlapping areas of rural influence and travel to work flows.

e Borough wide LTP — The Borough wide LTP identifies the transport goals, challenges and
actions for the Council and partners across Cheshire East.

e Place based strategies - The place based strategies identify how the issues and
opportunities identified in the Borough wide strategy relate to specific geographic areas.
They also set out the framework through which the process of identifying priority
intervention options for delivery will be developed.

Place based strategies have been developed for Cheshire East's two Principal Towns, nine
Key Service Centres and for our rural areas with each also providing specific focus on wider
areas than the town itself including the surrounding hinterland and neighbouring
settlements:

o Rural area

o Principal Towns
= (Crewe, and
= Macclesfield.

o Key Service Centres

= Alsager,

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



SNy,
P

Cheshire East ).
Council7

Highways

= Congleton,
=  Handforth,
= Knutsford,

= Middlewich,
= Nantwich,
= Poynton,

Page 52

=  Sandbach, and

= Wilmslow.
Principal Town Trafford Manchester,
2 Stockport
Key Service Centre Warrington
Local Service Centre 2
Disley
Handforth c Poynton
Wilmslow
Mobberley
Knutsford
Alderley Edge Prestbury
Bollington
Chelford
~ High Peak
Macclesfield (Buxton)
Cheshire West and Chester icton,
(Winsford, Northwich) Goostrey
Holmes
Middlewich  Pe!
- Congleton "
N Staffordshire Moorlands
Sandbag (Leek, Biddulph)
Bunbury
Haslington
Crewe Alsager
Nantwich  Shavington Newcastle- Key
under-lyme Between 7500 and 10000
trips
Wrenbury Between 5000 and 7500
Stafford Hps
Between 2500 and 5000
Audlem tips

Shropshire (Whitchurch)

3.2 “Daughter documents”

Between 0 and 2500 trips

Travel to Work Data (Census, 2011)

The transport priorities of the final LTP will be reflected in a series of technical, topic specific,
"daughter documents”. The scope of these documents will be separately determined for each,

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 53

SN
sy

Cheshire East )

Council?

Highways

but will consider the Council's approach to both statutory and non-statutory duties in the context
of wider priorities.

The list of documents below is not exhaustive, but helps communicate the interconnection of
these documents with the LTP and their importance:

Sustainable Modes of Travel Strategy;

South East Manchester Multi Modal Strategy Refresh (2018);
Network Asset Management Plan;

Rail Strategy;

Parking Strategy;

Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan;

Cycling Strategy;

Road Safety Strategy; and

Place based strategies.

3.3 Process

In line with DfT guidance a six stage process will be undertaken to develop this LTP and
supporting Place based strategies. Some of these stages have been completed as part of this
document for the Borough wide LTP and some will be undertaken on a place specific basis as
part of the development of the Place based strategies as identified below:

Borough wide LTP

1

Identify challenges and develop vision: production of a Baseline evidence report drawing
together the evidence base for the development of the LTP and subsequent identification
of transport challenges and vision.

Develop the strategic response: production of a Borough wide strategy highlighting the
overarching goals and objectives for transport in Cheshire East.

Place based strategies

3

Generate options to resolve these challenges: through examination of the evidence base
and detailed stakeholder engagement, including meetings with Town and Parish Councils
options were identified.

Appraisal of options: the feasible policy options have been appraised and their likely effects
predicted through stakeholder workshops, policy refinement and filtering.

Select preferred options: the strongest set of preferred policy options and priorities were
identified as influenced by stakeholder input workshops, the evidence base and emerging
draft strategy consultation feedback.

Strategy delivery: the preparation of an Implementation Plan which identifies priorities and
delivery phasing.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 54

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

The initial high level Vision document which informs the LTP was developed in line with the
Council's Corporate Plan and following engagement with stakeholders. The process sought to
identify genuine priorities for transport across a range of stakeholder and partnership
opportunities - not only those projects that the Council has the potential to support financially. In
many cases external funding from both the public and private sector will be required.

To inform the development of the LTP, data was gathered from a variety of sources to identify
trends and issues in wider social, economic and environmental circumstances. Existing transport
infrastructure and service performance has been assessed, and travel patterns analysed to build
up a picture of current and future transport challenges, and how they relate to the wider
outcomes which transport can either support or constrain.

34 Consultation process

Stakeholder consultation has been undertaken to inform production of the LTP through initial
workshops (with stakeholders and Council Members) in mid to late 2017. In order to reflect the
place based nature of this LTP meetings with representatives from the two Principal Towns
(Crewe and Macclesfield) and nine Key Service Centres (Alsager, Congleton, Handforth,
Knutsford, Middlewich, Nantwich, Poynton, Sandbach and Wilmslow) were also facilitated. These
meetings (supplemented by analysis of existing town and parish plans) identified local issues and
challenges, and enabled attendees to propose policy priorities.

Public and stakeholder views on the draft LTP will then be collated during the consultation period
in early 2018 through a survey form (available in libraries and information centres, and on-line)
and at consultation events (including presentations to town councils and public consultation
events in various locations).

The Place based strategies will be developed following the Borough wide LTP consultation period
and will be subject to public and Member consultation once available in draft.

3.4.1 Sustainability Appraisal Process

Government guidance and legislation relating to transport planning, requires that all new LTPs
should be subject to:

e Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)
e Health Impact Assessment (HIA)

e Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)

e Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 55

SO
F o)

)

Cheshire East
Council?’

Highways
A Sustainability Appraisal (SA) has been prepared in parallel with the draft LTP in order to inform

its development. The SA documents each of the elements above and sets out how the LTP
contributes to meeting environmental, health, equality, social and economic objectives.

3.5 Policy context

Developing a transport system which supports improved connectivity across rural and urban
areas, growth, a good quality of life, and a healthy environment will require a range of partners to
work together to integrate investment at the local, regional, Pan-Northern, and national levels.

Improved connectivity will be delivered in part by nationally significant investment such as HS2
which will deliver game changing rail improvements and act as a catalyst for growth in Crewe and
the wider Constellation Partnership. Whilst across the Borough more efficient motorways and
improved classic rail services will add additional value to industry and accessibility. However, HS2
is still some way in the future and the impact of major projects is most profound when supported
by planned packages of local interventions. It is therefore necessary that the Council ensures that
Cheshire East's transport system provides good connectivity for people and freight locally,
regionally, nationally, and globally.

Cheshire East will not thrive in isolation. Likewise concentrating on transport in isolation will not
ensure Cheshire East's success. There are numerous opportunities for transport to contribute to
related policy objectives. For
instance, the transport network
can play a role in improving
public health by promoting
physical activity. By linking
across different policy areas we
can ensure that transport
investment has an impact
greater than the sum of its
parts. This can be achieved by
ensuring the LTP feeds in to
local mode specific strategies
and wider policy documents
such as Neighbourhood Plans.
This will ensure that investment
is prioritised where it can bring
the greatest holistic benefit.

National

The diagram adjacent shows
the relationship between

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 56

o
Cheshire East ).
Council7

Highways

national, regional and local decision making bodies and policies. The Council will ensure that our
policies clearly reflect local priorities whilst aligning with regional and national policies. Where
appropriate we will also push for regional and national policies and organisations to reflect local
priorities in the best interests of the Borough's residents, businesses and visitors.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 57

SO
F o)
0

Cheshire East
Council?

Highways

4  Connected at all scales

Whilst the LTP is a local document focusing on Cheshire East it gives due consideration to the
vital connectivity required at all spatial scales and interconnections with plans made at the local,
regional, national and international levels.

Cheshire East is a diverse borough. Our towns and villages vary greatly in character with each
facing different issues and having bespoke needs for the future. The Borough also has extensive
rural areas with successful rural, agricultural and non-land based economy. Across this diverse
geography Cheshire East has a strong sense of place which the LTP will support. We need to
create a climate which supports success not just in our larger towns but also our smaller towns and
rural communities.

There is therefore a need to invest in transport infrastructure, services, and maintenance which
enable connectivity across all spatial scales and facilitates integrated, door-to-door journeys. To
succeed the transport network must get people and goods to where they need to be by
facilitating reliable and sustainable local accessibility, including the first and last mile of journeys.

Global Gateways (Manchester Airport,
Port Salford, Port Liverpool)

UK Connectivity (North Wales Growth
Track 360, HS2 and Classic Rail,
Strategic Road Network)

Cities and the Sub Region (Strategic
Road and Rail)

Connecting Neighbourhoods (Local
Bus Services, Active Travel, Urban
Realm)

4.1 Connecting Neighbourhoods

All journeys start locally. The LTP will aim to connect our communities with a focus on:
e Quality of place and improved public realm;
e Walking and cycling facilities linking homes and destinations; and
e Local passenger services (bus, flexible transport, community transport and rail).

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 58

FECOTT
o R
= \

Cheshire Eas@b;
Council?

Highways

Investment in walking, cycling, and the public realm is relatively low cost and there is research
indicating the quality of life and economic benefits that good quality urban design and active
transport infrastructure brings. Whether it is an improved local retail offer, better health
outcomes, more vibrant communities, attracting high value employers and the highly skilled
workers they need, or reduced congestion. In delivering these benefits the LTP considers the
needs of our rural communities which support over half of the Borough's population and
supports their sustainability by ensuring access to jobs and services.

Local bus services, flexible transport and community transport are an important part of
neighbourhood connectivity supporting important economic and social activity. The Council faces
financial challenges regarding funding supported bus services that must be addressed in order to
function efficiently and effectively for our residents. As such, the LTP considers how the Council
will respond to these challenges and utilise available resources in the most efficient manner. It
also discusses how the Council will respond to changing travel behaviour; including the increasing
trend towards urbanisation amongst younger people, the emergence of disruptive technology
such as ride sharing and Connected and Autonomous Vehicles, and more generally the ideas
around ‘Mobility as a Service'.

Movement and Place

The Council will promote neighbourhood connectivity which reflects the predominant
uses of a particular road or area of public space. This approach is informed by the fact
that the road network performs a variety of movement functions, with strategically
important roads carrying large volumes of people daily and others performing more
local functions.

The road network also forms the largest publically available space. Research has
consistently shown that the quality and design of the public realm has a significant
impact on how people interact with each other and their surroundings. Subsequently,
the place functions of streets e.g. seating, sightseeing, places to eat are of strategic
importance with significant economic and quality of life impacts.

Regardless of the way in which people travel they share similar objectives in terms of
direct, safe, quick journeys with minimum disruption. However, different modes often
compete for space and priority, which can cause conflict. Likewise, the movement
functions of roads can conflict with their place functions. The LTP seeks to manage
these conflicting demands on our roads and wider transport network.

Movement

Place

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 59

TSI
P NS

\

Cheshire East ).
Council?7

Highways

4.2 Linking Towns

Ensuring good connectivity to and between Cheshire East's Principal Towns and Key Service
Centres is central to delivering on our plans for growth. The LTP identifies priorities for improved
inter-urban connectivity focusing on rail, the local highway network, and bus services.

Recent research has highlighted the importance of small and medium-sized cities and large
towns in the North, the role of which is too often overlooked nationally’. These findings are
especially relevant in demonstrating the benefits that will accrue from improved connectivity
within and between Cheshire East’s urban centres. The economic and social importance of which
is demonstrated by the ‘corridor of opportunity’” which will be created through the provision of
improved transport connectivity between Crewe and Macclesfield by way of Congleton.

Improving rail connectivity between our principal towns and key service centres is a key priority.
Rail connectivity across the Borough varies, for example Middlewich with a population of 13,700
has no railway station. In comparison, Knutsford, with a population of 13,300 has the fourth
busiest railway station in Cheshire East. The railway line through Middlewich is currently used
solely for freight and the Council has an ambition to link Middlewich to the passenger rail system.

Enhanced rail connectivity requires new rail infrastructure, new rolling stock, and improved station
facilities and accessibility. Delivery of this requires the Council to work alongside key partners
including train operating companies and Network Rail. Future franchise negotiations also offer an
opportunity to inform service specifications and station investment to achieve a better outcome
for residents. An example of this is the Council’s input into rolling stock requirements and station
enhancements as part of the new Northern franchise which was recently let.

Small and Medium Sized Cities and Large Towns

Research suggests that in the case of small and medium sized cities and large towns in the
North investment in local connections can be equally as effective as larger projects which boost
inter-city connectivity. Local connections support strong employment markets within small and
medium sized towns and sub-regional commuting flows. This demonstrates the importance of
local investment in transport as a means of supporting bigger projects such as HS2.

Transport infrastructure investment in small and medium sized towns will enable greater
contribution to local growth, including supporting the success of neighbouring city regions and
other urban centres. Improved connectivity helps to build local resilience and maximises the
benefits of local assets; whilst also allowing our urban centres to respond to emerging
opportunities related to the evolving nature of town centres e.g. capitalising on agglomeration
benefits to develop specialised knowledge centres.

2|PPR (2016) The role of small and medium sized towns and cities in growing the Northern Powerhouse

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 60

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

4.3  (ities and the Sub-Region

Supporting movement between Cheshire and Warrington’s urban centres and the wider sub-
region will be increasingly important. Modelling shows that planned growth in jobs and houses
associated with the Local Enterprise Partnership’s Strategic Economic Plan requires delivery of a
road network which can support a 40% increase in demand on the M6, and M62 strategic road
corridors, and a 30-35% increase in demand through corridors such as Congleton, Middlewich,
M53/M56, and Alderley Edge. Achieving this will require strong partnerships with the Cheshire
and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership, Transport for the North (including concerning the
proposed Major Road Network), Highways England and Network Rail.

The Council supports the delivery of proposed investment in the sub-region’s rail and road
networks. Examples such as rail electrification, Crewe Station improvements, A6 to Manchester
Airport Relief Road, and the Congleton Link Road will all bring substantial economic and
connectivity benefits. However, ongoing investment will be needed to accommodate ambitious
levels of growth within the emerging Local Plan and supporting key priority programmes
included within the Local Enterprise Partnership’s Strategic Economic Plan including the
Constellation Partnership and the Cheshire Science Corridor.

44 UK Connectivity

Cheshire East enjoys a favourable location close to the key hubs of Liverpool and Manchester City
Regions and with direct connections to Birmingham and London. This advantageous position has
contributed to the Borough's past success and, with the right investment and management, will
contribute to its future prosperity. By bridging the key economic growth areas of the Northern
Powerhouse and the Midlands Engine the Borough is well placed to make a significant
contribution to rebalancing the UK's economy.

Indeed, Cheshire East with its variety of successful industries including advanced manufacturing
and pharmaceuticals has the potential to act as an engine for Northern growth. However, this will
require the Borough to be fully integrated through a transport network which offers effective
national connectivity for people and freight.

Cheshire East is located on a major growth axis. As a result, the northern part of the Borough is
generally well connected by road and rail north-south and east-west. But elsewhere, east-west
connectivity is poor, by all modes. Even where good road connectivity exists on the M6, and M56,
this spine of connectivity is congested and fragile. When it fails, not only is connectivity impaired,
but our sub-regional centres become congested due to diverting traffic. Increasing the resilience
of the transport network is vital for the 173,000+ jobs currently supported in Cheshire East and
the Borough's plans for growth.

Providing continued high quality national connectivity will require:

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 61

Cheshire East ).
Council?’

Highways

e Dedicated transport corridors between major centres for both passengers and freight;

e High frequency connectivity to and from key sub-regional centres; and

e National hubs, markets, gateways and ports to be brought under the economically critical
door-to-door travel time of one hour wherever possible.

Achieving this will necessitate investment in the strategic road and rail networks to ensure high
quality links between the Borough and the wider region including the Greater Manchester City
Region, Liverpool City Region, North Wales, West Midlands and Yorkshire. Nationally, key links
will need to be improved to London, southern England, Wales, and northwards towards Scotland.
The Growth Track 360 programme in particular will link Cheshire East and North Wales with the
proposed HS2 connection in Crewe to provide excellent connections to London and numerous
city regions. The LTP will aim to achieve this by integrating transport investment and provision
across all scales.

The arrival of HS2 will place Crewe and the wider Borough at the centre of one of the worlds
most advanced rail networks providing improved national and international connectivity.
Analysis has shown that a HS2 Superhub at Crewe has the potential to create more than
120,000 jobs by 2040 and inject £10bn a year into the sub-regional economy.

SCOTLAND '\"E\\\

~y

MANCHESTER

NORTH .» WARRINGTON
WALES (G
LIVERPOOL éi@ ‘ -
AIRPORT RUNCORN A
/A/AN(N(SY[R AIRPORT

cuesTeR .
SOUTH e
WALES @ ’5 ‘ ‘_>
SHREWSBURY

LONDON

BIRMINGHAM ©
60“\\

The Council is committed to delivering maximum benefits from HS2, whilst achieving
maximum mitigation for residents affected by the scheme. Maximising the potential benefits
from HS2 requires strategic planning over the lifespan of the LTP. Effective integration and
prioritisation of large and small interventions will ensure that HS2 achieves more than the sum
of its parts.

Whilst the Council is keen to build on the momentum of HS2 and the related prospects for
Crewe and the wider Borough the LTP will also look to exploit new opportunities, build on
current success and create a climate that is attractive for business investment and growth

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 62

FECS T
o R

Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

4.5 Global Gateways

Cheshire East is well placed to capitalise on the government's drive to further develop
competitive economic centres in the North and Midlands. To do this we must exploit our
proximity to global gateways for both people and freight by improving multi-modal access to
Manchester Airport, Port Salford, and the Port of Liverpool. We also must improve connections
with other significant global gateways such as Heathrow Airport.

Providing effective international connectivity is vital to encouraging inward investment and
ensuring that businesses can capitalise on global markets, particular in emerging economies.
Cheshire East is home to global brands such as Bentley Motors and AstraZeneca and the
continued competitiveness of these major employers, as well as the growth and success of local
talent, will be dependent on integrated transport investment connecting the local to the global.

Manchester Airport is the UK's northern global gateway handling over 22 million passengers a
year and contributing almost £1billion pounds to the UK's economy annually’. Due to its
proximity Manchester Airport is an important international gateway for businesses in Cheshire
East. The airport is also a key local employer with 8% of the airport’s staff residing in Cheshire
East. There is an ambitious programme of investment centred on the airport, including improved
surface access via the A6 to the Manchester Airport Relief Road and proposals to link Manchester
Airport with HS2. The Council supports improved connectivity between the Borough and the
Airport as a means of ensuring success for both Cheshire East and the Airport.

Freight connectivity is also vital for the Borough. Forecasting by Highways England and Network
Rail predicts an increase of 70% in freight via Liverpool Superport and a 25% increase in demand
elsewhere in Cheshire*. Improving road and multi-modal links between Cheshire East and global
freight gateways will be vital to ensuring we can meet and capitalise on this increased demand.

Digital Connections
High quality digital connections are just as important as good transport connections. The

wider Connecting Cheshire Partnership is striving to meet our target of 99% fibre broadband
coverage by the end of 2017 with an additional 96,000 premises reached by summer 2018.

Improvements in technology will also bring opportunities to reduce demand for travel, better
manage our transport network and improve communication with the travelling public. In
particular, it is envisaged that the trend for ‘Mobility as a Service’ will continue to evolve
through the utilisation of communication and technological advancements to offer tailor-
made transport on demand be it public transport, taxi or car rental, or ride-, car- or bike-

3 Manchester Airport (2016) Sustainable Development Plan2016: Economy and Surface Access
4 Cheshire and Warrington 871 LEP (2016) Sub-regional Transport Strategy

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 63

Ey
Cheshire East )
Council?

Highways

5  Defining the challenge

We face a number of challenges to achieving our vision for transport within the Borough and in
turn against delivering against the Council's corporate objectives. The main transport challenges
faced by the Borough have been identified through a review of key evidence and are summarised
below, namely:

e Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity
e Ensuring accessibility to services

e Protecting and improving our environment

e Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

e Maintaining and managing our network assets

e Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness

The Corporate Outcome(s) which will be contributed to by addressing each challenge are also
identified below against each challenge.

5.1 Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

Cheshire East makes an impressive economic contribution: its GVA is around
£9.2bn° (2012 estimate), which equates to 7.0% of the North West region’s “‘“2""“

economic output, and is the 6" fastest growing economy in the UK. Whilst an  [Sreaeisaes
internationally facing economy with strong foundations in advanced i e
manufacturing, life sciences, digital and energy technologies, and research
allows Cheshire and Warrington together as an integrated economic region to

outperform Manchester, Liverpool, or any other area in the North in terms of GVA per head®.

Despite this excellent past performance Cheshire East will not continue to thrive with a ‘business
as usual” approach to transport. The sustainable growth aspirations set out in the Local Plan and
the government’s UK Industrial Strategy are key elements in meeting Cheshire and Warrington
Local Enterprise Partnership’s ambition for a transformed economy. Strategic transport
investment will be central to achieving these wider ambitions for Cheshire East as outlined below:

o Unlocking development sites — Improved transport connectivity enables economic growth
by opening up key sites for housing and employment development. The Local Plan makes
provision for 36,000 new homes and 31,000 new jobs in the Borough by 2030. Providing
transport connectivity which makes these sites viable propositions is a key consideration as
part of the planning process. This is set within the context of a transport network which is

5 Cheshire East Council (2016) Local Plan Strategy proposed Changes (2012 estimate)
6 Cheshire and Warrington 871 LEP (2016) Sub-regional Transport Strategy

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 64

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

already congested in parts. Therefore, appropriate mitigation measures are required to
ensure growth does not negatively impact connectivity.

The South East Manchester Multi-Modal Study refresh is important to help identify where
investment will be needed to support growth in the borough and wider south Manchester. The
Council is supportive of on-going work to develop traffic models of the north of the borough
and south Manchester to inform where transport issues are likely to arise due to population
growth and development, as planned by the Local Plan and the Greater Manchester Spatial
Framework. It is important that the Council continues to work with neighbouring authorities,
including Greater Manchester to ensure that plans are joined-up and cross boundary issues
resolved.

e Transport as an enabler for growth — Longer term transformative economic programmes
such as the Constellation Partnership centred on the proposed HS2 Hub in Crewe will be
underpinned by strategic transport improvements. The provision of a HS2 Hub combined
with complementary infrastructure improvements could lead to an additional 120,000 jobs
in the sub-region by 2040 and inject £10billion per year in to the local economy. There is
also real potential for job creation in our rural areas as demonstrated by Alderley Park and
Waters Corp and transport will play a role in ensuring that rural areas continue to offer
opportunity for both land and non-land based businesses.

In order to unlock the ambitious growth planned for the sub region the transport network
must be able to cater for up to a 35% increase on current demand for movement between key
economic centres by 2040°. Investment is needed to facilitate this growth planned for the sub-
region; including capitalising on the transformational opportunities presented by the
Constellation Partnership, the Cheshire Science Corridor Enterprise Zone and the Atlantic
Gateway.

Although these are long term programmes, a key challenge within the lifetime of this LTP will
be setting the foundations of transport infrastructure to enable this future growth, whilst
simultaneously ensuring that mitigation measures are secured where infrastructure has the
potential to negatively impact residents.

e Keeping our economy moving — Cheshire East will be an engine for Northern growth and
will promote a dynamic and prosperous economy. We have a wide variety of successful
industries in the area including advanced engineering e.g. Bentley Motors and the
pharmaceutical industry e.g. AstraZeneca. However, we must build on our current
successes and create an environment that is attractive for business investment and
growth, not just in our larger towns but across our smaller towns and rural communities.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 65

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

An example of a location showing transport challenges but possessing real economic
opportunity is the Science Corridor which has been identified as an Enterprise Zone by the
Local Enterprise Partnership. There is a high degree of cross boundary travel between South
Manchester, Stockport and Cheshire East in terms of commuting to employment sites in the
Science Corridor. Subsequently, the relatively rural locations of key employment sites and
limited integration of public transport modes has resulted in high levels of single occupancy
car travel to these sites and operational issues for businesses including excessive demand for
car parking. The Council will continue to work with partners to improve accessibility to the
science Corridor.

The reason for this focus on improved connectivity is because whilst on the whole Cheshire
East is economically successful there are a number of urban areas predominately in Crewe and
Macclesfield which suffer from deprivation, and this has worsened since 2010. Delivering
improved transport connectivity is central to allowing areas which underperform economically
to reach their potential. For example, a survey at Crewe Jobcentre showed that 65% of
jobseekers found a lack of transport options was a barrier to working. More must be done to
ensure that everyone in Cheshire East has access to education, skills and employment.

A key challenge to achieving this will be ensuring that connectivity across the transport
networks supports the efficient movement of people and goods. This will ensure that
businesses can count on reliable and efficient networks which in turn will support their
operations and future prosperity. There are already significant pinch points on our network,
particularly in respect of road and rail links, which will need to be addressed to keep our
economy moving.

o Supporting the UK Industrial Strategy — Our approach to transport will support the
development of local and national industrial strategy challenges to build a modern
innovative economy through capitalising on digital technologies, clean growth, and in
particular, opportunities for smart mobility. We need to ensure that the Borough is future-
ready, attractive for investment, and is enabling the emergence of new and innovative
approaches to mobility locally. Underpinned by strong digital infrastructure, the adoption
of smart technologies has the potential to play a significant role in modernising our
transport system so it is effective and efficient in meeting growing demands. Alongside
this we will need to reduce the carbon intensity of transport, supporting the development
of electric and autonomous technologies, and mobility services, alongside offering
traditional active and sustainable modes of travel.

e Quality of place — Providing attractive and vibrant built and natural environments will
encourage inward investment through businesses and people choosing to live and work in
Cheshire East. There is an opportunity to increase the visitor economy to a value of £1bn
per year by 2020. The LTP has a key role to play in supporting the provision of high

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 66

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

quality, attractive environments which encourage walking, cycling, and public transport
whilst also effectively mitigating potential negative impacts of transport infrastructure. It
also has a role to play in encouraging sustainable connectivity between our urban centres
and their surrounding rural settings.

5.2 Ensuring accessibility to services

Cheshire East is a diverse borough

. . Outcome Outcome
characterised by its large number of °M°2°me 3 5
towns, each with its own distinctive Sheshire st s éﬁ?@i:ﬂ?ﬁ'ﬁif?ﬂi Feopl e well
history and character and all located economy ey eed n oder

in a largely rural setting. These towns
and rural communities lie at the heart of the Borough, and their vitality and growth is essential for
our prosperity. Indeed, the transport network plays a role in creating sustainable communities
with access to vital facilities and services as well as friends and family. The transport network must
support these everyday journeys and deliver not just in our larger towns but also for our smaller
towns, villages, and rural communities.

Growth in accessible employment is good for Cheshire East because employment is good for
peoples’ health and wellbeing. Generally, residents of Cheshire East lead longer, healthier lives
than regional or national averages. Indeed, Cheshire East is one of only two local authorities in
the North with a significantly higher healthy life expectancy than the state pension age of 65.
However, our population is also older than regional and national averages with people aged over
60 outnumbering children and young adults.

This ageing population will present challenges which the transport network must respond to. With
this trend forecast to continue we must cater for changing demographics and support mobility
for all, including those who do not have access to a car. To achieve our ambition, we must ensure
that transport supports:

e Public transport accessibility — Providing public transport accessibility for residents, especially

those in rural locations, is a key challenge in the context of wider financial constraints and as a
result of reduced budget availability for supported bus services.

The impact of this is especially relevant in light of Cheshire East's ageing population, with 22%
of our population aged over 65° and with the knowledge that the damaging impact of social
isolation which can be as harmful to health as smoking fifteen cigarettes a day’. The Council

7 Office for National Statistics (2015) Healthy Life Expectancy at Birth for Upper Ties Local Authorities, England: 2011 to 2013
8 Office of National Statistics (2016) Mid-2015 Population Estimates. Release: MYE9ATI
9 Holt-Lundstad et al (2015) Loneliness and social isolation as risk factors for mortality: A meta-analytic review

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 67

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

will maximise the impact and efficiency of our public transport budgets and seek innovative
ways to provide services in a cost effective way.

o Accessibility to education and skills - Cheshire East boasts nationally recognised higher
education and innovation assets. The transport network must support improved connectivity
at these locations and provide access to the skills, education, and opportunity needed to
succeed.

Children and young people must be able to access local schools safely and sustainably.
Around 65% of Cheshire East's children currently travel to school by foot, cycle, or public
transport and there is an ambition for this number to increase. To achieve this increase
parents must feel confident to let their children walk or cycle to school. The Council will
promote policies and interventions which encourage journeys to be made on foot or by cycle
where possible as a means of reducing congestion, increasing physical activity, and improving
air quality. More information on how the Council will support children and young people to
access schools and educational sites safely and sustainably will be provided in the
forthcoming Sustainable Modes of Travel Strategy, which will be consulted on in due course.

The Council has a responsibility to provide home to school travel for children and young
people under certain circumstances as directed by national legislation. The Council is
committed to supporting access to school and education, however the way in which these
services are provided and funded requires review as identified in the Council's Medium Term
Financial Strategy 2017/20. A consultation on the Compulsory School Age Education Travel
Policy has been undertaken and is being reviewed. The Council will work to explore a number
of options to ensure most efficient travel assistance is provided and explore ways to provide
greater cost effectiveness. This financial necessity will be linked to the stated ambition to get
more children and young people to access schools by active means due to the large number
of benefits which accrue.

As well as providing good quality local links the transport network needs to facilitate longer
distance journeys allowing young people and adults to access higher and specialist skills and
education providers. The Council will explore innovative uses of technology and further
integration of services to increase the sustainability, and efficiency of vital transport services
such as home to school transport and local buses.

o Accessibility for vulnerable people — Those who are vulnerable for whatever reason need to
be able to live fulfilling lives which are as independent as possible. Access to transport is a
fundamental part of this. The Council will work with partners across the Borough as well with
neighbouring authorities to offer improved transport choices to vulnerable people and their
carers. This can be particularly challenging in some of our rural areas and we will work with
communities to find the right solutions to support accessibility for all.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 68

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

e Rural accessibility — Good accessibility is vital to ensuring that our rural areas continue to
thrive economically and socially. Rural land-based and non-land based businesses require
connections to labour, markets and suppliers whilst rural residents need access to jobs,
services, friends and families. However, providing rural accessibility raises different issues than
in towns and cities due to low population densities for example. Rural schools tend to have
larger catchment areas making the provision of efficient transport more complicated whilst
low population densities tend to make bus services more expensive and more likely to require
financial support from the Council. The Council will explore innovative ways of ensuring rural
connectivity, including supporting community organisations to provide transport services.

5.3 Protecting and improving our environment

The biggest contributor to air pollution within Cheshire East is road

Outcome

transport'®. This impact on air quality is indicative of high car
Cheshire East has a

ownership in Cheshire East with 40% of households having two or  EEEIEE

economy

more cars against a UK average of 29%.

The decarbonisation of the Borough is also critical, tackling the affordability and availability of
energy to support growth and well-being. Although significant activity to decarbonise will be lead
nationally, we have a role to play in aiming to minimise the carbon intensity of our growth
ambitions through the adoption of new fuels, vehicles, smart technologies and encouraging
active travel.

One way of alleviating transport impacts is by encouraging residents, businesses and visitors to
utilise more sustainable and less polluting forms of transport such as walking, cycling, electric
vehicles and public transport. This will be increasingly important in light of expected population
growth of over 58,000 by 2030. The Council will work with partners to explore ways to positively
influence the ways in which we travel and to support:

e Improved air quality — The Council is committed to creating high quality walking and cycling
environments, increasing use of public transport and encouraging the use of low and zero
emission technology e.g. electric vehicles as a means of supporting improvements to the
quality of our natural and built environments. Technological development will also present
opportunities to increase the efficiency and sustainability of the transport network.

Modal shift towards more sustainable transport modes will improve air quality. The health
impact of poor air quality can be significant and across Cheshire East and there are currently

10 Cheshire East Council, What is air pollution?

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 69

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

eighteen Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) where emissions, particularly of nitrogen
dioxide, are considered to be in breach of guidelines. We will continue to monitor air quality
and take action in accordance with the Council’s Local Air Quality Strategy.

e Carbon intensity — Cheshire East has a higher than average per capita carbon emissions, at
around 7.5 tonnes per person, which reflects the rural nature of the Borough. This is due to
Cheshire East being a predominantly rural area, therefore a high proportion of trips are made
by private transport methods, hence why public transport usage is relatively low compared to
densely populated areas such as Greater Manchester, where there is a greater demand for
public transport. The UK has already seen a 40% decrease in carbon emissions since 1990,
and in line with the Climate Change Act we will see continued reductions though to 2050
when the economy will need to be almost totally decarbonised. Transport accounts for a
significant amount of the reduction required and we will need to work with national and
regional partners to ensure that we facilitate the introduction of low carbon technologies,
make better use of the infrastructure that we already have where this is applicable, and
encourage more sustainable modes of transport.

e High quality green infrastructure - As well as high quality built environments we value green

infrastructure across the Borough. Cheshire East sits in the heart of the beautiful Cheshire
landscape, with 6% of the Peak District National Park (with its 10 million visitors per year)
sitting within our administrative boundary. However, green infrastructure links within and
between our urban and rural environments offer scope for improvement. Improving these
connections through investment in green infrastructure will bring numerous quality of life and
economic benefits. The Council will support innovative ways of connecting our urban and
rural environments and utilising the transport network as a means of supporting tourism,
regeneration, and improved quality of life. This is because high quality environments bring
quality of life benefits, can encourage investment and can also provide direct traffic free
transport corridors for walking and cycling.

54 Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

The transport network can play a key role in promoting health and physical activity.
In the UK, physical inactivity causes around 37,000 preventable premature deaths

Outcome

People live well

amongst people aged 40 — 79 per year™ and it is forecast that by 2030 around and for longer
half of the UK’s population could be obese™. If current trends in Cheshire East,
where a higher proportion of adults are overweight than nationally, are to be

11 Cycling UK (2016) Cycling and Health
12 Swinburn, Boyd et al (2011) 7he global obesity pandemic: shaped by global drivers and local environments

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 70

o
Cheshire East ).
Council7

Highways

reversed then the Council must promote physical activity. Additionally, it is estimated that air
pollution in Cheshire East results in 175 deaths per year™.

Increased participation in active transport can significantly improve wellbeing and community
cohesion. Walking and cycling routes using well designed transport routes incorporating green
spaces have been shown to increase the emotional wellbeing and resilience of those using them.
There are additional benefits of more attractive communities and transport networks with
associated reductions in crime and antisocial behaviour. Subsequently, we will work with partners
across health, transport, and education to tackle these important issues and support:

e Walking and cycling for local journeys — The Cheshire East Cycling Strategy sets out an
ambitious plan to double levels of cycling by 2026. This will be supported by the provision of
high quality infrastructure, travel information and training which can encourage people to
travel in more sustainable and cost effective ways such as walking and cycling. The Council and
key partners will build on successful previous sustainable travel initiatives such as those funded
through the Local Sustainable Transport Fund to improve and support sustainable travel
options.

5.5 Maintaining and managing our network assets

Ensuring the transport network performs

Outcome

Outcome

efficiently and is well maintained is vital to both 2 6
o i Cheshire East has a A Responsible,
connectivity and safety. Reduced Council budgets strong § resilnt Gl

combined with a greater number of transport
network users and an increased incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make maintaining
the transport network and ensuring its resilience more difficult in the future. Subsequently it is
therefore important that the Council works to deliver:

o Effective asset management - Transport infrastructure is expensive with the gross replacement
value of all the Council's highway assets estimated at £5.68 billion'*. This consists of over
2,670kms of carriageway, 40,000 street lights, and over 1,400 bridges and other structures for
which the Council are responsible. Therefore, the Council needs to maintain and invest in
transport infrastructure as efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of
assets. Cheshire East's Highways Investment Programme is an excellent example of our
evidence led approach to transport asset maintenance.

13 Public Health England (2010) Estimating Local Mortality Burdens associated with Particulate Air Pollution
14 Cheshire East Council (2016) Highway Asset Management Strategy

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 71

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

Council?

Highways

Safety for all - Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel on our roads and use public
transport. We must ensure that safety is designed and engineered in to our transport system
and work towards a safe systems approach to road safety.

Furthermore, anti-social behaviour and fear of crime can dissuade people from travelling in
certain ways and at certain times of the day. We will work to address these issues so residents
feel safe and confident to travel by public transport, on foot, or by cycle. This includes
ensuring that school children are provided with safer routes to school.

Transport resilience - There is a broad scientific consensus that in the future we will see an
increasing incidence of extreme weather events'. Ensuring the transport network is well
maintained and resilient to these events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly
important. The Council will seek to ensure that our infrastructure continues to be secure.

Technological innovation — Improvements in technology will provide opportunities to better
manage our transport network and communication with the travelling public, including
through the use of machine learning and big data. Making best use of digital connections and
technological innovations will be important to the continued success of Cheshire East and we
are exploring the very real opportunities available through our work around the Crewe Smart
Region for example.

Effective partnership working - The maintenance and improvement of parts of the transport
network is outside direct Council control e.g. the rail and motorway networks. In these
instances, we will work with partners to ensure an integrated approach is taken to network
performance and asset management across the Borough and to identify opportunities for
value added delivery.

Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships with government agencies,
neighbouring local authorities and the private sector. Working alongside the private sector will
be increasingly important in the future as companies progressively focus on low carbon travel
behaviours as part of the wider corporate social responsibility agenda.

We will work effectively with partners to achieve the best outcomes for Cheshire East. The
Council will also maintain and enhance links between internal services to squeeze maximum
positive impact out of every pound invested. This will mean working with colleagues in the
private sector, health, education, and planning to ensure an integrated approach.

15 Department for Transport (2014) Transport Resilience Review

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 72

SNy,
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

5.6 Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness

Cheshire East Council is responsible for over 500 services, with a population of

over 370,000. Our annual turnover exceeds £700m and our resources are well- °“'°6°'“°
managed through our budgetary framework. Ensuring the Council operates in N

. . . . . . . . Effective 8 Efficient
an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all Council functions, “Organisaton

including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure. The Coundil’s
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/20 and our budget setting process ensures that the
Council invests in priority areas and maintains its financial health.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and
other partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent
transport and local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered
and paid for; in what is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history
of successfully securing significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and
services. There will be a need to continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the
transport network that will support the growth targeted for Cheshire East.

It is vital that the Councils’" decision making is transparent and equitable as difficult decisions
around where and where not to invest will need to be made. Subsequently, the Council’s
transport priorities must be clearly communicated. The LTP is the vehicle for this and informs our
residents, businesses and partners of our priorities and vision for transport in Cheshire East.

To maintain value for money the Council needs to demonstrate how local services will continue to
be affordable and to make changes to its approach where required. The Council has taken bold
steps to significantly limit the burden on local taxpayers since becoming an all-purpose Council in
2009 and are aiming to become increasingly self-reliant from central government funding.
Achieving self-reliance will be supported by creating economic growth in a way that efficiently
spreads the cost of services. Transport will be central to supporting this growth.

One key way in which we can support delivery against the challenges identified above is through
effective partnership working with neighbouring highway and planning authorities e.g. Greater
Manchester, Cheshire West and Chester, The Potteries, Warrington to ensure a joined up
approach. This partnership, in addition to our involvement in Transport for the North and the LEP
will help manage the potential impact of their plans on our transport network.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 73

Cheshire East ).
Council?’

Highways

6 How we will meet the challenge

In order to meet our objectives, we must have a clearly developed approach, as specified in this
chapter. This will help guide the activities of the Council and partners and deliver the vision for
transport.

6.1 Hierarchy of Provision

In order to improve efficiency and effectiveness the Council has identified a hierarchy of provision
where our first priority will be the maintenance and improvement of our current assets; we will
then seek to improve the ways in which transport services and infrastructure are delivered; before
we seek to deliver new infrastructure. Success against each of these three core priorities will
contribute to our vision for transport:

1.Maintenanc
e and Asset
Management

3.Delivery of 2.Service
new Redesign and
Infrastructure Delivery

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 74

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

6.1.1 Priority one - Maintenance and asset management

There is little point investing in the delivery of new transport infrastructure without effectively
maintaining the current transport network; including roads, footways, cycleways, shared use
paths, bus stops, structures and necessary street furniture e.g. street lighting and signage.
Furthermore, both planned and reactive maintenance as well as asset management is vital to
ensure safe and efficient movement on the transport network. The Council’s first priority will be to
maintain and improve our existing transport assets where cost effective. However, it is likely that
this will entail difficult decisions around prioritising maintenance budgets where they can bring
most benefit to the Borough.

The Council invested an additional £30million improving the condition of Cheshire East's
transport assets over the last three years through the Highway Investment Programme
reaffirming our strategic commitment to maintenance and asset management. Furthermore,
another £5million was invested in 2016-2017 in transport infrastructure improvements. This
investment has led to an overall improvement in our transport assets, including over 500kms of
road being treated since 2013 which has delivered a significant improvement in network
condition together with an 83% reduction in potholes, a 72% reduction in third party claims and a
98% reduction in compensation pay-outs.

Utilising the Councils approved Asset Management led approach, maintenance investment will be
allocated in line with member and resident priorities across all highway assets. Capital investment
will be targeted to deliver maximum value by adopting the right treatment at the right time with
an emphasis on preventative maintenance. Building on previous success the Council has
committed to investing £10million per year for the next three years in the maintenance of the
Borough's transport assets, including supporting our successful Highway Investment Programme
which utilises innovative laser scanning technology to assess the condition of the highway and
inform the identification and prioritisation of appropriate maintenance works. The Council will
always seek innovation to reduce costs and deliver the best value to residents and businesses and
will continue to do so; for example, by exploring ways in which more improvements can be made
at the same time e.g. by installing ducting for high-speed broadband whilst delivering highway
works. Another example of harnessing innovation is our focus on the opportunities presented by
smart technology across the Borough.

6.1.2 Priority two - Service Redesign and Delivery

The Highway Investment Programme described above is an excellent example of high quality
service design providing residents and businesses with investment in the transport network which

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 75

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

provides value for money and excellent results. Continuing this intelligence led delivery will
require further integration between transport, health, land use planning, and economic
development. Subsequently, the Council’'s second priority is to improve services and our delivery
processes as a means of delivering increased efficiency and effectiveness across the Borough.

Another recent example of the Council making changes to service delivery to ensure
organisational efficiency is the recent Supported Bus Service Review. The Council has identfied
significant savings in its supported bus budget to meet challenging budget targets required due
to the fact that overall the Council is expecting to see cash reductions of almost £100 million for
the three-year period 2017 to 2020 compared with the baseline budget for 2016/17. The focus of
the bus review was on providing the greatest value for money for residents with some poorly
used services costing over £5 of subsidy per passenger journey. This example shows how the
Council is prepared to make difficult decisions when required to ensure cost effectiveness.

Whereas in some instances the Council can work alone to deliver excellent services, generally
service improvements will require better integration between the Council and partners. For
example, the Council will increasingly work with central government and train operating
companies to influence the franchise specifications of rail services operating in Cheshire East to
improve services. Indeed, the recent example of the Northern rail refranchise shows that
significant improvements can be brought about by effective joined-up advocacy. Likewise, we
need to work closely with bus operators to prioritise bus services and ensure they connect as
many people and are as efficient and equitable as possible in light of reduced Council budgets
for supported bus services.

6.1.3 Priority three - Delivery of New Infrastructure

Once it has been established that an issue cannot be adequately resolved, nor an opportunity
capitalised upon through improved asset management and maintenance, or service redesign and
delivery then the Council will look to promote the delivery of new infrastructure to meet the
identified need. This is because the provision of new infrastructure can provide enormous benefit
to our visitors and residents but to ensure finance should only be invested in once alternative,
often cheaper, option have been explored.

An example of where investment in new infrastructure has the potential to bring significant
benefit to Cheshire East includes government plans for transformational national investment in
rail services. HS2 and the planned Hub at Crewe supported by Growth Track 360 proposals would
place Cheshire East in the centre of a high quality UK wide rail network; whilst improvement to
the strategic road network will bring benefit to Cheshire East if supported locally. Whilst
investment in new and improved road infrastructure in the Borough may be required to cater for
up to a 40% increase in demand forecast for vehicles on the strategic and local road networks.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 76

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Current investment including the A6 to Manchester Airport Relief Road will bring benefit but
more investment is needed to relieve congestion which threatens economic growth.
Subsequently, the Council is developing plans for major highway investment, including the
Middlewich Eastern Bypass, Poynton Relief Road and Congleton Link Road, and will continue to
support targeted major highway investment where required.

The examples above show the real benefits which infrastructure delivery can support. However, to
ensure efficiency we will only look to deliver new infrastructure where similar benefit cannot be
achieved through improved maintenance and asset management or service redesign and
delivery.

6.2 Delivering the vision

The interventions and priorities identified in the LTP, delivered via the prioritised framework
identified above will support the Borough to meet the transport challenges introduced and
discussed in Chapter Three. Below we give a summarised overview of activity which will take place
over the life of this strategy to meet these challenges.

6.2.1 Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

The importance of efficient connectivity to economic growth and success is well established. The
Coundil will work with partners to ensure that the growth benefits of improved connectivity are
maximised. The Council already works with a range of partners across both the public and private
sectors to support the Borough's economic success and this will continue and increase over the life
of this strategy. We will seek to contribute towards the implementation of the UK Industrial
Strategy locally, in line with the Local Plan and wider corporate plan.

The council has identified that the success of certain locations of real economic importance to the
Borough and the wider sub-region is being impacted by sub-optimum connectivity; our focus will
be on working with partners, including businesses at these strategic locations e.g. the Science
Corridor, town centres and Crewe Business Park to deliver improved transport efficiency. Specific
actions will include focusing on improving multi-modal connectivity by delivering improved access
on foot, by cycle and to the rail network. We will also explore ways in which vehicular access and
parking can be improved to key strategic sites whilst seeking to minimise any adverse impact on
the local highway network. An example of the work already underway is that undertaken by the
Skills and Growth Company on behalf of the Council to examine transport challenges and
opportunities along the Science Corridor. The Council is now working with local partners to
establish a project Board which will oversee and implement these improvements. We will also

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 77

F N
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

explore how smart digital technologies can be trialled and implemented to make our networks
more accessible, efficient and ready for future transport technologies and trends.

Supporting our businesses to succeed is also of vital importance for the long-term health and
sustainability of the Borough. Businesses need seamless access to workers and materials if they
are to compete nationally and internationally. The Council will work with partners, including the
business community to improve accessibility in support of continued success. This will take the
form of supporting employers to develop travel plans, tackling pinch-points and delay on the
network and encouraging employees to travel in more efficient ways. In support of this agenda
we have completed a strategic transport review with major employers in the north of the
Borough which has resulted in consideration being given to bus timetables and services.

The Council will continue to work closely with the Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise
Partnership (the LEP) to identify opportunities for and constraints to growth and to subsequently
agree sub-regional priorities. Cheshire East has recently formally joined Transport for the North
(TfN) and is currently working closely with TfN and constituent partners to shape the agenda and
priorities for transport across the North. Working alongside TfN there is a real opportunity to
shape strategic transport across the North whilst also working closely with national partners such
as Network Rail and Highways England to ensure Cheshire East gets the investment needed to
build upon previous economic success.

There is also a large role for improved local transport and public real to support economic growth
as identified in the Council's priority to deliver “quality of place”. The Council will work to ensure
that future development brings benefits to neighbouring localities and that a joined-up approach
is taken to the management of the transport network in support of economic success.

Action 6.1 — We will work with the LEP and other bodies e.g. TfN to agree sub-regional transport
priorities

Action 6.2 - We will lobby central government and its agencies e.g. High ways England and
Network Rail for investment that brings most benefit to Cheshire East

Action 6.3 — We will support the implementation of the UK Industrial Strategy locally including
contributing towards meeting the grand challenges for clean growth, mobility, and a data driven
economy.

6.2.2 Ensuring accessibility to services

The transport network supports all aspects of our daily lives, it therefore needs to support
accessibility for our residents and visitors to economic opportunity, skills and training, shopping
and utility destinations, leisure destinations, family and friends.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 78

o
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

Our approach to supporting the home to school journey will promote sustainable travel,
including walking and cycling where possible. This is because the journey to school represents an
important opportunity to develop a sense of independence and to ‘learn” mobility. Travel habits
are often formed at a young age; thus the choice of travel mode has broad implications for the
future. Just as with any other groups, developing more sustainable alternatives to the use of the
single occupancy car for home to school transport provides environmental and well-being
benefits; including improved fitness, road safety skills and an increased sense of independence.
Removing these trips from the road network where feasible also brings real benefits to other
members of the travelling public as demonstrated by the difference in highway delay observed in
school holidays. Our approach to supporting these journeys will be identified in the forthcoming
Sustainable Modes of Travel to School Policy expected in 2018.

The Council has a duty to provide home to school / college travel for eligible children and young
people in certain circumstances. The Council is currently updating our Home to School Travel
Policy to ensure that we are meeting or statutory duties; with implementation of the new policy
expected in 2018.

All residents need to be supported to achieve levels of connectivity which facilitate their daily
lives. The Council understands that for vulnerable people in our communities assisted and
accessible, door-to-door transport can be a lifeline. This is why the Council is seeking to achieve
as much as it can on its own budgets and through working in partnership with others and this will
continue. We also appreciate that access to transport and services can be more challenging for
those in our rural areas and need to ensure we have the right transport options in both rural and
urban areas for all.

One key way of supporting our aims above will be through ensuring that new residential
development, as directed by our recently adopted Local Plan is delivered in such a manner to
support efficient accessibility.

Action 6.4 — We will update our Sustainable Modes of Travel to School policy

Action 6.5 — We will seek to ensure that development delivered in line with the Local Plan is
accessible by different transport modes

Action 6.6 — We will support activities which reduce the carbon intensity and resilience of our
transport system.

6.2.3 Protecting and improving our environment

Transport has the potential to negatively impact the environment. In particular, reliance on the
private car is linked to numerous environmental and health issues as a result of emissions. The

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 79

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Council undertakes annual reporting of air quality within the Borough following a process defined
by government. In Cheshire East the main pollutant of concern is nitrogen dioxide as a result of
emissions from road traffic. The Council’s focus on promoting sustainable transport aims to reduce
reliance on the car which will deliver related environmental benefits. Likewise targeted investment
in the transport network has the potential to deliver improved air quality and the Council will
pursue these improvements wherever feasible.

One way in which transport can support environmental improvements is by supporting investment
in, and the creation of green and blue infrastructure. By this we mean the green and blue spaces
such as rivers, canals, parks which bring a wide range of benefits e.g. water storage, increased bio-
diversity, improved well-being and can also support active travel corridors. Improved blue and
green infrastructure is just one way in which we are committed to Quality of Place.

Action 6.7 — We will review and update our Local Air Quality Strategy

Action 6.8 — We will support the delivery of green and blue infrastructure improvements

6.2.4 Carbon reduction

Encouraging more active modes of transport such as walking and cycling, reducing the need to
travel and greater use of public transport can play a key role in reducing carbon emissions.
Technological change and new technologies also offer opportunities to reduce the carbon
intensity of the transport network. Further detail on these themes are provided in following
sections of this strategy.

Transport networks, and their associated green infrastructure, can provide valuable ecosystems
that can assist in the management of, and adaptation to climate change. This green infrastructure
can provide carbon storage by trees; sustainable drainage and water conservation; cooling urban
heat islands; and ecological connectivity. For example, linear transport features (such as canal
towpaths, public rights of way, road verges, cycle routes and railway embankments) are well suited
to enhancing wildlife connectivity across the countryside, as well as providing areas for carbon
storage, enabling better water conservation, and in towns and cities, providing valuable cooling
systems.

6.2.5 Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

The transport network has the capacity to improve the health and wellbeing of our residents and
visitors by reducing emissions and their impacts on air quality and supporting increased levels of
physical activity through the support and promotion of active transport for a greater number of
journeys. Embracing the potential of the transport network as a tool for supporting improved

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 80

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

public health is vital due to the large impacts air quality and physical inactivity can have on public
health.

Increasing participation in both walking and cycling can improve both physical health and
emotional health and wellbeing. Being active can help to reduce the number of people who are
overweight and obese and also reduce the risk of heart disease, lung disease, type 2 diabetes and
cancer. There are also significant benefits to mental and emotional health and wellbeing,
particularly when travel routes incorporate green spaces.

Through the Council's focus on active transport, as identified in the recent Cycling Strategy, the
Coundil will support journeys to be made actively wherever possible through a combination of
maintenance of active travel infrastructure, delivery of walking and cycling promotion and training
as well as the delivery of targeted infrastructure. We will work with a range of partners, including
those in Public Health to implement the Cycling Strategy and other active travel measures such as
the high quality infrastructure promoted by the government through Local Cycling and Walking
Investment Plans. The implementation of this kind of high-quality provision will support our
commitment to Quality of Place.

Action 6.9 — We will support increased levels of active transport, including through delivery of the
Cycle Strategy

6.2.6 Maintaining and managing our network assets

Our first priority in terms of supporting connectivity is the effective maintenance and management
of our transport assets, as discussed earlier in this chapter. The Council has developed an Asset
Management Policy that defines how the implementation of asset management will support CEC
in delivering its corporate vision. The Highway Asset Management Strategy (HAMS) sets out how
the Council will best manage the transport network taking into consideration customer needs,
local priorities, asset condition and the best use of available resources through invest to save
initiatives to realise the benefits of early intervention. This strategy will be used to inform priorities
in the Business Planning Process and will be used to support the continuous improvement of our
transport asset management by capturing the outcomes of using the optimum treatments or
interventions over the whole life cycle of the different asset groups.

A good example of this intelligence led approach to asset maintenance is the Highway Investment
Programme which is an investment programme informed by significant data on asset condition
ensuring that greatest financial efficiency and effectiveness are achieved. This intelligence led
approach to asset management and maintenance will continue with regards to all of the
Borough's transport infrastructure. We will also have regard to embedding the need for increased
resilience and adaptation into the management of our transport network. Where infrastructure is
the responsibility of other organisations e.g. Network Rail (rail infrastructure), train operating

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 81

o
Cheshire East ).
Council7

Highways

companies (rail rolling stock) or Highways England (strategic road network) we will work with our
partners to ensure a joined-up approach to maintenance in the best interests of our residents and
visitors.

Action 6.10 — We will deliver our Highway Asset Management Strategy

Action 6.11 — We will work closely with partners to support maintenance of transport
infrastructure which falls outside our remit

6.2.7 Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness

Our resources are well-managed through our budgetary framework. However, despite our well
managed finances there is a constant requirement to improve organisational efficiency and
effectiveness, partially related to the fact that overall the Council is expecting to see cash
reductions of almost £100 million for the three-year period 2017 to 2020 compared with the
baseline budget for 2016/17.

The approach to prioritising investment and ensuring organisational and financial effectiveness is
identified in the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy. This identifies the priorities and
budgetary allocations to different activities, some of the key activities identified in the strategy as
they relate to our three priorities for transport delivery are identified below but these are not in
any way exhaustive:

Maintenance and asset management

e Highway Maintenance - utilising the Councils approved Asset Management led approach,
maintenance investment will be allocated in line with member and resident priorities across all
highway assets including roads, footways, structures, and street furniture. Capital investment
will be targeted to deliver maximum value by adopting the right treatment at the right time
with an emphasis on preventative maintenance.

Service Redesign and Delivery

e Supported Bus Service Review — in order to ensure efficiency and effectiveness it is vital that
limited resources are invested in those areas with the most critical need. The Council needs to
make savings of £1.6million on its supported bus budget in order to meet challenging financial
targets. The focus of the bus review is on providing the greatest value for money with some
services presently costing over £5 of subsidy per passenger journey which is not an effective
use of limited budgets. The review will ensure that greatest benefit is obtained from the
budgets available for supported bus services.

Action 6.12 — We will deliver redesign of the supported bus network in line with the Bus Service
Review

Delivery of New Infrastructure

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 82

SNy,
P

Cheshire Eas’ﬂg

Council?

Highways

e High Quality Infrastructure — the Council and partners will deliver an investment programme in
major infrastructure projects such as the Connecting Cheshire Broadband scheme, the M6
Smart Motorway project, the Congleton Link Road, Macclesfield Movement Strategy, the
Poynton Relief Road and the Middlewich Eastern Bypass.

Action 6.13 — We will deliver a major rolling infrastructure investment programme

e High Quality Town Centres — we will focus on securing investment in our key towns to create
high quality places for residents, visitors and businesses which will include:

A long term regeneration strategy for Crewe Town Centre which will stimulate
investment and development in retail, culture, leisure, residential and employment
facilities;

Developing a strategy for the revitalisation of Macclesfield Town Centre; including, a
capital investment programme to significantly enhance the quality of the public realm
of the town centre with an ambition to enhance: the pedestrian experience, legibility,
cycling experience; town centre character; quality of place and general visitor
experience."

Working with partners to create a hub station which will connect Crewe through High
Speed rail and the classic rail network to key centres in the UK including London,
Birmingham and Manchester;

Through the Northern Gateway Partnership, which is an emerging economic
partnership between seven local authorities and two Local Enterprise Partnerships we
will deliver sustainable plan led growth in the Borough on the back of HS2 investment
at Crewe;

Delivering improvements and supporting the marketing of Middlewich town centre as
well as pushing for the reopening of the rail station; and

Investing in Congleton town centre’s public realm and securing the future use of a key
listed building.

Action 6.14 — We will support investment in quality of place supporting the creation of high
quality town centres

6.3 How we will decide what to do

We will engage with our communities, businesses, stakeholders and central government and its
agencies to identify issues which need addressing and subsequent relates interventions. Once we
have identified potential areas of investment in line with our three-stage hierarchy described
above we will complete a sifting process using an objective driven appraisal tool. The aim of this
process is to ensure confidence in delivery phasing and that investment brings most benefit to
Cheshire East through delivery of LTP priorities.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 83

FEOOOT
P >R

Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

6.3.1 Stage One

Stage One in this sifting and appraisal process will entail the following Red/Amber/Green scoring;
with any scheme or investment priority not scoring at least green or amber in all three categories
sifted out and not included in Stage Two of the appraisal process:

Deliverability Feasibility Value for money:

e.g. planning, timescale or e.g. physical constraint, land perceived value for money

third party issues availability or design issues

Deliverable in Theory Feasible in theory Likely to deliver value for
money

Very difficult to deliver Significant challenges Not likely to deliver value for
money

6.3.2 Stage Two

Stage Two of the sifting and appraisal process involves scoring each intervention on a five-point
scale against their expected benefit to each of the six transport challenges previously discussed,
taking in to account contributing factors as shown below:

1. Support growth and economic strength through connectivity
a. Capitalise on opportunities, including through maximising value of funding from
central government, the private sector and other sources
2. Improve access to services
a. In both rural and urban rural areas
b. Increase independence for younger/older/vulnerable people
3. Protect and improve the built and natural environment
a. Contribute to improved quality of place
b. Contribute to improved air quality and reduced carbon intensity
¢. Reduces carbon intensity of the transport network
4. Promote health, wellbeing and physical activity
a. Prioritise sections of the population / locations most at risk of health inequality
5. Improve the maintenance and management of the transport network
a. Ensure alignment with Highway Asset Management Strategy
6. Improve organisational efficiency and effectiveness
a. Ensure investment demonstrates value for money
b. Ensure programmes and interventions are evidence based, including through
actively engaging local communities to understand their needs and priorities

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 84

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

6.3.3 Outputs

The outputs of Stage One and Two will be a list of potential interventions which are all considered
feasible, deliverable and potentially offer value for money scored against their expected benefit to
Cheshire East’s six transport challenges. This list will inform the phasing of investment and delivery
to ensure delivery on the LTP priorities. Records of any interventions sifted out in Stage One, along
with the reasons why, will be kept to ensure that these can be appraised again in the future if the
situation or evidence available changes.

6.4 Joined-up delivery

New government initiatives, including the Northern Powerhouse and Midlands Engine for Growth,
place emphasis on the role of transport as a means of driving increased output and productivity.
This is because transport and the economy are closely linked, with employment acting as a
fundamental driver of transport demand and better connectivity driving increased productivity
and development. It is for this reason that ensuring an efficient transport system which supports
success for all will be increasingly vital to maximising Cheshire East's potential.

However, improved transport connectivity will not deliver on the ambitious plans for Cheshire
East on its own. Transport must be delivered in partnership with spatial planning, urban
development, public health, economic, environmental and social programmes to ensure
maximum benefit for Cheshire East's residents and businesses. Ensuring this integrated approach
will be vital to maximising the contribution of transport investment. Subsequently, the LTP will not
just focus on nationally significant projects but will identify links between all scales and types of
interventions including: new small and large scale infrastructure, new ways of delivering services,
partnership working, better communication and technological innovation.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 85

F N
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

7  Active and Smarter Travel

Active travel such as walking and cycling, complementing an effective bus and rail network,
should be at the heart of any transport strategy aiming to achieve a transport system which offers
travel choice. The public health, environmental, economic and transport benefits of active travel
have been consistently confirmed and many places are already benefiting from a larger share of
walking and cycling. In line with the national governments cycling and walking investment
strategy, the Council aims to “make cycling and walking the natural choice for shorter journeys, or
as part of a larger journey.”*®

Smarter travel means offering travel choices which are healthier, less expensive and with reduced
environmental impact. Smarter choices, which cover a range of policy measures, can be a
valuable toolkit in achieving this transition.

The following section will outline smarter choices measures initiated by the Council, such as travel
planning, school travel planning, and promotion and engagement. Thereafter the current state,
challenges and initiatives are assessed separately for walking and cycling. Finally, the integration
of active travel with the other existing modes and its interplay with land use is addressed.

7.1 Smarter Choices

Smarter Choices are transport policy measures including promotion, marketing, information and
training aimed at helping people to choose to reduce car use while enhancing the attractiveness
of alternatives. Smarter choices include a variety of measures such as workplace and school travel
plans, personalised travel planning, travel awareness campaigns and public transport information
and marketing, as well as car clubs and car sharing schemes, working from home and
teleconferencing. It has been shown that applying these policies and initiatives in a concerted way
has the potential to reduce local traffic levels and there is therefore a role for them to play in the
Borough's transport strategy.

Promoting active travel and engaging with employers and employees, pupils and students as well
as the public is a proven method of effectively influencing travel behaviours. Travel plans are also
a key element in the promotion of more sustainable travel. A travel plan is a set of measures that
are designed to help promote sustainable transport within a school, a business or a residential
development, with the main aim of reducing travel by single occupancy vehicles. A successful
travel plan will give anyone travelling to or from their place of work, education or home a choice
of travel options and provide encouragement to use more sustainable methods. Effective travel
plans often also include measures to manage parking on site.

¢ Department for Transport (2017) Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 86

=3
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

In many cases, a travel plan will be required as a condition to planning permission. However,
many schools and businesses choose to prepare their own plans, often in response to, but
sometimes to pre-empt problems associated with congestion and parking.

In 2012, the Council received a £3.5m grant through the Local Sustainable Transport Funding
(LSTF) for a three-year programme to promote and support sustainable travel. Through the LSTF,
£120,000 was awarded to businesses to address accessibility barriers, including the provision of
329 cycle parking spaces.

Building on this success, Cheshire East secured £350,000 of funding from the Department for
Transport's Sustainable Travel Transition Year (STTY) Grant to provide travel planning support for
businesses in Crewe.

The program focuses on access to skills and employment, enabling active travel and targeted
active travel promotion. This included ‘Smarter Ways to Travel’ business travel planning sessions,
business grants to improve sustainable travel options for their employees, travel planning for
businesses and education providers, targeted marketing of active travel through interventions in
companies and education providers, as well as signage and wayfinding to South Cheshire College
and University Technical College.

Travel Cheshire'’, an online platform developed by the Council, offers a range of travel advice for
all modes and personalised travel planning services. In order to support travel planning efforts by
businesses and organisations in the Borough, the Council is developing a comprehensive toolkit
for travel planning, funded through the Sustainable Travel Transition Year Grant, which will be
made accessible online via the Travel Cheshire website in the future.

Cheshire East hosted stage 3 of the 2016 edition of the Tour of Britain, UK's largest cycling
competition. The Tour of Britain attracted thousands of spectators from its start point in
Congleton to the finish line in Knutsford. Such events help to promote cycling and active travel as
recreational and everyday activity, with 59% of spectators stating that they were inspired to cycle
more often following the event.

Action 7.1 - We will continue to support the promotion of smarter choices as a means of
enabling leisure, commuter and business journeys to be made in more sustainable ways

Action 7.2 — We will continue to support employers, schools and other trip generators to
develop, implement and monitor effective travel plans through our online resources and advice
from officers where required

7 http://www.travelcheshire.co.uk/

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 87

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

7.1.1 School travel

Travel to and from school is of particular importance. Children are more vulnerable and exposed
to the dangers of road traffic, accounting for 10.5% of all people killed or seriously injured (KSI)
on Cheshire East's roads, with collisions with vehicles the most likely type of accident. Slightly
below half of school attendees walk to school, whereas a third travel by car and about 15% travel
by public transport, with levels of cycling remaining relatively low.

When comparing this against the national figures, Cheshire East has a higher percentage of
children travelling to school by car. Indeed, research would indicate that levels of childhood
inactivity is linked to increasing levels of obesity, leading to associated health problems. This
highlights the need to foster sustainable modes of travel to school and improve walking and
cycling infrastructure and journeys to and from schools.

We recognise that to achieve our targets there needs to be coordinated action by a wide range
of stakeholders. School communities are best placed to identify the particular measures which will
enable more sustainable journeys to their location. Schools will therefore be encouraged to
update their School Travel Plans and implement appropriate measures. We will work alongside
our delivery partners to provide a range of advice, resources and funding to support schools in
updating and implementing School Travel Plans.

A Travel Plan is a document which sets out the measures and initiatives a school or college will
use to reduce car journeys and promote other ways of getting to school in safer, healthier and
more environmentally sustainable ways. School Travel Plans have an important role to play in
promoting these alternatives. Cheshire East schools will receive support to develop a travel plan
to help facilitate sustainable access to schools and these should be monitored on an ongoing
basis, usually yearly or more frequently. As part of the effort to promote safer and more
sustainable school travel, the Council has assessed home to school travel and transport needs
and is now in the process of preparing a new Sustainable Modes of Travel Strategy.

Action 7.3 — We will support children and young people to access schools and educations sites
via sustainable modes wherever possible. Our approach to this will be identified in our
forthcoming Sustainable Modes of Travel Strategy.

7.2 Walking

Between 2012 and 2015, walking has increased by 13% in Cheshire East, the highest increase in
any local authority outside of London.*® This is very good news, as for short distances below 400
metres, walking is the ideal mode to access services, education and employment. It does not
produce any emissions or any type of pollution, uses very little space, its speed allows for social
interaction with other pedestrians and it is affordable for everyone, making it, together with

'8 http://www.bettertransport.org.uk/media/12-july-2016-walking-and-cycling-statistics-published

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 88

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

cycling, the most sustainable way to travel in Cheshire East. Besides, walking has been shown to
improve overall health and mental well-being by reducing the risk of cardiovascular disease and
cancer while strengthening bones, joints, mood and mental health as well as boosting the
immune system; thus we can say that walking supports people in the Borough to be happier,
healthier and independent for longer.

In addition, walking is not only limited to utilitarian purposes such as trips to shops, doctor, work
or school, but it is enjoyed by many for its own sake. Walking and hiking are important leisure
and recreational activities in Cheshire East and therefore the existence of designated, maintained,
safe and scenic walking trails and routes contributes to quality of place in the Borough and the
local visitor economy.

7.2.1 Current Context

In 2015, people in the UK walked 22% of their trips, which accounted for 3% of the total distance
travelled. Regarding travel to work, about one in ten residents in Cheshire indicated that they
walked to work in 2011, a small increase of one percentage point compared to 9% in 2001 and
equal to the national average.*

The existing network for pedestrians in Cheshire East comprises more than 1900 km of public
footpath or bridleway as well as 22 long distance walking routes which either pass through or are
entirely within Cheshire East with the most important asset for pedestrians being the highways
network and associated footways.

People’s satisfaction with the existing pavements and footpaths was rated at 51% in 2016,
therefore below the national average of 55%. Satisfaction with rights of way was somewhat
higher at 59%, in line with the 58% nationally.”®

7.2.2 Past Measures and Initiatives

During the previous LTP period, measures have been taken to improve footways and footpaths
such as verge improvements, removal of litter, provision of lighting and seating, but also
resurfacing and decluttering i.e. removal of barriers and obstacles. New routes have been
provided and existing bits of infrastructure have been connected to allow for better pedestrian
movements. Safe crossing points, dropped kerbs and wide pavements have been provided to
improve perceived safety and increase accessibility for disabled people. Signs relaying

¥ NTS 2015 and Census 2011
O NHT Survey 2016

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 89

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

destination, distance and time information for dedicated pedestrian routes have also been
provided.

Yet despite these efforts, issues with pedestrian infrastructure persist which need to be addressed.
These include the provision and safety of crossing points, signage and wayfinding, pavement
condition in urban areas, the width of footpaths and their proximity to motorised traffic, the lack
of provision in rural areas as well as the perceived safety of pedestrians and accommodation of
users with mobility impairments.

7.2.3 Priorities for Improvement

On the local level, walking policies are jointly delivered across the Rights of Way Improvement
Plan (ROWIP)** and the Local Transport Plan and their respective implementation plans.

Cheshire East benefits from an extensive public rights of way network with generally good
provision for walkers. However, gaps continue to exist and for cyclists, horse riders and users with
mobility impairments in particular, the network remains fragmented. Therefore, the priorities for
improving the public rights of way network are to improve, upgrade and connect up the existing
network by:

e Filling gaps in the existing network;

e Improving access opportunities for horse riders, cyclists and people with reduced mobility;
e Providing information and signs to inform use;

e Partnering with local businesses and the visitor economy to promote routes and trails; and

e Maintaining the network and improving surfacing.

The current ROWIP implementation plan for 2015 to 2019 puts forward ten interventions,
including three upgrades and five improvements of existing footpaths and towpaths, and the
development of two new off-road links. Likewise, the Council's latest Infrastructure Delivery Plan
outlines seven walking infrastructure priorities; as well as the creation of new walking and cycling
links in Middlewich and between Wilmslow and Manchester Airport.

Walking, just as cycling and horse riding, is a popular leisure activity not only for residents but
also for many visitors coming to Cheshire East. Therefore, popular routes such as the Sandstone
Trail and the Gritstone Trail, are to be supported and facilities for walkers and cyclists could

2! Cheshire East Council (2011) Rights of Way Improvement Plan, available at:
http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/documents/s10142/14%20-%20ROWIP%20Appendix%201.pdf

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 53



Page 90

FECTIY
P

Cheshire East )l
Council?

Highways

benefit from further improvement. This would also support the local visitor economy. A particular
beneficial investment are routes that serve a dual purpose as both everyday walking and cycling
links for commuters and local residents while at the same time serving as recreational routes or
trails.

Overall, the pedestrian network would benefit from

e Continuing highway footpath and public rights of way path improvement and surface
maintenance;

e Removing access barriers for users with reduced mobility;
e Linking existing pieces of infrastructure and closing gaps in the network;

e Improving rural provision, in particular to and from trip attractors and areas of interest;
and

e Providing safe pedestrian crossing points.

Action 7.4 — We will work to improve the quality of our footpaths and pavements, including
through targeted investment as part of our asset led approach to highway maintenance

Action 7.5 — We will connect existing parts of the pedestrian network, close gaps and address
safety concerns at identified hotspots

7.3  Cycling

Cheshire East's relatively compact settlements and mostly flat terrain lends itself to cycling as a
low-cost, healthy, energy efficient and enjoyable way of travelling. Using the bike not only helps
to easily achieve recommended levels of physical activity which many people throughout the
Borough struggle to maintain, but also improves physical and mental health and reduces the
probability of cardiovascular diseases and cancer.”?

Modal shift from car travel to cycling reduces local air pollution and lowers the carbon footprint
of travel in Cheshire East, while also reducing levels of congestion % which currently affects both
the local and strategic road network in the Borough. Each cycle journey that replaces a car trip
benefits all residents, businesses and visitors to Cheshire East.

2 Oja et al (2011) Health benefits of cycling: a systematic review
? Crawford and Lovelace (2015) The benefits of getting England cycling

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 91

oy
Cheshire Eas/@\ll
Council?’

Highways

Considering the wide range of important benefits and the government target to double levels of
cycling, the Council is committed to enable more people to cycle in safety, more often and with
confidence for everyday and leisure journeys.

7.3.1 Current Context

On a national level, cycling accounts for only 2% of overall trips and for a mere 1% of the total
distance travelled. In Cheshire East, 3% of all commuters cycle to work, about the same as in
England and Wales as a whole. However, this hides important local variation throughout the
borough, as displayed in the figure. below. In fact, levels of cycling to work range from below 2%
in Wilmslow and Congleton to more than 6% in Crewe** On average, cycling to work is more
prevalent in built-up areas than in rural areas, reflecting shorter distances and existing
infrastructure in the key service centres.

N

Middlewich
-

Travel to Work By Cycle
Census 2011 (Output Areas)
W 1=t Quintile 0.0% - 0.7%
[0 2@ Quintile 0.7% - 1.4%

3 Quintile 1.4% - 2.3%
[0 4" Quintile 2.3% - 3.7%
B 5" Quintile 3.7% - 18.6%

Contains Ordnance Survey data ©
Crown copyright and database right 2014

Travel to work by ¢ycle (Lower Super Output Areas, Census 2011)

 Census 2011 QS701EW Method of travel to work

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 92

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

While utility cycling is in line with the national average, the latest available data indicates that the
number of people cycling five times per week for leisure purposes is significantly higher than in
England as a whole.”

People’s satisfaction with the cycle routes and facilities was rated at 48% in 2016, therefore below
the national average of 52% and a 3% decline from 2015.%° The provision of cycle routes where
needed and location of cycle routes/lanes received the lowest scores, which were also rated
worse than in England as a whole. In contrast cycle training, cycle facilities at work, condition of
cycle routes and direction signing received better scores and were rated on the same level as the
national average.

Based on user satisfaction, the provision of cycle routes stands out as an area with potential for
improvement. According to stakeholder feedback, the lack of a coherent and consistent network
and perceived safety constitute major barriers to increased cycling levels. While on-road cycling is
common, there is only a limited amount of segregated cycle lanes or off-road cycle routes in the
Borough. Most of the local cycle infrastructure is concentrated in the key service centres of
Crewe, Nantwich and Wilmslow.

7.3.2 Past Measures and Initiatives

The previous LTP aimed to provide appropriate highway improvements and off-road routes for
cyclists, as well as junction improvements. Moreover, it sought to provide greater access to
cycling facilities, to improve signage and to undertake surface and lighting improvements on
existing links.

Several cycling projects have been successfully delivered in recent years, including conversions
and extension of cycle paths in Crewe; the installation of cycle parking in Crewe, Alsager and
Nantwich; accessibility improvements to Congleton town centre and railway station; improved
links between existing routes (in Ettiley Heath) and the railway station (in Macclesfield) and the
installation of cyclist counters. Young person and adult cycle training, ranging from learn to ride
and bikeability level 1-3 training to bike maintenance, commuter confidence and cycle ride leader
qualification has also been delivered throughout the Borough.

In March 2013 a major cycleway project linking Crewe and Nantwich was officially opened,
providing a car-free route cycle route between the two towns. The scheme cost £1.6m and was
funded by Sustrans’ Connect?2 programme, delivered by Cheshire East Highways and supported
by a Big Lottery Fund grant. The project directly benefits Reaseheath College, Leighton Hospital

% Active People Survey 2014
“® NHT Public Satisfaction Survey 2016

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 93

=3
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

and a number of major employers within the local area. Initial monitoring shows a 43% increase
in cyclists, using the route, 60% increase in pedestrians delivering a very high benefit to cost ratio
of 4.0.

7.3.3 Priorities for Improvement

The UK government published its Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy and technical
guidance for local authorities on Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans in April 2017. The
strategy presents the government's ambitions and actions planned to achieve them and provides
guidance on the cycling infrastructure investment process. The strategy, together with the
technical guidance for local authorities on Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans, inform
and guide the Council's investment in cycling infrastructure.

Cheshire East Council adopted a Cycling Strategy in 2017 as part of the transport strategy
framework. Driven by the vision to enable more people to cycle safely, more often and with
confidence for everyday and leisure journeys, it sets out guidelines for future cycling investment
for the 2017 — 2027 period. The main targets are to double the number of people cycling, to
improve public perception of cycling and to increase leisure cycling within the Borough. The
strategy’s objectives to improve cycling are outlined below:

(oYW Create and maintain safe, attractive, cohesive, direct and
adaptable networks and infrastructure

(o] Y AY-W M Ensure cycling is integrated with other transport modes,
transport networks, the public realm and new developments

(oY Q"X Ensure high quality facilities are in place to support people
who cycle and that will attract people to live work in the area

(oY G:-W: W Use targeted cycle promotion, education and training

(oY "X Integrate and align policies, procedures and practices to
encourage cycling

(ot "YW Provide residents, officers and organisations of Cheshire
East the tools to deliver cycle-friendly infrastructure &
initiatives

Objectives of the Cheshire East Cycling Strategy

A perceived lack of safety, together with the fragmented cycling network, are consistently
identified as the main barriers to higher levels of cycling in the Borough. Building a cohesive and
high quality network of cycle lanes and paths is therefore key to making cycling more attractive in
Cheshire East. Delivering this cycle-friendly environment will rely on cycling infrastructure which is
safe, attractive, cohesive, direct and adaptable.

The strategy will therefore support delivery of a network of key routes for cycling that link with
existing local routes in order to connect residents and visitors to jobs, skills, schools, services and

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 94

3‘53.3
Cheshire Easf@;l
Council?

Highways

leisure opportunities. The envisaged network of strategic cycle routes is displayed in the figure
below.

Links fo Greater Links to Stockport
Manchester and East Manchester

POYNTION

\ | MANCHESTER AIRPORT
ENTERPRISE ZONE

Middiewood Way

‘\ Links info

Peok District
BOLLINGTON

SCIENCE CORRIDOR
ENTERPRISE TONE

MACCLESFIELD

h
Hono HOLMES

NORTHERN GATEWAY
DEVELOPMENT ZONE

KIDSGROVE

Strategic Cycle Routes in Cheshire East

The existing network of leisure routes is an essential asset to encourage leisure cycling and
support the local visitor economy. These routes can also fulfil a double function as they do not
only provide scenic leisure routes but also connect residential areas with workplaces and are
therefore suitable for utilitarian cycling, too.

In order to make cycling the natural choice, cycling needs to be integrated with other modes, in
particular public transport by bus and rail, but also with the wider transport network, which can -
in the form of the major road network — represent a barrier to local cycling trips. Similarly, cycling
and cyclists' needs ought to be considered when designing the public realm and new
developments. Doing so will reduce barriers for cycling, create more seamless journeys and
facilitate cycling as part of a longer, multi-modal journey.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 95

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

The continued, targeted promotion of cycling in businesses, schools and communities and the
provision of cycle education and training ought to complement the creation of high quality
infrastructure. Together with the integration and alignment of policies, procedures and practices
to encourage cycling, this will ensure the most efficient use of existing infrastructure and
resources for cycling in Cheshire East.

As laid out in the Cycling Strategy, Town Cycling Plans will be developed under the lead of local
cycling groups, who possess in-depth knowledge of existing conditions and needs. Plans will
illustrate existing routes and propose new local routes with the purpose of becoming adopted as
part of the Neighbourhood Plan and provide guidance on future planning and infrastructure
proposals. Moreover, cycle proofing training is being rolled out to ensure that cyclists’ needs are
fully considered as early as possible in the planning of new transport schemes and developments.

The delivery of major highway schemes can also provide opportunities for improved walking and
cycling provision. This may take the form of improved provision delivered alongside as part of the
scheme itself or creating opportunities for the Council and partners to take advantage of road
space released by the delivery of major schemes to implement walking and cycling measures e.g.
if a bypass reduces town centre traffic levels to allow sufficient capacity to support the delivery of
segregated cycle ways.

In 2017, Cheshire East became the first local authority to formally support the Space for Cycling
campaign promoted by Cycling UK by allocating 8.5% of its own local transport budget to active
travel for the year 2017/18. For 2017/2018, funding for cycling infrastructure has been secured
from diverse sources, including from the Local Growth Fund allocated to the Cheshire and
Warrington LEP (share of £5m.), Local Growth Fund match funding by the council (£0.5m) and
£0.6m secured from the DfT to fund Bikeability cycle training for children.

The 2015 to 2019 Rights of Way Improvement Plan Implementation Plan puts forward five
measures relating to cycling infrastructure, including upgrades of footpaths and improvement of
existing trails and bridleways. Likewise, the latest Infrastructure Delivery Plan features ten
interventions aimed at cycling, including new links, the creation of shared spaces, improvements
of existing leisure and utilitarian cycle paths and promotion of routes.

Doubling the number of people cycling, improving public perception of cycling and increasing
leisure cycling are ambitious targets that will require dedicated and continuous efforts to improve
the cycling network and cyclists’ safety. But work is already underway to support achieving these
ambitions, including the completion of the final stage of the cycle facilities along the A538 to

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 96

S

P

0

Cheshire East ).
Council?

Highways

create a route between Wilmslow and Manchester Airport, and the extension of the
Leighton/North West Greenway linking to new developments in Leighton and Leighton Hospital.

Future capital investment will be guided by the vision for the strategic cycle routes defined in the
cycle strategy and the priority routes identified by the Town Cycling Plans. Specific cycling
infrastructure schemes will be put forward in each of the Place based strategies, based on the
principles outlined in the cycle strategy and identified local needs and requirements.

Action 7.6 - We will continue to maintain and improve the existing cycling infrastructure and
develop a network of strategic high quality cycle routes connecting the Borough

Action 7.7 — We will support the development of Town Cycling Plans and their integration in the
Neighbourhood Plans for all towns and key service centres in the Borough

Action 7.8 — We will support the delivery of improved walking and cycling infrastructure as part of
the delivery of other major transport schemes

Action 7.9 — We will seek to ensure that developments are planned in a sustainable way through
the inclusion of active travel facilities and linkages

74 Other vulnerable road users

Equestrianism is a popular leisure activity throughout Cheshire East, as the rural character of the
Borough lends itself to horse riding; with a number of promoted horse riding routes available.

Recent work to improve the number of available paths for horse riders was delivered as part of
the Connect2 Crewe to Nantwich Greenway, which includes a section suitable for horse riding
along Middlewich Road, and the creation of a new bridleway in the Carrs park in Wilmslow.

Our highway network and wider transport system must be suitable for all, including those with
disabilities who may or may not be using mobility aids or vehicles as well as children and those
with buggies etc.

Action 7.10 - We will maintain, improve and promote the paths available for leisure use, including
horse riding

Action 7.11 — We will seek to ensure that the publically accessible highway and transport network
supports accessibility for all and does not exclude anyone

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 97

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

7.5 Integration with other modes / land use

Walking and cycling trips often form part of a longer journey which includes different modes. The
possibility to seamlessly change from one mode to another, such as to cycle from home to the
rail station to then take the train and then walk from the station to work, increases the
attractiveness of active travel, including improving the appeal of available routes ad facilities
effectively enables people to shift from the car to more sustainable ways of travel. Poor
integration of modes thus constitutes a barrier for increased levels of active travel.

The integration of walking stands or falls with the accessibility for pedestrians of stations and
stops, and with the quality, comfort and safety of footpaths.

To better integrate active travel with bus and rail transport, stations and stops need to be
accessible and should cater for the particular needs and requirements of mobility-impaired
pedestrians, including elderly, disabled and pushchair users.

The provision of secure and accessible cycle parking that provides a safe and weatherproof place
to store bikes at trip end points such as bus stops, stations, interchanges, businesses, education
providers, shopping and service centres, is key for the integration of cycling with walking, public
transport and rail travel. Increasingly, the provision of charging infrastructure for e-bikes should
also be considered as e-bikes can benefit many users through reducing the impediment of
distance, gradient and physical limitations.

Often, leisure cycling, hiking, walking and horse riding goes in hand with a private vehicle ride
from and back to home. Measures to promote the use of alternative modes to reach recreational
areas should therefore be considered. An often neglected aspect of promoting sustainable leisure
travel is encouraging accommodation providers to provide facilities and services for walkers and
cyclists. The absence of station transfer services or secure cycle parking can discourage potential
cyclists or walkers. Providing for these customers is also in the interest of the local visitor
economy, as there is the potential to discourage these visitors through a lack of facilities.

For a range of popular attractions that are in some distance of the next interchange or rail
station, such as Jodrell Bank or Tatton Park, cycle routes and footpaths linking these attractions
with the nearest public transport hub would provide an incentive for choosing sustainable
transport options and render routes more attractive and safer for those that already use them.

Rental bikes available at rail stations provide users with the choice of using a bike for their onward
journey without the need to own a bike or to carry it on the train, significantly reducing barriers to

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 98

FEOOOT
P >R

Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

cycling as part of multimodal trips. Bike & Go is currently operating such a scheme at both
Knutsford and Wilmslow rail stations.

Major road schemes should not only provide high quality cycling and walking infrastructure as
part of the scheme but traffic reduction on some roads resulting from such schemes also provide
an opportunity to cater for walking and cycling on quieter and safer roads. With lower traffic
flows enabling traffic calming measures, the creation of cycle lanes or improvement to foot and
cycle paths, providing a safer and more attractive environment for active travel. Additionally,
routes for walking and cycling should, where feasible, be more direct and seamless than the
alternative car route, for instance by selectively closing roads for cars but enabling pedestrians
and cyclists to use them as shortcuts.

As stated in the Local Plan, developments should take place where infrastructure for active travel
is already existing or can be supplied. If not, developers will be encouraged to provide or support
the creation of walking and cycling infrastructure connecting to and within sites. The provision of
daily services, employment and education within walking or cycling distance encourages active
travel and reduces the need for longer distance travel. With public transport stops and
interchanges reachable by foot or bike, walking and cycling are also likely to be considered as
part of longer, multimodal journeys. Together, this diminishes the demand for travel in the first
place and reduces the need for car use.

Action 7.12 - We will continue to reduce barriers for multimodal active travel and improve the
accessibility to and facilities at rail and bus stations for pedestrians and cyclists

Action 7.13 - We will facilitate the use of walking and cycling to access leisure destinations and for
leisure trips

Action 7.14 — We will seek external funding from all sources to support active and sustainable
travel interventions

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 99

FEOOOT
P >R

Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

8 Bus

Bus is the most significant means of local public transport serving Cheshire East, enabling a wide
range of local trips to be completed safely, sustainably and cost-effectively. Bus networks in the
Borough are provided by a mix of commercial, supported and specialist provision with the local
authority responsible for coordination, information provision and integration. These tasks are
delivered through our arms-length specialist transport company — Transport Service Solutions
(TSS). Working closely with the range of private bus operators working in the Borough, the
Council aims to ensure that local buses fulfil their maximum potential in meeting the transport
needs of residents.

The Council has recently completed a thorough review of the local bus network serving Cheshire
East, to inform proposals for changes to those local bus services that are supported (subsidised)
by Cheshire East Council. Following on from this significant set of changes, there is a need to
review and refresh to overall strategy for buses across the Borough.

Key objectives for an updated strategy for local buses include:

e Improving the whole journey experience for bus users through uplifting the provision and
quality of stops, shelters, vehicles, passenger information and the range of fares a &
season tickets. This can only be achieved through effective cooperation with the wider
bus industry.

e Providing safe waiting facilities at bus stations and stops through maintenance and
improvement programmes

e Providing reliable information to passengers to enable journey-planning, with information
available both at stops and digitally before people start their journey.

e Working to improve the commercial viability of bus routes throughout the Borough, so as
to minimise the requirement for public financial support.

e Improving the environmental credentials of bus travel by working with operators to see
early adoption of more efficient, sustainable and alternatively-fuelled vehicles.

e Enhancing the cost-effectiveness of bus travel for passengers by encouraging the
development of flexible, multi-operator season tickets — potentially through the roll-out of
Smart Ticketing systems.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 100

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

e Ensuring that punctuality and reliability are improved across the network, especially where
there are persistent impacts of traffic congestion.

e Integrating the needs of local bus services into the development planning process and,
where appropriate, securing financial contributions to the infrastructure and operation of
buses to serve new developments.

e Working across boundaries with operators and neighbouring local authorities to ensure
that bus routes reflect the journeys people wish to make to work, health care, education
and leisure.

The Council will pursue these objectives through the development of a specific Local Bus Strategy
under the framework defined in our updated Local Transport Plan. We will work in partnership
with the commercial sector to seek shared outcomes, with all parties taking their role and
responsibilities to strengthen the long-term future for buses in Cheshire East.

FLEXIBLE TRANSPORT

The Council recognises that traditional, schedule bus services may not meet the needs of all
residents and communities in Cheshire East. Where bus services are not the best solution, it may
be advantageous to consider flexible transport solutions.

The Council has provided a flexible transport service — branded Little Bus - for a number of years.
This service provides a safety net for isolated communities or passengers with particular mobility
needs. The service is regularly used by a relatively small but important group of users, who

consider it is critical to meeting their local travel needs.

Following on from our review of supported local bus services, the Council intends to complete a
thorough review of the current Little Bus services. The objectives of this review are, as follows;

e To maximise the impact of flexible transport for those communities in Cheshire East where
“traditional” bus services are not available

e To make the services as flexible and responsive to users as possible,

e To consider options for flexible transport to provide greater certainty to users, especially
occasional users, through some form of “shadow timetable”

e To minimise the operating costs of Little Bus to ensure its long-term financial sustainability.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 101

FEOOOT
P >R

Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

9.1 Introduction

The Cheshire East area plays an important role in rail connectivity, with Crewe providing a
nationally significant hub for connections on the West Coast Mainline with London, Birmingham,
North Wales, Manchester, Liverpool and Scotland. The district also possesses access to inter-city
services from Macclesfield and Wilmslow, and a number of inter-urban connections that are
essential to the ongoing vitality of the economy.

9.2 Current Context

The rail market has seen huge growth in recent years with 1.69 billion passenger journeys being
made in Great Britain in 2015-16, an increase of 129.8% since the railways were privatised in
1994%’. However, on a number of routes across northern England it is clear that demand remains
suppressed by a lack of capacity (of track and available rolling stock) resulting in heavily loaded
services during peak periods, allied to a poor perception of rolling stock quality on local routes.
Within Cheshire East, the majority of rail connections between service centres operate at a
frequency no greater than hourly, apart from key inter-city and local connections from Crewe,
Wilmslow and Macclesfield on the West Coast Mainline.

It is recognised that investment is needed to support growth aspirations within Cheshire East,
both to improve the quality and frequency of services. In the short to medium term, this relates to
infrastructure improvements delivered by Network Rail, and service enhancements specified by
the Department for Transport (DfT) and delivered by Train Operating Companies (TOCs) through
the franchising process. In the longer term, opportunities exist to maximise the reach of the High
Speed Rail Network, both through improved coherency with local services at Crewe, and released
capacity for passengers and freight on the existing network elsewhere within the Borough.

7 Office of Rail and Road (2016) Passenger Rail Usage 2015-16 Q4 Statistical Release

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




SECSLY
eIy

Cheshire East !
Council?

Highways

The existing rail connections are summarised below by franchise and route:

Franchise Incumbent ‘ Renewal Date Route Stations served Intermediate Links Frequency
Intercity West Coast Virgin Trains April 2018 London - Scotland / North | Crewe, Wilmslow From Crewe: 4 tph to London & 1 tph
Wales /  Liverpool / Warrington,  Chester,  Runcorn, | each to Scotland / Chester
Manchester Wigan (N. Wales) / Manchester /
Stockport  (from  Wilmslow and | Liverpool
Crewe)
London — Manchester Macclesfield Stoke, Stockport Hourly
West Midlands Govia London | March 2026 London — Crewe Alsager Stafford, Stoke Hourly
Midland (until Birmingham — Liverpool Crewe Wolverhampton, Stafford, | Half Hourly
December 2017) Runcorn, Liverpool South Parkway
(for John Lennon Airport)
Abellio West
Midlands ~ Trains
Ltd.
East Midlands Stagecoach  East | March 2019 Derby — Crewe Alsager Stoke, Kidsgrove Hourly
Midlands Trains
Crosscountry Arriva Crosscountry | December 2019 Bournemouth - Manchester | Macclesfield Birmingham, Wolverhampton, | Hourly
Stafford, Stoke, Stockport
Wales & Borders Arriva Trains Wales | October 2018 Crewe — Chester Crewe Hourly
Cardiff - Manchester Nantwich, Crewe, Wilmslow Stockport, Shrewsbury Hourly (2 hourly  from
Nantwich)
Crewe — Shrewsbury Nantwich, Wrenbury Whitchurch
Northern Arriva Rail North October 2025 “Mid-Cheshire Line" Chester | Plumley, Knutsford, Mobberley, | Northwich, Altrincham, Stockport Hourly
— Manchester Ashley
Crewe — Manchester (via | Sandbach, Holmes  Chapel, | Manchester Airport, Hourly
Airport) Alderley Edge, Wilmslow
Crewe - Manchester Sandbach, Holmes  Chapel, | Stockport Hourly
Goostrey, Chelford, Alderley Edge,
Wilmslow, Handforth
Stoke — Manchester Congleton, Macclesfield, | Stockport Hourly
Prestbury, Adlington, Poynton
Buxton — Manchester Disley, Middlewood New Mills, Stockport Hourly (2 hourly  from
Middlewood)

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

c0l sbed



Page 103

PECTIT
P >R

Cheshire East )l
Council?7

Highways

9.3 Existing Constraints

The existing rail network is predominantly of two-track configuration, which inherently limits the
ability to successfully segregate fast and slow passenger services on the same corridor, and
constrains the ability to accommodate growth areas for freight. The diagram below summarises
the current track configuration within Cheshire East.

9.3.1 Number of Tracks

TO MANCHESTER

METROLINK
TO MANCHESTER TO MANCHESTER

TO WARRINGTON

TO LIVERPOOL

TO BUXTON

Disiey  New Mils

I Acington
[) wiLmsLow

I Prostury

MACCLESFIELD
Cuddington’

TO CHESTER
Hartford

TO CHESTER

@IS 4 TRACKS
DOUBLE TRACK

@S SINGLE TRACK

TO STAFFORD

TO SHREWSBURY

Crewe Station acts a regional hub for rail connectivity, providing interchange between local and
long distance rail services. The convergence of a number of routes to the immediate north and
south of the station serve to limit the resilience of the network through the necessity for
movements across the layout, which in turn increases the hourly track occupancy. Delays
occurring at Crewe can serve to import performance issues onto services across the WCML.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 104

o
Cheshire East ).
Council7

Highways

On mainline sections, the lack of segregation between intercity and local services limits the ability
to provide additional paths for local stopping services and freight. Strategic east-west freight
flows (such as Port of Liverpool to Drax) use more circuitous alternative routes through Cheshire
East, where permitted by gauge clearance.

Elsewhere within the Borough, there are physical constraints that limit opportunities to introduce
or intensify service provision without physical improvement to track capacity (on single track
sections), junctions and line speed, notably at the following locations:

e The Mid-Cheshire Line between Chester & Manchester;
e The Crewe — Stoke — Derby line; and
e The Crewe — Sandbach — Middlewich — Northwich line (currently freight only).

Action 9.1 — We will lobby for investment in rail infrastructure where it will unlock opportunities
for improved rail services within the Borough

94 Existing Connections

The direct connections between the two Principal Towns and nine Key Service Centres of
Cheshire East are summarised for Monday — Saturday (including peak) and Sundays within the
figures below. The geography of the existing rail network limits the ability to make direct journeys
between the Principal towns of Crewe and Macclesfield, as they are on parallel branches of the
West Coast Mainline; both routes provide connections to Manchester and Stockport. The most
consistent service pattern within Cheshire East is between Crewe and Wilmslow (4tph); however,
outside the peaks, links between Key Service Centres (apart from Crewe — Sandbach) services do
not exceed an hourly frequency, and many links are only possible with an interchange at Crewe,
or outside the Borough (such as Cheadle Hulme). Middlewich is the only key service centre
without an existing rail service.

CREWE

Direct il ink  Perhour peak] || MACCLESFIELD Sunday Services per day
No direct Rail Links 2 Alsager No direct Rail Links
Congleton Not currently served by rail 5 Congleton Not currently served by rail
Handforth 5 Handforth
Knutsford
Middlewich Middlewich
Nantwich ] Nantwich
Poynton 4 5 Poynton
Sandbach ] 5 Sandbach

‘ ‘ Wilmslow 17 ] 4 6 |Wilmslow

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan m



Page 105

SNy,
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

9.5 Existing Franchise Position

The Council recognises the importance of influencing the franchising process in order to achieve
the best possible service provision for users and maximum investment into the local rail network.
The Council (as part of Cheshire & Potteries) are members of the Rail North Partnership, who
jointly specified the new “Northern” and “Transpennine” franchises with DfT. This relationship will
also be important in making representation on franchises that are notionally controlled in other
regions, but have a direct bearing on service provision within the district, notably East Midlands
and Wales & Borders. The importance of working with sub-regional partners and stakeholders is
recognised, as well as the role of Community Rail Partnerships and local user groups in
understanding local needs and developing grassroots initiatives.

In Cheshire East, the Northern Franchise will deliver the following direct benefits to rolling stock
and service provision from late 2018 onwards:

e The delivery of 281 new carriages (as 2,3 and 4 carriage formations) from late 2018;

e The removal of all existing “Pacer” trains by the end of 2019;

e The provision of an additional hourly (Mon-Sat) service between Greenbank and
Manchester Piccadilly, resulting in 2 trains per hour (tph) from Knutsford alongside the
existing Chester — Northwich — Manchester service. Introduction of an hourly Sunday
service across the full route;

e The provision of an additional hourly (Mon-Sat) service between Macclesfield and
Manchester, supplementing the existing hourly Crosscountry, Virgin, and Northern
services, and resulting in 2 tph from Poynton. Provision of an hourly Sunday service
between Stoke and Manchester, calling at all stations; and

e The provision of an additional service (resulting in 2 tph) and faster journey times between
New Mills Newtown and Manchester, serving Disley.

From 1 April 2019, the InterCity West Coast franchise will be replaced with a new franchise in
combination with HS2: The West Coast Partnership rail franchise (WCP). This franchise will begin
in April 2019 and will design and run the initial HS2 services across the country from 2026. The
winning bidder will also deliver the transition of the timetable on the West Coast Main Line as it is
revised to take advantage of the extra capacity provided by HS2.

Action 9.2 — We will continue to work with partners at the sub-regional and national level to
influence the specification of rail franchises in the best interests of the Borough

9.6 Growth Trends

9.6.1 Passenger Growth

Patronage figures obtained from the Office of Rail and Road (ORR) indicate a trend of rising
demand for rail travel in the North West. In 2015/16 a total of 36 million rail journeys were made

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan m



Page 106

3‘53.3
Cheshire Easf@;l
Council?

Highways

to/from the North West, an increase of 2 million against the previous year (2014/15), and 92
million rail journeys were made within the North West, an increase of 1 million®®. With regard to
strategic connections, there was significant growth in movement with the key markets of London
(6.1%); the West Midlands (6.3%); and Yorkshire and the Humber (6.5%), as demonstrated by the
figure below. This rising trend has placed further limitations upon the ability of existing rolling
stock to accommodate demand, notably on peak time commuter services into major cities from
districts such as Cheshire East.

North West rail passenger growth from 2014/15 - 2015/16

3.2m A~2.0%

East of England
Ry ge—
735k M5.0%

EE |
659k M1.2%

1.7m M 4.4%

10.7m A 6.1%

OR

I
CHTICE OF RAR AND BOAD

9.6.2 Station Usage

The National Rail network is accessible from 22 railway stations across Cheshire East. The number
of passengers carried by rail services serving Cheshire East continues to show strong growth,
though it is noted that growth in certain instances has been limited by the availability and

% Office of Road and Rail (2017) Regional Rail Usage

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 107

SNy,
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

capacity of services, especially at stations where there is currently an hourly frequency. A
comparison of Passenger Footfall data (ORR) between 2012/13 and 2015/16 at stations relating
to the two Principal towns and nine Key Service Centres shows an increase in passenger numbers
by at least 11%: Crewe and Alsager have increased by 16%; Macclesfield and Wilmslow by over
20%,; Nantwich by 30%; and, Sandbach by 40%%. The top five busiest stations in Cheshire East
are Crewe, Macclesfield, Wilmslow, Knutsford and Congleton.

Two stations that have demonstrated progressive growth within the top five will benefit from
additional service provision as a result of the new Northern franchise, with an additional service
every hour at Macclesfield (to Manchester); Knutsford (between Greenbank and Manchester).
Additional growth opportunities will also be presented by new services in each hour at Poynton
(Macclesfield to Manchester) and Disley (New Mills to Manchester).

Action 9.3 — We will work to support additional rail services in the Borough where they will bring
most benefit

9.7 Priorities for Improvement

The Council will focus on specific improvements that are necessary to deliver better rail services
within the district, and meet aspirations for growth over the next 30 years. Research has
highlighted the importance of small and medium sized cities and large towns, the role of which is
too often overlooked nationally™. As such, improving rail connectivity between the Principal
Towns and Key Service Centres must be a priority.

Collaboration will be required with the DfT to maximise the benefit to be accrued from the
delivery of nationally significant infrastructure such as HS2, and with TfN (incorporating Rail
North) for the delivery of complementary interventions on the surrounding “classic” network, both
from the perspective of reutilising released capacity, and improving overall coherency and
interchange opportunities. The interface with Welsh Government and Midlands Connect will also
be critical in understanding how mutual aspirations can be achieved through better cross-border
travel opportunities.

 Office of Rail and Road (2016) Passenger Rail Usage 2015-16 Q4 Statistical Release
O IPpPR (2016) 7he role of small and medium sized towns and cities in growing the Northern Powerhouse

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 108

=3
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

Regional Influences on Rail

O Cheshire East
(] TN/ Rail North
! [ The Potteries

[] The Constellation Partnership
[] Growth Track 360

I [ tfem

|:| Cheshire and Warrington LEP

< 4

9.7.1 National Passenger Growth

The delivery of High Speed 2 to Crewe will have a major influence on the economic progress of
the district over the next 30 years, particularly the realisation of the Constellation Partnership
growth strategy for north Crewe and beyond, and the forecasts for additional development that
are incumbent within it. Phase 1 of the scheme (London to Birmingham) received royal ascent in
February 2017, and the Hybrid Bill for Phase 2A as far as Crewe is currently going through
Parliament.

The HS2 Hub has the ability to transform Crewe through attracting investment and growth in the
region. Current plans are for two trains per hour to stop at Crewe, however, there is potential for
this to increase which would release additional benefits of HS2 coming through Crewe and
growth for the regional and local economy. As part of the Phase 2a Hybrid Bill, the government
have committed to a new island platform at Crewe Station (platform 12), which will free capacity
on the other tracks and platforms, facilitating HS2 services stopping at Crewe whilst maintaining
existing services.

The Council are undertaking work on the Crewe Masterplan, which sets out growth and
development ambitions for the future. It plans for the future of the town, setting out where
investment and opportunities are for growth. This will be consulted on post HS2 consultations,
towards the end of 2018.

Action 9.4 — We will work to achieve maximum Borough wide benefit from HS2 whilst achieving
mitigation measures to minimise negative impacts on residents

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 109

o
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

Action 9.5 — We will use HS2 as an opportunity to drive substantial investment and improvement
in Crewe, including through the development of the Crewe Masterplan

9.7.2 Regional Passenger Growth

In order to enhance the success of HS2 hub and maximise benefits of the project in Cheshire
East, rail improvements are fundamental across the sub-regional rail network, increasing
connectivity to adjacent destinations within the North West such as Liverpool, Chester and
Warrington. Services on the classic network need to be robust, with the relevant service frequency
and journey times in order to improve the ease by which passengers can access HS2 services at
Crewe. Investment will be required in order to bring forward any works that may be required in
order to improve this connectivity, and should avoid any deprecation of existing connecting
services that may result from the delivery of works to accommodate HS2. As detailed above, HS2
will be a component of discussions not only for the West Coast franchise, but also for franchises
that have an interface at Crewe, notably East Midlands (to Stoke and Derby); and Wales and
Borders (to Cardiff, Chester, and Manchester).

Noting the symbiotic labour markets that exist across the Welsh Border, and the significant
volumes of commuters that travel into Cheshire East from North Wales, the Growth track 360
Strategy was launched in 2016 by the Mersey Dee Alliance. It has the complementary aim of
securing £1bn of rail improvements to transform the Cheshire and North Wales economy, linked
to the delivery of an additional 70,000 jobs over 20 years. It aims specifically to maximise the
benefits of interface with HS2, including electrification of the line from Crewe to North Wales, and
identifies the need for investment in rolling stock to improve the quality of trains and train
services.

Action 9.6 — We will work to ensure that HS2 does not detrimentally impact conventional services
linking to the Borough

Action 9.7 — We will support delivery of Growth Track 360

9.7.3 Local Passenger Growth

As plans for the Crewe Hub station are developed, sufficient capacity and flexibility should be
included to enable full realisation of the wider aspirations and benefits to Cheshire East. Revision
of West Coast Mainline services post HS2 offer opportunities to develop new local service
patterns.

The railway line through Middlewich is currently used solely for freight. Re-opening the Northwich
to Sandbach line for passenger services would increase travel choice, improve accessibility and
enable sustainable growth in Middlewich. An area of land has been safeguarded to explore the
potential delivery of a new station. Network Rail have a long term plan which has identified the

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 110

FEOOOT
P >R

Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

need for an additional service to be delivered post-delivery of HS2, which may serve the mid-
Cheshire towns amongst other places along this route.

The section of the railway between Crewe and Alsager requires investment; double tracking this
section of railway would enable service increases on the Crewe to Derby line. The current hourly
service does not meet existing need. Upon completion of HS2 in 2033, the Crewe to Derby
railway line will be in a unique position to link the two sections of the HS2 'Y’ network. The route
will join up key economic centres across the midlands; the HS2 hubs at both Toton and Crewe
amplify the importance of this railway. The route provides significant inter-regional east-west
movement potential linking the main towns and cities in the midlands and North West.

Action 9.8 — We will work with partners with the aim of reopening the Northwich to Sandbach rail
line to passenger traffic

Action 9.9 — We will work with partners with the aim of double tracking the section of line
between Crewe and Alsager

9.7.4 Rail Freight Growth

Rail freight is a successful aspect of the UK rail network, with over £2bn invested in the rail
network by rail freight operators; supporting growth of over 70% is the last 20 years. The Council
is supportive of rail freight in its role to reduce the number of HGVs on the roads.

The freight sector has an opportunity to capitalise on capacity freed by HS2, as a means to
accommodate projected growth on the West Coast Mainline, notably between Crewe and
Warrington. The port of Warrington is aiming for growth in addition to the delivery of Liverpool 2,
which would increase demand for rail freight paths along this route. General improvements on
the Crewe to Warrington route would benefit freight trains as well as passenger services.

Action 9.10 — We will promote rail freight as a more sustainable method of haulage except in
instances where there are conflicts with passenger services

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 111

FECS T
o R

Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

10 Public Transport Information and Ticketing

10.1 Ticketing

Technology and innovation are becoming more prominent in terms of the role they play in the
transport network, and this is likely to increase. Technology enables the facilities that are required
in order to develop, expand and link different modes of transport, for example dealing effectively
with the complex arrangements for information and pricing structures for seamless organisation
of the bus network. It is important that methods adopted are consistent with changing lifestyles
and predictions around the future uses of technology that will be used to purchase tickets.

Transport for the North (TfN) have been working in partnership with operators and transport
authorities to deliver an integrated ticketing scheme that will make it easier for passengers to
travel seamlessly using a payment method of their choice. The ticketing system will allow
passengers to be confident that they have paid the cheapest possible fare; with the aim
encouraging new passengers to travel by public transport thus bringing benefits to the operation
of the road network and the environment, TfN are implementing this through a phased
approach. The system also has potential for increasing competition for passengers and resources,
potentially linked to the recent Bus Services Act which supports a more joined up approach to
ticketing and bus service organisation.

Working with TfN, the Council would welcome a smart ticketing system within Cheshire East to
deliver the benefits associated with such a roll-out across the north. Multi-modal, multi-regional
and multi-operator ticketing and visitor tickets would simplify the system, providing clear and
transparent ticket prices for passengers. This would increase accessibility and likelihood of people
using public transport for all or part of their journeys.

Action 10.1 — We will work with partners to improve information around bus services and
ticketing, including supporting a move to smart ticketing where appropriate

10.2 Information

A lack of integration between transport services has been identified as a significant barrier to
greater use of bus and rail services, causing significant increases in journey time and discouraging
multi-modal travel. Initiatives to overcome this have been shown to have the potential to increase
the appeal of travel by public transport and provide an attractive alternative to the private car.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 112

SNy,
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

The provision of additional information at bus stops/stations and railway stations increases the
likelihood of the use of public transport and interchange, as do improved interchange facilities
e.g. clear signage, walking routes, information etc. Improved communications such as real-time
information (RTI) has also been shown to help ensure that users who have just missed a
connection do not wait unnecessarily, but are aware of the next service available to them.

Improved accessibility to public transport can be achieved through expanding and improving the
number of channels that are available to communicate with passengers. This may include a
variety of sources such as traditional time tables as well as mobile phone apps and other media
which may emerge in the future and help to ensure that the information on offer is as up to date
as possible. Good quality information ensures that users at unstaffed stations and users outside
of ticket office hours are kept informed, and the modes of travel on offer are accessible as up to
date information is available. Ensuring that all rail stations have ticket machines prevents travelling
without a ticket, when ticket offices are closed or at unmanned stations.

Action 10.2 — We will work with partners to improve information at interchange facilities

10.3 Facilities

Facilities at transport hubs and interchanges, such as improved parking, cycle stands, bus links,
the provision of raised kerbs and dropped crossings and disabled access improve accessibility for
a wide range of users and encourage a shift to multi-modal travel. The provision of raised and
dropped kerbs can improve accessibility for wheelchair users, parents with buggies and people
with mobility constraints.

In addition to the provision of accessible infrastructure, bus and rail stations should be well
maintained, through the maintenance of seating areas and ensuring that litter bins are emptied
regularly. This provides a more pleasant environment for users whilst interchanging and increases
the likelihood of use of public transport. The installation and maintenance of lighting and CCTV at
bus and rail stations improved people’s perceptions of safety when travelling late at night and
also during the winter months. These changes, in addition to a well maintained interchange and
changing facilities enhance users' safety (both actual and perceived) whilst travelling by bus and
rail.

Action 10.3 — We will promote well maintained and accessible interchange facilities which feel
safe to use day or night

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 113

FECTIY
P

Cheshire East )l
Council?7

Highways

10.4 Integration

The economic and social benefits of short and direct rail services between key cities and other
strategic locations are well established. Public transport delivers business connectivity as well as
supporting commuting and leisure journeys. Ensuring that public transport and active modes are
well connected with bus and rail stations bring real benefits on top of expanding the reach of
these services.

The integration of bus services with other modes of transport, such as rail and cycling facilities, is
important in order to encourage the use of public transport for people travelling for both leisure
and commuting purposes. For example, a bus service which has a stop at the nearest train station
may encourage people to use the bus rather than drive to the train station.

Public transport also should be integrated with walking and cycling. Safe routes that are well-
designed, with signage to key destinations are factors which can improve connectivity and
expand the public transport catchment area. Key interchanges such as train stations and bus
stations should have changing facilities and bicycle parking for those choosing to cycle. The
health and cost benefits of active travel should also be promoted.

Action 10.4 - We will work with passenger transport providers (bus, rail and commmunity transport)
and other partners to improve public transport integration and facilities in Cheshire East

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 114

PECTIT
P >R

Cheshire East )l
Council?7

Highways

11 Roads

11.1 The importance of the highways network in Cheshire East

Our residents, employees and visitors rely on the extensive roads network to travel to, from and
within Cheshire East. The highway network performs a vital function by connecting places and
people in the Borough and ensuring access to services, education, employment and leisure. In
rural areas the highways network is especially important with over 57% of Cheshire East's highway
network being classed as rural and serving over half of our population. Moreover, the highway
network also plays a pivotal role in connecting Cheshire to the wider region and national centres
via the strategic road network and to the global economy via international hubs. The quality and
availability of the highway network is therefore vital to the sub-regional economy.

11.1.1 The local, major and strategic road networks

Different parts of the highway network perform different roles and hence have distinct
characteristics. While the strategic road network (SRN) comprises the country’s motorways and
trunk roads and is under the authority of Highway England, an executive agency of the
Department for Transport, the local road network consists of local A, B and C roads and are
managed by Cheshire East Highways. The SRN ensures connections between Cheshire East and
England's key cities and economic centres and is a key element of the primary route network that
links the whole of England, whereas the local road network provides primarily connections
between places and service centres in the Borough as well as local access to places, services,
housing and employment.

However, there are a significant number of locally managed highway routes in Cheshire East that
perform critically important economic functions in linking the key centres, and providing interface
points with the SRN, which have been defined as constituting part of a Major Route Network.
Transport for the North (TfN) has defined such a MRN which is composed of the SRN and key
local roads. In the future, the ambition is that a portion of the new National Roads Fund might be
allocated to the MRN. The MRN acts as interface between the SRN and the local roads, providing
access between towns, settlements and economic centres on the one hand and the SRN on the
other.

In Cheshire East, the SRN is formed by the M6, M56 and A556. The MRN connects the Principal
Towns, key service centres and economic centres with the SRN and consists of eleven key A-
roads. With the exception of the SRN, all these roads are under the responsibility of Cheshire East
Council as the local highways authority. The extent of the SRN, MRN and local highways network
in Cheshire East are represented in the maps below.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 115

SO
F o)

SN

Cheshire Easf@g
Council?

Highways

Strategic road network in Cheshire East:

A
2\
Strategic Road Network in
Cheshire East
—— Strategic Road Network
3 = 2 & Opensteeritap convibutors E e o

Major Route Network (TfN)
in Cheshire East

—— Strategic Road Network
= A roads

[ Cheshire East

& Openstreetitap contibutors

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 116

Cheshire East ).
Council?

Highways

Local road network in Cheshire East:

Local Road Network in Cheshire East
—— Major Route Network
—— Strategic Road Network
—— Local Road Network
Cheshire East

€ Openstreethiap conzibutors

The economic performance of the Borough is closely linked to the ease of access to and from the
SRN (M6, M56, A556) and the access opportunities this provides with the rest of the UK on the
one hand and the local roads network that connects places in the Borough on the other hand.
However, this proximity can also have a negative impact during periods of closure and delay,
when strategic traffic reassigns through key centres adjacent to the motorway network,
exacerbating local congestion in towns such as Crewe, Sandbach, Congleton and Macclesfield.

The key interfaces between the strategic and local highway interfaces, that are part of the MRN,
are summarised below with regard to their links within Cheshire East:

StrategicRoad  SRN MRN Key Service External Connections
Network junction interface Centres in CEC
M6 Junction 16 | A500 Nantwich, Crewe | Stoke on Trent, Newcastle
under  Lyme,  Wrexham
(A534)
Junction 17 | A534 Sandbach, Buxton (A54)
Congleton,
Macclesfield

(A536), Poynton
(A523), Wilmslow
(A34)

Junction 18 | A54 Middlewich, Mid-Cheshire towns
Holmes Chapel (Winsford &  Northwich),
Chester, North Wales

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan m



Page 117

FECTIY
P

Cheshire East )
Council?
Highways
Junction 19 | A556 Knutsford, Northwich, Chester,
Wilmslow Altrincham, Manchester
(B5085), Airport
Macclesfield
(A537)
Junction Interchange | n/a Chester, North Wales
20/20A with M56
M56 Junction 6 | A538 Wilmslow, Manchester Airport
Junction A556/A56 Knutsford Altrincham
7/8
Junction 9 | Interchange | n/a Southern  England,  West
with M6 Midlands, Lancashire

Action 11.1 — We support the establishment of a Major Roads Netwaork and commit to additional
investment in this key infrastructure if supported as necessary by national government

Action 11.2 — We will work to improve the connectivity between the local and strategic road
networks

11.1.2 Pinch points and congestion

Traffic congestion on the road network results in people spending ‘unproductive’ time queueing.
This has a real impact on business efficiency and productivity, and causes unreliability and poor
performance of public transport. Furthermore, congestion has been shown to increase the levels
of pollutants emitted by vehicles, and can have life-threatening effects near hospitals on
ambulance routes.

The SRN within Cheshire East is under great stress with Junctions 17 to 19 of the M6 running 30-
50% over capacity and Junctions 16 to 17 and 19 to 20 running 10-30% over capacity. The M56
is also running over capacity between Junctions 6 and 7, along with the A56. There are also
existing issues around road safety and congestion at the interface of the SRN and the local road
network.

When it comes to the local road network in Cheshire East, evidence shows that the most
congested parts of the network are in the town centres. However, notable key 'hotspots’ on the
inter-urban network also include:

e Crewe Green Roundabout, Crewe;

e A500 Barthomley Link, Crewe;

e Parts of the A530, including Alvaston Roundabout;

e Parts of the A523 from the end of the Silk Road through to Poynton;

e The A34 (Clayton Bypass) around Congleton; and

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 118

=3
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways
e M6 Junction 17 Sandbach.

Ongoing and committed developments outlined in the Local Plan will lead to traffic increases and
additional pressure on key junctions and links, thereby exacerbating existing pinch points and
creating new bottlenecks in the network.

Before new highway capacity is created there is a need to demonstrate that the existing highway
network is operating as efficiently as possible through cost-effective improvements in line with
our three stage prioritised process discussed previously. It is important to demonstrate that the
level of demand for additional road capacity has been minimised, for example by encouraging
the use of public transport, car sharing, walking or cycling, and that environmental considerations
have been assessed (e.g. impact on agricultural land, green belt, biodiversity, etc.).

Action 11.3 — We will seek effective solutions to existing pinch points on the local road network
and lobby for Highways England to resolve thase on the Strategic Road Network

Action 11.4 — We will work to minimise the negative impacts of development on the highway
network and seek suitable mitigation measures of all types where required

11.1.3 Large and heavy vehicles — weight and width

Freight traffic is vital for the effective operation of our economy and for the goods on which we
all rely. However, freight traffic has the potential to negatively impact on communities through air
quality, noise, community severance and visual intrusion.

Crewe acts as a major 'hub’ for road freight traffic from all over the country, this mirrors the
recent economic development of Crewe as a major regional distribution centre (due, in part, to
Crewe's excellent road links to the national transport network). The roads with the highest HGV
flows in the Borough tend to be those within the Strategic and major Road Networks.

In recent years there has been strong growth in the use of the rail network to transport freight.
Transport of freight by rail is more sustainable than by road and can lead to a reduction in the
total number of miles travelled by HGV. The potential exists to capitalise on the growth in rail
freight and the rail connectivity of Crewe, with similar opportunities also existing in Middlewich.

A number of problems have been identified in relation to freight movements in Cheshire East.
Many of these issues relate to congestion within the Borough, resulting in lorries diverting onto
unsuitable or rural routes which can lead to problems associated with road safety, poor air
quality, noise, severance and visual intrusion.

It is therefore paramount to address concerns around routing, driver behaviour and delivery
times, as well as to ensure routes and access arrangements are appropriately maintained and

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 119

Ey
Cheshire East )
Council?

Highways

signed. In addition, Cheshire East supports initiatives by developers, businesses, Network Rail and
operators, to promote integration of road and rail freight.

Action 11.5 — We will work to improve HGV routing through measures on street, working with
developers and large trip attractors e.g. supermarkets and hauliers and through the provision of
information such as the innovative Freight Journey Planner

11.1.4 Delivery of major road schemes

In cases where neither maintenance nor management and redesign have been able to sufficiently
improve traffic conditions and network performance at identified pinch points and known
accident and congestion hotspots on the road network, new road infrastructure has and will
continue to be considered following a thorough analysis in terms of economic, social and
environmental costs and benefits. Where it is concluded that new infrastructure will deliver real
long term benefits and address transport challenges in an efficient and sustainable manner, road
schemes have and will continue to be promoted, supported and delivered.

Work is now underway to develop the second RIS (known as RIS 2) covering the second road
period post 2020. The main evidence for the research phase for RIS2 are the programme of
refreshed route strategies covering the entire network and the six strategic studies. One of the
strategic studies investigates the Manchester North-West Quadrant, which covers the M60 form
Junctions 8 to 18. Potential schemes in the study area are likely to have an impact on traffic flows
on the SRN in Cheshire East.

For the SRN, the following schemes in and adjacent to the Borough have been put forward by
Highways England as part of the first Road Investment Strategy from 2015 to 2020:

Strategic road network schemes Status

M56 Junctions 6-8 Upgrading the M56 to Smart Motorway between | Committed
Junction 6 & 8

M6 Junction 19 | Improved junction with the A556 Planned

Improvements

M6 Junctions 16-19 Upgrading to Smart Motorway including hard | In Construction

shoulder running

A556 Knutsford to | Widening of the A556 between the M56 and M6 Completed
Bowdon

M6 J17 Improvement Improved Junction 17 in Sandbach Completed

M6 J16 Improvements Improved Junction 16 in Stoke-on-Trent Completed

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 120

=3
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

The Council is working with partners on refreshing the South East Manchester Multi-Modal Study
(SEMMS) which was originally published in 2001. This refresh is linked to delivery of the A6 to
Manchester Airport Relief Road. Construction of the new link commenced in March 2015 with the
road expected to open in Spring 2018. The SEMMS refresh is needed to take account of what has
been achieved since the strategy was first published and to take account of significant planned
growth both in the borough and across south Manchester. The 20-year strategy will be
developed to deal with existing and predicted transport problems in the area and aims to:

e Improve public transport;

e Improve the use of road space;

e Encourage transport change;

e Encourage urban regeneration; and

e Improve highways.

In addition to construction of the AGBMARR several schemes delivering improvements to the local
and major road networks are either currently under construction or planned:

Local and major road network schemes Status
Crewe Green Roundabout Redesign of the Crewe Green | Planned
Roundabout

Sydney Road Bridge Improvement, | Replacement of the rail bridge by a | Planned

Crewe bidirectional bridge

Middlewich Eastern Bypass Bypass for Middlewich to relieve | Planned
congestion

Congleton Link Road Bypass for Congleton to relieve | Planned
congestion

A6 to Manchester Airport Relief | Relief road connecting the A6 to | In Construction

Road (A6GMARR) Manchester Airport. Linked to the
overall South East Manchester Multi-
Modal Study.

A500 Dualling, Crewe Dualling of the A500 between M6 J16 | Planned
and the A531 and B5472 at Mere Moss
Roundabout

Poynton Relief Road Bypass for Poynton to reduce | Planned
congestion and support growth

South Macclesfield Link Road New link road supporting growth Planned

Action 11.6 — We will support the delivery of Highway England schemes which will bring benefit
to Cheshire East and actively contribute in the identification and planning of future schemes,
including through the RIS2 process

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 121

':’(\;)\\ y
Cheshire East ).
Council?

Highways

Action 11.7 — We will seek effective delivery of identified major schemes on the local and major
route networks

11.1.5Potential for Electric Vehicle Usage

With the recent government announcement to ban the sale of conventional internal combustion
engine vehicles from 2040 there is a significant opportunity to move to low carbon transport
initiatives. Electric Vehicles are becoming ever more popular with over 100,000 on the road and
future predictions only show this increasing, therefore it is important that there is the necessary
infrastructure to cope with this increase. Electric vehicles provide an excellent opportunity to
reduce carbon emissions and other vehicle emissions.

Cheshire East Council has secured a government grant to enable the Council to provide six 50kV
rapid charging units — two each in car parks in Congleton (Princess Street), Wilmslow (South Drive)
and Nantwich (Love Lane). The sites have been chosen as they are close to destination points such
as supermarkets and coffee shops, where drivers can pass 20 minutes or so while waiting for their
vehicle to charge.

Action 11.8 - We will continue to apply for funding from the government, in order to implement
and construct infrastructure projects, such as electric vehicle charging points to make it more
attractive to buy an electric vehicle.

Action 11.9 — Encourage the private sector to invest in Electric Vehicle charger stations at petrol
stations, supermarkets and new developments.

11.2 Road safety

Making the roads in Cheshire East safer for all users by identifying road users most at risk and
collision hotspots is at the heart of Cheshire East's approach to road safety. Appropriate
measures can subsequently be developed to prevent crashes and to reduce the numbers of users
killed or injured. In Cheshire East the number of serious road injuries and deaths are higher than
the National average with 0.5 people killed or seriously injured (KSI) per every 1,000 people
compared to the National average of 0.33 in 2015°"

There has been success in reducing the number of KSIs in Cheshire East from 327 in 2005 to 189
in 2015 against a backdrop of increased traffic. Car occupants constitute the majority of KSIs, but
vulnerable users such as pedestrians, cyclists and motorcyclists are overrepresented.

*! Department for Transport statistics. Reported casualties by severity, by local authority area, Great Britain, 2015

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 85



Page 122

-{.‘53.3
Cheshire Easft“bg

Council?
Highways
Road Casualties Killed or Seriously Injured
Cheshire East Reported Casualties

300
250 4
2000
150
1040
50 1
|:| -

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 20010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

B Pedestrians B Cyelists B Motoreyelists Bl Car occupants Others
wwe ravebinceperchend, org.uk

This is an issue the Council takes extremely seriously and it has invested in numerous road safety
projects, including working with local and sub-regional partners including the Police, Cheshire
Fire and Rescue and other external organisations to provide education and training services to
high risk groups (e.g. young adults and motorcyclists). The Council also undertook an evaluation
of existing education and training campaigns to measure the impact they are having on the
number of KSI incidents in the borough and ensuring effective delivery. These initiatives worked
to inform all drivers and riders of the consequences of excessive speed, alcohol impairment and
not wearing seatbelts, as well as improving observation skills through the use of national
behavioural campaigns. Additionally, the Council engaged with schools, employers and in local
communities to provide road safety training to cyclists identified as having a high level of risk in
the Borough and promote the use of active travel.

Engineering interventions on highways and junctions can have a significant impact on the
number of road traffic incidents experienced. Examples of positive action include rectifying sites
with poor visibility, lighting or drainage, inappropriate crossing design, or below standard corner
radius or road camber. Whilst taking care in sensitive locations, such as the Peak District National
Park, to avoid clutter, light pollution or schemes with a detrimental visual impact.

Excessive and inappropriate speed is a recurring contributory factor in a high number of KSIs
especially those involving young adults. Higher speeds increase the severity of crashes and
resulting injuries but speed related crashes are preventable through both education of users at
risk and enforcement of speed limits. The Council uses speed cameras at high risk sites to
encourage drivers and riders to abide by speed limits and will continue to do so. Following an

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan m



Page 123

FEOOOT
P >R

Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

evaluation of collision hotspots circumstances were identified where pedestrians and cyclists
should be given priority on the highway network and where reduced speed limits would be
appropriate.

Some road user groups are more vulnerable and more often involved in road collisions. Children
are particularly vulnerable road users, as they are often still learning the correct road user
behaviour and their judgment is not yet fully developed, making their behaviour sometimes
unpredictable, which combined with their size means that they tend to get overlooked more
often. This reaffirms the importance of road safety education from a young age and engagement
with schools and other learning establishments.

Young adults aged 17 to 24 are the most accident-prone category. Due to their lack of
experience and sometimes risk-seeking behaviour, including excessive and inappropriate speed
and alcohol impairment, young adults constitute another vulnerable road user category.
Education of young drivers and enforcement of speed and alcohol limits are thus of central
importance.

Cyclists and pedestrians are two road user groups disproportionally victims of road collisions.
Both are especially at risk from collisions from motorised vehicles that have higher speed and
mass, exacerbating the impacts of collisions. Collision hotspots for pedestrians and cyclists are
junctions, crossings and rural roads. The provision of segregated infrastructure for active travel
and the treatment of high accident junctions and crossings, together with provision of
information and training to cyclists and pedestrians but also to car users are effective means to
increase the safety of walking and cycling.

While the overall number of motorcyclists is low (an estimated 0.71% of the working population
uses them as principal means of transport to travel to work), they constitute vulnerable road users
requiring a safe road environment. Amongst casualties involving young adults (between 16 and
25 years old), 17% are riding motorcycles over 215cc, and a further 7% motorcycles over 125cc.

Action 11.8 — We will continue to support the use of existing speed cameras and the introduction
of speed management measures at accident hotspots as determined by the Cheshire Road Safety
Partnership

Action 11.9 - We will work with partners and other organisations to provide education and
training to high risk groups, including young adults, children, pedestrians, cyclists and
motorcyclists

Action 11.10 - We will continue to support programmes which inform all drivers and riders of the
consequences of high-risk behaviours such as excessive speed, alcohol and drug impairment and
not wearing seatbelts

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 124

SNy,
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Action 11.11 — We will continue to work with schools, employers and local communities to
provide road safety training to cyclists and promote the use of active travel

11.3 Network management

The highways network in Cheshire East is an asset with a replacement cost of over £5.5billion
encompassing 2,700 kilometres of highway. The Council is in charge of managing the local road
network and has a duty to ensure a resilient and efficient highways network that effectively
connects places in the Borough and further afield.

This strategy identifies maintenance and management of current assets as the number one
priority for the provision of an effective transport network which will meet wider ambitions. This
aligns with the integrated asset led approach taken by the Council to the management of
transport assets.

11.3.1 Maintenance and asset management

The Council has a statutory duty to maintain the highway network in a safe and usable condition.
The Highway Asset Management Strategy® (HAMS) identifies how the Council will manage and
maintain the highway network and associated infrastructure. The HAMS informs priorities in the
planning and delivery process and supports continual improvement in the management of the
highway asset.

The Council has invested an additional £30million improving the condition of Cheshire East's
transport assets over the last three years through the Highway Investment Programme
reaffirming our strategic commitment to maintenance and asset management. Furthermore,
another £5million was invested in 2016-2017. The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy
2017/20 also states an ambition of investing £10million per year for the next three years in the
Borough's transport assets.

The Corporate Plan for Cheshire East outlines the four core objectives for highways maintenance:

e To reduce the number of people killed or seriously injured on Cheshire East's roads;

e To improve the condition of Cheshire East's roads, footways and bridges;

e To manage the impact of traffic and resulting congestion on Cheshire East's
communities; and

e Improve the quality of and access to transport networks and services in Cheshire East.

*? Cheshire East Council (2015) Highway Asset Management Strategy

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Page 125

Asset management framework

Context

Planning

Enablers

Delivery

Corporate and CEC Vision
Stakeholder National and 3 Year
Expectations Requirements Plan
Government Local e
Policy / Transport Plan Local _Pollmesl
Ellidance and Policies TR
Highway Asset Management Local Transport Strategies
Polic

Outcome 1 — Our local communities are SIS @ SN it

strong and supportive - .
9 pp Create conditions for business growth

Outcome 2 — Cheshire East has a I
strong and resilient economy Nurture strong communities

Outcome 4 — Cheshire East is a green Unlock the potential of our towns
and sustainable place

Highway Asset Management Strategy

Lifecycle & Investment Planning
Data Management
Information Systems
Service Provision
Good Practice

Budget Performance

Service Requirements

Business Planning Target Setting and Monitoring

Service Delivery Standards

Budget
Budget
Inv??sitsrzent Risk Management
Resources
Resources Data

Data
) - ——— S

Delivery

Highway Asset Management Plan & Maintenance Plan
LTP Implementation Plan
Code of Practice for Highway Safety Inspections
Delivery of Projects
Delivery of Routine Maintenance Activities
Communication Strategy

Action 11.12 — We will continue to take an asset led approach to maintenance of our transport
assets in an effort to achieve maximum value for money

11.3.2 Weather-related disruptions

Projections show that by 2050, the Northwest region will have wetter and warmer winters and
drier and warmer summers. This will require an element of preparedness to ensure the transport
network maintain effectiveness.

Sections of the transport network already suffer from weather related issues. As routes become
unavailable for the passage of vehicles, journeys are disrupted and the level of congestion on the
wider network is increased, making increased resilience to weather-related disruptions a priority

for the future.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 126

F N
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

Action 11.13 — We will seek to ensure that the transport network is increasingly secure against
extreme weather events and disruption

11.3.3Permitting

Activity such as utility maintenance when occurring on the public highway has the potential to
cause inconvenience to vehicular traffic, pedestrians, cyclists and others; whilst also having the
potential to cause inconvenience for residents and business. Where the activity affects traffic flows
directly there is the likelihood of congestion and disruption.

Effective coordination and management of the highway requires reliable and timely information
being communicated and enables differences between those competing for space or time in the
street to be resolved in a positive and constructive way. In addition, efficient design of an activity
on the highway will significantly mitigate the potential disruption of that activity.

Permits provide the basis for this with the requirement to manage the applications for utility and
highway works in a proactive manner as these are the two activities that often have the greatest
effect on traffic and disruption.

Following the Traffic Management Act 2004 Part 3, the Council is preparing to join the West and
Shires Permit Scheme (WaSP Scheme). The WaSP scheme allows participating authorities to
better manage activities on the highway and minimise disruption and inconvenience. The WaSP
scheme requires an activity promoter to apply for a permit in order to ‘book’ time on the
highway. The Permit Authority issues permits with conditions attached to better focus the activity
in terms of reducing the impact of road users and other stakeholder; this might be in relation to
the timing of the works, the traffic management and methodology or any other factor that is
deemed important.

Action 11.14 — We will introduce a permitting scheme with the aim of reducing the negative
impact of utility and other works on highway function

Action 11.15 — We will seek provision of further functionality and continued development of the
range of information on roadwork’s and delays that is provided electronically

11.3.4Environmental performance and air quality

In Cheshire East, greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) from transport account for 44% of total
emissions, compared to about a quarter in the UK. Transport, in particular road transport, is also
a main source of local air pollution through the emission of pollutants such as nitrogen dioxide,
particulate matters, volatile organic compounds and sulphur dioxide.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan m



Page 127

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

However, transport networks, and their associated green infrastructure, can provide valuable
ecosystem services that can assist in the management of, and adaptation to climate change.
Green infrastructure can provide carbon storage by trees, sustainable drainage and water
conservation, cooling urban heat islands and ecological connectivity. Canal towpaths, public
rights of way, road verges, cycle routes or railway embankments therefore have the potential to
make a positive contribution to the environment.

In order to detect changes in air quality and limit air pollution to safe levels as set out by national
legislation and European directives, Cheshire East is required to undertake annual reporting which
assesses local air quality within its jurisdiction. Where the air quality objectives are not likely to be
met and emissions are expected to breach legal limits, an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA)
must be declared, for which the local authority must develop a plan to improve the air quality - a
Local Air Quality Action Plan.

Within Cheshire East, a total of eighteen AQMAs have been declared. All of these relate to
nitrogen dioxide emissions and breaches of the annual mean objective and there is the potential
for two to breach the hourly standard. There are four AQMAs in Macclesfield, three each in
Congleton and Crewe, two in Sandbach, and one in Cranage, Knutsford, Mere, Middlewich,
Nantwich and Disley:

AQMA Key service centre ~ Pallutant
West Road, Congleton Congleton NO; (Annual and potential
hourly Limit
A34/A54, Congleton Congleton NO; (Annual Limit)
Lower Heath, Congleton Congleton NO; (Annual and potential
hourly Limit)
Nantwich Road, Crewe Crewe NO, (Annual Limit)
Earle Street, Crewe Crewe NO, (Annual Limit)
Wistaston Road, Crewe Crewe NO, (Annual Limit)
M6 Motorway, Cranage Knutsford NO; (Annual Limit)
A556 Chester Road, Mere Knutsford NO, (Annual Limit)
A50, Manchester Road, Knutsford NO, (Annual Limit)
Knutsford
A523 London Road, Macclesfield NO> (Annual Limit)
Macclesfield
Broken Cross, Macclesfield Macclesfield NO, (Annual Limit)
Hibel Road, Macclesfield Macclesfield NO, (Annual Limit)
Park Lane, Macclesfield Macclesfield NO> (Annual Limit)
Chester Road, Middlewich Middlewich NO, (Annual Limit)
Hospital Street, Nantwich Nantwich NO> (Annual Limit)
A6 Market Street, Disley Poynton NO; (Annual Limit)

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 128

o
Cheshire East )
Council?7

Highways

A534 Middlewich Road, Sandbach NO> (Annual Limit)
Sandbach

A5022/A534 Sandbach Sandbach NO> (Annual Limit)

Action 11.16 - We will continue to monitor air quality and take action where necessary with
further detail to be set out in an updated Air Quality Management Strategy

Action 11.17 — We will support technological advances which reduce the environmental harm
caused by vehicle use

11.4 Parking

11.4.1Parking Management

Parking provision in the Borough supports accessibility for residents, businesses, shoppers,
workers and commuters. Parking provision has the potential to impact on surrounding areas both
negatively and positively. When parking is well managed it can support thriving businesses,
access to services and active social lives; but when not well managed parking can encourage car
travel to areas which suffer unduly from congestion as well as causing other environmental and
social issues.

The Council has various duties and roles when it comes to parking; including managing and
maintaining Council car parks, implementing and organising residents parking schemes where
requested, managing and implementing parking restrictions where required as well as enforcing
on street and off street parking restrictions. In addition, the Council has taken on additional roles
as a means of delivering benefit to Cheshire East residents such as providing rapid vehicle
chargers for electric vehicles.

The Coundil is currently developing a High Level Parking Strategy which will consider issues of
parking demand, management and supply. The proposed objectives for the High Level Parking
Strategy are as follows:

e Enhance and support local economies;

e Provide an income to allow car parks to be operated without additional requirements on
Council Tax;

e Enhance user experience by providing greater certainty over availability and cost of
parking;

e Reduce incursion of parking into sensitive areas to minimise adverse impacts;

e Increase the use of more sustainable and healthy forms of travel such as walking, cycling
and public transport; including through local pricing structures;

o Achieve a more effective and efficient transport system whilst taking into account:

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 129

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

The unigue economic vitality of town centres;

The parking needs of people with disabilities & parents/carers with young children;
The parking needs of local residents, shops and businesses; and

The parking needs of visitors, shoppers, workers and commuters.

o O O O

The Strategy will review all forms of parking requirements, not just for cars but all relevant
vehicles e.g. cycle, powered two-wheeler, HGV, bus and coach. The Strategy will make
recommendations with regards to both on and off-street parking arrangements and examine
inequalities that need to be considered. The Strategy will aim to manage the existing parking
stock, with particular emphasis on our market towns. This improved management may focus on
the better provision of information e.g. signage and real time information aimed at reducing
circulation, amended and flexible pricing structures and different methods of enforcement.

The Strategy will not set parking charges, but will establish relative pricing guidance and general
principles which should be taken into consideration when setting charges when set through
annual budget rounds.

Action 11.18 — We will develop a High Level Parking Strategy

11.4.2 School Parking

The 2010/11 School Census reveals that 21% of high school pupils are driven to school, with the
figure for primary schools, which are principally in residential areas, being significantly higher at
45%. Since this Census the impacts of parking around primary schools has been highlighted as an
issue by some residents and communities owing to the pressure it places on the local highway
infrastructure.

The Sustainable Modes of Travel to School Policy will identify interventions aimed at minimising
the adverse impact of parking at the school gates, including the development of School Travel
Plans. However, given the larger catchment areas associated with rural schools, there are
additional challenges faced in terms of encouraging modal shift towards walking and cycling. In
addition to Travel Plans other interventions will also be implemented such as educational
campaigns, exploring opportunities for off highway drop off zones and better enforcement.

Action 11.19 — We will continue to seek to minimise the adverse impacts of parking at the school
gates

11.5 Integration with other modes / land use

The integration of different transport modes has the ability to increase efficiency and
sustainability. A lack of integration between transport services and modes is a significant barrier
to greater use of bus and rail services, causing significant increases in journey time and
discouraging multi-modal travel.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 130

S

P
SO

Cheshire East ).
Council?

Highways

Improvements in integration between road and other transport modes e.g. bus, rail, walking and
cycling has the potential to decrease private car travel bringing a multitude of benefits. Likewise
promoting development which is not car dependant is vital for long-term sustainability, health
and the operation of the highway network.

Action 11.20 — We will implement improved car parking and cycle parking at bus and railway
stations across the Borough where the opportunity exists

Action 11.21 — We will promote development which facilitates travel by a variety of transport
modes

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan



Page 131

FECTIY
P

Cheshire East )l
Council?7

Highways

12 Delivering for Cheshire East

12.1 Monitoring and evaluation

Data collection and analysis play a key role in informing transport planning, investment and
management. Subsequently, there is a need for the Council to monitor progress against the LTP in
a proportionate way which does not impose unreasonable costs but gives focus to the collection
and analysis of data which will be beneficial to Cheshire East.

The Council will monitor progress against the LTP on an on-going basis and produce yearly
Monitoring and Evaluation Reports. Monitoring will focus on metrics related to each of the six LTP
transport challenges as detailed below:

e Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity:
o Efficiency: Minutes of delay per hour travelled on the Major Road Network in
Cheshire East: car; HGV and LGV; and
o Community perception of highway reliability: National Highways and
Transportation Public Satisfaction Survey — Tackling Congestion Theme.

e Ensuring accessibility to services:

o Supported bus service reliability: Percentage of supported bus services operating
within the ‘six-minute window' punctuality standards (one minute early to five
minutes late);

o Community perception of bus service reliability: National Highways and
Transportation Public Satisfaction Survey — Public Transport Theme; and

o Sustainable access to schools: Number of schools supported to implement and
maintain a School Travel Plan.

e Protecting and improving our environment:
o Air Quality: Number of Air Quality Management Areas declared in Cheshire East.

e Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity:
o Community perception of walking/cycling facilities: National Highways and
Transportation Public Satisfaction Survey — Walking/Cycling Theme; and
o Levels of walking and cycling: Walking and cycling counts from both manual and
automatic counts that are either already in place or would otherwise take place.

e Maintaining and managing our network assets:

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 132

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

o Road safety: Number of people killed or seriously injured on roads managed by
Cheshire East Council;

o Community perception of road safety: National Highways and Transportation
Public Satisfaction Survey — Road Safety Theme;

o Community perception of highways maintenance/enforcement: National Highways
and Transportation Public Satisfaction Survey - Highways
Maintenance/Enforcement Theme; and

o Highway maintenance: Number of third party claims relating to highway condition
made and number of subsequent compensation pay-outs.

¢ Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness:
o Transport funding: Amount of third party inward investment in Cheshire East's
transport network e.g. from central government or its agencies, private developers
etc,

12.2 Borough wide actions

This strategy identifies the Borough wide challenges, objectives and actions in relation to transport.
As discussed previously it will be supplemented by eleven Local Area Strategies which will spell out
more granular detail in terms of delivery in different locations. Below are listed the Borough wide
actions to be completed against each transport mode:

How we will meet the challenge

No. Action

6.1 We will work with the LEP and other bodies e.g. TfN to agree sub-regional
transport priorities

6.2 We will lobby central government and its agencies e.g. High ways England
and Network Rail for investment that brings most benefit to Cheshire East

6.3 We will support the implementation of the Industrial Strategy locally

including contributing towards meeting the grand challenges for clean
growth, mobility, and a data driven economy.

6.4 We will update our Sustainable Modes of Travel to School policy

6.5 We will seek to ensure that development delivered in line with the Local Plan
is accessible by different transport modes

6.6 We will support activities which reduce the carbon intensity and resilience of
our transport system.

6.7 We will review and update our Local Air Quality Strategy

6.8 We will support the delivery of green and blue infrastructure improvements

6.9 We will support increased levels of active transport, including through

delivery of the Cycle Strategy

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan m




Page 133

SNy,
P

Cheshire East
Council?
Highways

6.10 We will deliver our Highway Asset Management Strategy

6.11 We will work closely with partners to support maintenance of transport
infrastructure which falls outside our remit

6.12 We will deliver in line with the Bus Service Review

6.13 We will deliver a major infrastructure investment programme

6.14 We will support investment in quality of place supporting the creation of
high quality town centres

Active and smarter travel ‘

No. Action

71 We will continue to promote smarter choices as a means of supporting
leisure, commuter and business journeys to be made in more sustainable
ways

7.2 We will continue to support employers, schools and other trip generators to

develop, implement and monitor effective travel plans through our online
resources and advice from officers where required

7.3 We will support children and young people to access schools and educations
sites via sustainable modes wherever possible. Our approach to this will be
identified in our forthcoming Sustainable Modes of Travel Strategy.

74 We will work to improve the quality of our footpaths and pavements,
including through targeted investment as part of our asset led approach to
highway maintenance

7.5 We will connect existing parts of the pedestrian network, close gaps and
address safety concerns at identified hotspots

7.6 We will continue to maintain and improve the existing cycling infrastructure
and develop a network of strategic high quality cycle routes connecting the
Borough

7.7 We will support the delivery of improved walking and cycling infrastructure as
part of the delivery of other major transport schemes

7.8 We will support the development of Town Cycling Plans and their integration
in the Neighbourhood Plans for all towns and key service centres in the
Borough

7.9 We will seek to ensure that developments are planned in a sustainable way
through the inclusion of active travel facilities and linkages

7.10 We will maintain, improve and promote the paths available for leisure use,
including horse riding

711 We will seek to ensure that the publically accessible highway and transport
network supports accessibility for all and does not exclude anyone

7.12 We will continue to reduce barriers for multimodal active travel and improve

the accessibility to and facilities at rail and bus stations for pedestrians and

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 134

SN
P

Cheshire East )\
Council?
Highways

cyclists

713 We will facilitate the use of walking and cycling to access leisure destinations
and for leisure trips

7.14 We will seek external funding from all sources to support active and
sustainable travel interventions

R ...

No. Action

9.1 We will lobby for investment in rail infrastructure where it will unlock
opportunities for improved rail services within the Borough

9.2 We will continue to work with partners at the sub-regional and national level
to influence the specification of rail franchises in the best interests of the
Borough

93 We will work to support additional rail services in the Borough where they will
bring most benefit

94 We will work to achieve maximum Borough wide benefit from HS2 whilst
achieving mitigation measures to minimise negative impacts on residents

9.5 We will use HS2 as an opportunity to drive substantial investment and
improvement in Crewe, including through the development of the Crewe
Masterplan

9.6 We will work to ensure that HS2 does not detrimentally impact conventional
services linking to the Borough

9.7 We will support delivery of Growth Track 360

9.8 We will work with partners with the aim of reopening the Northwich to
Sandbach rail line to passenger traffic

9.9 We will work with partners with the aim of double tracking the section of line
between Crewe and Alsager

9.10 We will promote rail freight as a more sustainable method of haulage except
in instances where here are conflicts with passenger services

Public transport information and ticketing \

No. Action

10.1 We will work with partners to improve information around bus services and
ticketing, including supporting a move to smart ticketing where appropriate

10.2 We will work with partners to improve information at interchange facilities

10.3 We will promote well maintained and accessible interchange facilities which
feel safe to use day or night

104 We will work with passenger transport providers (bus, rail and community
transport) and other partners to improve public transport integration and
facilities in Cheshire East

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan m



Page 135

o
Cheshire East ).
Council7

Highways

No. Action

111 We support the establishment of a Major Roads Network and commit to
additional investment in this key infrastructure if supported as necessary by
national government

11.2 We will work to improve the connectivity between the local and strategic
road networks
113 We will seek effective solutions to existing pinch points on the local road

network and lobby for Highways England to resolve those on the Strategic
Road Network

114 We will work to minimise the negative impacts of development on the
highway network and seek suitable mitigation measures of all types where
required

115 We will work to improve HGV routing through measures on street, working

with developers and large trip attractors e.g. supermarkets and hauliers and
through the provision of information such as the innovative Freight Journey
Planner

116 We will support the delivery of Highway England schemes which will bring
benefit to Cheshire East and actively contribute in the identification and
planning of future schemes, including through the RIS2 process

117 We will seek effective delivery of identified major schemes on the local and
major route networks as identified in Table XX
11.8 We will continue to support the use of existing speed cameras and the

introduction of speed management measures at accident hotspots as
determined by the Cheshire Road Safety Partnership

119 We will work with partners and other organisations to provide education
and training to high risk groups, including young adults, children,
pedestrians, cyclists and motorcyclists

11.10 We will continue to support programmes which inform all drivers and riders
of the consequences of high-risk behaviours such as excessive speed,
alcohol and drug impairment and not wearing seatbelts

1111 We will continue to work with schools, employers and local communities to
provide road safety training to cyclists and promote the use of active travel

11.12 We will continue to take an asset led approach to maintenance of our
transport assets in an effort to achieve maximum value for money

11.13 We will seek to ensure that the transport network is increasingly secure

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan m



Page 136

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

Council?

Highways

against extreme weather events and disruption

11.14 We will introduce a permitting scheme with the aim of reducing the
negative impact of utility and other works on highway function

11.15 We will seek provision of further functionality and continued development
of the range of information on roadwork’s and delays that is provided
electronically

11.16 We will continue to monitor air quality and take action where necessary
with further detail to be set out in an updated Air Quality Management
Strategy

11.17 We will support technological advances which reduce the environmental
harm caused by vehicle use

11.18 We will develop a High Level Parking Strategy

11.19 We will continue to seek to minimise the adverse impacts of parking at the
school gates

11.18 We will implement improved car parking and cycle parking at bus and
railway stations across the Borough where the opportunity exists

11.19 We will promote development which facilitates travel by a variety of

transport modes

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

100



TSI
o R

Cheshire Eas’t;\,I
Council?7

Highways

Page 137

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

101



Page 138

S

P

Cheshire East ).
Council?

Highways

Appendix 1

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 102



Page 139

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Alsager

Area Summary

Alsager is a town and civil parish located in the south east of the borough 8km from Crewe and 13km
from Stoke-on-Trent, with a population of approximately 12,500. The civil parish is bordered by the
parishes of Betchton to the north and Audley Rural to the south.

Five nearby settlements rely on Alsager’s services, including the areas of Lawton Heath End, Rode
Heath, Church Lawton, Kidgrove and Scholar Green. Due to its location in the south of the borough
and its proximity to the Potteries, Alsager has close ties to both Crewe and Stoke-on-Trent.

There is significant planned development within Cheshire East supporting the Council’s objective of
jobs-led growth. This includes six sites consisting of both residential and employment development in
Alsager as outlined in the Local Plan. This pro-growth policy position underlines the importance of
effective management of the transport network to ensure journey time efficiency and reliability.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they impact Alsager.

~

Alsager
ALSAGER

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity
Following the conversion of Radway Green to a business park and the closure of the Manchester

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 103



Page 140

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

Metropolitan University Campus and Twyford Bathrooms, employment opportunities within Alsager
remain limited. Currently, 66% of the population of Alsager is economically active which is lower than
both the national and Cheshire East averages. In addition, Alsager has a significantly higher
percentage of retired residents than nationally or borough averages. The limited employment
opportunities and the low percentage of economically active residents creates a particular challenge
for Alsager that is reflected in the eastern part of Alsager being amongst the top 20% most deprived
areas nationally. The issues with deprivation and the lack of local employment opportunities
underlines the importance of delivering improved transport connectivity to Alsager as a means of
supporting jobs led growth.

Less than a quarter of residents in Alsager live within walking or cycling distance of their workplace,
limiting the opportunities for people to use active travel to commute. 20% of residents commute 5 to
10 km with the largest share (40%) living 10 km or more from their place of employment. This
highlights the importance of bus and rail services as well as the road network to enable efficient
access to work. With both bus and rail services limited to one or two services to Crewe, Stoke and
other nearby service centres 84% of commuters rely on the car to get to work with only 5% using
public transport.

Alsager is located 5km from Junction 16 of the M6 and possesses good links to the strategic road
network. However, there are issues relating to parts of the local road network e.g. the B5077 which
operates at or near full capacity during peak times which increases the incidence of congestion and
reduces journey time reliability. Congestion often inhibits access between Junction 16 and Alsager
town centre particularly in peak periods. The junction of the B5077 Crewe Road and B5078 Sandbach
Road North causes concern locally and this has the potential to inhibit local business growth and
economic development.

There are several local development areas that have been designated in the Local Plan as illustrated
below:

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 104



Page 141

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

3

] Alsager

Development Sites in Alsager
Cheshire East Local Plan

[ Employment

[ Housing

7] Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
[~ Housing + Employment

[ Mixed Use

[ Protected Open Space

[ safeguarded

© OpenStreetMap contributors

The provision of 47ha of employment land in Radway Green in addition to the housing development
sites is likely to generate an inflow of workers. This has the potential to put additional stress on parts
of the road network which are already under pressure, such as links with the M6 and surrounding key
centres such as Crewe and Stoke-on-Trent. As such, there will be a need for new development to be
delivered in tandem with road, public transport and active travel improvements in order to support
jobs-led growth within Cheshire East.

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services
Alsager has an increasingly ageing population with more than a quarter of households in Alsager
being of retirement age. Subsequently, services and facilities for older people need to be provided,
and this has been a focus area for a number of local development sites which include land allocation
for older person’s accommodation. Whilst these new developments will bring much needed care
services, they are located away from the centre of Alsager and related services and therefore
appropriate consideration should be given to accessibility into the town centre.

Commercial bus services are currently in operation from Alsager tom Congleton, Crewe, Kidsgrove,
and Leighton Hospital. However, the frequency of some bus services has recently been reduced,
limiting mobility options for those that do not have access to a car. Good quality public transport is
needed if residents are to have good access to employment, services and education without relying
on the private car.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment
Alsager benefits from proximity to open countryside and is set within an attractive landscape setting
with areas of good quality open space; including Alsager Mere, Milton Park and Cranberry Moss

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 105



Page 142

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways
which all add to the quality of place and life enjoyed by Alsager’s residents.

Much of the proposed development plans to incorporate green infrastructure, with some offering
new sport and leisure community facilities and improved opportunities for exercise. The challenge
will be to ensure that these are delivered to a high standard and to reduce barriers to these facilities
to ensure they are accessible for all sections of the local population irrespective of age or other
factors

There are currently no Air Quality Management Areas in the town. Nevertheless, parts of Alsager
along the main roads and the M6 are subject to noise pollution from high traffic flows and queueing.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity
With relatively low levels of active travel, a high share of elderly residents and one of the 20% most
deprived areas in England, addressing physical inactivity and poor health is important in Alsager.

The town has connections to the National Cycle Network (NCN 5 and NCN70) which provides cycle
access to many nearby areas for both leisure and utility trips. However, the perception of safety on
routes linking nearby towns and settlements is an issue hindering the use of cycles as an alternative
to short distance car trips thereby limiting the health and wellbeing benefits accrued locally.

Wherever possible, new developments should offer improved or new pedestrian and cycle
infrastructure liking nearby residential areas and services.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the borough is
vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:
e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to
extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in what
is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully securing

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 106



Page 143

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be a need to
continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that will support
our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

The car is the dominant mode of commuter travel with 84% of residents travelling to work via car.
This is related to the fact that almost half of residents travel between 5 and 20 km to access
employment; including to commuter destinations such as Stoke-on-Trent, Congleton and Crewe.
Therefore, the delivery of improved public transport to these key locations may reduce stress on the
road network, in addition to required investment in the road network to increase capacity and allow
for growth.

Active and Smarter Travel

Improved linkages with green and blue spaces linked to improvements in quality of place will bring
health and wellbeing benefits to the residents of Alsager. Whilst improving the perceived safety of
walking and cycling as an alternative for short distance car trips will help improve activity levels and
help improve health and local wellbeing, this will require improved provision and maintenance of
footways and cycleways. Linked to this are issues with accessibility in the town for those using
mobility scooters and aids. Footpath widening and further dropped kerb installation are required in
order to support independence for all. This is part of a wider ambition to focus on improving the
pedestrian experience in the centre of Alsager.

The Salt Line, a former railway line linking Wheelock and Alsager and the Trent-Mersey Canal
running north east of the town are both popular leisure walking and cycling routes. Alsager is also
well situated within the National Cycle Network, with access to many nearby areas via bike. NCN 5
runs to the north of the town and NCN 70 runs to the west of the town. Access to these routes via
connecting infrastructure could be improved to increase usage.

The significant proposed employment and housing development in Alsager needs to be well
integrated into the transport infrastructure network. This should include walking and cycling
infrastructure linking to residential areas, employment and key services. Within the plans for new
employment areas, particularly Radway Green, are new pedestrian and cycle links to residential
areas and nearby shops which are likely to increase the uptake of active transport bringing health
and wellbeing benefits.

Bus

Bus services link various areas of the town, and also connect Alsager with nearby towns, with
services offering connections to Crewe, Sandbach, Congleton, Nantwich and the Potteries. Evening
and Saturday services are limited on bus services between Nantwich and Scholar Green, which also
call at Sandbach, Alsager and Leighton Hospital. The community have also reported relatively long
bus journey times to access Leighton Hospital to the north west of Crewe.

Two bus interchanges exist within Alsager, at Alsager Bank Corner bus stop and Alsager Railway
Station. The interchange between the two bus stations would also benefit from improvement to
support wider growth in bus usage. These services will need to be further developed through
improvements to ticketing, information of services and infrastructure.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 107



Page 144

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

In future, there are aspirations to provide improved connections between attractions and
destinations, such as the town centre and employment areas, and ensure that new developments
are fully integrated into the public transport network.

Rail

Alsager Railway Station is unstaffed, managed by East Midlands Trains and provides hourly links via
Stafford, Lichfield and the Trent Valley Line to Northampton, Milton Keynes and London Euston as
well as two hourly trains to Crewe. Due to its unstaffed nature the installation of ticket machines at
the station would support ease of use. There is also a desire for greater connectivity to Crewe via rail
in the evening and weekends as off-peak services can make rail a viable alternative to the car for
many. Improving services at the station would encourage use of rail in Alsager.

To build upon the increase in usage (6%) from 2014/15 to 2015/16, the connections between
Alsager station and residential as well as employment areas and nearby transport hubs require
improvement. This would make it easier to combine public transport and walking or cycling, whilst
also potentially encouraging car users to shift to public and active transport to get from home to
work and vice-versa. An integrated and joined up network of transport would improve access and
support growth.

Roads

In order to address safety and improve capacity, improvements are planned for a number of local
junctions. Improvements to the B5077/B5078 junction and other local junctions (A5011 Linley
Lane/Crewe Road, Hassall Road/Church Road/Dunnocksfold Road) are being progressed and are
currently at the preliminary design or concept stage.

The signalised junction of the A5011 Linley Lane/Crewe Rd also has the potential to be impacted by
proposed development sites, with capacity issues likely to occur if not mitigated against. Similar
issues may arise on the Hassall Road/Church Road/Dunnocksfold Road mini roundabout following
future development of the former MMU campus. From examining the various congestion issues, it is
evident that junction improvements need to be implemented in order to support growth of housing
and employment in Alsager. This will support the Council’s jobs-led growth agenda, allowing housing
and employment development to progress.

A total of four car parks (403 spaces combined) exist in Alsager and are all free of charge with it
being observed that public car parks within the town can be particularly busy during peak times.
Alsager would benefit from additional parking at Alsager rail station to encourage greater use of rail.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 108



Page 145

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Congleton

Area Summary

Congleton is a market town in the eastern part of the borough, and lies on the River Dane which runs
to the north of the town centre. Congleton lies half way between the principal towns of Crewe
(15km) and Macclesfield (10km). Nearby settlements which rely on Congleton as a local service
centre include Astbury, Hulme Walfield, Havannah and Eaton.

There is significant planned development within Cheshire East supporting the Council’s objective of
jobs-led growth. This includes a total of seven sites in Congleton as outlined in the Local Plan, which
consists of employment, housing and mixed use land; with the majority of this development situated
to the north west of Congleton associated with delivery of the Congleton Link Road. This pro-growth
policy position underlines the importance of effective management of the transport network to
ensure journey time efficiency and reliability.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they impact Congleton.

xxxxx

,,,,,

Congleton

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity
Congleton is relatively well connected to surrounding economic centres and the national transport
network. It is linked to Manchester and Stoke-and-Trent via the A34, the M6 is 11km from the town
and linked by the A54 and the A534. Congleton rail station is located on the Manchester to Stoke-on-
Trent line.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 109



Page 146

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

69% of Congleton’s residents are economically active and the unemployment rate is 3.23% which is
similar to the Cheshire East average. Within the town, one area figures amongst the top 20%
nationally most deprived.

Locally many residents are employed within the manufacturing sector due to the number of major
manufacturers within the area, including Siemens, Airbags International and Berisford. A majority of
employers are located on five major employment sites:

e Eaton Bank to the north of the town centre alongside the River Dane;

e Congleton Business Park to the north of the town centre;

e Daneside Business Park to the north of the town centre;

e Greenfield Industrial Estate on the western side of the town; and

e Radnor Park Industrial Estate located to the west of the town centre.

Several developments are planned in Congleton as identified in the Local Plan, as outlined below:
N

1

Congleton

Development Sites in Congleton
Cheshire East Local Plan

| Employment

[ Housing

[ Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
[Z77 Housing + Employment

[ Mixed Use

[ Protected Open Space

0 05 T 15 2km Safeguarded
© OpenStreetMap contributors

These developments are expected to generate employment-led growth to allow business expansion
and attract new investment. This is expected to increase the number of residents within the area,
which are accommodated for in the increased housing availability identified in the Local Plan. All of
these factors combined will generate economic growth, and it is important that the right transport
investments are made to facilitate this jobs-led growth in Congleton.

The concentration of residential housing growth to the north of Congleton will require consideration
of improved links to key services from these areas, not least to Congleton Town Centre.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

110



Page 147

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Given the prevalence of long distance commuting, expected development and the deprivation issues
associated with some parts of the local area, enabling transport access to employment areas as well
as local services and transport hubs is essential to supporting economic growth. Considering the high
levels of car travel and the low share of rail use amongst commuters, it should be investigated how
to facilitate a shift to rail where possible to ensure sustainable long-term connectivity to key
economic centres and employment areas.

In addition, traffic flows are reaching capacity on the A34 corridor particularly in the peak periods,
with congestion and delays occurring as a result. In order to support growth in Congleton and sustain
the road network for the future, it is important to maintain good connectivity for all road users.
Investment into the transport infrastructure will need to address road capacity issues in Congleton
with the planned Link Road playing a significant role in this regard.

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

With over 20% of the local population aged over 65, a figure above the national average, it is
important that local amenities are accessible to all, including those without access to a car. The
closest hospital is the Macclesfield District General Hospital, which is approximately 12km and 30
minutes away by public transport. There is no direct connection to the hospital from Congleton, as all
public transport options require changing at least once or a walking leg of the journey.

Congleton has nine primary schools and two secondary schools; with colleges and higher education
available further away in Crewe and Stoke-on-Trent. Ensuring sustainable and safe access to local
schools and public transport options to further education is therefore vital to ensuring access to
education and keeping Congleton an attractive place to live.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

A number of community parks, greenspaces and outdoor areas exist throughout the town, including
Astbury Mere, Congleton Park and the Dane-in-Shaw Pastures with the quality of greenspace in
Congleton being recognised by Natural England. Transport improvements need to preserve these
areas and provide sustainable means to access green spaces as a means of supporting improved
health and wellbeing, an aim which is incorporated into the design of several new developments.

Three Air Quality Management Areas have been declared in Congleton with all three due to limits for
annual mean nitrogen dioxide emissions being exceeded as a result of high traffic flows and
congestion. All are situated on or near the A34, one in West Road between the A34 and Forge Ln,
one on the A54/A34 intersection and at Lower Heath near the junction with Dane Bank Avenue.
Additionally, noise levels exceeding 75 dB exist throughout Congleton on West Road, Clayton Bypass,
Rood hill and Lower Heath, constituting a nuisance for adjacent residents. Reducing congestion levels
and the negative impacts of traffic is therefore necessary through transport improvements and
traffic management to ensure that sustainable growth can be achieved in the future.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

Local green spaces in Congleton offer significant potential for increasing the level of physical activity
through active travel and leisure activities. Congleton is also located along the national cycle network
routes NCN 573 and NCN 55 offering routes to nearby service areas. The town is connected to the
canal network via the Macclesfield Canal which contributes to the recreational activities available
locally. There are a number of walking and cycling facilities in the town requiring improvement or
promotion, including the Biddulph Valley Way which is a recreational walking and cycling path from
Congleton to Biddulph.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 111



Page 148

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Congleton has an ageing population and it is important to provide accessible transport options for
older people.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the borough is
vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:
o Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to
extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in what
is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully securing
significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be a need to
continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that will support
our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

Residents from Congleton commute to Macclesfield, Alderley Edge and more generally towards the
north and to a lesser extent the Potteries. Significant numbers of commuters travel to Congleton
from Rode Heath, Biddulph, Alsager and Kidsgrove i.e. from the south of Congleton.

The majority of commuters (77%) use the car to travel to work, while the remaining residents mostly
walk to work (11%) and cycle (2%) with only 4% using public transport in the form of bus and rail.
Almost a quarter of commuters travel less than 2km to work and an additional 9% travel less than
5km. Almost half of commuters travel more than 10km to work, due to the significant number of
residents commuting to Manchester, Macclesfield, Alderley Edge and Stoke-on-Trent.

Active and Smarter Travel

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 112



Page 149

ESSSY
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

Cycling and walking infrastructure is fragmented, and segregated cycling routes are limited which
reduces accessibility of walking and cycling. Major roads cutting through Congleton such as the A34,
A54 and A534 with their high traffic flows further constitute barriers to walking and cycling. A
number of proposed developments outlined in the Local Plan intend to improve connections, with a
number incorporating new pedestrian and cycle links into their design. The integration of the
developments into existing and future transport networks needs to be ensured, in order to ensure
that transport is well integrated into residential and employment areas.

The Biddulph Valley Way, just outside of the town centre to the border with North Staffordshire,
offers a multi-user route for walkers, cyclists and horse riders, and this route has the potential to be
expanded to further increase walking and cycling options. This could be through maintenance of the
route, and improved surfacing and access points.

The cycle routes NCN 573 (Congleton to Davenham via Goostrey) and the NCN 55 (lronbridge to
Preston) pass through Congleton and offer substantial stretches of off-road cycling. Alongside this,
Macclesfield Canal towpath improvements and the promotion of a cycle route from the Railway
Station to Congleton town centre have been suggested. If these improvements were to be
implemented, this could support economic growth and stand as a viable option for commuters.

Bus

These services provide hourly or better access to the major service hubs of Macclesfield and Crewe,
Alsager and Sandbach, although few of these services operate on a Sunday and during evenings. The
Beartown service offers a local circular service every half hour apart from Sundays, linking local
destinations within Congleton.

Improved transport integration through links between the bus and train stations are also likely to be
well utilised and improved services, frequencies and coordination of schedules. The bus network in
Congleton is supported by two bus interchanges. The principal one is at the Congleton Fairground
Bus Station, and another smaller facility at Congleton Railway Station.

With the extent of developments planned for Congleton, there is an aspiration to provide improved
connections between the town centre, employment areas, and new housing developments to
ensure that they are integrated into the public transport network.

Rail

Congleton Railway Station, managed by Northern Rail, is located on the Manchester to Stoke-on-
Trent branch of the West Coast Main Line providing indirect access to London Euston (via Stoke-on-
Trent). Other destinations served by the train station include Kidsgrove, Macclesfield, Manchester
Piccadilly (41 minutes), Poynton, Stockport and Stoke-on-Trent (16 minutes). Subsequently, the rail
station provides access to several major destinations, many of which are commuter destinations,
and therefore there is the potential for greater uptake of rail transport.

To support this, rail services which are currently limited to an hourly stopping service to/from Stoke
and to/from Manchester via Stockport, should increase in frequency; which would require support
from central government and discussions with the Train Operating Company. Rail usage levels have
recently increased by 8% from 2014/15 (292,302) to 2015/16 (313,290) showing an increase of
importance of rail as a mode of travel. Improved integration of the rail station with other modes of
travel, such as bus or active modes would further increase the attractiveness of rail travel.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 113



Page 150

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Roads

Congleton is well connected to the strategic road network, located approximately 11km east of the
M6 motorway. The A34 road links the town to Stoke-on-Trent and Manchester with the A536
offering connections to Macclesfield. Manchester airport can currently be reached via car in
approximately 40 minutes, whilst Crewe is accessible within a 30-minute drive.

Other key junctions that suffer from the impacts of congestion include:

. A34 Rood Hill / A54 Rood Hill / A34 Clayton By-pass (signalised junction)

3 A34 Clayton By-pass / Barn Road / A34 Clayton Bypass (roundabout junction)

. A34 West Road / West Street / A34 Clayton By-pass (roundabout junction)

. A34 West Road / A54 Holmes Chapel Road / A34 Newcastle Road / A534 Sandbach Road

(roundabout junction / gyratory)

It is important that issues at these junctions are addressed in order to create improved road capacity
and enable future growth and investment into Congleton. This would support the jobs-led growth
agenda of the Council, and create a sustainable road network with capacity for future growth.

Congleton Link Road is a major scheme that gained planning approval in June 2016. This road will
create a connection between the A534 Sandbach Road and the A536 Macclesfield Road. This will
unlock some of the opportunities for employment and housing identified above, and is expected to
generate further inward investment at established locations such as Congleton Business Park, and
improve access to Radnor Park Industrial Estate. Congleton will also gain a connection to the M6
Growth Corridor, which will increase investment in manufacturing/engineering; an industry key to
the towns heritage and future. The link will reduce traffic congestion in the town centre, and
improve local air quality.

Congleton has a total of 13 car park sites, of which 7 are free of charge. Altogether, 844 parking
spaces are available in and around the town.

Crewe

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

114



Page 151

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Area Summary

Crewe is a principal town within Cheshire East, with a historic industrial centre which is also a
significant railway hub. The town lies approximately 30 miles south of Manchester and Liverpool, and
50 miles north of Birmingham.

Crewe plays a strategically vital role within the economy of the Cheshire & Warrington sub-region, as
well as providing a service centre for the nearby settlements of Haslington, Shavington, Weston and
Willaston.

There is significant planned development within Cheshire East supporting the Council’s objective of
jobs-led growth. This includes a number of committed sites in Crewe as outlined in the Local Plan.
This pro-growth policy position underlines the importance of effective management of the transport
network to ensure journey time efficiency and reliability.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they impact Crewe.

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

Crewe is exceptionally well connected and possesses significant growth potential, with the
‘Constellation Partnership’ growth programme aiming to capitalise on Crewe’s relatively
unconstrained availability of land, a strong business and human capital base and future improved
connectivity to major economic hubs and markets through the proposed HS2 Hub.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 115



Page 152

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Crewe is well located for connectivity to the UK’s motorway network, creating an attractive location
for logistics and manufacturing activity. Crewe’s main roads are the A530 and the A534 running
north-south and the A500/Nantwich bypass/A51 running west-east to the south of the town. The
presence of numerous rail lines converging in Crewe results in congestion as a result of limited road
and rail crossing points. In peak periods, congestion exists on the A534 Nantwich Road with resulting
impacts on air quality and the A530 Flowers Lane junction, which may be exacerbated by the
proposed Leighton West development. It is important to address congestion within Crewe itself in
order to unlock some of the sites for development in the Local Plan and enable growth. Addressing
these issues will allow for a road network which has the capacity to cater for future planned growth
and investment, creating a sustainable road network in Crewe.

Proposed developments are forecast to impact various junctions across the town unless successfully
mitigated:

e A530 Middlewich Road / Smithy Lane;

e Flowers Lane / Bradfield Road / Smithy Lane;

e A51/Middlewich Road;

e Crewe Road / A500;

e Crewe Green Link Road, South Roundabout;

e Weston Road / University Way;

e A500/A531/ A5020;

e Macon Way (roundabout with A534/A532);

e A534 Nantwich Road / A5019 Mill Street / B5071 South Street;

e Sydney Road / Herbert Street; and

e A534 Crewe Green Road / A5020 University Way / Hungerford Road.

It is important to provide solutions to these junctions in Crewe in order to provide the capacity and
resilience for future growth through housing, employment and other investment in Crewe. Increased
investment is already becoming evident with Bentley Motors recently announcing £1billion
investment further securing Crewe’s status as a premier location for excellence in manufacturing and
engineering. This planned transformational change in Crewe means that the town has the potential
to become a key northern economic centre in future. With the arrival of HS2 in 2027, this is likely to
further increase the attractiveness of the area for future investors. It is important that these
developments are planned with the required supporting transport infrastructure needed in order to
ensure sustainable growth of Crewe and its economy.

Several developments are outlined in the Local Plan to cater for growth in housing and employment,
with the majority located in the town centre, adjacent to the existing rail station to the south and the
industrial parks to the north west; as shown below:

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 116



Page 153

ESS
P

.
=
ire East,
Council?
Highways
N
4
7\
7
7
'\‘\‘ K Development Sites in Crewe
\ Cheshire East Local Plan
Ne—%" T \ “ [ Employment
L — [ Housing
% 7 ~ \ 4 77 Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
% § \ [ Housing + Employment
- o [] Mixed Use
Yy \ [ Protected Open Space
0 05 1 15 % 2km i \ [ safeguarded
— © OpenStreetMap contributors \

Economic growth and inward investment is likely to increase commuter flows to the area, which are
already relatively high as Crewe supports around 40,000 work-based employees in 5,000 businesses.
Also, 4.9 million people currently live within a one-hour journey of Crewe and the arrival of HS2 will
significantly increase this figure. The Crewe Masterplan details the following growth scenario to 2043
relating to the provision of the HS2 Hub:

= GVA£1l.1bnto £2.9bn;

= Commercial floor space of 107,000m? to 590,000m?;

= 23,000 to 60,000 jobs; and

= 3,500to 10,600 homes.

The journey speed and efficiency improvements HS2 will bring with London and other major cities,
coupled with existing good connections via the strategic road network and attractive land values will
create strong pull factors for office markets, regional hub employers and major retailing. It is a
challenge for Cheshire East to ensure that the benefits which arise from HS2 are visible borough
wide.

As a result of 69% of commuters travelling by car in additional to development as described above,
the road network in Crewe experiences congestion at peak hours. Two major road schemes are
currently being progressed, which will help ease congestion. However, with future predicted growth
in Crewe it is a challenge to further relieve congestion in additional places on the network.

Although Crewe town centre is relatively close to the Grand Junction Retail Park the area feels
disconnected and hence footfall is anecdotally lower than could be expected given the retail offer.
There is a challenge to better integrate the retail park and the town centre in future years to

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 117



Page 154

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

complement the redevelopment of the Grand Arcade site, thereby revitalising the town centre.

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

Crewe is the most demographically varied area of Cheshire East, with the most densely populated
areas found in north east Crewe. It has the youngest population of the borough, lower average
income than other places in the borough and also the most deprived areas within Cheshire East.
Ensuring access to opportunity, health care and education is therefore of particular importance in
Crewe.

Crewe benefits from an array of education assets and providers; including primary schools, secondary
schools, sixth forms, and colleges and other tertiary education providers. A number of these schools
are located on or nearby busy roads and parking from school drop has the potential to create safety
issues. In addition, given that school-related traffic forms a significant proportion of peak traffic,
ensuring sustainable access to education has a significant role in ensuring accessibility for local
residents.

A number of the main roads in Crewe can act as real or perceived safety barriers to walking and
cycling due to the high vehicle flows. Limited pavement quality has been raised as an accessibility
issue, especially for older people and those with reduced mobility.

A number of key employers are located within the urban area of Crewe, including Grand Junction
Retail Park and Crewe Business Park, and businesses located within the town centre. Some, such as
Crewe Business Park, are accessible on foot from the station. Others are further away which
discourages public transport and walking use and subsequently they are accessed primarily by car.
The challenge is to increase accessibility to these areas via alternative modes of travel and to
integrate them into the public transport network. The challenge within Crewe itself, is to improve
accessibility focused on improved pedestrian connectivity to the town centre and employment,
particularly between residential areas and employment sites, aiming to reduce car use for short
journeys. Improved local accessibility and connections to the public transport network is especially
important as 25% of Crewe’s residents do not have access to a car.

Currently, there are no direct links from Crewe to Macclesfield or Knutsford and this could allow for
new employment opportunities generated by HS2 to be accessible across Cheshire East. In addition,
station capacity is also a potential problem particularly for terminating trains. Although the current
track layout at Crewe has capacity for terminating services from the south, the north side is more
constrained. In particular, there is a lack of capacity for additional terminating services from the lines
to Liverpool, Warrington and Manchester.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

As a result of ongoing development in Crewe, a Green Gap policy is in place to ensure Crewe and
nearby settlements do not coalesce whilst still leaving appropriate scope for further development in
the Local Plan period and beyond. The long term objective is preventing Crewe, Willaston, Wistaston,
Nantwich, Haslington and Shavington from merging into each other. As such, areas of green space
need to be protected forming a gap between the settlements and supporting improved access to
recreational space.

Within Crewe, three Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) have been declared due to exceedance
of annual mean nitrogen dioxide levels as a result of high road traffic levels and congestion. All three

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 118



Page 155

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

AQMAs are located on busy roads within central Crewe. One is along Nantwich Road between the rail
bridge and Ruskin Road, the second is on Wistaston Road between Bridle Road and Duke Street with
the third on the A532 Earle Street from Thomas Street to Manchester Bridge at Vincent Street. Noise
issues have also been identified along the A534 Haslington Bypass, Crewe Green Road, Nantwich
Road, the A530 Middlewich Road and the A500. There is an aim to improve air quality in Crewe, and
address the AQMAs. This will create a more pleasant and attractive place to live and work.

It is the Council’s vision to continue to maintain and improve the image of Cheshire East and its high
quality of place. The aim for Crewe is to continue to be attractive for investors, as a place to live and
also as a place to visit. As such, new developments in Crewe are now expected to contribute to ‘The
Green Infrastructure Action Plan for Crewe’, through the provision of green spaces and walking/cycle
routes and by working towards environmental objectives.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

Crewe experiences more deprivation than the rest of the borough and its rural hinterland in terms of
health, income and educational performance. Particularly in urban Crewe, five areas are judged as
being in the 10% of most deprived areas nationally. In addition, physical activity rates in Crewe are
some of the lowest in the borough. This is reflected in male life expectancy being around 10 years
less than in other areas of Cheshire East. Subsequently, a key challenge is to increase physical activity
and health within Crewe such as through active travel.

Cheshire East has an ageing population with a significant proportion of the population aged over 65.
There is an opportunity to continue to enhance active travel opportunities for some older people
whilst also recognising this may not be an option for some and there is a requirement for suitable
accessible means of transport that supports independence and wellbeing.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the borough is
vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:
e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to
extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 119



Page 156

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in what
is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully securing
significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be a need to
continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that will support
our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

Crewe attracts a net inflow of commuters, with flows of people commuting into Crewe higher than
the people going out for work. The biggest attractors of commuters are Crewe Business Park, Gates
Industrial Park, Bentley Motors, Leighton Hospital and the Grand Junction Retail Park. These flows of
workers make it important to have a road network that can meet demand.

A significant number of commuters come from nearby places such as Nantwich, Sandbach and
Alsager for which public transport can provide a feasible alternative. There is also a large inflow of
workers commuting in from the Potteries. The remaining inflow comes from the Mid-Cheshire towns
and other key service centres in the borough. Outflows are largely limited to nearby places such as
Nantwich and to a lesser extent Manchester, the Mid-Cheshire towns and the Potteries.

Around 69% of commuters travel to work by car, while 16% walk to their workplace, 6% cycle and
6% use public transport. These levels of walking, cycling and bus commuting are amongst the highest
values in the borough. However, only 2% of residents use the train to travel to work, despite the
good rail connections offered by Crewe station.

More than 60% of journeys to work are made within the Crewe and Nantwich area, indicating a high
proportion of residents working in close proximity to where they live. With a large proportion of
employees living within 10km of their workplace and only 24% travelling more than 10km there is
the potential to shift a proportion of work related trips to more sustainable modes of travel such as
walking, cycling or public transport.

Active and Smarter Travel

Attempts to increase physical activity levels in the area are already underway, with the delivery of
the Lifestyle Centre in central Crewe that incorporates leisure, library and care facilities. As part of
the Sustainable Travel Transition Year, travel planning advice was provided to local businesses and
institutions. A substantial share of commuters and students live within walking and cycling distance
of their workplace or educational facility. However, capital investment in physical pedestrian and
cycling infrastructure is necessary as the main barriers to increased active travel are fragmented
networks and poor perceptions of safety. A Crewe Cycling Infrastructure Plan has been developed to
plan a network of high quality routes.

Some local cycle routes are well utilised with National Cycle Network route 451 from Wrenbury to
Nantwich, Crewe, and Sandbach experiencing a recent increase of 43% in the number of cyclists
using the route, and a 60% increase in pedestrian usage. The route forms a link between Route 45
and Route 5 with the scheme directly linking Reaseheath College, Leighton Hospital and a number of
major employers within the local area. Similarly, the Connect2 Crewe to Nantwich Greenway
provides a high quality walking and cycling route. Additional benefit would be gained from extending

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 120



Page 157

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

| the off-road provision up to Leighton Hospital, as well as creating improved links to the town centre.
The success of this cycle route can be built upon by increasing the number of cycle and pedestrian
routes passing through the town centre.

In addition, there is an opportunity to link new developments, such as Leighton West, to existing
walking and cycling infrastructure to ensure that active travel is a feasible and attractive option for
residents and employees living and/or working in new developments.

Bus

Crewe bus station is the major bus hub in the town and for the borough. The Local Plan outlines
redevelopment of Crewe bus station as part of the Crewe Royal Arcade which will contribute to
regeneration of the town centre; plans for which are currently being developed.

Most buses to and from Crewe are commercially operated with connections to: Winsford, Alsager,
Kidsgrove, Leighton Hospital and Shavington. The commercial service is supported by a number of
financially supported services by the Council which include connections to Middlewich, Holmes
Chapel, Congleton and Nantwich. Some services cross the Cheshire East border to destinations such
as Chester. All services operate weekdays, with less services on evenings and weekends in some
instances.

Rail

Crewe has long been established as a major railway hub, currently facilitating 200,000 commuter
journeys per year and often referred to as the 'Gateway to the North West'. Crewe’s rail network will
experience extensive growth due to the arrival of HS2 and this will significantly increase the number
of commuters entering Crewe via rail. The rail station is situated less than a mile from Crewe town
centre, however, connectivity and integration of modes between the town centre and the station
needs improvement.

Crewe station currently offers services to London, Warrington (and northwards), Wales (both North
and Mid Wales), Stoke-on-Trent, Derby and the East Midlands, and the Manchester Line. Travel
times from Crewe to London are 96 minutes which will decrease with the arrival of HS2, and services
to Manchester take 35 minutes. It is a long term aspiration of the Council to reopen the Sandbach to
Northwich Line from Crewe. The Council is lobbying relevant bodies for improved services and
improved connectivity for Crewe as part of existing arrangements (including better links to
Manchester Airport) and also with a view for the delivery of HS2. The Council has also supported
development of a vision for the Crewe Hub which will address capacity constraints at Crewe station
whilst acting as a catalyst for wider regeneration of the area.

Roads
There is currently ongoing investment from Highways England to enhance capacity on the M6 (e.g.
smart motorway scheme between M6 J16 and J19), reinforcing Crewe’s good national connectivity.

In order to address congestion and support delivery of the Local Plan, the Council are currently
progressing three major road schemes in Crewe itself. These aim to ease urban congestion, unlock
economic growth and support job creation opportunities:

e Crewe Green Roundabout — the redesign of the roundabout in the east of the town will
reduce queueing and congestion allowing more efficient access to Sandbach and the M6;
e Sydney Road Bridge — this is one of three rail bridges in the town, which will be replaced by a

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 121



Page 158

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

two-lane bridge to remove this existing bottleneck; and
e A500 dualling scheme giving better access to the M6 and the Potteries.

In addition, the Council has secured a proportion of funding for the Leighton West Spine Road and
related transport improvements in North West Crewe to enable the delivery of housing
developments in the area.

Further work will need to be conducted over the lifetime of this LTP to consider road access
improvements to enable benefit realisation from the HS2 Hub connectivity improvements. This work
will be conducted in accordance with the Crewe Masterplan and alongside planning for HS2
infrastructure.

There is substantial car parking in Crewe which can act to dislocate the town centre from the
surrounding areas. The introduction of town centre multi-storey car parks have been subsequently
proposed as a means of rationalising surface car parks. There have also been concerns raised around
parking charges, with observation of higher charges in Crewe compared to other areas of Cheshire
East.

Key employment areas also suffer from limited parking capacity, especially around Crewe Business

Park (CBP) and Gates Industrial Estate. New developments are likely to increase parking demand and

therefore mitigating measures, such as the provision of active travel infrastructure, shuttle bus
| services or additional levels of on-site parking where appropriate could be considered.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

122



Page 159

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Handforth

Area Summary

Handforth is a suburban town, situated in north of the borough. Near to the border with Greater
Manchester, the town is situated between Wilmslow in the south and Cheadle in the north. Despite
its proximity to Greater Manchester and Wilmslow, Handforth maintains a suburban character. The
surrounding areas of Heald Green and Woodford rely on Handforth’s services, including local
amenities in the town centre and Handforth Dean Retail Park.

There are significant economic ties and cross-border movements between Handforth and Greater
Manchester, with the town benefitting from job opportunities in Greater Manchester and also
inflows of workers coming in to Handforth from Greater Manchester. Linked to this is significant
planned growth both in Handforth and wider Cheshire East as identified in the Local Plan. Growth is
also planned within the Greater Manchester boundary as identified in the Spatial Framework.
Subsequently, there is a real requirement to ensure the local transport network operates efficiently
and effectively to support jobs-led growth and continued success.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they specifically impact Handforth.

Wilmslow"

/i

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 123



Page 160

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

There are a number of sites identified in the Local Plan for significant levels of development in
Handforth. These include LPS 34 with approximately 250 homes identified for delivery between Clay
Lane and Sagars Road, and LPS 33 the North Cheshire Growth Village which will include 1,500 homes
and 12 hectares of employment land. These developments are shown in the map below. There are
also some other Local Plan sites in close proximity to Handforth, in the neighbouring key service
centre of Wilmslow.

Handforth development sites will total 12ha of employment land and 1,750 new homes, which is a
significant expansion of housing in the area. These sites are considered well located for employment
opportunities both in Cheshire and Greater Manchester. It is important to maintain an appropriate
level of accessibility to new development sites without negatively impacting connectivity to existing
residents and businesses; as a means of ensuring that the transport network can support future jobs-
led growth in Handforth.

Cheshire East Local Plan

Employment
[ Housing

~ E : Development Sites in Handforth

S R

‘ . 77 Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
Gl ! [ Housing + Employment

" If ; [ Mixed Use
(i [ Protected Open Space

0 0s 1 I 2kifi ,‘ - Safeguarded
o=/ . . © OpenStregtiap contributors

Economic activity in Handforth is closely linked to Greater Manchester with commuters travelling to
Manchester to work and vice-versa. This relationship is supported by relatively efficient rail links,
with two direct trains per hour to Manchester and one to Crewe. However, bus, walking and cycling
links between Handforth rail station and main employment sites such as Handforth Dean and Stanley
Green can be inefficient impeding multi-modal connectivity.

This lack of multi-modal connectivity is demonstrated by the fact that almost three quarters of
Handforth residents commute via car. With commuter traffic exacerbating congestion, in particular
on the A34 bypass during peak times and on Wilmslow Road through the town centre. Road
connectivity will soon be improved with the completion of the A555 Manchester Airport Eastern Link

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 124



Page 161

ESSSY
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

Road, resulting in an improved direct route from the M60/M56 which will offer reduced impact on
some local roads and significant economic growth potential for Handforth. In addition, better access
to and from Manchester Airport is likely to bring benefits and inward investment to Handforth. The
challenge will be to ensure that supporting work takes place to maximise the benefits of this
investment to Handforth.

Employment opportunities within the town centre include the Paddock shopping area, which
provides retail job opportunities and Deanway Business Park which is within walking distance of the
majority of Handforth’s residential areas. A significant number of the town’s key employment
opportunities are located at Stanley Green Industrial Estate and Handforth Dean Retail Park.
Although in close geographical proximity to the town centre these are located to the east of the
railway line resulting in access challenges due to limited crossing points over the railway. The
challenge is to increase accessibility to these areas via all modes of travel.

Significant growth in housing and employment is planned in Handforth. In addition to the planned
extension of Handforth Dean Retail Park, the North Cheshire Growth Village site identified in the
Local Plan includes 2200 new homes alongside 22ha of employment. The village aims to offer a ‘best
practice’ example for future developments which incorporates sustainable design, including
improved public transport provision. Due to the proximity of Handforth to Greater Manchester the
growth planned for in the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework will have cross border impacts on
Handforth and its transport network. A key enduring challenge will be the management of existing
and future congestion on the road network and delivering improved connectivity to new
employment and residential developments via public transport and sustainable modes. In this regard
an update to the South East Multi Modal Movement Strategy is currently being conducted in tandem
with the LTP.

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

Almost 30% of Handforth’s working population travel over 10km to work with the majority of these
trips being made to Greater Manchester. Handforth has good rail connections with Greater
Manchester allowing public transport access into the city centre and other areas including Stockport.
It is important that public transport access is available to all residents to support employment,
independence and access to services. In particular, as a function of its proximity to Greater
Manchester, the town has a higher proportion of young professionals who are less likely to own cars,
as reflected in lower car ownership levels in Handforth than the Cheshire East borough average.
Subsequently, it is important to provide alternative modes of travel to the car for both short and long
journeys improving connectivity for residents to services and employment in Handforth, Stockport
and Greater Manchester.

Through consultation, it is evident that issues exist around the accessibility of local services,
particularly for the high proportion of older residents (21%) and those under 18 (19%), who are likely
to rely on passenger transport and active travel for access to services and education. The nearest
hospital is located in Wythenshawe 7km away from Handforth and accessibility improvements linking
the town with the hospital would bring real benefit.

There are a number of primary schools in Handforth with the nearest secondary school being in
Wilmslow and further college and university education available in Cheadle and Manchester
respectively. Ensuring safe walking and cycling routes to local schools and good public transport links
to higher education is important for maintaining accessibility to education and supporting wellbeing
and independence. Additionally, safe and well managed highway environments in the vicinity of

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 125



Page 162

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways
schools is important for the safety of pupils and quality of life for wider communities in these areas.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

There is an ambition that the natural and built environment of Cheshire East is maintained and
improved as part of the wider commitment to quality of place. In the case of Handforth the parish is
keen to maintain its distinct character separate from Greater Manchester in the north and Wilmslow
in the south. Public green and open spaces within the town such as Meriton Road Park, Delamere
Road and Henbury Road also need protecting as they bring substantial local benefit including
providing opportunities for exercise and recreation.

Levels of road traffic can also have a negative impact on Handforth; in particular noise issues related
to the A34 and A555 were raised locally and will need to be considered alongside the current and
future proposals around the A555.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

Approximately 22% of adults in Cheshire East are physical activity for less than 30mins a week and we
know that lack of physical activity is a major contributory factor to poor health. There is therefore a
need to encourage more active lifestyles in the Borough. Deprivation is commonly associated with
poor health outcomes and Handforth has pockets of deprivation towards the north of the parish. As
such, ensuring access to healthcare, open space, recreation and physical activity opportunities is
especially important to reduce the impact of health inequalities. Improved links are needed with
public green and open spaces such as Meriton Road Park, Delamere Road and Henbury Road to
support improved health and wellbeing. Whilst ensuring multi-modal accessibility for all to
Wythenshawe Hospital and local doctors surgeries is also vital.

Over 20% of Handforth’s population are aged over 65 and subsequently the borough is faced with the
challenge of providing for an ageing population. We need to provide access to healthcare and other
services for older and vulnerable people via transport options which support independence and
wellbeing.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the borough is
vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:

e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as

efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets

o Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to

extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological

innovations will be important to continued success across the borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 126



Page 163

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in what
is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully securing
significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be a need to
continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that will support
our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

According to the 2011 Census, Handforth has 16% higher commuter outflow than inflow meaning
more people travel to work outside of Handforth than commute in to work; with a large proportion
of these commuter flows connecting to and from Greater Manchester. In addition, a large
proportion of work trips are made to and from Handforth and nearby Wilmslow, Alderley Edge,
Macclesfield and, to a lesser extent, Poynton.

16% of Handforth’s residents travel less than 2km to work with a further 20% travelling between 2
and 5km. With almost three quarters of journeys to work in Handforth currently undertaken by car
there exists the potential toencourage shorter trips by more sustainable modes of travel which
would deliver congestion and journey time reliability benefits.

Active and Smarter Travel

The uptake of cycling across Handforth is in line with the majority of the borough. Cycle routes exist
along Manchester Road and Wilmslow Road connecting north / south however there is not currently
a connected network across the parish. There are issues relating to the limited width of some
footways in the town and maintenance of edge of carriageways.

There is a stated ambition to improve access to the open countryside surrounding Handforth and
one way of doing this is through improved walking and cycling provision. Currently, the Manchester
Airport Orbital Cycleway (Regional Cycle Route 85) starts and terminates just west of Handforth in
Styal providing access to a popular cycle route. Expansion of this cycle route to reach other
residential areas and trip attractors would be a useful addition to local cycling infrastructure.

The Local Plan identifies improvements to be made to the land between Clay Lane and Sagars Road
increasing the quality of available green space; this includes a new cycle and pedestrian link which
will increase access to open space in the east. The new developments forming the North Cheshire
Growth Village could also include pedestrian and cycle link improvements to nearby residential areas
and services.

In order to encourage further sustainable travel, Handforth would benefit from a safe cycle route
connecting the town centre and rail station with Handforth Dean and Stanley Green Business Park.
This would further encourage sustainable travel and provide an alternative to driving to these
locations for work and/or leisure. This would also support the continued success of these locations.

Bus

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 127



Page 164

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

| The bus network in Handforth currently consists of one service from Macclesfield to Manchester
Piccadilly via Wilmslow, and another service from Handforth Dean to Stockport. Both services run
Monday to Saturday. Other than the connection to Macclesfield, bus services into Cheshire East are
limited.

It is important to integrate the developments outlined in the Local Plan, such as the North Cheshire
Growth Village, into the public transport network in order to provide connectivity.

Rail

6% of commuters in Handforth use rail which is higher than the Cheshire East average. Two trains
per hour link Handforth to Manchester Piccadilly also calling at Stockport, making this a viable option
for many commuters. There is also an hourly service to Crewe, which is doubled at peak times.
However, East / west rail movements require a change at Stockport reflecting borough wide rail
issues with east / west connectivity. National destinations can be reached following a change of
service in Crewe or Manchester. As consequence of being located outside the Greater Manchester
boundary Handforth suffers from a rail fare differential with rail fares being higher for trips from
Handforth than from Cheadle Hulme, the next stop on the line.

The train station itself would benefit from improvement; currently, the platforms at Handforth are
only accessible by steps and therefore improving disabled and older people’s access to the station is
necessary. Multi-modal accessibility to the station also requires improvement through the
introduction of parking and drop off facilities at the station as well as improved walking and cycling
links connecting the town centre and other key destinations, including wayfinding and cycle parking.

Roads

Handforth is well linked to the wider road network, via the A34 northbound towards Greater
Manchester and southbound to southern Cheshire. The Wilmslow-Handforth Bypass (A34) passes to
the east of Handforth, connecting the town with Manchester and the M60 in the north and
Congleton and Newcastle-under-Lyme. Once completed the Manchester Airport Eastern Link Road
(A555) will improve connectivity by linking the A6 near Hazel Grove and the M56 at Manchester
Airport to Handforth; providing faster access to both the airport, M56 and further east to the Peak
District.

Traffic on the A34, in particular on approach to the roundabouts with the Manchester Airport
Eastern Link Road (A555) and the B5094 may increase further, as a result of the extension of the
A555 to the airport, although current improvements to the roundabouts will increase capacity at
these junctions. The A555 scheme is also likely to increase traffic on Wilmslow Road through the
centre of Handforth and it is necessary to mitigate the impacts of increased traffic on this route.

Traffic congestion during peak periods has resulted in noise issues on the A538 north of the town, on
the A538 Manchester Road to the south and on the A5102 Adlington Road near Wilmslow Park
Road. Issues have also been raised surrounding the A34 and the potential impact of development
related traffic; this is of particular concern at the following four junctions:

. A34 / A560 Gatley signals (SMBC area)

. A34 / B5094 gyratory (SMBC area)

. A34 / A555 gyratory (SMBC area)

. A34 / Handforth Dean Retail Park dumb-bell (West) (CEC area)

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 128



Page 165

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Handforth has three public car parks owned by the Council: School Road, Wilmslow Road and the
health centre, which are all free of charge; with privately owned car parks at the Paddock and Spar.
All car parks in Handforth tend to be at capacity during weekdays and there is some anecdotal
evidence that this is partly the result of commuters from elsewhere e.g. residents of Wilmslow
driving to Handforth and parking near the rail station to get the train to Greater Manchester.

Knutsford

Area Summary

Knutsford is a market town, located in the north-west of the borough with a population of
approximately 12,570. Knutsford is in fairly close proximity to Wilmslow and Northwich, as well as
Altrincham in Greater Manchester. Various nearby settlements, including Tabley, Mobberley, and
High Legh rely on Knutsford for local services thus increasing the population served by the town to
around 25,000.

Both Macclesfield and Manchester city centre are less than 20 kilometres away and the town and
has strong economic ties to both with significant numbers of Knutsford residents commuting out to
these locations. Whereas, commuter inflows are primarily more local; particularly from the south-
west including Northwich, Winsford and Middlewich.

There is significant planned development both within Cheshire East as identified within the Local
Plan and Greater Manchester as identified in the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework; with
housing growth in and around Knutsford and the growth of Greater Manchester likely to impact the
transport network connecting Knutsford and surrounding areas. This highlights the importance of
effective management and investment in the transport network as without effective connectivity
this jobs-led growth is unlikely to be deliverable.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they impact Knutsford.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 129



Page 166

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

There are a number of housing and employment sites included as part of the adopted Local Plan.
The sites are:

e LPS 36— North West Knutsford — 500 homes and 7.5 hectares of employment land;

e LPS 37— Parkgate Extension — 200 homes and 6 hectares of employment land;

e LPS38—Land South of Longridge — 225 homes;

e LPS39- Safeguarded land south of Tabley Road;

e LPS 40 - Safeguarded land north of Tabley Road; and

e LPS41 - Land adjacent to Booths Hall.

It is important to ensure a good level of accessibility to these new developments in Knutsford, as
well as to employment locations and services in order to ensure that the transport network supports
the continued growth and success of Knutsford.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 130



Page 167

ESS
P

.
=
ire East)
Council?

Highways

N

£ A

AN
. Knutsford” ;
- “ j
4
Development Sites in Knutsford
Cheshire East Local Plan
“w‘ [ Employment
[ Housing
777 Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
[ Housing + Employment
[ Mixed Use
- [T Protected Open Space
4 [ 1 7 15 2km [ Safeguarded
e © OpenStreetMap contributors

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

In Knutsford, 71% of commuters travel by car. Although this is lower than the Cheshire East average,
this level of car use contributes to congestion experienced in the town centre alongside through
traffic. Peak hour congestion is also an issue near to rural employment sites on the outskirts of the
town, such as Parkgate Trading Estate, Longridge Trading Estate, Booths Park and Radbroke Hall.

The presence of congestion in and around main employment areas has the potential to hinder
growth and investment. A key challenge in Knutsford relates to congestion and town centre parking
with regards to balancing the needs of visitors on whom much of the town’s economy relies and
local residents. The Council is seeking to improve travel options and journey time reliability in and
around Knutsford, including through the recent addition of access from the A556 to the B5569
Bucklow Hill which has increased accessibility and relieved congestion into the north of Knutsford.

Employment locations in more rural areas are more susceptible due to the challenge of integrating
these locations successfully with public and sustainable travel options. This can cause local issues
regarding congestion and parking availability but can also act to exclude those without a car from
accessing employment at these locations. This issue is not so pronounced at employment locations
in central Knutsford, including retail as most are within walking distance of the train station.

Jobs-led economic growth in and around Knutsford is supported. However, the impact of local
development in Cheshire East and also neighbouring Greater Manchester has the potential to impact
negatively on the transport network in and around Knutsford if not successfully mitigated.

It is recognised that Knutsford would benefit from improved connectivity between the town centre
and its main attractions, such as Tatton Park, which is one of the key heritage areas in Cheshire East

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 131



Page 168

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

attracting around 800,000 visitors annually. The park hosts various events throughout the year with
the majority of visitors arriving via car. Improved transport links between the park and the town
would benefit both.

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

There are a number of primary schools in the town with Knutsford High School offering both
secondary and higher education courses. For alternative options and tertiary level study residents
need to travel further afield, including to colleges in Northwich and Wilmslow. The nearest
universities are located in Manchester. In order for Knutsford to continue to be successful, it is
important that younger residents have good access to education including via public and sustainable
transport options. Safe and well managed highway environments in the vicinity of schools are
important for the safety of pupils and quality of life for wider communities in these areas.

Knutsford has the ambition to retain young people and the working population and subsequently
must continue to offer improved connectivity to major employment destinations, most notably
Greater Manchester. The town must seek to provide both connectivity which encourages young
residents to stay or locate to Knutsford whilst also ensuring that transport provision supports older
people to live healthy, independent lives.

Approximately 23% of Knutsford’s commuters travel between 10 and 20km to destinations including
Greater Manchester and Macclesfield. Longer distance commuter travel is particularly vulnerable to
the impacts of congestion, in particular if there are limited viable alternatives to travelling by car as
is often the case with more rural employment locations.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

It is the Council’s vision to continue to maintain and improve Cheshire East’s environment as part of
the commitment to high quality of place. Knutsford benefits from numerous green spaces within and
around the town which help make the town a great place to live and visit; including The Heath and
Little Heath, The Moor, Sanctuary Moor, St John’s Wood and Tatton Park.

There are three Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) declared in Knutsford with motorised traffic
levels a contributory factor. These areas include five properties along the A50 Manchester Road at
the junction with Windsor Way, on the A556 Chester Road near Mere and the A50 Manchester
Road. Improved vehicle technology will help reduce emissions over the medium to long term and
encouraging more sustainable journey can play a part in addressing this challenge. This is especially
important when planning local development and working to ensure that as many trips as possible
from new development sites are made sustainably.

The evidence shows that 20% of Knutsford’s working population travel less than 2km to work. There
is therefore an opportunity to cater for a large proportion of these trips via sustainable and public
transport. Knutsford has relatively high levels of walking in comparison to the wider Borough
suggesting that people feel confident to travel on foot in the town. This should be further
encouraged through the development of high quality of place as walking and cycling bring numerous
benefits to health, the environment and the wider transport network.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

Approximately 22% of adults in Cheshire East are physically active for less than 30mins a week and
we know that lack of physical activity is a major contributory factor to poor health. There is
therefore a need to encourage more active lifestyles in the Borough. Knutsford has a higher than

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 132



Page 169

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

average percentage of commuters who walk to work (12%) however there appears scope to increase
cycling from current levels by improving accessibility for active travel options to local attractions and
destinations.

Knutsford has an ageing population and it is important to provide accessible transport options for
older people. We know that lifestyle and travel habits are formed at a young age and therefore
children should be supported to lead healthy lives which include physical activity. As such, it is
increasingly important that the transport network supports all of Knutsford’s residents to access
friends, family, services and employment via appropriate modes of transport.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the Borough
is vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:
e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to
extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the Borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in
what is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully
securing significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be a
need to continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that will
support our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

The car is the most common mode of travel to work at 71% which is lower than the Cheshire East
average, whilst 13% of commuters choose to walk to work which is a higher percentage than many
other areas of the Borough. The town's job market is relatively self-contained compared with other
settlements in Cheshire East, which could contribute to the higher number of people choosing to
commute via foot. However, there are also significant employment sites on the edge of the town for

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 133



Page 170

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways
| which travel options are limited and where subsequently the majority of people travel by car.

Active and Smarter Travel

There are a number of opportunities in Knutsford to increase levels of active travel. Although the
percentage of people who currently walk to work is relatively high, it has been identified that
pedestrian improvements are required. In particular, a number of footways require widening, for
example on the A537 the footpaths could be widened and extended to both sides of the road. Other
pedestrian improvements such as better crossing points may also bring benefits to the town. In
particular, crossing facilities for both pedestrian and cyclists at the A50 / A537 / Stanley Road
Junction and the A50 / King Edward Road / Northwich Road Roundabout may support greater levels
of active travel.

The town would also benefit from improved cycle connections between key destinations e.g. the rail
station to Tatton Park and links to key employment sites. The Parkgate expansion intends to extend
cycle infrastructure into the town and corresponding links between the town centre and other
employment sites on the edge of Knutsford would be beneficial and encourage active travel.

The pedestrian environment on both King Street and Princess Street in the central shopping area ia
limited. For vehicles, there is currently a one-way system in place, however, the footpaths are and
narrow. There is an ambition to make improvements to this area in order to better cater for high-
levels of footfall in retail locations, contributing to improving ‘quality of place’ in the town.

Bus

The town is served by several bus services; destinations served include Macclesfield, Northwich,
Wilmslow and Altrincham throughout the week on an hourly basis. There is also a circular service
within the town itself; however, this service does not offer evening or Sunday services.

It is important for future developments, such as those outlined in the Local Plan, to be fully
integrated into the public transport network in Knutsford. This allows accessibility to local services,
such as the GP, and other local shops and services.

In order to increase accessibility to Knutsford and Tatton Park, it would be beneficial during events
and peak times for shuttle buses to take visitors between the centre of Knutsford to Tatton Park.
This could either be a regular service, or during popular events such as the Tatton Park Flower Show
in order to reduce the demand for car parks, and relieve congestion. A shuttle service might also
increase footfall in the centre of Knutsford and could link to other attractions in the borough, such as
Jodrell Bank.

Rail

The town is served by a centrally located rail station on the mid-Cheshire line offering one train per
hour to Chester and Manchester, with both journeys taking approximately 45 minutes. This train
also connects directly to Altrincham, Northwich and Stockport. There is the possibility of
investigating tram-train running on the mid-Cheshire line to provide direct journey options to
locations on the Metrolink network such as Trafford. Knutsford has limited connectivity towards the
north west (no direct rail services to Warrington and Liverpool) and the south east (no direct services
to Crewe, Stafford and Congleton).

The train station would benefit from improvements to open up a wider choice of modes of travel to
and from the station. There are Bike and Go facilities at the station and promotion may encourage

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 134



Page 171

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

greater use. The station access is situated on a busy junction with pedestrian crossings on some
arms however improved crossings here could create more direct routes for pedestrians.

Roads

The town is well served via the road network. The main roads through the town include the A50,
providing local connections north/south, and the A537, which runs east towards Macclesfield. The
town is 2km east of J19 of the M6 and the M56 is accessible via the A556. The roads through the
centre of Knutsford however, experience significant congestion in particular during peak times and
during disruption on the M6. Relatively high levels of heavy goods vehicles have also been reported
by the community in Knutsford as the town is located on key routes to the M6 and M56.

There are a number of development sites in Knutsford identified in the Local Plan. As a result of
these developments, in particular at Parkgate, additional traffic has the potential to exacerbate
existing congestion issues, particularly at peak periods. As a result, improvements would be required
at the following junctions:

e A537 Adams Hill junction

e A50 between A5033 junction and Adams Hill junction widening

e A5033/A50 roundabout junction improvements

e Mobberley Road/Parkgate Lane junction improvements

e Brook Street/Hollow Lane junction improvements

An improvement scheme at Junction 19 of the M6 is also under consideration in part to
accommodate future traffic growth and address existing congestion.

There are three main car parks located centrally in Knutsford, two of which are within short walking
distance of the station (Silk Mill car park and Princess Street car park). However, these car parks are
relatively small and local parking capacity is limited.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 135



Page 172

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Macclesfield

Area Summary

Macclesfield is a principal town within Cheshire East known for its industrial heritage. It is situated
on the River Bollin in the north east of the Borough, 21 miles north-east from Crewe, close to the
borders of Greater Manchester to the north and with the Peak District immediately to the east.

There is significant planned development across Cheshire East as identified within the Local Plan. In
particular jobs-led growth, development and regeneration in and around Macclesfield is targeted as
a priority for the borough. In addition, there is significant growth planned in Greater Manchester as
identified in the Spatial Framework which has the potential to impact Macclesfield. These growth
ambitions highlight the importance of effective management and investment in the transport
network in Macclesfield and the surrounding areas, as without effective connectivity this growth is
unlikely to be deliverable.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they impact Macclesfield.

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

Macclesfield is the second largest town in Cheshire East after Crewe, with 52,500 inhabitants. 72%
of Macclesfield’s population are economically active which aligns with the Borough-wide average.
The town has a relatively young population, with a higher share of young people under 16 and a
higher proportion of working age (16-64) residents than the borough average. However, it also has

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 136



Page 173

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

comparatively lower than average household incomes and pockets of deprivation with three areas
within the most 25% deprived nationally.

Despite this, Macclesfield has diversified from its historic emphasis on silk manufacturing and
developed employment in commerce, business and IT. The town is home to several business parks
(Lyme Green, Tytherington, Fence Avenue) and also hosts one of the world’s largest pharmaceutical
manufacturing sites, AstraZeneca, located at the Hurdsfield Industrial Estate. The expertise and
growth opportunities of the AstraZeneca site place Macclesfield at the forefront of the European
pharmaceutical industry.

Outside of these business parks the historic town centre hosts a retail centre with around 500 shops
providing local employment opportunities. A key challenge over the coming years is to bolster this
retail and leisure offer to encourage residents and visitors alike to shop and spend time in the town
centre. A key supporting factor in this effort will be ensuring transport accessibility for all modes of
transport into the town centre and continuing work to create a high quality urban realm.

The Local Plan proposes the delivery of 20ha of employment land and 7,700 new homes. This is the
largest scale of housing delivery proposed across Cheshire East. As a result of the likely resultant
population growth there is forecast to be increased traffic adding to existing congestion issues,
especially in the peak hours. Significant infrastructure improvements are therefore required to
avoid negative impacts on the highway network, especially on the A536 Congleton Road corridor,
the A523 London Road / Silk Road corridor, and the A537 Chester Road / Chelford Road corridor
where the biggest vehicle growth is likely to occur.

The South Macclesfield Development Area is 53ha currently consisting of community playing fields
and undeveloped grassed areas. Up to 950 homes, employment land, retail and other amenities,
plus a new school, improved sports training and recreational facilities are planned as part of the
development. A new road linking London Road and Congleton Road will also be developed as part of
the scheme. For developments of this size it will be important that local services are available which
minimise the need for travel and that high quality links to employment are provided which minimise
the negative impact elsewhere.

In addition, Macclesfield is integrated with ‘Constellation Partnership’ with links between
Macclesfield and Crewe through a ‘corridor of opportunity’ supporting regeneration in both Crewe
and Macclesfield. This will be supported by the Macclesfield Town Centre Movement Strategy which
must successfully integrate housing and employment locations in peripheral areas in to existing
transport networks.

The location of the housing and employment areas is shown below:

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 137



Page 174

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

- 38

# N,
I’ X \\
II \\
Q 4 Macclesfield X
i
% -
\\ /l
N,
WSS
Development Sites in Macclesfield
Cheshire East Local Plan
4 [ Employment
Y | 7 Housing
g "7 Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
; [7] Housing + Employment
[ | Mixed Use
’ [ Protected Open Space
0 0.5 1 1.5 2 km / v [ ] Safeguarded
© OpenStreetiap contribytors

The list and the location of the development sites in Macclesfield are:

= (S 8 South Macclesfield Development Area (Housing and Employment)
= (S 9 Lland East of Fence Avenue (Housing)

= (S 10 Land at Congleton Road (Housing and Employment)
= (S 40 Land south of Chelford Road (Housing)

= (S 11 Gaw End Lane (Housing)

= (CS 41 Land between Chelford Road and Whirley Road (Housing)

= (S 32 (Safeguarded) South West Macclesfield (Safeguarded Land)

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

Macclesfield has modest net outflows of commuters. Many residents work within the town at the
various employment areas, whilst a significant proportion of people work in neighbouring areas
such as Manchester, Stockport, Alderley Edge (Alderley Park) and Wilmslow. Amongst the
economically active a quarter travel less than 2km to work, 17% commute less than 5km, 11% work
mainly from home and 28% travel further than 10km to their workplace.

Macclesfield’s topography and the cobblestoned meandering narrow streets provide a key asset in
terms of character and distinctiveness, however this can be a challenge for older people, those with

impaired mobility and also cyclists.

Macclesfield and the surrounding hinterland contain 21 primary schools and 4 secondary schools
with the town also being home to Macclesfield College. Further and higher education is also
available in Crewe, Stockport and Manchester. Ensuring safe walking and cycling routes to local
schools and good public transport links to higher education is important for maintaining accessibility
to education and supporting wellbeing and independence. Similarly, safe and well managed

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 138



Page 175

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

highway environments in the vicinity of schools is important for the safety of pupils and quality of
life for wider communities in these areas.

The local hospital is Macclesfield District General located west of the town centre. The service from
Altrincham to Macclesfield and the service from Macclesfield to Prestbury link the town to the
hospital and accessibility improvements would benefit those without access to a car.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

Macclesfield generates some of the highest road emissions in the North West which exacerbates
local environmental issues. Congestion and traffic levels have led to Air Quality Management Areas
(AQMAs) being declared as a result of nitrogen dioxide annual limits being exceeded at A523
London Road, A537 Broken Cross, A537 Hibel Road and A536 Park Lane.

In addition, noise levels of 75dB are being exceeded along parts of the A523 and the A537, likely as
a result of high traffic flows and local congestion. Residents living near to main roads in Macclesfield
subsequently have the potential to be exposed to a combination of poor air quality, noise and
vibration from local road traffic.

There appears to be significant scope for encouraging low carbon travel in Macclesfield. Despite
more than half of residents commuting distances deemed suitable to be made by active travel or
public transport 72% of commuters travel to work by car, either as drivers or passengers. 12% walk
to their workplace, just below 2% cycle, 3% travel by train and 2% by bus.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

The town has a number of popular parks, including South Park, Victoria Park and West Park; with
improvements also having recently been made to Sparrow Park in the centre of Macclesfield to
offer additional recreational areas. As such, Macclesfield benefits from a number of parks, green
spaces, waterbodies and other green infrastructure within the town. Together with the bordering
Peak District these resources help mitigate the negative impacts of road transport and provide
opportunities for recreation and active travel benefitting health and wellbeing. Promoting increased
levels of physical activity is especially important in deprived areas such as those seen in parts of
Macclesfield to reduce health inequalities. As such an important challenge is to improve links
between Macclesfield and surrounding open spaces such as the Peak District.

Macclesfield is linked to the Macclesfield Canal, a linear conservation area to the east of the town
recently granted the Green Flag Award. The Macclesfield Canal Society arranges walks along the
canal which residents are welcome to attend, and works towards increasing physical activity levels.
The walks often incorporate the Middlewood Way walking and cycling path which extends from
Macclesfield to Marple, a length of 11 miles with the route mostly following the canal and the
Marple railway offering a recreational space for walkers, cyclists and horse riders.

Much of the proposed development in Macclesfield gives importance to improved accessibility and
the integration of green infrastructure and pedestrian/cycle links into plans. For example, the Gaw
End Lane development (LPS 17) aims to increase connectivity to the wider footpath network and
Macclesfield Canal and a challenge will be to ensure that new development benefits existing routes
through the creation of a coherent walking and cycling network.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the Borough

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 139



Page 176

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

is vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:
e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to
extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the Borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in
what is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully
securing significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be
a need to continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that
will support our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

In Macclesfield there is a small net outflow of commuters, with the number of people entering the
town lower than the number of people leaving the town for work; with many Macclesfield residents
employed in Greater Manchester, Chelford, Stockport and Alderley Edge. AlImost three quarters of
Macclesfield’s commuters use the car to travel to work, despite more than 40% living less than 5km
from their workplace. The dominance of car travel leads to congestion issues throughout the town
likely to be exacerbated by new development which is predicted to cause a 15% increase in traffic
during the morning peak hour and an 18% increase in traffic in the evening peak hour. The greatest
traffic flow increases are predicted for on the A536 Congleton Road corridor, the A523 London Road
/ Silk Road corridor, and the A537 Chester Road / Chelford Road corridor.

Active and Smarter Travel

Several cycle routes exist in Macclesfield, with the National Cycle Network route 55 connecting
Marple in the north and Congleton in the south. Work is underway to improve the route with the
eventual aims of linking to Telford and Preston. An existing local cycle route connects the town
centre and the 55 route with southern areas of the town, with a further cycle route running north-
south along the western side of the town extending between Moss Lane and Chester Road via the
Flowerpot junction and off-street sections. Several off-road cycle routes are therefore available for

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 140



Page 177

ESSSY
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

| residents to use but these need to be expanded in to a coherent network linking trip attractors,
employment locations as well as new and existing residential areas if usage is to increase
substantially.

Just over 2% of the Macclesfield’s working age population cycle to work but this is not currently an
option for everyone due to perceptions of safety and current network fragmentation. It has been
suggested that bike storage could be improved at Macclesfield rail station to reduce the number of
commuters travelling to the rail station via car, but this provision would need to be supported by
greater cycle connectivity linking the rail station. If higher cycling levels were to be achieved this may
help to ease parking capacity issues which currently occur at Macclesfield rail station.

The Macclesfield Movement Strategy has noted issues with the narrowness of streets relating to the
provision of walking and cycling provision and has identified an aim of improving accessibility
through the introduction of pedestrian and cycle links alongside retail units to meet local need.
Additionally, the ‘Waters Green’ underpass has recently undergone renovation to improve the
environment for pedestrians and cyclists travelling to/from the town centre. These efforts improve
access to key service areas within the town centre for residents. However, there is still scope to
improve connectivity further and make Macclesfield more accessible for all residents and visitors by
all modes of transport.

Bus

Macclesfield has a good commercial bus network, which is well utilised by the public, serving routes
to Congleton, Bollington, Leek, and Manchester via Wilmslow and Handforth. In addition, the
Council support a number of additional services to Stockport via Poynton, Hayfield (High Peak),
Buxton, Prestbury, and Altrincham via Wilmslow and Knutsford. Most services do not operate in the
evenings and some routes only operate Monday to Saturday.

Macclesfield bus station and the railway station bus stop, which are in walking distance of the town
centre, are the main hubs for bus services in Macclesfield. It is important to integrate different
modes of travel such as bus, rail, cycling and walking opportunities at transport hubs in order to
encourage people to use these modes of travel. It is also important to integrate future
developments such as housing and employment areas into the bus network.

Rail

Since there is a considerable relationship between Macclesfield and Greater Manchester in terms of
employment, rail travel is the most suitable travel option for many commuters. Macclesfield rail
station is situated in the centre of Macclesfield and is located on the West Coast Main Line, with
direct regular services to Stoke—on—Trent, Birmingham, Manchester (30 mins) and London Euston
(1hr 40mins). Four services per hour run from Macclesfield to Manchester in peak periods and the
rail connections themselves are of a quality and timetable to support sub-regional and national
connectivity. However, the station itself is in need of improvement and does not currently offer an
attractive gateway to Macclesfield.

Macclesfield is also likely to benefit from the new HS2 hub in Crewe, particularly through the new
links planned to Crewe via the ‘corridor of opportunity’. This will reduce journey times to major
services areas and increase inward investment in Macclesfield if well supported.

Roads
Macclesfield experiences high levels of commuting via road which causes issues on local roads. Peak
period congestion currently occurs in and around the town centre and on key commuter routes, due

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 141



Page 178

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

to the volume of traffic entering and exiting the town centre and also traversing around the core
area of Silk Road and Park Lane. In the morning peak period, Congleton Road experiences delays as
commuters enter from the south, and in the evening Silk Road experiences delays. Congestion
measures have been implemented, including implementation of an Urban Traffic Control system in
the town centre but further congestion measures need to be implemented at junctions, particularly
in light of expected traffic increases linked to new development.

Macclesfield is well served in terms of road connections linking with other areas of Cheshire East.
The A523 gives access to Stockport and Manchester via the A6, while the A537 leads west to
Knutsford. To the East, the A537 links to the Peak District and the A536 leads south to Congleton.
Improved links to the Strategic Road Network via the M6 and M56 are required to support the
delivery of further development and growth in and around the town.

As a former mill town, Macclesfield’s character and constrained highway land creates challenges in
terms of delivering transport improvements. Congestion, narrow roads and limited connectivity
between the rail station, town centre and a number of strategic employment sites mean that
improvements to transport in the town centre are challenging.

Macclesfield is well served by several car parks, including Duke Street, Park Green and Churchill Way.
Altogether, there are over 2000 car parking spaces in Macclesfield which is deemed to be sufficient
provision overall. However, in certain locations issues exist particularly at Macclesfield station where
the car park is often not able to cope with commuter demand causing spill over to residential streets
and creating nuisance for local residents. Providing better bus connections from residential areas to
Macclesfield station and improving cycle and walking routes and facilities at the station would
encourage commuters to use alternative mode to get to the station, reducing pressure on town
centre and station parking and peak time car use.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 142



Page 179

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Middlewich

Area Summary

Middlewich is one of the Weaver Towns, along with nearby Winsford and Northwich which are all
situated in the Weaver Valley. Middlewich is in close proximity to the border with neighbouring
Cheshire West and Chester and has strong cross boundary economic ties being located only 30km
from Chester, 4km from Winsford town centre and 8km from Northwich.

There is significant planned development within Cheshire East supporting the Council’s objective of
jobs-led growth. This includes strategic housing and employment development sites identified for
Middlewich in the Local Plan. This pro-growth policy position underlines the importance of effective
management of the transport network to ensure journey time efficiency and reliability.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they impact Middlewich.

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

A relatively high proportion of Middlewich’s residents are economically active (74%) in comparison
to the wider borough. Currently over 70% of Middlewich’s working population use the car to access
employment and these high levels of car use contribute to a highly congested centre alongside
significant levels of through traffic, particularly in peak periods.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 143



Page 180

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Significant development and investment is planned in Middlewich over the coming years as
identified in the Local Plan. These include: LPS 42 Glebe Farm (525 homes), LPS 43 Brooks Lane (200
homes and facilities to meet local needs) and LPS 44 Midpoint 18 which includes 70 hectares of
employment. It is important that the transport network continues to support the economy in
Middlewich through effective connectivity as a means of supporting improved quality of life and the
Council’s priority of jobs-led growth.

N\

 Middléwich!

Development Sites in Middlewich
Cheshire East Local Plan

| [0 Employment

[ Housing

7 Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
[ Housing + Employment

[ Mixed Use

Protected Open Space

o

2km [ safeguarded

- (© OpenStreetMap contiibiitors -

The Midpoint 18 Business Park is a mixed use site offering distribution, manufacturing and office
facilities about to embark upon phase three of its development aiming to generate 2,000 new jobs.
Its strategic location on the North West motorway network, just 2 miles from junction 18 of the M6,
provides good access but experiences heavy congestion. The site provides 1.3 million square foot of
business accommodation, which covers the extent of almost 2.5km from north to south. Midpoint
18 is not only the main employment site in Middlewich, but is it also one of the most important
employment parks sub-regionally. With congestion hampering access to important sites such as this
it is important that road, public transport and active travel access are all maintained and improved
to strategic sites to support continued success.

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

There are a number of primary schools and one high school in Middlewich but no college, further or
tertiary education offer within the town. For further study residents need to travel further afield to
colleges in Winsford, Northwich or Crewe. For university study, the closest options are in
Manchester. Ensuring safe walking and cycling routes to local schools and good public transport links
to higher education is important for maintaining accessibility to education and supporting wellbeing
and independence. Additionally, safe and well managed highway environments in the vicinity of
schools is important for the safety of pupils and quality of life for wider communities in these areas.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 144



Page 181

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Safety concerns have been raised regarding a perceived lack of pedestrian crossings and car parking
options near local schools and proposals made for the introduction of a crossing on the A533 aimed
at improving safety.

There are also concerns around limited accessibility to vital local services such as shops and doctors’
surgeries from new development in Middlewich, such as Cledford. It is important that all new
developments provide access to nearby vital services either through direct provision or improved
transport infrastructure.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

Due to high vehicle flows and congestion one Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) has been
declared on the A54 Chester Road as a result of measurement showing that nitrogen dioxide
emissions exceed the annual limit. The provision of the Middelwich Eastern Bypass will remove a
proportion of vehicular traffic from the town centre and the Council are currently developing an air
quality strategy which will tie in with the LTP. Approximately 15% of commuters in Middlewich travel
less than 2km to work, suggesting scope for more journeys to be made by non-car modes.

Middlewich is home to The Trent and Mersey Canal, which offers views over the Cheshire Plain and
contributes to the recreational offer in the area. There are existing walking and cycling routes along
the River Croco, Trent and Mersey Canal, and the Shropshire Union Canal. Improved connections
with the surrounding open countryside would bring benefits to Middlewich.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

Approximately 22% of adults in Cheshire East are physically active for less than 30mins a week and
we know that lack of physical activity is a major contributory factor to poor health. There is
therefore a need to encourage more active lifestyles in the Borough.

Middlewich has relatively low levels of deprivation in comparison to national averages however
there are pockets of poor health in the centre of the town. As such, it is important to improve levels
of physical activity and active travel in particular in these areas as a means of reducing health
inequalities.

Middlewich has a high proportion of residents between the age of 18 and 64 in comparison to the
average for Cheshire East. It has therefore important to support people to be physically active where
possible through providing the infrastructure to encourage active travel. Equally, it is important to
ensure access to health care, services and leisure opportunities for older people who do not own a
car and people with disabilities.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the borough
is vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:
e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 145



Page 182

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important

e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the borough

e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in
what is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully
securing significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be a
need to continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that will
support our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

There is a significant proportion of the local working population travelling short distances to work
between 5 and 10km; particularly to the areas of Winsford, Crewe, Knutsford and Northwich.
Approximately 15% of commuters in Middlewich travel less than 2km to work.

Active and Smarter Travel

There are opportunities to improve the pedestrian and cyclist network in Middlewich to support
greater use bringing health and wellbeing benefits. For example, the towpath on the Shropshire
Union Canal through Middlewich and Trent, and the Mersey Canal towards Sandbach could be
improved to provide better cycling and walking facilities connecting both routes, and supporting
commuter trips towards Sandbach. Furthermore, an additional footpath and cycle link between
Brooks Lane and Midpoint 18 would improve local links for both pedestrians and cyclists supporting
sustainable access to employment and mitigating against the impact of congestion.

New developments should all provide new or improved walking and cycling infrastructure linking
residential areas and key service locations; as this likely to increase the uptake of active transport
bringing health, wellbeing and accessibility benefits.

Bus

The town is served by two bus services connecting Crewe to Northwich via Sandbach, and Crewe-
Congleton; these services run Monday to Saturday. The potential loss of evening services in
Middlewich is a concern for local residents as they do not have a railway station, so have limited
options for public transport travel in the evenings. The Council are currently exploring options for
the provision of evening services as part of Bus Service Review. The 42 bus service will also follow a
more direct route within Crewe.

It is also important that new developments outlined in the Local Plan are fully integrated into the

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 146



Page 183

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways
‘ public transport network.

Rail

The Middlewich branch rail line is currently used for freight services only, and no passenger rail
services are available. Reopening the line and provision of a new station for passenger services is an
aspiration of the town, and would improve transport accessibility by providing local connections
with Northwich, Sandbach and further to Crewe and Manchester. It would also increase the
opportunities for the development of an integrated transport network through the creation of links
with bus, walking and cycling networks. Reopening the line would require detailed technical work to
establish feasibility and develop a business case in conjunction with Network Rail and central
government. As part of the Local Plan, land has been reserved for the provision of a rail station in
Middlewich. There has also been discussion of the provision of tram-train services on the Mid-
Cheshire line connecting into central Manchester. Following the reopening of the branch line there
would be opportunities for this to connect to Middlewich.

Roads

Middlewich is situated to the west of the M6 junction 18, which is accessed via the A54. The A54
connects Middlewich to Winsford and Holmes Chapel. The A54 through Middlewich experiences
significant congestion due to through traffic and local journeys accessing the M6 and further afield.

In order to ease congestion and improve access to Midpoint 18 the Council is in the process of
delivering the Middlewich Eastern Bypass scheme, with £46.8 million recently secured from central
government. The bypass is expected to relieve pressure on junctions in central Middlewich, enable
the creation of 6,500 jobs and the development of 2,000 houses. Further to this, work is being
conducted to examine options to improve wider east-west movements along the A54 to improve
connectivity west of Middlewich. One option would entail extending the Middlewich Eastern Bypass
to provide improved links to the A530 and onwards to Winsford.

The A54/Lewin Street and A54/A530 Croxton Lane junctions experience congestion, particularly at
peak times. Transport improvements to these areas are required to reduce congestion levels and
improve access to the M6. Lewin Street itself is congested and this leads to severance between the
two sides of road, acting as a barrier between the canal and town centre. The congested highway
also results in an unattractive environment with noise issues affecting local residents.

Middlewich has three free of charge public car parks, all located within the town centre, with a total
capacity of 133 spaces.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 147



Page 184

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Nantwich

Area Summary

Nantwich is a market town situated in the south of the Borough, approximately 5km south-west of
Crewe. The town serves as a central hub for several nearby settlements in the surrounding parishes
that form Nantwich’s rural hinterland, including Audlem, Wybunbury, Bunbury, Wrenbury and
Stapeley. Nantwich has close economic links to Crewe due to its proximity.

There is significant planned development both within wider Cheshire East and Nantwich itself as
identified within the Local Plan. This proposed growth highlights the importance of effective
management and investment in the transport network as without effective connectivity this jobs-led
growth is unlikely to be deliverable.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they impact Nantwich.

NANTWICH

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

Despite the average income in Nantwich being higher than Cheshire East, the economic activity rate
is lower compared to other parts of the borough, which may be due in part to the relatively high
share of retired residents in the town.

Many of Nantwich’s residents who are economically active work in neighbouring towns such as
Crewe, Winsford and Stoke-on-Trent. Notwithstanding this, the town has relatively modest net

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

148



Page 185

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

commuter outflows as a considerable number of people commute to the town for work. This
highlights the importance of connectivity to and from other towns and employment areas to
improving employment prospects for residents and support jobs-led growth.

Currently, peak hour delay occurs at key junctions such as the Peacock and Cheerbrook roundabout.
The mitigation of such growth would go some way to addressing congestion as a potential
constraining factor for local growth and development. Poor journey time reliability may constitute a
barrier to economic growth in Nantwich.

Nantwich has extensive heritage assets with more than 100 listed buildings which is the highest
concentration in the borough, as well as a rich industrial heritage which attracts visitors and tourists;
as such, visitors to Nantwich are important contributors to the local economy. However, existing
congestion and large traffic flows have a negative effect on the local quality of place.

Nantwich has a variety of employment, education and retail opportunities and community services.
The larger employment areas within the town comprise:

e Alvaston Business Park — office space;

e Barony Court Employment Park — offices, industry, storage and distribution; and

e Pepper House offices.

Ongoing developments in the south of Nantwich will provide a mix of housing and additional
employment land. Local Plan development sites include Kingsley Fields which will deliver up to 1,100
new homes, local amenities and up to 2 ha of employment and CS 23 Snow Hill which is expected to
deliver 3 hectares of employment land and 2,050 new homes. These developments will attract new
residents and drive local economic growth. Investment will be required in supporting infrastructure
to mitigate the impacts of new development on the transport network.

The location of these development sites is identified below:

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 149



Page 186

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Development Sites in Nantwich

Cheshire East Local Plan

[ Employment

[] Housing

"7 Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
[ Housing + Employment

] Mixed Use

[ Protected Open Space

0 05 1 /15 2km [ Safeguarded
3 © Openstreethlap contributors

Challenge 2: Providing accessibility to services

Nantwich has varied population groups which have different accessibility needs. Although the town
has relatively low levels of deprivation as a whole, it includes one of the 25% most deprived areas in
the UK. Therefore, improving accessibility to employment from central Nantwich could contribute
towards lowering the levels of deprivation.

Additionally, Nantwich has a higher proportion of both younger and older segments of the
population in comparison to other areas of the borough. Over 24% of the population of Nantwich are
65 or older. Older people’s mobility needs can require the availability of accessible passenger
transport options and this should be considered in the coming years.

Nantwich has six primary schools and two secondary schools with colleges and higher education
available in nearby Crewe. For many schoolchildren, walking and cycling to school could constitute
an alternative to being driven, with the benefits of improving overall road safety, increasing physical
activity and reducing traffic flows (particularly around schools) in peak hours.

Nantwich’s wide and dispersed rural hinterland constitutes a challenge in how to ensure efficient
and sustainable accessibility. For residents who do not own a car, passenger transport will be
important for accessing key services alongside walking and cycling for more local journeys.

Challenge 3: Improving our environment

As a consequence of high traffic flows and congestion in inner Nantwich, nitrogen dioxide emissions
exceeded annual limits and an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) was declared on Hospital
Street between London Road and Prachitts Row. Reducing concentrations of congestion in the
Nantwich area and increasing the usage of sustainable modes of travel will contribute to reducing
vehicles emissions, as will future technological improvements which may come forward.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 150



Page 187

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

It is the Council’s vision to continue to maintain and improve the image of Cheshire East and its high
quality of place. The aim for the borough is to continue to be an attractive place to live and visit. As
Nantwich is a location sought for its quality of place, maintaining and improving the quality of the
local environment is an important local factor.

Challenge 4: Addressing poor health and physical inactivity

Alongside Crewe, Nantwich has one of the lowest levels of adult physical activity in the borough.
Sports facilities available within the town include the Barony Park Sports Complex, Brookfield Park
and Nantwich swimming pool which are within close proximity to local amenities and can be
accessed by foot or bicycle. Encouraging more leisure and commute trips to use active modes of
travel has the potential to improve health and physical activity of Nantwich’s residents. Many
destinations from shops to GP practices and schools are in walking and cycling distance for most
residents.

A ‘riverside loop’ 3-mile walk is located within the town and explores the river and canal from the
town centre, which can increase physical activity for recreational purposes. Other cycle routes
increase accessibility within the town, including the Connect2 Crewe to Nantwich Greenway which
offers a predominately traffic-free cycle route and cycle connectivity to Crewe within 30 minutes.
This offers a viable commuting alternative to the car, reflected in 4% of Nantwich residents
commuting via bike, one of the highest figures across Cheshire East. With further investment, this
figure has the potential to be increased further which will assist in increasing physical activity levels
overall in Nantwich.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the Borough is
vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:
e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to
extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the Borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in what

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

151



Page 188

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully securing
significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be a need to
continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that will support
our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

Of the 6500 Nantwich residents that commute to work, 29% travel less than 5km, a 25% travel 5 to
10km which is the range in which Crewe is located and only 27% commute more than 10 km.
Compared to other places in the borough, more people commute a shorter distance and significantly
less commute more than 10km, which is primarily a result of a significant proportion of Nantwich
residents working in Crewe.

Commuting by car as this is the preferred choice for over 70% of commuters with 5% commuting by
bus or train. 18% of residents walk or cycle to work which is one of the highest proportions for active
travel in the Borough.

Active and Smarter Travel

The Connect2 Crewe to Nantwich Greenway offers a safe and direct off-road cycle route from Crewe
to Nantwich, passing local amenities, including Leighton Hospital, Reaseheath College, Wistaston
and Nantwich town centre, making it a popular route. Plans are in place to extend the route further
northwards to Leighton Hospital and upgrade the section to an off-road path. A cycle path linking
the Greenway to Reaseheath College along Nantwich Bypass could also be considered. From
Alvaston Roundabout towards Nantwich town centre options could be considered to create a more
coherent route.

National Cycle Network Routes 451, 45 and 5, 551 and 552 cycle routes connect Nantwich to nearby
towns and the wider network of cycling routes. The short distances between other localities, along
with the available routes, are reflected in an above average number of residents choosing to cycle.
These cycle routes need to be maintained, improved and extended to ensure cycling remains an
attractive alternative to car use for medium distance journeys.

The River Weaver runs northwards through the town and the Shropshire Union Canal passes to the
west, making Nantwich a popular leisure walking destination. A number of promoted walking paths
exist around Nantwich, such as the Nantwich Riverside Loop. Provision for pedestrians is generally
good within Nantwich however some sections in rural areas can be challenging due to limited
footways.

Bus

Bus services in Nantwich are available to Whitchurch, Crewe, Chester, Congleton, Sandbach. There
are also bus connections to most rural areas surrounding Nantwich, including: Bunbury, Tiverton,
Bulkeley, Audlem, and Wrenbury. These services operate at various frequencies and different days
between Monday and Saturday. It is important that new developments, such as those listed in the
Local Plan, are integrated into the public transport network.

Rail

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 152



Page 189

ESSSY
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

Nantwich Railway Station is located on the Crewe to Cardiff line, which is operated by Arriva Trains
Wales. Connections to Crewe, Shrewsbury and Wales are available on two-hourly services during the
week, with further connections to national rail services in Crewe. A direct service is available
between Nantwich and Manchester with a 56-minute journey time. It is recognised that these
services have limited frequency with only one hourly service in peak periods. Increased frequency of
this service would be an opportunity to provide a more attractive regular commuter option to a
range of destinations including Manchester.

There are local calls to improve level crossings in the town as issues exist around the crossing
stopping the flow of traffic for a longer period than necessary, creating localised delay on roads
which could be prevented. Discussions with Network Rail have identified that this would require
significant infrastructure investment and could be investigated in the future.

Given the proximity of Crewe Railway Station and the connectivity of that station both locally and
nationally, it is noted that a significant proportion of rail trips in the town are made via Crewe. As
such, improving sustainable travel links to Crewe would provide an opportunity to significantly
enhance connectivity from Nantwich, particularly given the future opportunities provided by HS2.

Roads
Nantwich is well connected by road in all directions by the A534, A530, A500 and A51; however, key
junctions within the town and along the bypass experience peak hour congestion. The following
junctions within Nantwich have been identified as being in need of improvement:

- Burford junction;

- Alvaston roundabout;

- Peacock roundabout;

- Cheerbrook roundabout;

- Peter Destapleigh Way/Audlem Road; and

- London Road crossroads.

Due to future development key junctions along A5301 Elwood Way/Peter Destapleigh Way are
forecast to be subject to capacity constraints in the future, and a new link road connecting the new
Kingsley Fields development to the A51 and A534 will be required. Junction improvements to the
A51 corridor north of Nantwich have been identified as a major highway improvement in the Local
Plan aiming to reduce further potential congestion issues in this area.

Funding has been secured from planning permissions in Nantwich to implement improvements to
the transport network in the west of the town. These include a long-standing aspiration to provide a
new north/south route from Welsh Row, and potential one-way operation on Marsh Lane and parts
of Welsh Row.

Nantwich experiences high demand for parking all year round. Five paying and four free car parks in
Nantwich provide a total of 731 parking spaces, located within the town centre. On-street parking on
Welsh Row can cause operational problems during peak times, particularly with regard to bus
manoeuvring, and as such measures to better manage parking demand on Welsh Row. In the longer-
term, consideration will also be given to measures to de-traffic this route and encourage traffic to
utilise the B5341 Waterlode, in line with the historical nature of Welsh Row.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 153



Page 190

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

]Poynton & Disley\

Comment [DI(1]: Updated with
additional narrative on Disley

Area Summary

Poynton is a town located on the north eastern fringe of Cheshire East, 17 km south of Manchester
city centre, 10 km north of Macclesfield and 7 km south of the city of Stockport. This profile also
covers Disley, which is a distinct area of the Borough in its own right located to the north east of
Poynton and east of Stockport.

Poynton and Disley have strong economic links to neighbouring Macclesfield and Greater
Manchester, with significant cross border movements as the areas are popular for those who
commute to Manchester. There is significant planned development both within Cheshire East as
identified within the Local Plan and Greater Manchester as identified in the emerging Greater
Manchester Spatial Framework. This proposed growth highlights the importance of effective
management and investment in the transport network as without effective connectivity this jobs-led
growth is unlikely to be deliverable.

In addition, the South East Manchester Multi-Modal Strategy (SEMMMs) is currently being refreshed
by Cheshire East Council, Stockport Council and Transport for Greater Manchester, which is due for
consultation in 2018. This will inform a future iteration of this profile in terms of emerging issues,
options and schemes.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they impact Poynton, Disley and surrounding areas.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 154



Page 191

o
Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Hockley g =

Contains OS data © Crown copy:éﬁt;mf‘:&atabaser right (2017)

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

Poynton and Disley have economic activity rates of 69% and 72% respectively. These figures are both
higher than the borough-wide average. Of the working population 76% drive to work in Poynton,
which is 2% higher than the borough average. For Disley, this is slightly lower at 71%.

The main junction in the centre of Poynton, the A523/Park Lane/Chester Road, experiences
congestion as a result high traffic volumes. Congestion in Poynton has the potential to limit growth in
future as a result of long journey times for commuters. There is a lack of road capacity in the town
centre to support additional growth and investment, something the Poynton Relief Road will play a
key role in addressing.

Employment within Poynton and the surrounding areas is primarily centred on the Poynton and
Adlington Industrial Estates, in addition to the town centre shops and leisure facilities. Due to the
industrial estates being rurally located, in addition to limited integration with the public transport
network and sustainable travel options often commuters both local and from Greater Manchester
drive to these employment sites. This presents a challenge for accessibility to these employment sites
which could limit their appeal to commuters from further afield, whilst also presenting a potential
limitation to investment.

Due to limited employment opportunities near Poynton, a high proportion of people commute out of
town for work to areas including Manchester, Stockport and Macclesfield; 25% of commuters travel
between 5 and 10km and a further 21% travel between 10 and 20km. These figures indicate that
there is a high degree of cross-boundary travel. Currently, a lack of direct routes results in traffic from
the Poynton area passing through other local settlements in Greater Manchester including
Woodford, Hazel Grove and Cheadle Hulme.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 155



Page 192

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

The Local Plan outlines the development areas planned for Poynton:

N
//' \

7\

__Poynton

@ Development Sites in Poynton
! Cheshire East Local Plan
Employment

Housing
"7 Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)

Housing + Employment
Mixed Use
Protected Open Space

Q 05 1 15 2km “ / Safeguarded

© OpenstreetMap contributors

e (S 57 Land adjacent to Hazelbadge Road Housing

e (S 58 Land at Sprink Farm Housing

e (CS 59 Land south of Chester Road Housing

e CS 60 Adlington Business Park Extension Employment

e (S 65 (Safeguarded) Woodford Aerodrome Safeguarded Land

The Local Plan allocates three different housing development sites and one area of employment
involving an extension of Adlington Business Park by 10ha. Land on the former Woodford Aerodrome
has also been safeguarded for future development. Further development land for employment would
be required to increase the number of residents employed within Poynton, with approximately only
3000 people currently working within the town. It is important for the transport network in Poynton
to support jobs-led growth.

In light of the above, the proposed Poynton Relief Road would connect to the A6 Manchester Airport
Relief Road, which is currently under construction. This would provide additional economic benefits
to the town through reduced congestion, with associated environmental and social benefits. The link
will also open up accessibility to the Local Plan development sites. This link has the potential to make
the area more attractive for investors and consequently to increase employment opportunities. In
addition, links from Poynton to destinations east/west will be improved as well as accessibility to the
M56 which will open up opportunities for businesses and residents.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 156



Page 193

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

There are primary, secondary and further education facilities in Poynton; in Disley, there is one
primary school. For secondary education, Disley residents need to travel to Poynton, Hazel Grove or
New Mills. For additional college options, other nearby facilities are located in Bramhall, Cheadle and
Marple. For tertiary level study, Manchester offers the closest institutions. To support the future
success of Poynton there is a need to provide viable public transport access and sustainable travel
options to provide a choice of further education options. The proposed development of the land
adjacent to Hazelbadge Road includes improvements to access to Lower Park primary school with a
focus on improving safety.

Employment locations within the town centre are accessible on foot from residential areas and also
the train station. However, with the train station situated to the west of Poynton reaching the east of
the town on foot takes approximately 30 minutes. Whilst the industrial employment sites on the
edge of Poynton are accessible on foot from the town centre and residential areas the primary mode
of travel is by car at present.

Non-car links between Disley and Poynton/Macclesfield are relatively limited with the majority of
travel to Greater Manchester. There are however specific services which Disley residents need to
access within Cheshire East and consideration should be given to alternative travel options to
Poynton and Macclesfield.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

It is the Council’s vision to continue to maintain and improve the image of Cheshire East and the high
quality of place. Improved connectivity between local attractions, such as local shops and Lyme Park
would improve the attraction of Poynton and Disley as a place to live and as a place to visit. There is a
need to address the AQMA on the A6 Market Street in Disley. One way to improve the air quality
would be to improve connectivity by public transport and sustainable options, in order to help
address congestion and therefore improve air quality in Poynton and Disley. Specific highway
improvements can also play a key role in mitigating the impacts of congestion and vehicle emissions,
in addition to wider efforts to transition to lower emissions technology.

There are some existing cycle and walking routes through green and rural areas which can be
pleasant to use and improve connectivity to open space. Poynton is located to the west of
Middlewood Way, which is an 11-mile traffic free greenway from Macclesfield to Marple providing a
scenic off-road route for both leisure and commuting purposes. Notwithstanding this, walking and
cycling for commuting is lower than the Cheshire East average. Further improvements to green
infrastructure would provide additional attractive routes which would contribute to the uptake of
sustainable modes of travel.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

Approximately 22% of adults in Cheshire East are physically active for less than 30mins per week,
and we know that lack of physical activity is a major contributory factor to poor health. There is
therefore a need to encourage more active lifestyles in the Borough.

In addition, Poynton and Disley have an aging population, with 23% in Disley and 24% in Poynton
over the age of 65. It is necessary that accessible transport options link residents with the services
they need to maintain health and wellbeing.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 157



Page 194

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Improved walking and cycling infrastructure increasing connectivity and providing alternative travel
options to local destinations has been shown to support increased levels of active transport. This is
one way of supporting physical activity and reduced health inequality.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the borough is
vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:
e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to
extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in what
is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully securing
significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be a need to
continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that will support
our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

A significant proportion of residents travel to neighbouring towns and cities for work including
Manchester, Stockport and Macclesfield. Due to Poynton and Disley being situated to the west of
the Peak District, flows to the west are much higher than flows to the east. These journeys account
for the 31% of the working population which travel over 10km to work, a figure much greater than
other areas of Cheshire East. As a result, 76% of commuters in Poynton, and 71% of commuters in
Disley choose to travel by car.

Active and Smarter Travel

The Middlewood Way is a long-distance recreational footpath/cycleway to the east of Poynton,
which extends between Marple and Macclesfield and is part of the National Cycle Network Route
55. There are however limited links from the Middlewood Way to Poynton and Disley itself,

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 158



Page 195

ESSSY
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

particularly in the case of cycling. Providing these links would improve accessibility to and from the
Middlewood Way with benefits for residents and visitors. This would also enable cycling journeys
between Disley and Poynton. Cycle facilities along the A6 through Disley and A6MARR mitigation
measures through the village will also create a more cycle friendly atmosphere in Disley.

The Poynton shared space scheme aims to creates a more attractive and less car dominated local
centre and this scheme could be complemented by cycle infrastructure improvements nearby. The
Poynton Relief Road will also complement the shared space scheme through a reduction of traffic
travelling through Poynton.

In addition, routes could be implemented from Poynton and Disley to Lyme Park and the Gritstone
Trail in particular, which would encourage active travel leisure use into green areas and the
countryside. On the existing network, Disley is well connected to the Peak District via the Peak
Forest Canal towpath, which provides a scenic route that encourages active travel.

There are opportunities for both footway and cycle infrastructure to be improved on routes in the
town centre connecting to employment areas such as Poynton and Adlington Industrial Estates.
There are existing advisory cycle lanes along Chester Road, which is the main road into Poynton
from the west and from the station. However, these routes are intermittent and cyclists would
benefit from dedicated facilities at junctions to improve perceptions of safety and increase use. It is
also acknowledged Poynton would benefit from the provision of a signed route from the station to
the towns industrial estates.

Bus

Poynton is served by a service which connects to Macclesfield, Hazel Grove and Stockport. This
service runs on an hourly frequency on weekdays and Saturdays, however it terminates in the
evening and doesn’t run on Sundays. This has been re-routed to cover western Poynton as well as
the east of the town.

Disley’s bus service consists of the 199 High Peak bus service, which runs twice per hour. This
connects Disley with Buxton, Stockport and Manchester Airport. There is not currently a bus service
in operation that connects to Macclesfield and Poynton.

Considering potential future travel demand growth as a result of investment in both Poynton and
Disley, integrating the bus network into developments outlined in the Local Plan would provide
additional benefits. A proportion of the population in Poynton also rely on bus travel for access to
local services and amenities within Poynton and also in Hazel Grove and Stockport. One potential
option could be linking Poynton into a future bus service which runs between Hazel Grove and
Manchester Airport to be considered further through the SEMMMS refresh work.

Rail

Poynton Railway Station is located to the east of Poynton outside of the town. Rail travel represents
5% of commuter’s mode of travel to work. The station is located on the West Coast Main Line and
operates an hourly service to Stoke-on-Trent southbound and Manchester Piccadilly northbound,
with half hourly trains to Macclesfield during peak times. Due to the limited frequency of trains to
commuter areas (1 per hour), and the location of the station outside of the town (approx. 15min
walk to town centre), Hazel Grove Railway Station also accommodates a significant volume of
commuter trips from Poynton as it offers a more frequent service, free parking and benefits from
reduced fares to/from Greater Manchester. Service improvements from Poynton station may

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 159



Page 196

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

reduce car-based commuter travel and potential “park and ride” travel to Hazel Grove, thereby
reducing congestion on local roads. As a result, an investigation into the improvement of public
transport links from Poynton to Manchester, Stockport and Hazel Grove is ongoing.

The train station in Disley is situated on the Manchester to Buxton line. Approximately 8% of
commuters in Disley use the train to travel to work, and the station has experienced an increase of
10% in passenger entries and exits between 14/15 and 15/16, according to ORR statistics. Hourly
services run to Manchester Piccadilly and Buxton, with services operating twice per hour during
peak hours. Disley would benefit from increased frequency of trains to and from Manchester
Piccadilly.

Additionally, the accessibility of rail travel would benefit from improved opportunities for
interchange. For example, cycle and walking routes and key attractors could be signposted in order
to encourage further use of the station, and integration with local bus services.

Roads

The Poynton Relief Road scheme planning application was submitted in 2016. The road would link
London Road South (A523) and the A555 (proposed SEMMMS) thereby relieving congestion in
Poynton and acting as a catalyst to deliver Local Plan sites. This scheme will connect the relief road
to the A6 to Manchester Airport Relief Road, attracting necessary investment into the area. This will
improve the connectivity of the road network in Poynton to larger service and employment areas.

The A6 through Disley is a key arterial route between the Peak District and eastwards to Greater
Manchester, North Cheshire and the strategic road network. As such significant levels of general
traffic and HGVs use this route through Disley village. A package of mitigation measures is being
brought forward in Disley in respect of increasing traffic flows as a result of the AGMARR scheme.
The ongoing SEMMMS work will consider further multimodal options to improve travel on both the
A6 and A523 corridors.

The main link between the town and the strategic road network is the A523 connecting Poynton to
Hazel Grove, the A6 and Macclesfield. Congestion on the A523 and A5149 junctions are
acknowledged to contribute to a perception of severance within the town centre. In an attempt to
address this Fountain Place in the town centre has been improved in to a shared space
arrangement. While this has led to a reduction in queuing and reduced flows have improved air
quality and traffic noise there is still a significant number of vehicles passing through Poynton Town
Centre every day.

Parking can be found at the railway station, Nelson Pit and Poynton Civic Hall. The Civil Hall car park
offers 204 free car parking spaces, and parking at the rail station is also free of charge.

There are two Council owned car parks within Disley; 40 spaces are at the community centre and 20
at the station approach which are both free of charge. There are also a number of private car parks,
such as one at the Rams Head.

Rural Areas

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 160



Page 197

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Area Summary

Cheshire East’s rural areas, communities and open spaces plays a key role in the borough. Our
rural economy also plays a significant sub-regional role both through traditional land-based
businesses but also non-land based businesses which appreciate the rural setting; including
professional services, digital and creative industries, and the visitor economy. Our rural areas with
their strong quality of place attributes present a number of opportunities and challenges with
regards to transport and responding effectively to these will allow them to thrive to the whole
borough’s advantage.

There is significant planned development within Cheshire East supporting the Council’s objective
of jobs-led growth with an element of this growth planned in some of our more rural areas. This
pro-growth policy position underlines the importance of effective management of the transport
network to ensure journey time efficiency and reliability.

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity
Traditional land-based businesses such as farming and agriculture, as well as Cheshire’s
countryside and tourist attractions form a significant part of the borough’s economy attracting
investment and visitors to the borough. The challenge is to maintain the attractiveness of our
rural areas and further improve their quality of place in order to attract visitors and investment. It
is important to maintain and improve accessibility to these rural areas in order to provide
connections to businesses in these areas and allow the local economy to grow.

Rural areas need to be well connected to key towns and service centres to ensure their continued
viability and success. Improved connectivity through all modes of transport will increase options
for travel into these rural areas, open up accessibility and increase investment in rural areas
supporting jobs-led growth.

A number of major employers, such as Amec Foster Wheeler situated near Knutsford and Barclays
located in Radbroke, have chosen to locate in rural areas within Cheshire East. This diversification
of the rural economy is important in order to encourage new jobs and innovation, and it is
important to support the growth of rural businesses through improved connectivity and
communications.

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

As mentioned above, a number of key employers have chosen to locate in rural areas, such as
Alderley Park. These locations can have challenges associated with public transport accessibility,
contributing to relatively high levels of single occupancy car travel. The challenge in Cheshire East
is to ensure that residents can access these key employment areas in order to open up career
opportunities. Improved integration of these workplaces with public transport and the road
network in addition to infrastructure encouraging active modes of travel would benefit residents
and employers alike.

In rural areas schools tend to have larger catchment areas due to lower population densities
which can make the home to school journey more difficult than in urban areas. In the majority of
rural areas in the borough there is only one catchment area for both primary and secondary
schools. Whilst in some parts of the borough the nearest secondary school can be up to 8km
away. The challenge in rural areas is to ensure that there is good quality and safe access to
education for students via sustainable modes, public transport and highways. Independent access

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 198

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways
to further and higher educational opportunities is critical to enhancing prospects for residents.

In addition, access to retail opportunities and wider services can be more challenging. The larger
shops and some services are usually located in key service centres and towns, rather than rural
areas. The challenge is to ensure that there is road and passenger transport connectivity between
rural areas and retail services in order to provide access for residents for both utility and
employment purposes.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

One of the Council’s main priorities is to maintain and improve the image of Cheshire East and its
high ‘quality of place’. In particular, the ‘quality of place’ of our rural areas helps Cheshire East to
stand out from competitors and attract investment, visitors and tourists. The Council also place
importance on making Cheshire East ‘a green and sustainable place’.

One major challenge is that a reliance on the car can negatively impact air quality, create
severance for pedestrians and result in nuisance noise. Addressing high flows of vehicles and
congestion, for example through improved public transport and sustainable connections between
rural attractions such as Tatton Park and Jodrell Bank could subsequently bring about benefits for
rural areas. The Council are also investing in upgraded highway routes where appropriate which
remove traffic from pressure points.

There are two Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) in rural Cheshire East, located in Cranage
on the M6 and on the A556 at Mere which will be addressed in line with this LTP and the
forthcoming Air Quality Strategy.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

Cheshire East has relatively low levels of deprivation when compared to national averages.
However, it has been reported that statistics can fail to capture the reality for residents in rural
locations as a result of being sub-divisions of a larger area®. For example, there can be issues of
low paid work, social isolation, high costs of commuting, and poor accessibility to hospitals in
some rural areas. It is the role of transport to provide connectivity for those living rurally to be
able to access the services they require and for the road network to be able to cater for residents
and support jobs-led growth.

Cheshire East’s population has a significant proportion of residents over the age of 65 and this
ageing population brings a number of additional challenges. Older people are more likely to use
healthcare, and in rural locations in particular, this can be challenging due to less public transport
connectivity and often longer distances to cover than in our more urban areas. Over the coming
years, there is a challenge to provide for our rural communities to ensure that there is suitable
accessibility to the services they require.

There is a challenge to increase physical activity to help people live better and for longer and an
opportunity to encourage the uptake of physical activity; in particular, through the maintenance
and provision of walking and cycling routes for both leisure and utility travel.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the

33 Public Health Association, Health and Wellbeing in Rural Areas (2017)

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan




Page 199

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

borough is vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined
with higher levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make
the maintenance and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such
it is important that the Council works to deliver:
e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure
as efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient
to extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly
important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the borough, particularly in
rural areas
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic
partnerships with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private
sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and
other partners to identify how transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for in
what is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully
securing significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. We will
need to continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that
will support our ambitions.

Transport issues and challenges

Travel demand

There are various rural areas within Cheshire East and these tend to be closely associated with
different towns in Cheshire East or across our border in to neighbouring areas. The key areas they
are associated with form routes for many commuting and leisure trips as well as to access services.
The mix between our rural, urban and those areas which lie between the two are shown in the map

of the borough below.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

163



Page 200

Cheshire Eastg

Council?

Highways

Manchester A
Warrington Trafford A

Stockport

High Peak (Buxton)

Cheshire West and Chester
(Winsford, Northwich)

Staffordshire Moorlands
(Leek, Biddulph)

Rural Areas in Cheshire East

Newcastle-under-Lyme. [] Cheshire East

Rural Urban Classification (2015)
[ Rural

|| Predominantly rural

| More rural than urban
[ More urban than rural
[_] predominantly urban

Contains Ordnance Survey data € Crown copyright and database right [2017] I urban
© OpenStreetMap Contributors

Stoke-on-Trent

Shropshire (Whitchurch)
Stafford

0 5 10 15 20 km

Active and Smarter Travel

Footpaths are not always present alongside the side of roads in rural areas, which can discourage
people to choose to walk. It is important for improvements to footpaths to be made (where feasible)
in order to encourage their use for short trips, such as commuting and leisure purposes.

For leisure and tourism, the attractive landscape results in a high proportion of visitors to the region
to enjoy Cheshire East’s walking routes. There are a number of popular long distance routes in
Cheshire East including the Gritstone Trail, the Sandstone Trail, Middlewood Way and the Bollin
Valley Way, as well as many shorter walking routes on offer. Improvements to some rural walking
routes such as off road routes and public rights of way would bring benefit, especially to people who
are disabled and older people. It is important for routes to be maintained in order to further
promote walking for leisure and support the visitor economy.

In addition to footpaths and bridleways, there are existing rural cycle routes through Cheshire East,
and also National Cycle Network routes which pass through the borough. The National Cycle
Network provides long distance connections between locations, mostly through the signage of quiet
routes such as country. Existing cycle infrastructure could be improved by linking existing routes and
also by increasing the provision of dedicated cycle infrastructure and maintenance of routes. The
Cheshire East Cycling Strategy contains an aspirational strategic route map with many of these
routes linking through rural areas of the borough.

Bus

Public transport is a challenge in rural areas due to the low density of residential areas and
workplaces. Some areas, such as High Legh, does not have a bus service, and is no longer connected
to Altrincham and Warrington. The Goostrey service to Sandbach operates twice per day, which

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

164



Page 201

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

‘ provides a useful service for local residents, maintaining bus connectivity for Goostrey. Rural areas
such as Audlem and Wrenbury are integrated into the bus network and are connected to
Whitchurch and Nantwich.

A majority of rural areas retain access to key service centres so they are not cut off from services. As
a result of the ongoing bus service review some towns may have reduced access to more than one
key service centre and/or principle town in Cheshire East and the surrounding areas by bus.

In combination with the Council providing passenger transport services, one additional option is to
further encourage community transport, which can help connect people in rural areas to the
services and facilities that they need.

Rail

Some rural areas in Cheshire East are well served by rail services and rail stations. Between 2014/15
and 2015/16 all rural stations increased their usage, apart from Plumley, Styal and Wrenbury.
Holmes Chapel and Disley both exceeded 150,000 passenger entries and exits in 2015/2016. This
growth of rail use suggests that more people are relying on public transport in rural areas. As such, it
is important to support rural stations and services and provide for current and future users through
maintenance and improvement; whilst also lobbying for increased services where necessary and
providing onwards travel options from stations.

Roads

Local roads in rural areas are very important to residents and businesses, as travelling by car is often
the primary option for travel. Travelling by car requires the roads to be well managed and
maintained. Subsequently, it is important to continue to invest in the local road network in order to
have a well maintained road network in rural areas.

Traffic in some rural areas can impose negative external impacts on villages and communities. This
can include severance, deteriorating of air quality and noise issues; as such, it is important to
address detrimental traffic impacts in rural areas. A number of main rural A roads are busy during
peak periods. Through traffic can result in negative impacts on rural villages and small towns. The
A54 and A50 in Holmes Chapel both experience high levels of through traffic which also has a wider
impact on east-west connectivity across the borough, as the A54 is a key route between Winsford
and Congleton. The A50 also has an impact on rural connectivity as this route can be affected by
incidents on the M6, which can cause rerouting along the A50. This negatively impacts various
settlements along the route. Further investigation of the A50 and A54 is needed once the M6 J16-19
Smart Motorway schemes has been completed in order to better understand movements and
address ongoing issues.

Car parking in rural areas is also important as residents / visitors in rural areas tend to rely more on
the car. Car parking facilities should support the vitality and economy of villages in rural areas and
car parking prices should be appropriate for each area in order to attract visitors and provide
sufficient capacity to meet demand.

In rural areas where there are rail stations it is also important to provide enough parking to
encourage people to ‘park and ride’, rather than use the car to travel the whole distance of their
journey.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

165



Page 202

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Sandbach

Area Summary

Sandbach is a historic market town centrally located within the borough, around 7 km north-east of
Crewe and 20 km south-west of Macclesfield. Due to its proximity, Sandbach has especially close
links to neighbouring Crewe.

Sandbach is comprised of several distinct settlements including Elworth village, Ettiley Heath,
Wheelock village and Sandbach Heath. These areas are referred to collectively as Sandbach
throughout the Local Transport Plan.

There is significant planned development within Cheshire East supporting the Council’s objective of
jobs-led growth. This includes one committed site in Sandbach as outlined in the Local Plan, which
consists of employment land and up to 450 homes. This pro-growth policy position underlines the
importance of effective management of the transport network to ensure journey time efficiency
and reliability.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges which have been identified across
Cheshire East and how they impact Sandbach and surrounding areas.

Sandbach

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

166



Page 203

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity
Following the 2002 closure of local truck manufacturing industries, a shift in employment has
occurred in Sandbach resulting in large numbers of local people now working within managerial,
professional and associate professional occupations (45.9%). Sandbach is performing comparatively
well economically with 70% of residents being economically active, which is above the borough
average. The average household income in Sandbach is also slightly higher than both the Cheshire
East and national averages. It is important that the transport network continues to support
Sandbach’s economy through effective connectivity as a means of supporting improved quality of
life and the Council’s priority of jobs-led growth.

In Sandbach itself there is a relative shortage of jobs, leading to a net outflow of commuting trips;
the structural shift in employment in the past decade means there is opportunity to deliver local
jobs through development. One site for future development is identified within the Local Plan (LPS
53 adjacent to junction 17 of the M6) the location of which is shown below:

Development Sites in Sandbach
Cheshire East Local Plan

I Employment

[ ] Housing

"7 Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
[ Housing + Employment

[

[

Miced Use
Protected Open Space

0 b 1 15 2km Safeguarded
© OpenStreetMap contributors

The development site includes 20ha of employment land and 450 new homes. A demand for more
employment land exists as Sandbach has experienced a reduction in undeveloped employment
land and an increase in housing developments in recent years. It is important to maintain a good
level of road accessibility to this new development site and ensure that the road network has
sufficient capacity to support future growth.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

167



Page 204

ESS
P

Cheshire East )

P’

CouncilZ

Highways

Additional provision of local employment may also reduce the proportion of long-distance
commuting trips, if an increased number of people choose to work closer to home. Currently, the
main employers in Sandbach are located at the Cheshire East Council offices on Middlewich Road,
Spring Vale Industrial Estate in Ettiley village and business units in Elworth. It is important to have
good accessibility to these employment sites in order to support economic growth and investment.
Circa 16% of employees live less than 2km from their place of work and an additional 6% live less
than 5km from work. Due to limited employment opportunities within Sandbach, 24% travel 5 to
10 km and 37% travel more than 10 km to work. In part as a result of this tendency for relatively
long commutes 78% of Sandbach’s residents travel to work by car. The impact of this high
proportion of car use is reflected in peak time congestion on the A533 and A534, as well as at
junction 17 of the M6. Congestion has the potential to limit local economic growth and as such it is
important to address local impacts and provide a road network that enables future growth.

Sandbach is connected to the Strategic Road Network via the A543 towards the M6 via junction 17,
north to Congleton and southwards to Crewe. The A533 provides a connection to Middlewich and
Northwich and links with the A534. Commuter traffic is an issue on all of these roads, particularly
the A534 corridor, which is causing concerns for local residents and businesses due to queuing and
congestion. Links which are currently congested due to commuter traffic require intervention in
order to provide capacity for future investment and growth in Sandbach.

Sandbach’s proximity to M6 junction 17 offers connection to the rest of the country.
Notwithstanding provision of a roundabout and junction improvements on the southbound slip
roads of the M6, the junction experiences congestion and safety issues which are likely to be
exacerbated by future development unless mitigated. It is important to address the functionality of
the M6 junction 17 in order to provide capacity for growth in the borough.

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

Local amenities should be accessible for all local residents and businesses. Government figures for
Sandbach indicate a 9% increase in the number of households and a 40% increase in the 65+ age
group, corresponding with a 19% decline in the 35 -54 age group. These changes are associated
with an increase in the number of older households, and a reduction in the number of lone parent
households. These trends will need to be recognised in future transport improvements, given that a
proportion of Sandbach’s population may not be able to depend on the private car.

Sandbach and its surrounding areas has 6 primary schools and 2 secondary schools with an
integrated sixth form. For additional options for further study residents need to travel further afield
to Crewe or Nantwich. For university level study, Keele University is the nearest university however
Sandbach also has rail connectivity to sites in Manchester. It is important to maintain public and
active transport connectivity to education in order to support independence and enhance
prospects for younger residents.

To maintain accessibility of local amenities, services and the public transport network, accessibility
improvements are also required for residents in the surrounding rural settlements, such as older

residents and those that do not have access to a car.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

Due to annual nitrogen dioxide limits being exceeded, an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA)

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 168



Page 205

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

was declared in 2009 for a number of properties along the A534 Middlewich Road, and another at
the A534 Holmes Chapel Road/A5022 junction. It is important to protect and improve the
environment, support improved air quality and address the AQMAs in Sandbach in line with the
Council’s forthcoming Air Quality Strategy.

Cheshire East has a vision to continue to maintain and improve quality of place in the borough,
building on our environmental assets. Sandbach should be developed with the aim of creating an
attractive destination for investors, employers, visitors and residents. Improving connections
between attractions, such as local shops, and leisure routes for example would improve the quality
of place and attractiveness further.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

Approximately 22% of adults in Cheshire East are physically active for less than 30mins a week and
we know that physical inactivity is a major contributory factor to poor health. There is therefore a
need to encourage more active lifestyles in the borough to establish physical activity in formative
years of resident’s lives and maintaining this.

Deprivation is commonly associated with poor health outcomes and Sandbach has relatively low
levels of deprivation in comparison to the wider borough and country. However, there are pockets
of deprivation around the centre of Sandbach and the high street.

There is a high proportion of over 65s in Sandbach (20%). As such we need to ensure older people
who do not drive have good connections to health care, services and leisure opportunities.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the Borough
is vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with
higher levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the
maintenance and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is
important that the Council works to deliver:
o Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to
extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the Borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic
partnerships with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private
sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 169



Page 206

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

and local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for;
in what is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully
securing significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be
a need to continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that
will support our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Opportunities

Travel demand

Currently, there is a net travel to work outflow of over 2,000 people from Sandbach, which is due in
part to relatively limited employment opportunities in Sandbach. The primary destinations for
commuters from Sandbach include Crewe, Middlewich, Knutsford, Holmes Chapel, and Congleton.

Active and Smarter Travel

Increased levels of sustainable and active travel are crucial to improved accessibility, health and
physical activity. As such, there is a need to invest and promote public and active travel
infrastructure and services to increase their use. There are clear opportunities to improve the
existing cycle provision such as the Wheelock Rail Trail, which is relatively flat, and green
infrastructure such as Sandbach and Elworth Park. Additional connections between existing cycle
routes and key attractions/destinations could increase the uptake of cycling for both leisure and
commuting, thereby creating a connected network. A Town Cycling Plan is currently being prepared
for Sandbach and once finalised this will identify key improvements within the town. Suggested
schemes will be considered for LTP funding in line with the appraisal framework.

Several walking routes exist within Sandbach, including the Wheelock Rail Trail, Sandbach Bridges
Trail and the Trent and Mersey Canal towpaths. Improvements on these routes in terms of
accessibility and maintenance in particular on the Trent and Mersey Canal towpath and the A534
crossing on the Wheelock Rail Trail would encourage additional users to benefit from these routes.

Active and smarter travel should be encouraged for the home to school journey. The delivery of
improved facilities for pedestrians and cyclists linking schools provides increased accessibility for
school children, improved safety and mitigation of some of the detrimental impacts of school-
related traffic on highway network performance.

Bus

The town is currently served by regular bus services to destinations including Crewe, Congleton,
Macclesfield and Middlewich. As part of the Supported Bus Service Review, the Council will be
retaining direct routes to Leighton Hospital, Alsager, Holmes Chapel and Goostrey, as well as the
town service within Sandbach. The Council is also currently exploring options to retain evening
services including the 37 and 38.

Rail

Sandbach train station is located in Elworth and offers two trains per hour to central Manchester,
one of which stops at Manchester Airport. Approximately 3% of residents commute via train, which
is in line with the Borough average. With planned expansion of Manchester Airport there is the
potential for increased job opportunities for Sandbach residents and improved access to the airport
will become increasingly important.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 170



Page 207

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

In addition to Sandbach Station, Crewe Railway Station is accessible within a 10-minute car or train
journey from Sandbach and provides additional connections. Crewe Station is extremely well
connected with quick access to London (1hr 35mins), Edinburgh (3 hr 15mins) and the rest of the UK.
There is potential for the journey times to improve with the proposed HS2 line, with Phase 2a
involving improvements to the Sandbach line, although there may be some disruption to Sandbach
station and services resulting from construction of the scheme. There will be a need to lobby for the
best outcomes for Sandbach and the wider borough from HS2 delivery.

Sandbach station would also benefit from improvements which are likely to be required given the
increased demand which will be generated by the Capricorn site. The Council are supportive of
reopening the rail line between Sandbach, Middlewich and Northwich in future, which would have
benefits for users of Sandbach Station.

Due to Sandbach Station being located approximately 1 mile from the town centre (and
approximately 25 minutes walk) rail travel can be challenging when accessing residential, retail and
employment areas within the town centre and towards eastern Sandbach.

Roads

To address significant commuter traffic and linked congestion issues on local roads improvements to
the A534 and surrounding junctions has been classified as a major highway scheme improvement in
the Local Plan. This will allow for the roads and junctions improved by this scheme to cater for
existing traffic and have enough residual capacity to support future growth and investment. Peak
time congestion is also present on the A533 through Sandbach. There is also a perception of speed
limit adherence issues within Sandbach which require further investigation.

As described previously, there is a need to address access onto the M6 due to existing congestion
and safety issues. Plans are currently in place for the roundabout to the northbound slip roads to be
redesigned to enable access to the new employment site and planned development. Further
junction improvements may potentially be required in this area in the future. In addition to M6
junction 17, a wider programme of works on the M6 junctions 16 to 19 are being delivered through
Highways England’s Smart Motorways programme. These improvements will provide additional
capacity and improve resilience allowing for further growth in the future.

Car parks across eight sites in Sandbach provide over 500 free spaces, but there is a lack of car
parking facilities to serve both the medical centre and shopping areas which provide essential
services for residents.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 171



Page 208

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

Wilmslow

Area Summary

Wilmslow is a market town with a thriving retail and leisure economy. The town is situated in the
north of the borough, adjacent to Handforth to the north and Alderley Edge to the south. Wilmslow
serves as a central service hub for other nearby settlements including Morley Green, Alderley Edge,
Nether Alderley and Mottram St Andrew.

Wilmslow is approximately 18km south of Manchester city centre, and 4km south of the Greater
Manchester border. Subsequently, the town has significant economic ties with Greater Manchester
and benefits from substantial commuter inflows and outflows to and from Manchester, contributing
to Wilmslow’s economy to the benefit of both businesses and residents.

There is significant planned development both within Cheshire East as identified within the Local Plan
and Greater Manchester as identified in the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework; with growth in
and around Wilmslow and neighbouring Greater Manchester likely to impact Wilmslow. This
highlights the importance of effective management and investment in the transport network in
Wilmslow and the surrounding areas, as without effective connectivity desired levels of jobs-led
growth are unlikely to be deliverable.

Outlined below is a discussion on the six key transport challenges identified in Cheshire East’s Local
Transport Plan as having an impact on the Borough and how they impact Wilmslow.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 172



Page 209

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

AUDERLEY EDGE

Challenge 1: Supporting growth and economic strength through connectivity

Census 2011 statistics reported approximately 71% of commuters living in Wilmslow travel by car.
Although this is lower than the Cheshire East average, this level of car use contributes to congestion
experienced in the town centre at peak times, particularly on the A538 which passes through the
town centre. As such there is a need for intervention as congestion has the potential to limit
economic growth in and around Wilmslow due to increased journey times to employment sites for
commuters and delivery for goods vehicles.

There are a number of known issues with public car parking in Wilmslow, with long stay and short
stay car parks often at capacity throughout the week. This impacts perceptions of accessibility for
both local residents and visitors, who may be less likely to visit if the ability to find a parking space is
in doubt. Improved management of the car parking facilities would provide additional benefits to the
local economy and improve accessibility.

Around 36% of Wilmslow’s commuters travel more than 10km to destinations such as Stockport and
Manchester. As a result there is a high degree of cross boundary travel between South Manchester,
Stockport and Cheshire East. Some of these employment areas are in relatively rural locations, with
limited integration with public transport contributing to relatively high levels of single occupancy car
travel to such locations.

The key employment sites in Wilmslow and its surrounds include Royal London, Alderley Park,
Waters, Handforth Dean Retail Park, Manchester Airport and Stanley Green Business Park. Journey
times to these areas have increased as a result of congestion and improving access to these locations

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 173



Page 210

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

presents an opportunity for jobs-led growth. Links from Wilmslow to the M56 and M60 will be
improved following completion of the Manchester Airport Eastern Link Road which will improve
access to key employment areas.

There are a number of development sites listed in the Local Plan for development, as shown in the
figure below. This is a mixture of employment, housing and some areas which are safeguarded for
the future. Wilmslow and its surrounding areas Local Plan sites include:

e LPS 54 Royal London — 175 homes and 5ha of employment land;
e LPS55 Wilmslow Business Park — 6.3ha of employment land;

e LPS56 Land at Little Stanneylands — 200 homes;

e |PS 57 Heathfield Farm — 150 homes;

e LPS58—Safeguarded land at Heathfield Farm; and

e LPS59-Safeguarded land at Upcast Lane/ Cumber Lane7

Development Sites in Wilmslow
Cheshire East Local Plan

[0 Employment

[~ Housing

777 Housing + Employment (Strategic Location)
| 77 Housing + Employment

[ Mixed Use

[T Protected Open Space

[ safeguarded

0 05 1 15 2km

@’ OpenStreetMap contributors

Challenge 2: Ensuring accessibility to services

There are a number of primary schools and one high school in Wilmslow, which includes an on-site
sixth form. However, to access other further education opportunities and higher education
opportunities residents may need to travel further afield to colleges. Other nearby colleges are in
locations such as Cheadle, Altrincham and Macclesfield while the nearest higher education
opportunities are located within Manchester. Given that school-related traffic forms a significant
portion of peak-time traffic ensuring a good level sustainable access to primary and secondary
education has a significant part to play in ensuring reliable journeys for local residents. It is
recognised that access to further and higher educational opportunities are critical to ensuring
positive prospects for younger residents.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 174



Page 211

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

A number of key employers in Wilmslow are located within the town centre, including the
Information Commissioners Office and businesses located on the high street. These locations are
accessible on foot from most residential areas within Wilmslow and also from the railway station.
Other employment areas such as Waters and Royal London and Stanley Green Business Park in
Handforth are currently accessed primarily by car. The challenge is to increase accessibility to these
areas via alternative modes of travel and to integrate them into the public transport network. This
would open up the opportunity for those without a car from neighbouring areas and Greater
Manchester to access jobs in Wilmslow.

Approximately 15% of commuters in Wilmslow travel less than 2km to work and there is an
opportunity to provide viable options for alternative modes of travel for these shorter journeys, such
as bus, train, walking and cycling.

One of the Wilmslow’s main shopping streets, Grove Street, is pedestrianised resulting in a traffic
free area for pedestrians and visitors. Notwithstanding this, the layout of the highway network within
the town centre may contribute to a perception of ‘severance’ for pedestrians. In particular, the
pedestrian crossings at the junction of Alderley Road / A538 experiences long waiting times with high
traffic volumes at the junction. It is important to continue to improve accessibility for pedestrians and
to provide safe walking routes into the town centre.

Challenge 3: Protecting and improving our environment

It is the Council’s vision to continue to maintain and improve the image of Cheshire East and its high
quality of place. The aim for Wilmslow is to continue to be an attractive destination as a place to live,
work and visit.

A significant proportion of commuters travel short distances by car and this presents an opportunity
to encourage an increase in sustainable travel. Improved connectivity between local attractions such
as The Carrs and the high street, and a reduction in congestion would improve the environment, local
air quality and the sense of quality of place further.

Some existing routes for walking and cycling exist through green areas, for example, a route through
the Carrs to Hawthorn Lane and a route along the River Bollin. Attractive and quiet off-road routes
provide a more pleasant alternative to footways adjacent to highways, and can be a way of
encouraging trips on foot or by cycle for both leisure and commuting purposes. Green infrastructure
could be expanded upon and improved further through a ramped alternative improving access for
cyclists and the disabled and also improved signposting to improve knowledge of route availability.

Challenge 4: Promoting health, wellbeing and physical activity

Approximately 22% of adults in Cheshire East are physically active for less than 30mins a week and
we know that lack of physical activity is a major contributory factor to poor health. There is therefore
a need to encourage more active lifestyles in the Borough. Wilmslow has relatively low levels of
deprivation when compared to national averages. However, there are pockets of deprivation in the
Colshaw Farm and Lacey Green areas.

Higher levels of walking and cycling could be delivered through improved cycling and walking
infrastructure, which could increase connectivity and accessibility and provide alternative travel
options to local attractions and destinations.

Wilmslow has a slightly lower proportion of older people compared to the overall borough although

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 175



Page 212

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

it still has a significant proportion of the population aged over 65. As such it is important to provide
accessible transport options for older people which provide connectivity to services, retail and
recreational opportunities that supports independence and wellbeing.

Challenge 5: Maintaining and managing our network assets
Ensuring that the transport network performs efficiently and is well maintained across the Borough is
vital to both connectivity and safety. Increased pressure on Council budgets combined with higher
levels of travel and a greater incidence of extreme weather events is likely to make the maintenance
and management of our transport network more difficult in the future. As such it is important that
the Council works to deliver:
e Effective asset management: We need to maintain and invest in transport infrastructure as
efficiently and effectively as possible to maximise the lifespan of assets
e Safety for all: Our transport system must be safe, and be perceived to be safe so that
everyone, especially vulnerable users feel confident to travel
e Transport resilience: Ensuring that the transport network is well maintained and resilient to
extreme weather events and that their impact is minimised will be increasingly important
e Technological innovation: Making best use of digital connections and technological
innovations will be important to continued success across the Borough
e Effective partnership working: Efficient joined-up delivery will require strategic partnerships
with government agencies, neighbouring local authorities and the private sector

Challenge 6: Improving organisational efficiency and effectiveness
Ensuring the Council operates in an efficient and effective manner is vital for the delivery of all
Council functions, including the delivery of transport services and infrastructure.

In the coming years there will continue to be challenges and opportunities relating to how we
manage and fund our transport network. The Council will work with central government and other
partners to identify how priority transport infrastructure is maintained, how excellent transport and
local government services are provided and how new infrastructure is delivered and paid for; in what
is likely to be a competitive funding environment. The Council has a history of successfully securing
significant external funding to invest in transport infrastructure and services. There will be a need to
continue this excellent track record if the Council is to deliver the transport network that will support
our ambitions.

Transport Issues and Challenges

Travel demand

In Wilmslow, inward and outward commuter flows are approximately equal. A large proportion of
commuters travel between the town and Macclesfield, Knutsford, Poynton and Greater Manchester.
The town also experiences a significant amount of through traffic travelling in an east/west direction
which contributes to local congestion issues.

There is a high demand for road travel and single occupancy car journeys, often as a result of
commuting to rural based employment sites, although a significant proportion of car-based trips are
for shorter local-based journeys.

Active and Smarter Travel
There are opportunities to improve the pedestrian network in and around Wilmslow. Existing

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 176



Page 213

ESSSY
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

footpaths and pedestrian crossings do not always follow desire lines, while high traffic flows at the
junction of Grove Street / Water Lane / Alderley Road also contribute towards perceptions of
severance. Some controlled pedestrian crossings involve long waiting times for pedestrians, causing
delay for users. This could be further improved with clear signage from the train station to the town
centre and key areas of employment.

There are existing advisory cycle lanes along Manchester Road, along the A34 Melrose Way, parallel
to Maclean Way, and along the A538 towards Manchester Airport. These routes provide
connections into the centre of Wilmslow from all directions. However, outside of the built up area of
Wilmslow cycle provision is more limited and cyclists are required to use busy roads. Existing cycle
infrastructure could be improved by linking existing routes, providing a fully connected network for
cyclists. The network could be further enhanced through signposting and quiet routes connecting to
schools, employment areas and the train station.

Bus

The bus network is served by routes connecting Wilmslow to Knutsford and Altrincham on an hourly
basis. Other bus services serve connect to central Manchester and Macclesfield; however, they do
not run on Sundays. These bus services are important for school children getting to school and
access to services in the Wilmslow and nearby areas for older people in particular.

The rail station bus stop acts as the main public transport interchange within Wilmslow; it is
important for the bus stop interchange to provide connections to other modes of travel such as car
parking facilities, and public and sustainable travel options.

When future developments such as housing and employment areas as outlined in the Local Plan are
built, it is important that they are integrated into public transport networks in the town.

Rail

Wilmslow has good rail connectivity north/south; with direct services to Manchester, Stockport,
Crewe and London Euston. As a result, the area has relatively high levels of rail commuting in
comparison to the rest of the Borough, with 5% of all commuting trips made by rail. However,
Wilmslow experiences poor east/west connectivity to Poynton and Knutsford with no direct services
available. The direct links north and south provide fast and frequent services, which attract users
locally from Wilmslow and also users from other nearby towns, who commute to the station by car,
before travelling to their destination by train. A side effect of the excellent connectivity provided by
Wilmslow railway station is high demand for car parking facilities at the station and other long stay
car parks in the town centre, such as Broadway Meadow and Spring Street which are often at
capacity during the week.

The railway station would also benefit from improved interchange links in order to open up a wider
choice of modes of travel to and from the station. There are currently Bike and Go facilities and bus
facilities; these could be promoted to encourage further use, along with improved signposting and
cycling and walking infrastructure.

Roads

Wilmslow experiences congestion throughout the town centre both in peak and off peak periods,
and in particular, evening peak periods. This causes delay to road users as well as noise and air
pollution. The junction of the B5086 / A538 / Grove Street is in the centre of the town. The A538 is
the primary option for east/west movements between Woodford, Poynton and Prestbury in the east

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan 177



Page 214

ESS
P

Cheshire East ).
CouncilZ

Highways

and towards Hale and Altrincham in the west, which generates significant through traffic. The
junction experiences congestion throughout the day as a result of this through traffic travelling east
/ west. The Manchester Road / Mill Street / A538 roundabout also experiences congestion, which is
the main route onto the A34 bypass north and south. Mitigating the impact of congestion will be
increasingly important in the future.

Congestion is also experienced in particular on the B5359 and Alderley Road, which provides direct
access to the Royal London site. This site generates a significant amount of traffic on local roads
through the town at peak times and a challenge will be to mitigate potential additional impacts
associated with the site’s expansion.

Car parking is an acknowledged concern affecting the town centre, particularly around the railway
station. Car parking capacity constraints at the train station result in significant demand at long stay
car parks in the town centre, such as Broadway Meadow and Spring Street. Parking demand also
affects streets within nearby residential areas. Significant levels of on street parking is associated
with a reduction in accessibility for blue badge holders, cyclists, motorcyclists, perceptions of
severance for pedestrians, potential air quality and road safety concerns. There is a need to review
the existing parking situation and delivery improved management and facilities.

Cheshire East Local Transport Plan

178



Page 215

o
Chestire .2 ATKINS

Council?

South-East Manchester
Multi-Modal (SEMMM) Strategy

Refresh to 2040

Cheshire East Transport Issues and Options
Paper

November 2017 CRS




Page 216

South-East Manchester Multi-Modal (SEMMM) Strategy
Refresh — Issues and Options Paper

This issues and options paper has been prepared to support the refresh of the
SEMMM Strategy. This paper is released as an early consultation on the SEMMM
Strategy review, and is being made available for comment alongside consultation on
Cheshire East’s new Local Transport Plan. This paper presents information from the

emerging refresh of the SEMMM Strategy, but with a focus on the geographic area
which lies within Cheshire East (referred to as the ‘Study Area’ throughout). Appendix
A illustrates the SEMMM Strategy area in the context of the Cheshire East boundary.

1. Background

The 2001 South-East Manchester Multi-Modal (SEMMM) Strategy outlined a 20 year transport plan
for the South-East Manchester area. Cheshire East, Stockport Council and Transport for Greater
Manchester (TfGM) along with partners and stakeholders are currently working to refresh and build
on the original SEMMM Strategy looking forward to 2040. In parallel, Cheshire East Council are also
currently developing a new Local Transport Plan (LTP). This issues and options paper is being made
available for comment alongside consultation on the new Cheshire East LTP. The content of this
paper focuses on the SEMMM Strategy area which falls within Cheshire East, close to the Greater
Manchester boundary, as illustrated in Appendix A. This is referred to as the ‘Study Area’ throughout
the rest of this paper. The first part of this paper outlines existing and future transport challenges
(the issues). The second part presents emerging ideas aimed at improving transport provision within
the Cheshire East area (the options).

The 2001 SEMMM Strategy identified a wide range of projects, many of which have been or are in
the process of being delivered. Projects included the Alderley Edge Bypass (opened 2010) and works
which improved safety and the pedestrian environment in Handforth Village Centre. Another major
project was the A6 to Manchester Airport Relief Road (A6MARR) which is due to open in 2018.

There remain a number of projects from the original SEMMM Strategy Plan which are yet to be
delivered. With a focus on transport issues for Cheshire East, these include;

e Poynton Relief Road (PRR) — a planning application was submitted in September 2016 and
planning approval was subsequently awarded. Cheshire East Council is in the process of
developing a business case to secure funding from the Department for Transport (DfT), with
the expectation that the new road could be open by 2020;

e A6 to M60 Relief Road - Feasibility work and business case development for the scheme is
being progressed by Stockport Council and TfGM. The road would provide improved access
between the M60 (east) and the A6/A555; and

e Additional rail scheme proposals that remain under assessment; plans for an urban metro
system are being progressed via Northern Hub, and alternative rail options are also being
reviewed in light of High Speed 2 (HS2) and potential Northern Powerhouse Rail (NPR).
TfGM are currently undertaking a series of rail corridor studies which include strategic plans
for each rail route in the region. These will include a South East Manchester Network study
(including the Stockport — Disley - Buxton line), and a South Manchester Network study
(including lines from Manchester to Stoke-on-Trent via Macclesfield, and Manchester to
Crewe via Manchester Airport).



Page 217

As part of the SEMMM Strategy Refresh, outstanding projects are being reviewed alongside
potential new projects to determine if they meet the current vision and objectives for potential
inclusion in the emerging strategy.

2. Context within which the SEMMM Strategy Refresh is being
undertaken

The SEMMM Strategy Refresh is being undertaken against a backdrop of emerging proposals for
local, regional and national growth and development. The Northern Powerhouse initiative is aimed
at driving up productivity and output across the north of England. The forward-looking update to
the SEMMM Strategy needs to give due consideration to local planning policy, including evolving
work on the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF), as well as Local Plans for Cheshire East,
Stockport, High Peak and Derbyshire. Each plan sets out growth proposals which will impact the
South-East Manchester area and the wider region, with development growth inevitably impacting on
the transport system. The SEMMM Strategy Refresh will need to be developed in this context, as
well as addressing existing issues and opportunities including:

e Poor journey time reliability and congestion, particularly within the A34, A523, and A6
corridors;

e Challenges with rural connectivity and ‘last mile’ access to employment opportunities within
the more rural parts of the SEMMM Strategy area;

e Existing overcrowding on rail services along with constraints and opportunities posed by the
future arrival of HS2 / Northern Powerhouse Rail;

e Delivering modal shift to reduce the impact of travel demands and encourage healthy
lifestyles;

e Increasing investment in cycling and walking;

e Potential expansion of the Metrolink network across Greater Manchester, including tram-
train opportunities and potential future rapid transit proposals;

e Limited orbital public transport and highway connectivity and capacity, including linkages
between the south-east Manchester authority areas; and

e Responding to changes and opportunities associated with new technologies and their
impacts on transport service provision.

The diagram below illustrates how the SEMMM Strategy Refresh must interact and inform a number
of ongoing initiatives, all of which have ambitions to boost economic growth and opportunities.



Page 218

Stockport, Cheshire East, High
Peak and the Peak District
Highways England National Park Local Plans

and Network Rail
Programmes

Derbyshire Local
Transport Plan

DfT - Transport
Investment
Strategy
Manchester

Strategy I Airport Growth
Refresh to Plans

Cheshire East

Local Transport
Plan

Cheshire & Warrington Local
Enterprise Partnership
Strategic Economic Plan

Northern Powerhouse
Independent Economic
Review
Greater
Manchester 2040
Transport Strategy

Greater
Manchester
Strategy

Emerging Transport for
the North Strategic
Transport Plan

Greater Manchester
Spatial Framework

3. What would we like from you from this consultation?

This consultation is being undertaken to provide an early opportunity for people to be involved in
the development of the SEMMMS refresh. We welcome any comments on how we have understood
the existing situation, and the ideas we are putting forward on how the transport system should best
evolve in the future to be fit for purpose.

A series of key questions are presented below to prompt thoughts as you read the rest of this paper.

The SEMMMS Refresh will be looking at all aspects of transport provision in the area.
What are the key issues for transport in this part of Cheshire East and what do you think
should be done to improve things across all types of transport use?

We believe that new developments should contribute towards extra infrastructure to
make sure they are safe and sustainable. What are the priorities for your community?

Do you have any other comments about transport and other types of infrastructure in this
part of Cheshire East?

4. The Existing Situation

The SEMMMS Strategy area includes the northern part of Cheshire East, as indicated in Appendix A.
The northern parts of the SEMMM Strategy area are within Greater Manchester, and generally
benefit from the dense transport networks provided within the metropolitan area. In the south, the
setting becomes increasingly more rural, with dispersed settlements and more limited connecting
routes and services.

The highway network is focused on corridors linking the principal towns including the A523
(Macclesfield-Hazel Grove), the A538 (Prestbury-Wilmslow), and the A34 (Wilmslow-Handforth).



Page 219

Bus links are principally focused on shorter-distance trips, either within or between existing
settlements, and do not always provide a suitable alternative to car travel, particularly for
commuting. In addition, against a backdrop of cuts in public sector funding, there is also greater
pressure on budgets available to subsidise routes and services.

The area benefits from links to strategic transport networks via the M56 motorway, West Coast
Main Line via rail services at Macclesfield and Wilmslow, along with domestic and international
aviation via Manchester Airport. The area also benefits from a number of local rail stations, which
offer connectivity northbound into Greater Manchester, and southbound towards Crewe and Stoke-
on-Trent. Nevertheless, rail stations are more dispersed than in the more built-up Greater
Manchester area, and connections to the local and regional rail networks are focussed on a more

limited number of locations.

In the context of the existing transport system, we have identified a number of key issues which
currently affect people’s experiences of travelling and moving about the SEMMM Strategy area.

There are complex travel patterns — many different attractions and movements

The South-East Manchester area is broad and
diverse, with a complex range of movements
and travel demands. The role of transport is to
help facilitate people getting where they want
to go. In the northern part of the SEMMM
Strategy area, the regional centre is a key
attraction for people and access to Manchester
city centre is important for employment, retail
and leisure, as well as major employment
areas such as Manchester Airport, Trafford
Park, Stockport town centre and Salford
Quays.

In Cheshire East, travel movements are also
complex. Census travel to work data shows
there are strong links between north Cheshire
and Greater Manchester, with 26% of people
working in the Study Area commuting
outwards from Greater Manchester. Whilst
Greater Manchester is a significant source of
employment for north Cheshire residents,
there are similar numbers of Cheshire East
area residents who work in Macclesfield. Rural
employment locations are also commonplace,
with significant clusters of employment and

associated travel demands within the Cheshire Science Corridor,

including sites such as Alderley Park.

The movement of freight is also a key consideration, with sites in
the Peak District and trans-Pennine trips generating freight
movements through the SEMMM Strategy area. The A6 corridor
in particular provides an important role in supporting these
activities, and it carries a higher proportion of Other Goods

Vehicle (OGV) than other routes.

Over 46,000 people live in the Study Area and
make a journey to a place of work (i.e. they do
not work from home).

e 47% also work within the area

e 14% travel to other parts of Cheshire East

e 29% travel to Greater Manchester

e 1% travel to High Peak and Derbyshire Dales

45,800 people work in the Study Area.

e 48% also live within the area

e 13% travel from other parts of Cheshire East

e 26% travel from Greater Manchester

e 3% travel from High Peak and Derbyshire Dales

Note: These are people who make a journey, and
so excludes people who identified as ‘working from
home’

People who travel to employment within the Study
Area work in the following areas:

e Macclesfield - 50%
e Wilmslow - 19%
e Handforth- 12%

Source: Census 2011 Travel to Work Origin-
Destination Movements

Other Goods Vehicles \

Percentages
A523 near Hazel Grove
A34 Handforth Bypass

A6 in High Lane

@0® )

~

Source: TFGM DSD Report 191 9/




Page 220

Travel arrangements for employment and shopping and the way people think about travel
needs are also evolving. Changes in behaviour have been driven by the growth in home
delivery services for online shopping, and working arrangements in some sectors offering
more flexible ways of working with encouragement for home working.

Complex travel patterns mean that the transport system needs to accommodate a variety of
movements. A more efficient transport network which better connects people and goods with

opportunities and markets, would improve accessibility.

There is increasing highway congestion - especially on the main strategic corridors.

Highway congestion and unreliable journey times are a key source of traveller frustration.
Whether driving your car, sitting on a bus, or driving a lorry, delays have a severe impact and
time wasted whilst queuing has a negative impact on the economy. Journey time reliability on
roads and public transport is essential, and congestion adds a cost to business through
delayed deliveries, or employees arriving late.

Within the SEMMM Strategy area, congestion is a key issue across the main corridors
including the A34, A523 and A6. The images below show AM Peak speeds on two of these

routes, and highlights some of the worst congestion pressures in the Study Area, around
Handforth, Poynton and Hazel Grove.

Poynton

copyright and database

\  right (2017)
== Legend , Legend

/AM Peak Average Speed (mph) _ e AM Peak Average Speed (mph) -

0-10 5 S =g - 10

..... — 10-20 v = 10-20

N E S 20- 30 ——20-30 /
Contains OS data © Crown - s 30 - 40 i ! 30-40
copyright and database , — 40 - 50 s : 40 - 50

right (2017) , gver 50mph { = ™ Over 50mph



Page 221

Cross-boundary travel is a key consideration with

movements between Cheshire East, Stockport and Corridor Average Speeds

Manchester contributing to delays. The attraction of A34 Northbound

employment in Greater Manchester is a contributin (Alderley Edge Bypass to Eden Park Road)
ploymentin & g AM Peak - 28 mph (60% of speed limit)

factor to this. With the growth plans for both Cheshire Inter Peak - 39 mph (64%)

East and Stockport adding development near to the PM Peak - 26 mph (55%)

authority boundary, it is recognised that the A34 A523 Southbound

corridor in particular will face additional pressure in the (Hazel Grove to Macclesfield)

future. The motorway network is also under stress with AM Peak - 19 mph (61%)

Inter Peak — 30 mph (69%)

regular congestion on the M56 and M60. This reduces PM Peak 26 mph (65%)

the strategic accessibility of the area and has a wider
economic cost to the region. Qwrce: Trafficmaster data (Nov15 - Octly

There are localised congestion issues which affect the Cheshire East towns, with a Movement
Strategy having been developed for Macclesfield to address both existing and predicted
congestion in the face of future development growth. The original SEMMM Strategy identified
a detailed roads plan which included the AGMARR, Poynton Relief Road and the A6-M60 link
road. These schemes were identified as a means of improving strategic accessibility and
easing some of the demands on strategic corridors. The A6GMARR scheme should provide
strategic and local route improvements following its opening in 2018, providing important
network capacity and resilience.

Congestion also causes motorists to seek alternative routes, and vehicle flows are often high
on more minor (and less appropriate) roads, such as local routes through residential areas.
These routes are critical to the transport system, connecting important local destinations and
rural communities.

It is also recognised that delays can result from unscheduled roadworks and network

incidents, as well as a lack of capacity.

Congestion has an economic and environmental cost. Addressing this issue would create a
more efficient and resilient highway network, which better serves the local community and

protects local residents.

There are transport challenges in more rural areas - where public transport struggles to be
competitive against the private car

Whilst not without its challenges associated with capacity / \
and reliability, public transport is generally more accessible In the Study Area:

in the northern parts of the SEMMM Strategy area. In north 17% of households do not have a
Cheshire, access to services can be poorer with greater car, but 41% own 2 or more cars
distances between rail stations, and fewer bus services away 72% of people travel to work by
from the main highway corridors. This can create significant car

difficulties for people on the ‘last mile’ of their journeys, for Just 6% of people travel to work by
example to an end destination from the closest rail station, public transport

or between the nearest bus stop and their home location. Over one third of people travel less
Journeys which require linking up travel on more than one than 5km to work (35%), but over
service or mode (e.g. bus to a rail station) can be especially one fifth (230/‘;)0tkrave' more than
convoluted as timetables may necessitate long waiting "

times when interchanging. For many services, it is cost as k Source: Census 2011 /
well as availability which can deter use.




Page 222

These gaps in rural connectivity, as well as the availability of car parking provided near many
workplaces, make it tough for sustainable travel modes to compete. The relative prosperity of
the north Cheshire area and high car ownership have contributed to a perceived reliance on
privately owned motor cars. Whilst rail has an appeal for commuter and longer distance travel
such as into Greater Manchester, the bus network in particular struggles to compete for

shorter, local journeys.

Where public transport networks are less dense, connectivity gaps can build a reliance on
private car. This increases highway congestion and adds to environmental issues across the

network, as well as impacting on the viability of public transport services.

A lack of capacity on the railways — overcrowding can put people off

Over the past 10-15 years, there has been a
significant upturn in the popularity of rail travel.
For longer distance journeys, it can be
competitive against car, especially during peak
periods for commuters when congestion on the
road network is at its worst. The growth of the
Manchester regional centre has led to large
increases in commuter flows who often favour
rail as their preferred travel mode, but growth
has also come from more local journeys. The
popularity of services has also led to increased
demand for park & ride, which has meant
station car parks are often full where they are
provided. Macclesfield and Wilmslow benefit
from direct services to many major UK cities,
whilst Manchester Airport also acts as a
significant parkway station for south
Manchester. Increases in demand have
resulted in overcrowding on some peak

period services, and a lack of capacity to
accommodate more users.

/ Macclesfield - 1,614,000 passengers (+16%) \
Wilmslow -1.400,000 passengers (+9%)
Handforth — 268,000 passengers (-1%)

Poynton - 219,000 passengers (+3%)
Disley - 187,000 passengers (+11%)

Office for Rail Regulation
Annual Boarding and Alighting Data 2015/16

Values in brackets denote change since 2013/14
dataset

/

/

Macclesfield, 57

Prestbury, 40
Poynton, 40

Handforth, 0

Adlington
(Cheshire), 0

20 40 60 80 100 120 140
Number of Spaces

Rail Station Car Parking

o

Overcrowding has an economic cost and reduces the attractiveness of the public transport
network. Addressing this issue would create a more efficient and attractive public transport

network and would encourage more people to leave the car at home.

People should have options for travel — continual improvement is sought in challenging

financial conditions

In the main urban area of Greater Manchester, the bus network is expansive, with many
services connecting the major Greater Manchester towns, districts and employment centres.
Whilst there are excellent services in some areas (such as the 192 route on the A6), other
areas are reliant on services which are either infrequent, finish early, or don’t run on
weekends. In Cheshire East, the bus network generally provides links only connecting the
main towns, and following the main road corridors. Some routes are run with shorter hours
and/or lower frequencies. In more rural areas, public transport provisions can be fragmented.



Page 223

Gaps in connectivity reduce people’s ability to access jobs or services, and lead to greater
dependence on cars for those people who have access to a vehicle.

Across the SEMMM Strategy area, the bus network is a mix of commercial and supported
services (which are funded by TfGM or Cheshire East Council, and operated by bus companies
on their behalf). Whilst it is recognised that buses are critical for many and the network
should be positioned to best meet the needs of residents within the resources available, the
financial support available to sustain the bus network is an ongoing challenge for local
authorities given short-term budget constraints. Cheshire East Council recently completed
public consultation on proposals to change supported bus services from Spring 2018 as a part
of a review being carried out in response to funding cuts, whilst TFGM regularly review the
services which are supported in Greater Manchester. These pressures will continue to impact
on the available bus network. Reductions in service provision can be especially damaging in
rural areas where there can be little alternative. The Council will be identifying options to
minimise the negative impacts of any service withdrawals as a part of the supported bus
services review. One option is more flexible, demand responsive services, or community travel
programmes rather than traditional, timetabled bus routes.

It is also recognised that people with impaired mobility, or people travelling with pushchairs,
face additional challenges on every journey they make, and the transport system must offer as
few barriers to travel as possible, and be safe and secure. There have been significant
improvements in step-free access to bus and rail services over the past decade; however,
there remains further work to make sure stopping points are easily accessed, and vehicles
(buses and trains) are suitable to accommodate all travellers.

Public transport provision varies across the region with some areas better served than others.
Improved public transport accessibility would benefit communities, providing better access to

jobs and services. For rural communities, bus connectivity can be especially critical in offering a
real travel choice.

The transport system is getting safer — but more can be done

Safety is a key pillar of any transport system — to be appealing and attractive, users must feel
safe and secure whilst making their journey. Analysis for the Study Area has focused on the
main highway corridors. Of the accidents identified across a 59 month period:

e 8accidents (1.1%) resulted in a fatality;

e 20% involved a cyclist; and

e 17% involved a pedestrian.

The numbers of incidents on the main highway corridors in the study area, the following
overall numbers of accidents have been recorded.

Road Length All Accidents  Serious & Fatal

(per km) (per km)
A34 — Alderley Edge bypass to A555 5.7km 40 (1.43) 4 (0.14)
A523 — Macclesfield to A6 13.6km 96 (1.44) 22 (0.33)
A538 — Macclesfield to Wilmslow 11.8km 39 (0.67) 6 (0.10)

Data covers September 2011 - July 2016

All Great Britain A-Roads (Dft, 2015) 46,776km 64,280 (1.37) 9,771 (0.21)



Page 224

It is noted that the A34 and A523 sections are slightly higher than a national equivalent average for
A-roads, whilst the percentage involving somebody being killed or seriously injured is most
significant on the A523.

With regards to particular accident clustering on these main corridors (5 or more during 59 months):

A34 - junctions with the A538, Dean Row Road, the B5094, and Coppice Way.
A523 - junctions with the A537 in Macclesfield, the B5090, the A5143, and Bonis Hall Lane.
Accidents are also particularly prevalent through the centre of Poynton.

A538 — near Tytherington School

Safety must be continually reviewed and issues addressed where a risk is identified, with a view to
reducing the overall number of accidents and the number of incidents involving vulnerable users.

Safety throughout Cheshire East’s road network is of paramount importance for all road users.
Continuing to address this issue will create a safer and more attractive transport network for

the benefit of all.

More can be done to encourage cycling — for shorter and longer journey

In the context of wanting to encourage less car travel and a healthier society, walking and
cycling is a natural choice to promote. Active travel offers many benefits, including a reduced

reliance on private cars, and Cheshire East Council are
strongly promoting the benefits of more cycling through their
Cycling Strategy. This includes a target to double the number
of people cycling at least once per week between 2014-2025,
and improve the public perception of cycling within the
Borough. Data from the Census shows many people travel
short distances to their jobs, and similar journeys are also
made to local centres and shops. These are the types of
journeys where behaviours can be altered. However, to
encourage this to happen, it is understood that the facilities
need to be in place to make it safe and attractive. More
people will cycle if there is a good surface, segregated
provision, and lighting (where appropriate) to make them feel
less vulnerable.

.

~

Active People Survey 9 and 10
identify 52% of adults living in
the Cheshire East district
participate in sport or active
recreation each month (ranked
78% of 326 local authorities)

J

-

Department of Health analysis
indicates 67% of adults in the
Cheshire East district are
overweight or obese, the same as
the North West average

J

Within the Study Area, there has been recent investment in cycle infrastructure, including
routes which give better access between National Cycle Network (NCN) Route 55 and
Macclesfield rail station. The roll out of Bikeability and Learn to Ride training across local

schools has also given more young people confidence to
cycle. However, more can be done to bring together existing
links to create more continuous networks. In the context of
busy, congested highway corridors, it is a natural ambition to
ensure that parallel or segregated cycling routes are on offer,
which can be faster than travelling along a congested road by
car.

University of Glasgow research
has indicated cycling to work
lowers the risk of dying early by
40 per cent, and reduces the
chance of developing cancer by
45 per cent

Increasing active travel for different journey purposes will improve health and quality of life in

communities across the north Cheshire area

10



http://www.telegraph.co.uk/men/recreational-cycling/5-shortcuts-increase-cycling-speed-olympic-road-track-rider/

Page 225

There are gaps in connectivity — movements which cannot be made directly

A key component of the original SEMMM Strategy was the AGMARR which will open in 2018
and provide a complete route (the A555) between Hazel Grove and Manchester Airport,
offering congestion relief to local routes and District Centres. The AGMARR scheme is also
intended to integrate with the proposed Poynton Relief Road. For public transport, north-
south connectivity follows the main highway routes and rail lines, however east-west
connectivity is more limited without any rail connections.

Within the study area, there are also local connections which are not well catered for. For
example, there are limited connections between Disley and Poynton either by public transport
or to cycle.

Manchester Airport’s public transport connections with north Cheshire are limited, with most
connectivity being focused to the north of the Airport including to the regional centre with rail
and Metrolink routes. There are limited connections to most areas south of the M60. As a
result, the Airport is only accessible by public transport within a 60 minute journey time for a
small proportion of the study area which is almost exclusively along the Styal Line rail corridor.
Car mode share for travel to the Airport (travellers and staff) is therefore understandably high.
The refresh of the SEMMM Strategy needs to complement work Manchester Airport is
undertaking to help deliver integrated transport solutions, enabling the Airport to
accommodate its ambitious growth aspirations, and modal share targets, whilst improving
access from the north Cheshire area.

Poor connectivity limits access to skills and existing/ future markets. Addressing this issue
would allow people to take up jobs opportunities, employers to recruit the best workforce and

businesses to deliver goods efficiently.

The need to recognise and target the adverse environmental impacts of transport

Local air pollution, carbon emissions and noise all / _ _ _ _ \
. The following Cheshire East Air Quality
cause significant harm to health and the Management Areas (AQMA) are located

environment, and transport is acknowledged as a within the SEMMM Strategy area:
major part of the environmental challenge facing A6 Market Street, Disley

the country. Poor air quality and concentrations of A523 London Road, Macclesfield
emissions make places less attractive and can Park Lane, Macclesfield

. . Broken Cross, Macclesfield
impact on the health of local communities. k Hibel Road, Macclesfield /

Transport can have an environmental and social impact. Addressing this issue will improve the

health and quality of life in communities across Stockport and the wider area.

The balance between ‘movement and place’ functions must be right to support the town
and district centres

As well as providing connectivity, transport also plays a supporting role in creating places
which are appealing to live and work. Careful consideration is required of the balance
between attractive places (and the built environment), and movement functions (including
access and parking). A busy road through a local centre may be a sign of good access, but will

11



Page 226

also impact on pedestrian movement and access. The shared space scheme in Poynton which
was implemented in the study area is an example of how re-balancing priorities can transform
the way an area is seen by drivers, cyclists and pedestrians, and deliver an economic boost to
a local area. Lessons can be learnt from the implementation of that scheme, and benefits
would be greatly enhanced by the Poynton Relief Road which would reduce flows in Poynton
town centre, further reducing severance and making it feel safer for pedestrians and cyclists.

Traffic can have a detrimental impact on the quality of centres, streets and local communities.
Providing a better balance between movement and place will enhance the quality of places and

boost local communities.

5. How the situation is going to change in the future

Proposals for Growth

The refresh of the SEMMM Strategy is being progressed not only to tackle existing transport issues,
but also to plan the major transport investment required to manage future growth in travel demand
and traffic levels.

Cheshire East’s Local Plan was adopted in June 2016. It includes the provision of at least 36,000 new
homes and 939 acres of employment land across the borough. Whilst Crewe is a focal point for
significant development growth, maximising the benefits of future HS2 provision, the Cheshire East
Local Plan also includes strategic site allocations across the SEMMMS area. These will expand the
existing settlements of Wilmslow, Macclesfield, Poynton and Handforth. The largest single
development site is the North Cheshire Growth Village, located alongside the interchange of the A34
and A555.

The northern part of the SEMMM Strategy area
extends into Greater Manchester, which is working to
collectively define growth plans through the Greater

AN INCREASE IN EMPLOYMENT
n

|
|

Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF). GMSF is a joint it ;"“
plan led by the Greater Manchester Combined 7 as iton
Authority (GMCA) for the supply of land for jobs and SUPPORTING

i pouaTion TS REQUIRING
new homes across the region. A draft GMSF was 5 GR“Tﬁ,@? iy 25?56560
consulted on in late 2016-early 2017 but is now subject EnTYT 3 MORE HOMES

. . f %1%’

to review based on the consultation responses and the NG LRSS
views of the Greater Manchester Metro Mayor ??ég':ﬂff;'gﬁ“m
appointed in summer 2017. A new version of the plan +600,000 i
will be subject to further public consultation in June T”ES\;EE\{@W“S
2018.

Greater Manchester Development

Neighbouring authority areas are also developing and Overview — 2040 Strategy, page 4

implementing plans for future development growth,

with knock-on impacts for the SEMMM Strategy area. High Peak approved their new Local Plan in
May 2016, whilst the Peak District National Park are currently in the process of developing a new
plan.

Manchester Airport is also a major hub for future growth. The Airport was the third largest in the UK
for passenger numbers in 2016 and is a key global gateway for the region as a whole. The Airport’s
expansion plans will see passenger numbers grow from 25 million to 55 million by 2050. The Airport

12



Page 227

City Enterprise Zone is also an emerging major employment site, with plans for circa 5 million sqft of
offices, hotels, advanced manufacturing, logistics facilities and retail space.

Future Major Transport Investment

There are a number of significant transport investments either planned or in the process of being
delivered which will affect the future situation within the SEMMM Strategy area and links to the
wider Cheshire East authority area:

e A6 Manchester Airport Relief Road (A6MARR) and Poynton Relief Road (PRR);

e HS2 —Phase 2b of HS2 will include a link to Manchester Piccadilly and a new station at
Manchester Airport;

e Macclesfield Movement Strategy — a multi-modal package of interventions to improve
access and reduce congestion issues compounded by future growth;

e Smart Motorways — The first Highways England Road Investment Strategy included Smart
Motorway provision on the M56 between junctions 6 and 8 (along with provision on the
M60 between J24-27 & J1-4); and

e Northern Hub / NPR — Major Rail investment across the North of England.

Future Technologies and Innovation

Whilst it is important to identify and plan appropriate measures to improve the transport system, it
should be recognised that transport provision is changing, with technology directly influencing how
people travel. Demand-responsive travel services, like Uber, and public transport timetable
information accessed through smart phones are two examples of how technology is changing how
people choose to travel.

In looking to the future, the network is likely to see the introduction of some form of connected and
autonomous vehicles (CAV), as well as the possible introduction of a different type of transport
model, such as Mobility as a Service (MaaS). MaaS is an emerging concept in transportation that
could see a transition from personally owned modes of transportation to a service that can be
purchased and integrates various forms of transport provision into a single mobility service that is
accessible on demand.

New technology and innovation can have a significant role in improving ‘last mile’ access between
rail stations and employment sites across the SEMMM Strategy, and especially within the Cheshire
Science Corridor.

6. Vision and objectives

The refresh of the SEMMM Strategy is tasked with considering the transport issues of today, and the
challenges which are likely to arise in the future. A coherent strategy is required to ensure people
are able to move freely, giving them the ability to access the places where they want to work, or the
places they want to do their shopping, etc.

To set a framework for the future, the work to refresh the SEMMM Strategy has defined a vision for
the transport network as follows:

"A transport network that supports inclusive sustainable
economic growth, improves quality of life and protects
the environment.”

13



Page 228

To realise this vision, there are 3 primary objectives which the new strategy is seeking to deliver.
This vision and these objectives align closely with the visions of TFGM’s 2040 Strategy and Cheshire
East’s LTPA4.

Support
sustainable
economic

Improve quality Contribute to
of life, safety, protecting the
health and built and

growth and
promote urban
regeneration

equality of HELI]]
opportunities environments

To offer the best opportunity for the vision and objectives to be achieved, we must look at the
problems being faced today and into the foreseeable future, and identify ways of overcoming the
transport challenges which may hold us back. Based on the SEMMM Strategy evidence base, 10
enabling objectives have been set which are principles which can guide the journey towards
realising the outcomes from a transport and connectivity perspective.

ii) Improve transport capacity and accessibility to jobs

i) Tackle congestion and improve journey time and services in the regional centre, key centres, town /
reliability, in particular on key corridors. local centres, key employment areas and at
P Manchester Airport.
iii) Promote an integrated public transport network iv) Improve connectivity to surrounding key towns and
that supports seamless travel. cities through new and enhanced transport links.
v) Improve safety, security, resilience and maintenance vi) Enhance and create new safe walking and cycling
of the transport network. connections and encourage active travel to support
A healthy communities.

vii) Enhance the quality of the built environment and
contribute to creating successful streets, spaces,
villages, towns and local centres.

viii) Increase the use of sustainable transport and
support the creation of a low emission future.

ix) Exploit new technologies and innovative approaches x) Provide improved accessibility to local health,
where they can add value to the strategy. i i education, leisure and retail services, for all age groups

This vision and enabling objectives were developed as part of the preparation of the SEMMM
Strategy Refresh evidence base, and agreed following discussion with Cheshire East Council,
Stockport Council, and TfGM. The enabling objectives offer clarity to inform the measures and
interventions which the Strategy should be looking to promote and deliver.

7. Potential options in the Study Area

To deliver a transport system which can align to the vision and objectives of the SEMMM Strategy
Refresh, co-ordinated planning and investment will be required. The challenges are complex and
there is not one single, big fix which can transform the area. The suggested approach is to consider
the challenges in a collective way, and look towards multi-modal packages which deliver solutions

14



Page 229

which complement each other, and create alliances in the transport system where cars, bus, trains,
trams, cyclists and walkers integrate seamlessly together.

At present, a broad range of options have been looked at which can help to address some of the
transport challenges. These are covered below, showing their alignment to the 10 enabling
objectives.

The future priorities for the area could include:

1. Poynton Relief Road alongside identified mitigation and complimentary measures;

2. Solutions to improve ‘last mile’ access to destinations in more rural, and less well connected
neighbourhoods;

3. Multi-modal improvements on the A34 corridor, acknowledging and accounting for cross-

boundary travel patterns;

Implementation of the Macclesfield Movement Strategy;

Local capacity and safety improvements on the A523 corridor;

High Lane to Disley A6 Bypass;

Continued development of the strategic and local cycling and walking networks;

New bus rapid transit services catering for cross-boundary travel to/from the Greater

Manchester conurbation; and

9. Sustaining and improving public transport opportunities.

© N Uk

Enabling Objective What could this look like in relation to Cheshire East?

i) Tackle congestion and improve e Poynton Relief Road alongside identified mitigation and
journey time reliability, in complimentary measures

particular on key corridors. e A523 Corridor improvements, to include junction

improvements and widening. Potential longer term need
for an offline bypass scheme south of Poynton Relief
Road.

e Junction improvements and widening on major highway
corridors — A34 and A555 in particular to improve journey
times. Potential integration of greater bus priority
measures also.

e Macclesfield Movement Strategy addressing selected
hotspots across the town centre.

e High Lane to Disley Bypass

e Segregated bus priority on key corridors — e.g. A34 or
A555 to improve bus options and journey times. May
require road widening.

e Further measures to encourage bus and rail travel, and
cycling, with the aim to have fewer people driving —
including more park and ride capacity

15



Enabling Objective

Page 230

ii) Improve transport capacity and
accessibility to jobs and services
in the regional centre, key
centres, town / local centres, key
employment areas and at
Manchester Airport.

‘ What could this look like in relation to Cheshire East?

Increased rail line speed between Macclesfield and
Stockport

Local solutions to ‘last mile’ travel (with particular focus
on the Science Corridor), improving connectivity between
transport nodes and employment/leisure destinations
More capacity on transport connections to the regional
centre

New public transport connectivity linking with new
development and Manchester Airport, including new bus
(potentially Bus Rapid Transit) services

iii) Promote an integrated public
transport network that supports
seamless travel.

Better co-ordination of public transport timetables to
facilitate interchange

More opportunities for park and ride to encourage more
public transport use

Providing supported bus services taking account of the
evidence derived for the Council’s Supported Bus Service
Review

More facilities which enable people to cycle before
boarding a public transport service including improved
cycle routes and better cycle parking

Wider provision of Real Time Information at bus stops
Supporting the roll out of Smart ticketing

iv) Improve connectivity to
surrounding key towns and cities
through new and enhanced
transport links.

Better public transport links between Greater Manchester
and North Cheshire/Derbyshire

Additional strategic cycle routes and better
interconnectivity between existing routes

More capacity on transport connections to the regional
centre

v) Improve safety, security,
resilience and maintenance of the
transport network.

Highway improvement schemes which target accident
hotspots to improve safety, including on the A523 near
Butley Town.

Sustained approach to network maintenance

Design enhanced resilience into new infrastructure

vi) Enhance and create new safe
walking and cycling connections
and encourage active travel to
support healthy communities.

More cycle links, especially segregated routes parallel to
major movement corridors to create better connected and
more continuous routes — including a new route linking
Wilmslow to Manchester Airport, and upgrades to the
Macclesfield Canal towpath

Enhanced footway provision, surfacing and lighting
Facilities which support interchange between bicycle and
public transport modes

Travel choices initiatives including cycle hire schemes, and
cycle training/maintenance support

vii) Enhance the quality of the
built environment and contribute
to creating successful streets,
spaces, villages, towns and local
centres.

Town, district and local centre improvements including
wider footways, better quality surfaces, new lighting and
more public spaces

Infrastructure which encourages walking and cycling e.g.
in town, district and local centres and close to public
transport hubs and schools

16




Page 231

Enabling Objective ‘ What could this look like in relation to Cheshire East?
viii) Increase the use of e Better bus connectivity, including more frequent services
sustainable transport and support and better timetable coverage through the week
the creation of a low emission e More capacity on rail services, and line speed
future. improvements
e Platform lengthening at stations between Stockport and
Macclesfield.

e Potential for new stations such as in High Lane or
Adlington Business Park to give added connectivity.

e Better facilities and an improved experience when using
rail stations, through local improvements

e Targeted investment to resolve the worst air quality
hotspots

e Travel choices initiatives including car clubs and cycle hire
schemes, alongside targeted travel planning programmes
(schools, businesses, etc).

ix) Exploit new technologies and e Developing the infrastructure needed to support Electric
innovative approaches where Vehicles and Connected Autonomous Vebhicles

they can add value to the e A future-vision of Mobility as a Service (Maa$)

strategy

x) Provide improved accessibility e Public transport measures to protect and improve local
to local health, education, leisure connectivity to essential local services.

and retail services, for all age

groups

8. Funding

There are different sources of funding that will be drawn on to deliver the future interventions that
will go into the refreshed SEMMM Strategy. Below is a summary of potential funding sources:

Central Government

There are a number of funding streams available through central government to deliver
infrastructure improvements, such as DfT and DCLG grant funding. These include:

e National Productivity Investment Fund — originally valued at £1.1bn for local transport
networks (upkeep and enhancement) and £220m for national roads to fund smaller projects
that can quickly and directly tackle congestion and improve local productivity. This has been
further extended through the 2017 Autumn Budget.

e Transforming Cities Fund — Greater Manchester was allocated £243m over four years to fund
transport projects, take forward and support delivery of local strategies, and help to improve
connectivity and reduce congestion in the region.

e DCLG Housing Infrastructure Fund -a £5 billion fund that will help to unlock new homes in
areas of high demand, with local authorities across England able to bid for this fund to help
get homes built faster.

e Transport Technology Research Innovation Grant (T-TRIG) competition - provides seed
funding to early-stage science, engineering or technology innovations with potential to lead
to the development of successful new transport products, processes or services, such as
sensors to collect real-time data or solar powered charging solutions for more sustainable
travel choices.

17



Page 232

Innovation Challenge Fund and RIS Innovation Fund - helps support the development of new
technologies, methods or processes that help to meet DfT policy goals.

Local funding

Local funding sources include those available through the devolution deal and the use of Earn-back
and private financial models, such as:

Local Growth Fund - gives access to funding over and above what Greater Manchester and
Cheshire East would normally receive from Government, as part of the devolution deal, to
support major and minor works transport schemes that deliver the priorities of the LEP, and
to supplement investment in walking and cycling (e.g. Cycle City Ambition Grant, Local
Sustainable Transport Fund, Access Fund).

City Deal - includes the principle of an Earn-back model with Government, which builds on
the approach of increasing self-sufficiency in delivering infrastructure investment in Greater
Manchester.

Private finance models such as public private partnership (PPP) - can be used to fund
projects, where they demonstrate they can provide the best value for money, and are
consistent with other policy objectives, affordable and commercially viable.

Developer contributions

If the private sector stands to financially benefit from transport schemes, scheme promoters will
look for them to provide a direct contribution to the capital cost of infrastructure provision.
Attracting such funding can enable projects to go ahead or be expedited, and potentially allows
them to be delivered to a higher quality and achieve better value for money. Local authorities can
also levy charges on development to pay for infrastructure needs. These include:

Section 106 agreements between the local authority and developers attached to a planning
permission, if the infrastructure is required to make a site acceptable in planning terms.
The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) that ensures developers contribute to the
cumulative impact on local areas.

Business Rate Supplement, where local authorities can add a supplement to business rates
for infrastructure (subject to a local business referendum).

18



9. Next Steps

Page 233

The SEMMM Strategy Refresh process is shown in the figure below. Having reviewed the 2001
SEMMM Strategy and agreed the strategy objectives, baseline evidence has been gathered and the
potential range of future impacts identified. The study is now at the stage of defining the issues and
identifying a broad range of options. This public consultation in Cheshire East seeks feedback to the
identified issues and opportunities. Views are sought on the issues affecting the North Cheshire area
and the nature of options to tackle these issues. A similar consultation has recently been completed
in Stockport, to complement their work developing a new Local Plan.

SEMMM Strategy Refresh Process Key Stages

Issues and
Options

Assessment

Preferred
Strategy

Final Strategy

Published
Summer 2018

¢ Review implementation of 2001 SEMMM Strategy
¢ Review Strategy objectives
¢ Develop evidence base - current and future

¢ Review of Issues and potential range of options

~

e Public Consultation on Issues and Options paper to
support Stockport Local Plan development

ePublic Consultation on Issues and Options paper to
support Cheshire East Local Transport Plan
development

¢ Review of potential options based on consultation
feedback

¢ Option Development and Testing
¢ Assessment of options

e Emerging options fed in to wider policy context
(Cheshire East / Stockport Local Plan and GMSF)

¢ Development of Preferred SEMMM Strategy
¢ Public Consultation on the Preferred Strategy

* Review of Preferred Strategy based on consultation
feedback

%
<

¢ Adoption of the Final Strategy and development of
programme for delivery. The recommendations of
the Strategy will feed back into the Cheshire East
LTP4.

_J
<

We are here

Based on the outcome of this public consultation the next steps will be to;

e Develop and test detailed options targeted at addressing the issues;

e Assess the performance of the options against the 10 enabling objectives;

e Draw together the options and interventions which best address the strategy objectives to
comprise the Preferred Strategy;

e Preferred strategy public consultation to inform and receive feedback; and

e Identify the funding mechanisms and establish the programme for the delivery of the
SEMMM Strategy interventions.

19




Appendix A: Location Context Plan

The part of Cheshire East which falls within the SEMMM Strategy is referred to the ‘Study Area’ throughout this paper.

}(\ i /"\,_
i |
f S

{ /'/ e \_HOWDEN M

Ropi ) (s
y:" W lf (k"\)

‘e

A Y

5o~ iz & CMANCHESTERY: *

e g

I 2 E Green )/
"ASBO e

1on==47 |

imon | B

by /mrshury

; . Chathos

D
L

% 3 g ) H [ NI g= “ﬁ .5 0 % i _"& = ’ » -
N ZRIAM (B il : s L \
| “_7,./, — o . { )| g . 7 \\& \ i
e W RS e Lo - : : BN el
fchiood & i Mitiingt f L $ 3 - ‘\\?- 4}5
A i . 4 ‘ 3 “' x v y‘l j A -' £ \')

= = 572 B oy
Al

Torside B
-

b
» Ll

.

< reeonved | RE
15

N L= N Sy =
a2} v
~

Kinder ™«

RN
ASB7 {AI TRINCHAM
.@vsdl i

\
VPR
/4 Chliley Head
o™

52

&S

o L TR

N\ .,‘—R_EAK\\:_DIS;TRI'CT
\ o NATIONALYPARK}
g\%\— M@fﬂ:@? Q_Junon
V " NP ﬁr%mm
Worrhin ‘%MD')’ x(;l}g,‘,o
ale RS Mousal Hei
[n&270) ==

Taddinglof] 12 7y

24V

‘\
A
\

Burntd 4
* Danebridge

P X

7 N —r ! O,

4 SEMMI_W i R A el N P =t A SN AN, N A
D Cheshire East > o ‘%}‘\ Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2017.

L NG WL AN =l ¥/ _ga o N N Peshionk 5 s s woaton VR AR N W S AN N W%,

20

v€c ebed






This page is intentionally left blank



Cheshire Ea

Council %

High Level Parking Strategy
Cheshire East

2017




Page 238

High Level Parking Strategy for Cheshire East
Contents

Introduction

Need for a High level Strategy

Aims and Objectives

Cheshire East Councils ambition for Parking
Enforcement Action

On-Street Parking

Local Plan Parking Standards

Ultra Low Emission Vehicles

| * N o v s W DhoRE

HGV and Coach Parking

=
o

. Cycle and Motorcycle Parking

[ERY
[ERY

. Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Parking

=
N

. Residential Parking

=
w

. Parking Initiatives




Page 239

1. Introduction

Cheshire East has one of the most successful economies in the country and is consistently
recognised as offering an excellent quality of life, including being recently recognised as the
happiest place in England'.

The existing car parking strategy was published in 2010, bringing together the parking strategies
of the three former borough Councils of Macclesfield, Congleton, and Crewe and Nantwich. This
strategy is intended to further develop and harmonise the parking offer focusing on the
Cheshire East principal towns and key service centres.

There are two broad categories of car parking in Cheshire East:

i.  On-street — this is parking within the adopted highway boundary that is regulated by the
Council acting as highway authority. Enforcement of on-street parking regulations is
undertaken by the Council.

i.  Public off-street — these are parking areas provided by the Council which are open for
use by the general public. Some car parks are charged for according to length of stay.

In developing this strategy, issues of demand and supply will be considered, together with
establishing when the Council may consider changes in supply.

Further work on future requirements for parking will come through the Local Plan Documents,
the Local Transport Plan, the On-Street parking policy, and the individual Town Parking Studies.

2. Need for a High Level Strategy

Effective management of both on and off street parking can have a significant effect on the
capacity and flow of traffic on the road network. Well managed parking can have a positive
environmental effect, making our towns attractive with the resultant impact on local economic
viability.

The Council must continue to manage on and off street parking whilst encouraging more
sustainable travel patterns including walking, cycling and public transport where these effective
alternatives are viable.

A Parking Strategy can assist in encouraging balanced transport choices, working with other
policies, strategies and plans to develop the required approach.

1 Office for National Statistics (2016) Personal wellbeing in the UK: local authority update




Page 240

It is important to ensure that the economic viability and vitality of our town centres is
preserved, the provision of well planned and managed parking, both on and off street plays a
key role in achieving this. Whilst it is not always possible to increase parking space within urban
areas without high costs, controls can be put in place to manage demand.

It is recognised that there is a need to cater for a number of users including residents, shoppers,
tourists, workers and commuters. The balance of need depends on individual locations,
however in general:

% Shoppers require short stay convenient parking. In some locations tourists are likely to
spend the whole day where Park & Ride could be a convenient option.

«* Commuters/workers require long stay and can be encouraged to walk further to their
destination and are more likely to use Park & Ride/rail facilities or local bus services.

+» Residents (where off-street private parking is not available) require on-street parking as
close to home as possible. In some locations they may be given preference over
shoppers/or given shared use provision.

% Visitors and tourists may require either short or long stay parking depending upon the
tourist offering and this will need to be considered in each location.

¢ For some of Cheshire East’s towns, the night time economy is important, and people are
likely to make different choices therefore the pricing strategy needs to take account of
this, as fewer public transport choices are available at night and there are personal
security concerns for some.

The provision of off-street parking can be very costly, both in terms of land requirements and
maintenance costs. The Council charges for parking in order to recover these costs from service
users, although it is recognised that there is currently a disparity between those areas of the
borough where parking charges apply and those where they do not.

Cheshire East Council is also responsible for the making of Traffic Regulation Orders concerning
on street parking control and is responsible for the enforcement of those Traffic Regulation
Orders including the management of off street car parks within their ownership.

An appropriate Parking Strategy can support regeneration of town centres while also
encouraging people to think more about when and how to travel, perhaps choosing public
transport, and contributing to road safety.

In order to establish a consistent approach across the Borough, it is proposed that each town
be looked at individually with regards to parking quality, choice and value, thus facilitating
necessary unique pricing tariffs based on patterns of parking demand, size of town and its draw




Page 241

in terms of the type of shops, catchment area and whether it is predominantly a local service
centre or includes tourists.

The proposed town parking studies will include:

s Alsager +« Middlewich
+ Congleton % Nantwich
s Crewe < Poynton
¢ Handforth + Sandbach
% Knutsford % Wilmslow

% Macclesfield

3. Aim and Objectives

The overall aim of this High Level Parking Strategy is that it will seek to balance long-term
economic, social and environmental well-being underpinned by the following objectives:

e

" Manage traffic to improve transport network efficiency

e

A

Encourage the use of more sustainable and healthy forms of travel, including walking,
cycling and public transport

X/
°e

Sustain and enhance the vitality of our town centres

Provide for the parking needs of people with disabilities & parents/carers with young
children

Balance the parking demands of local residents, shops and businesses and visitors,
shoppers, workers and commuters

*
°e

X/
°

The strategy looks at all forms of parking requirements, not just for cars i.e. Ultra Low Emission
Vehicles, motorcycles, and Heavy Goods Vehicles.

The strategy includes some guiding principles based on national and more local
recommendations, linking closely with other transport initiatives within the borough:

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public transport/local transport plan/local transport plan.as
bX
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/highways and roads/cycling in cheshire east/cycling in ches

hire east.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public transport/transport strategies.aspx



http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public_transport/local_transport_plan/local_transport_plan.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public_transport/local_transport_plan/local_transport_plan.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/highways_and_roads/cycling_in_cheshire_east/cycling_in_cheshire_east.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/highways_and_roads/cycling_in_cheshire_east/cycling_in_cheshire_east.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/public_transport/transport_strategies.aspx

Page 242

The strategy’s aim is to manage the existing parking stock, with particular emphasis on our
principal towns and key service centres. Any changes to provision, including park & ride, would
be considered in line with the Local Transport Plan framework.

The strategy will not set parking charges (Tariffs) but rather establish the general principles
which should be taken into consideration for charging. Charges/tariffs are set at annual budget
rounds and are to be considered on a town by town basis.

Overall, it is the intended aim that the High Level Parking Strategy should work in conjunction
with proposals in the emerging town centre regeneration programmes which Cheshire East
Council is developing and delivering. These are to be reflected in the proposed programmes of
work.

4. Cheshire East Councils ambition for Parking - Quality Choice Value
Quality

Safe, secure and accessible parking is vital to the attractiveness of our towns and assists in the
promotion of our principal towns and key service centres, boosting the economic regeneration
of the borough.

Parking is often the first contact that a visitor has with a town and can thus provide the first and
lasting impression. Security, cleanliness and availability of facilities contribute to this impression
and play an important role in the successful of our towns.

The Community Safety Strategy identifies reduction of vehicle crime and the fear of crime as
key priorities.

Examples of facilities considered important include:

+* Clear directional signage to car parks

+* Clear signage within the car parks including bay lining

+» Designating appropriate spaces for disabled motorists, motorcycles and electric vehicles
s CCTV

+* Clean and well maintained car parks

% Active uniformed patrols

Improvements and measures have been implemented to work towards enhanced safety and
security on car parks. CCTV has been re-introduced on Spring Street Multi Storey Car Park
(Wilmslow) and Jordangate Multi Storey Car Park (Macclesfield).




Page 243

The Councils car parks are regularly inspected and any actionable maintenance issues such as
defective lighting, faded lines, and surface maintenance will be addressed. It is important that
Cheshire East Council continues to:

¢+ Continues to pursue high standards of safety, security and cleanliness on its off street
car parks

¢ Support increased provision for electric vehicle charging infrastructure
Choice

Parking provision and management within Cheshire East will take into account national and
regional planning and transport policies, complement local land use and regeneration policies,
and relate to the size and function of the principal towns and key service centres. Parking
provision will reflect wider community objectives with facilities being safe and secure.

The Council will consider maximising the availability of short stay spaces in prime, central
locations for use by shoppers and other short stay users. Short stay parking generates a high
turnover of spaces allowing more visitors to be accommodated per space. The Council will
therefore review the designations of each car park to ensure the right spaces are in the right
places — looking at whether the provision should be short or long stay or a mixture of both.

Disabled parking and the Blue Badge scheme will comply with the national guidelines, although
a review does need to be undertaken with regards to the location of disabled spaces in car
parks. Whilst our aim is to meet the needs of our towns, historical underuse of disabled
parking in some highly utilised car parks can exacerbate the availability issues of general spaces.

The Council’s work on climate change and green travel promotes better use of the car and
healthier more environmentally friendly alternatives, such as walking, cycling, motorcycles and
public transport. Travel Plans are also seen as a key element in reducing car usage by tackling
different aspects of businesses transport.

Parking impacts on traffic flow and on street parking can reduce the capacity of the road
network. Provision of adequate, safely accessible off street parking can reduce this impact. In
addition, parking guidance and information can reduce unnecessary traffic movements and
thereby congestion in and around main centres.

The Traffic Management Act 2004 places a network management duty on local authorities to
keep traffic flowing, and to co-operate with other authorities to the same end. Local authorities
have to exercise all of their functions which may affect traffic in a more coordinated way.




Page 244

Parking Provision, management and enforcement must contribute to the delivery of the overall
statutory network management duty. Providing for either too few or too many vehicles in a
town can affect its environment and its viability. Whilst it is not possible to increase parking
space within urban areas without high costs and abstracting prime urban land from the limited
supply, controls can be put in place to manage demand.

Value

Charging is an effective tool in managing the demand for parking spaces, however because each
of our towns are unique, it is not appropriate, fair or realistic to introduce a uniform borough-
wide tariff model. The approach would be to set appropriate tariffs on a town by town basis
following each town parking study.

It requires the recovery of full cost from service users. Any pricing mechanism adopted should
be appropriate for the following purposes:

* Managing demand, required to promote the use of town centre short stay spaces for
shoppers and visitors

+» Ensuring that direct users pay for the service, e.g. charging appropriately in car parks
close to train stations that are predominantly used by Commuters.

%

* Providing finance to support other strategic transport aims

Cheshire East Council would in principle impose charges for parking based on supply and
demand, reflecting local pressure and needs including any consequences for on-street parking.
The key measure for assessing the demand, pressure and need will be the utilisation of the car
parks, measured through either ticket sales or by observing the numbers of cars parked at
particular points in time.

Those towns where average car park utilisation during peak hours is high would be considered
for increased charges to manage demand. The provision of additional parking could also be
considered providing the charges were sufficient to recover the investment cost required to
deliver the additional parking requirement. A business case would be required to demonstrate a
return on investment to ensure residents and businesses would not be required to fund any
shortfall.

Those towns where average car park utilisation during peak hours is low could be considered for
reduced charges to support the towns economic viability. A reduction in parking provision could
also be considered, potentially releasing land for redevelopment and regeneration. Any
reduction in charges would still be expected to cover to cost of operating and managing the
town’s car parking.




Page 245

It is expected that an appropriate town by town charging level, combined with appropriate
enforcement action, will help the Council to make the best use of the car park assets which in
turn is likely to make parking easier and more attractive.

Formal consultation will be required to introduce new charges as part of the agreed Council
procedures.

Following completion of each town parking study, the Council will review the parking charges
annually, in accordance with the Council’s Fees and Charges policy, at least recovering the cost
of the car park service.

5. Enforcement Action

Fundamental to any Parking Strategy is the need for efficient parking enforcement, to ensure
that on-street parking supply is managed effectively, to prevent inappropriate parking that
could cause congestion and increase dangers for other road users, and to ensure proper
management of off-street car parks and time limited on-street parking.

The enforcement approach will be geared to effectively manage the supply of off street and
unauthorised parking; effective parking enforcement is also required on street short stay
parking.

Cheshire East Council is responsible for enforcing parking, loading and waiting restrictions on the
streets and in the car parks throughout Cheshire East, with the exception of most major trunk
roads. This is carried out under the terms of the Traffic Management Act 2004 and is a civil
matter rather than criminal. Civil Enforcement Officers will issue Penalty Charge Notices to any
vehicle parking in contravention and will enforce on-street contraventions as well as in car parks.
The Civil Enforcement Officers are paid an annual salary only and there is no bonus, commission
or incentive scheme or target for issuing Penalty Charge Notices.

Enforcement practice will follow the Guidelines detailed in the Traffic Management Act 2004; it
will focus on key areas where compliance needs to improve and will follows the principle that the
purpose of enforcement is to induce motorists to comply with the regulations.

The Councils Civil Enforcement Officers will operate under the following principles:

¢ Enforcing parking and waiting restrictions to ensure maximum space availability for

customers and business visitors.

++ Taking action where unlawful or inconsiderate parking stops traffic (or the free flowing
movement of traffic)




Page 246

++ Taking action where cars parked on pavements block the walk way for pedestrians who
then have to go into the road to pass the cars (particularly in school keep clear areas)

+» Taking action where the unlawful or inconsiderate parking is dangerous
+» Taking action where emergency vehicles are prevented from travelling along a road
+» Taking action where spaces are taken up which should be used for disabled people

+» Allowing for exceptional events and circumstances and engaging with the community at
key events

A key partner in control is Cheshire Police who continue to be responsible for enforcement of
certain traffic offences; Cheshire East residents and businesses rightly expect that we act as
true partners in tackling bad and dangerous parking, utilising our respective powers promptly,
efficiently and in concert.

6. On-Street Parking

On street parking is essential to local residents and businesses, but can also be detrimental.
Clear signs and road markings are essential for effective on street parking provision. The Council
will review the provision of on street parking, as part of the individual town parking studies, to
assess if the current restrictions meet the requirements of our principal towns and key town
centres.

Further detail relating to on-street parking is available through the Council’s On-Street Parking
Guidance.

7. Local Plan Parking Standards

The adopted Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy 2010-2030 details the parking standards applied
to new developments. It is considered that the town parking studies will support the evidence
base for use in determining the parking requirements of new development, allowing the
Council to depart from the standards where appropriate to improve the management of the
road network.

8. Ultra Low Emission Vehicles

The Council will promote and support the use of ultra-low emission vehicles (ULEVs), including
electric vehicles, due to their reduced impact on air quality. Electric vehicles have the potential
to help reduce kerbside emissions if they become more widely used in Cheshire East, although
current technology means that they are likely to be a more attractive choice in urban areas due
to the limited availability of charging points in the rural areas. To date, take-up of electric




Page 247

vehicles has remained low, however all predicted forecasts are for significant growth moving
forward.

The potential exists to install public on-street charging points. Since any bays would have to be
reserved for electric vehicles only, the Council will take into account future demand and the
loss of general public parking before considering whether to install any on-street bays.

9. Heavy Goods Vehicle and Coach Parking

The provision of HGV and coach parking is a necessary amenity across the authority; the
provision of lorry parking is required to ensure that drivers have suitable places for rest breaks
and encourages appropriately parking. At present HGV parking is underutilised, and has
capacity to fulfil future growth detailed in the 2011 Department for Transport Lorry Parking
Study. Cheshire East will assess the provision of HGV parking in line with future growth and
associated demand; this should include assessing the location of existing facilities and assessing
if the locations are suitable for future demand.

The Freight Transport Association indicated that demand for overnight lorry parking facilities
would rise as a result of the 1998 EU Working Directive leading to increased need for driver
stops. The Council will continue to review the needs in specific areas to determine whether
existing facilities are adequate and appropriately located.

Additionally, successful tourist attractions require adequate off street coach parks to prevent
road safety problems and to protect the environment. To deter access via residential streets
and other environmentally areas, it is intended that off street coach and overnight lorry parks
will be located, where required, with good links to the road network and regard to the impact
on the local environment.

10. Motorcycle Parking
Motorcycles and mopeds offer the same potential for personal mobility as private cars whilst
contributing less congestion, pollution and damage to roads. They are lighter, generally more

fuel efficient and take up less space, whether parking or moving.

The safety of users of motorcycles and mopeds and the need for secure parking must be taken
into account both in new and existing developments and at public transport interchange sites.

11. Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles




Page 248

Taxis and private hire vehicles are important in meeting the travel needs of many sections of
the population, especially people with disabilities and for those whose journeys cannot be
made on foot, cycle, bus or train.

Taxi parking should be visibly provided at key locations, such as shopping areas and public
transport interchanges. Ranks should be marked out to avoid random parking. Accessibility to
the parking location is a priority and a road safety audit should be carried out to ensure taxi
movement will not conflict with other users. The level of taxi parking will be assessed on a case
by case basis.

12. Residential Parking

The Council aims to improve the quality of life for residents through parking management,
provision and relief of traffic congestion generated by parking demand. Residential areas
around town centres can suffer from commuter on street parking and in some cases controlled
parking zones are implemented to meet the needs of residents and local businesses.

The Council will review on street parking provision for residents as travel demands grow, and
assess if the need exists for the introduction of further controlled parking zones. The Council
should review the on street demand at each of the principal towns and key service centres and
assess the impact to residents, reviewing existing Traffic Regulation Orders.

13. Parking Initiatives
Parking at Rail Stations

The provision of adequate car parking at railway stations can help to reduce the length of car
journeys by attracting people onto rail for the major part of their journey. In addition, it can
help avoid or alleviate ‘overspill’ parking around stations.

In reviewing parking issues at railway stations, the Council will need to consider a number of
factors to seek to gain a better understanding of the local context:

% the quantity and usage of parking presently available at a station and in the surrounding
area

% the level of charges for those parking spaces, if any are in place, and charges at other
nearby stations serving the same destinations

¢ the number of stopping train services
+»* the origin (catchment area) and journey mode of station users;

% the impacts of station traffic and parking on the local road network and community




Page 249

+ the length and type of rail journeys

++ the availability of sustainable transport modes to and from the station.

If appropriate, the Council will then work with Network Rail, station and public transport
operators, passenger and cyclist groups and others to evaluate the situation further and
investigate possible solutions that take account of the needs of both rail users and the local
community. In line with LTP objectives, the Council will ensure that any solutions also promote
modal shift by encouraging the use of walking, cycling and public transport. These issues and
the factors above should be considered as part of a station travel plan.

Increased parking provision at railway stations will only be considered if it is included as part of
a station travel plan or linked to improved infrastructure such as the new Hub Station in Crewe.

Sunday Parking Requirements
On a Sunday many towns now see a normal shopping or visitor day, therefore there is a need to
manage Sunday parking to serve shoppers and visitors. Overall there is also a benefit in

simplifying and providing a consistent approach.

The Council should consider proposals to maintain / introduce standard tariff seven day charges
for off-street car parks where charges are applied.

Charging in off street car parks whilst maintaining free on-street parking on a Sunday does
create the effect of people seeking to park on-street. However it is considered that the benefits
to be gained from introducing Sunday charging do outweigh the cost of Sunday on-street
parking enforcement.

Night Time Economy Parking Requirements

The Council should consider that in towns/areas where the night time economy is prevalent,
that consistent time bands for charges are applied as follows:

¢ For off-street car parks 8am to 10pm Monday to Sunday.
Shopper/Retailer subsidy
Although there are issues about drivers thinking about alternative methods of travel where
possible, this does allow for local loyalty incentives to shoppers when supporting local shops

and is recommended these be made available where requested.

Contract permits — off street car parks




Page 250

It is proposed that contract permits will be car park specific (currently some may be for more
than one car park) and will be registration specific, with up to two vehicles registrations per
permit. It is recommended that no contract or season permits should be issued for short stay
car parks as this parking is designed to be available for short stay trips for shoppers and visitors.

Waivers
A list of special permits and conditions appropriate for issuing them should be established.

This provides for carers, meals on wheels, essential trades, such as plumbers, etc. These usually
allow for parking, where essential, in Residents Parking Zones or Pay & Display, or in certain
cases on double yellow lines. Clear principles will be set out, which need to be backed up by
clear issuing procedures for staff.

Charging Mechanisms

In general where charges in a car park or on-street are applied, Pay & Display machines are
used. Whilst pay on foot machines/pay on exit Pay Stations that give change, may be popular
elsewhere with users, these are expensive to install and maintain. The Pay Station costs in the
region of £16,000 added to the cost of a barrier and ticket reader required at the exit at
£10,000, plus on-going maintenance requirement. Pay & Display ticket machines cost in the
region of £4,000. In many cases the level of income is not sufficient to warrant the higher
investment or operating costs of Pay Stations relative to Pay and Display and this will need to
be a consideration.

Barriers require maintenance, and if a car park is not staffed any mechanical failures can cause
problems. It is recommended therefore that Pay & Display be retained in car parks, and only
MSCP’s be considered for Pay Stations permitting pay on exit.

Disabled Parking
The use of disabled spaces is governed by the blue badge parking scheme. This is a European
scheme for people with limited mobility and allows disabled people accessible parking in

locations that enable access to shops and services.

The badge is allocated to individuals and not to vehicles. It can only be used when the named
holder is either the motorist or travelling with a carer.




Page 251

People displaying a blue badge may park on double yellow lines for a limited period where their
vehicle does not obstruct traffic or other road users. However, such parking is prohibited where
there are additional yellow road markings that restrict parking or where local parking
restrictions apply such as outside schools. The blue badge scheme also governs use of disabled
spaces on car parks.

The Council adheres to the national policy on concessions for Blue Badge Holders. There are on-
street designated disabled bays. These are free and have no time restrictions for blue badge
holders. For disabled bays in off-street car parks, blue badge holders can currently park without
charge for as long as they want to, even if this is only a short stay car park.

In 2015/16 8125 Blue Badges were issued contributing to the circa 20,000 blue badges held by
the Boroughs individual residents and organisations.

/7

+* This strategy recommends that national disabled parking standards for car parks and all
new developments are applied across the borough.

X3

A5

The strategy recommends that the quantity and locations of disabled bays are reviewed
and where necessary, changed to meet the needs of users in each urban centre. Ideally,
disabled bays should be close to amenities and spread out around town centres rather
than all together.

% It is recommended that charges for disabled parking are considered for implementation
alongside charging for standard spaces. This will generate revenue which can be used for
raising the quality of parking.

Parent and Child Parking

There is no specific national or local policy on the provision of parent and child spaces. Supply of
these in Cheshire East is almost entirely within privately owned, retail-related car parks.
Occupancy of these spaces is generally high. Whilst it is legally unenforceable and does not yield
additional revenue, it is felt that consideration should be given to the provision of parent and
child spaces. This could be done in conjunction with the review of disabled spaces, Snow Hill car
park in Nantwich is currently the only one facilitating these spaces.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 253

Cheshire Eact\)

Council%

On Street Parking Guidance

2017

OFFICIAL
On Street Parking Guidance October 2017



Page 254

On Street Parking Guidance

Contents

1. Introduction
2. On Street Parking Regulations
3. Types of Restrictions
3.1. Prohibitive Waiting Restrictions
3.2. Permissive Waiting Restrictions
3.3. Other Restrictions
School Keep Clear Markings
Loading and Unloading Restrictions
Controlled Footway Parking
4. Parking Guidelines
4.1. Road Safety
4.2. Accessibility
4.3. On Street Parking Capacity
4.4. Amenity
4.5. School Parking

4.6. Parking associated with Employment and
Development Sites

4.7. Footway and Verge Parking
5. TRO Process

OFFICIAL
On Street Parking Guidance October 2017



Page 255

1. Introduction

Cheshire East Council as Traffic Authority is responsible for making Traffic Orders that
regulate on street parking.

The Cheshire East road network needs to support a local transport system that promotes
economic growth, is safe for all road users and is not detrimental to the quality of life in
our communities. The Council recognises the importance of its highway infrastructure and
how an effectively maintained and managed road network contributes to the accessibility
and safety of its users.

This Guidance document regarding on street parking restrictions has been developed to
support the Council’s High Level Parking Strategy with the aim to manage the level of on
street parking based on guiding principles and ensure consistency of approach to overall
parking management across the borough.

In line with the High Level Parking Strategy, the guiding principles for parking will be
applied in town parking studies to ensure the management and balance of parking is
addressed both on and off street.

2. On Street Parking Regulations

There are a number of pieces of national legislation that impose statutory obligations and
duties on the Council in relation to on street parking including:

e The Traffic Management Act 2004 (TMA) places a duty on all local traffic authorities
to secure the expeditious movement of traffic on their road networks.

e The Road Traffic Act 2006 (RTA) requires local authorities to prepare and carry out
a programme of measures designed to promote road safety.

e Waiting restrictions are indicated on the road network by road markings and signs
which can only be implemented or changed via Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs)
which involves a legal process governed by strict legislation. The Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 (RTRA) defines under what circumstances a TRO can be
introduced. These are:

o Avoiding danger to persons or traffic;

o Preventing damage to the road or to buildings nearby;

o Facilitating the passage of traffic;

o Preventing use by unsuitable traffic;

o Preserving the character of a road especially suitable for walking or horse

riding;

OFFICIAL
On Street Parking Guidance October 2017



Page 256

o Preserving or improving amenities of the area through which the road runs;
and

o For any of the purposes specified in paragraphs (a) to (c) of the Environment
Act 1995 in relation to air quality.

The RTRA also requires the Traffic Authority to exercise these powers to secure the
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic and the
provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway.

Any decision to restrict vehicles from parking on the road network must have due regard to
these objectives.

3. Types of Restrictions
There are two main types of waiting restrictions:

e Prohibitive Waiting Restrictions and

e Permissive Waiting Restrictions.

3.1 Prohibitive Waiting Restrictions
Generally, prohibitive waiting restrictions are indicated by yellow road markings
and the times of the control are indicated by accompanying signs (except for
double yellow lines, where restrictions apply 24 hours per day and cannot have
supporting signs).

Zonal restrictions can be applied to parking on the road, footways and verges.
These are indicated by zonal entrance signs and repeater signs.

It should be noted that the setting down of passengers and loading/unloading is
lawfully allowed, except where the following loading restrictions apply:

° Bus Stop Clearways;
° Bus Lanes;

) Clearways;

) School Keep Clears;
° Box junctions; and

° Doctors Bays.

Also, blue badge holders (disabled drivers or passengers) can lawfully park for up
to three hours on Single or Double yellow lines during the hours of operation
provided they do so safely, are not obstructing traffic and the badge and clock are
clearly displayed with the correct time of arrival.

OFFICIAL
On Street Parking Guidance October 2017



Page 257

3.2 Permissive Waiting Restrictions
Permissive bays manage the demand for parking by assisting in addressing
conflicts for parking in areas of high demand.

These are usually indicated by zonal entry signs or white parking bays with
accompanying signs. The signs indicate who can park and any limits on length of
stay or times of use. Sometimes designated use of a parking bay can be indicated
on the carriageway in white lettering, such as ‘disabled’, ‘doctors’, ‘loading’ or
‘permit holders only’.

3.3 Other Restrictions

School Keep Clear Markings and zig zag markings associated with pedestrian
crossings.

Stopping under any circumstances during the hours of operation is prohibited on
School Keep Clear markings and this includes coaches, deliveries and blue badge
holders. The purpose of providing School Keep Clear markings is to keep the space
outside of schools free from parked vehicles so that children can be seen more
easily when crossing the road.

Loading and Unloading Restrictions

These are indicated by yellow “tabs” on the kerb and can be at all times or for a
prescribed period as indicated on accompanying signs. No vehicles are permitted
to park in these locations during the hours of operation, including blue badge
holders.

Controlled Footway Parking

Legislation is available to allow footway parking to be created using line markings
and signs to delineate when parking is allowed. However, it is necessary to ensure
there is a minimum of 1.2 metres of remaining footway for wheelchair users etc.
These parking bays can be enforced by the Council’s Civil Enforcement Officers.

A street can be designated a footway parking zone. In this circumstance there will
be a requirement to sign the street either by local signs or zonal signs but there
are no formal markings on the footway and residents are left to park
appropriately. This does not necessarily prevent parking causing an obstruction of
the footway and where this occurs it can only be enforced by the Police.

4. Parking Guidelines

The Council receives numerous complaints and requests each year from residents who are
experiencing local parking issues.

The types of issues that are reported include:

OFFICIAL
On Street Parking Guidance October 2017



Page 258

e Road Safety and traffic flow concerns caused by parked vehicles;

e Access to residential properties being restricted and hampered visibility on exiting;
e Parking around junctions;

e Parking on bends;

e Indiscriminate parking around schools and employment and development sites; and

e Residents have no off street parking and there is limited on street parking available.

In the majority of cases the criteria defined under the RTRA is not met and other methods
need to be considered in line with the Highway Code. But in making that decision the
following needs to be considered:

e What s the evidence?

e Who or where is the source of the evidence?

e What actual safety risks are there?

e What is the role of the Police and Council around enforcement?
e What is the potential impact of the TRO?

e Does it meet with local and National Regulations?

It is important to consider each issue to identify if it is a real problem and not a perceived
one and the consequences of any change to Regulations do not simply displace the
problem. Contentious TROs are often challenged and can be the subject of an Ombudsman
investigation, it is therefore important that the powers available under the RTRA are used
appropriately and that there is clear evidence to support the decision to implement the
TRO.

Issues raised can be categorised as follows:

4.1 Road Safety
The highest proportion of issues raised by members of the public, parish and town
councils and Ward Councillors relate to the perceived potential for risk to safety,
particularly at junctions or where parking is considered hazardous. These issues
are frequently close to amenity areas such as rail stations.

However, this can only be considered as a reason for a TRO if collisions are
occurring or where a formal risk assessment carried out by qualified road safety
professionals indicates a high risk that should be mitigated.

Cheshire East will consider parking restrictions in locations supported by
evidence provided by the Police in order to reduce collisions.

OFFICIAL
On Street Parking Guidance October 2017



Page 259

4.2 Accessibility
These are issues where parking contributes to problems that affect through
traffic.

However, consideration has to be given to the frequency and the effects on the
volume of traffic, including the time periods.

Cheshire East will consider parking restrictions on roads where parked vehicles
are proven to have a detrimental effect on the capacity and efficiency of the
road network.

4.3 On Street Parking Capacity
This is where there is a conflict in demand or capacity for parking in an area. Most
relate to where off-street parking is limited and conflict between residents and
other road users for on street parking exists. It also includes requests for residents
only parking zones.

Cheshire East will consider requests for residents parking zones in locations that
meet the criteria detailed within the current Residents Parking Permit Guidance.

Cheshire East will consider other forms of parking restrictions where equivalent
additional parking capacity can be provided.

Cheshire East will consider the installation of individual disabled person’s
parking bays where eligibility is identified through a Community Care
Assessment.

4.4 Amenity
Issues arise that affect the visual or environmental amenity of a particular area.
This includes parking on grass verges or where parking is considered to be a visual
intrusion rather than a safety or accessibility issue, such as in conservation areas.

Cheshire East will consider restrictions in conservation areas where the
equivalent additional parking capacity can be provided.

Cheshire East will consider the formal restriction of parking on footways and
verges on an area wide basis

When introducing or renewing yellow lines in Conservation Areas Cheshire East
will use Primrose Yellow and 50mm wide lines

When introducing new restrictions in rural and Conservation Areas Cheshire East
will consider the use of Zones involving signs only at entrances

OFFICIAL
On Street Parking Guidance October 2017



Page 260

Demand for access to retail facilities and transport hubs and the associated
parking capacity available can have a detrimental effect on the surrounding area
and community.

Cheshire East will consider parking restrictions in villages and town centres on
an area wide basis that will take in to consideration on street and off street
availability and time restrictions.

4.5 School Parking
The Council actively supports and encourages a responsible approach to parking
and driving outside and around schools through its road safety education
programme and regular enforcement in partnership with the Police and Cheshire
Fire and Rescue Service.

The Council has a Sustainable Modes of Travel to School Strategy and a Safer
Routes to School programme. Working with schools that have an up to date
school travel plan, this programme aims to manage and reduce the impacts of
parking around schools.

The introduction or extension to parking restrictions near schools needs to
consider any impacts of displacing parking problems to other local roads.

Cheshire East will assist local communities to tackle parking issues related to the
school start and finish times as appropriate.

Cheshire East will seek to avoid the displacement of on street parking near
schools when considering any new restrictions.

4.6 Parking associated with Employment and Development Sites
There are numerous parking issues within and surrounding many of the boroughs
major employment sites. The Council will apply the guidelines alongside working
with employers to reduce the impacts on the road network by encouraging both
considerate parking where this affects residential areas and sustainable travel to
work.

The adopted Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy 2010-2030 details the parking
standards applied to new developments. It is considered that the town parking
studies will support an evidence base for use in determining the parking
requirements of new developments through the planning process. In certain
circumstances the Planning Authority may consider departing from the standards
where unacceptable pressure would be placed on the road network.

4.7 Footway and Verge Parking
The Council does not advocate parking on footways or verges due to the impact it
has other road users and the damage it causes.

OFFICIAL
On Street Parking Guidance October 2017



Page 261

Any proposals for footway and verge parking must balance the needs of all road
users against the physical constraints of the highway.

Cheshire East will consider the benefit of hardened verges to cater for localised
parking provision but only where this is deemed appropriate against the needs
of all road users.

5. TRO Process

The Council will consider Traffic Regulation Orders to improve Network Management,
Road Safety and Accessibility for all road users through the following process:

Priority 1 - Urgent

Those locations where there are urgent access issues, such as emergency services, refuse
collection vehicles unable to travel along a road, or where a specific safety issue has been
evidenced.

Priority 2 — Non Urgent

These are locations where residents are frequently competing with commuters/local
workers for limited on street parking. Those requests that meet the criteria specified in the
guidance will be considered with a focus on an area wide approach.

Priority 3 — Non Urgent
These are locations where alternate on street or off street parking is readily available
elsewhere in the locality.

OFFICIAL
On Street Parking Guidance October 2017



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Performance update - Engine of the North
	2018 - Feb - EOTN - Scrutiny Committee (2a)

	7 Local Transport Plan Refresh
	Append 1 - Engagement Plan Rev0.4 - Jan18 (2)
	Append 2- Cheshire East LTP - Draft Report IC Rev1 (2)
	Appendix 3 - DRAFT CE SEMMMS Refresh Issues and Options Working Draft_V4.0_ISSUED (2)
	Appendix 4a - Draft High Level Parking Strategy 2017 v0 3 (3) (2)
	Appendix 4b - Draft On Street Parking Guidance 2017 v0 3 (2)


